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NOTE ABOUT REFERENCES

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “Annual Re), the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer t&aratoga Investment Corp.
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, Saratoga Investrrunding LLC and Saratoga Investment Corp. SBIE,, unless the context otherwise
requires. We refer to Saratoga Investment Adviddr§,, our investment adviser, as “Saratoga Investelvisors” or the “Investment
Adviser.”

NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements in this Annual Report ctutstforward-looking statements. Forwdoabking statements relate to expectatic
beliefs, projections, future plans and strategaesicipated events or trends and similar expresstoncerning matters that are not historical
facts. In some cases, you can identify forward-ioglstatements by terms such as “anticipate,” #velj” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “project,” “hould,” “will” and “would” or the negative of thederms or other comparable terminology.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futuropmance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. Thesédidfe, assumptions and expectations can changeesil of many possible events or factors,
not all of which are known to us or are within @antrol. If a change occurs, our business, findrgadition, liquidity and results of
operations may vary materially from those expressexir forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in thim#al Report involve risks and uncertainties, inolgdstatements as to:

e our future operating results;

* our business prospects and the prospects of otioji@icompanies;

» the impact of investments that we expect to make;

* our contractual arrangements and relationships thitd parties;

» the dependence of our future success on the geemmabmy and its impact on the industries in whighinvest;

« the ability of our portfolio companies to achieheit objectives;

e our expected financings and investments;

» our regulatory structure and tax treatment, ineigdiur ability to operate as a business developemnpany, or to operate our
small business investment company subsidiary, aedntinue to qualify to be taxed as a regulatedstment company;

» the adequacy of our cash resources and workingatapi
« the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operasf our portfolio companies; and

« the ability of our investment adviser to locatetahlie investments for us and to monitor and effetyi administer our
investments.

For a discussion of factors that could cause owadcesults to differ from forwartboking statements contained in this Annual Re
please see the discussion under Part |, Item 18K'Ractors”. You should not place undue reliancéhese forward-looking statements. The
forward-looking statements made in this Annual Repalate only to events as of the date on whiehstiatements are made. We undertake nc
obligation to update any forward-looking statemtenteflect events or circumstances occurring dfterdate of this Annual Report.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

We are a specialty finance company that investagnily in leveraged loans and mezzanine debt isbyqativate U.S. middle-market
companies, which we define as companies havingarEBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, de@ton and amortization) of $5 million
and $50 million, both through direct lending ancbtigh participation in loan syndicates. Our investirobjective is to generate current incc
and, to a lesser extent, capital appreciation foominvestments. We are externally managed andgad\iy Saratoga Investment
Advisors, LLC, a New York-based investment firmileifed with Saratoga Partners, a middle marketate equity investment firm.

Our portfolio is comprised primarily of investmetsleveraged loans (both first and second liemtlerans) issued by middle market
companies. Leveraged loans are generally senidrinigbuments that rank ahead of subordinated detite portfolio company. Leveraged
loans also have the benefit of security interestthe assets of the portfolio company, which mak @head of, or be junior to, other security
interests. Term loans are loans that do not allebbrrowers to repay all or a portion of the loprisr to maturity and then re-borrow such
repaid amounts under the loan again. We also psecimezzanine debt and make equity investmentsddienmarket companies. Mezzanine
debt is typically unsecured and subordinated taos@lebt of the portfolio company.

While our primary focus is to generate current mecand capital appreciation from our debt and gdoitestments in middle market
companies, we may invest up to 30.0% of our padfol opportunistic investments in order to seekmhance returns to stockholders. Such
investments may include investments in distressdd, dncluding securities of companies in bankryptareign debt, private equity, securities
of public companies that are not thinly traded simdctured finance vehicles such as collateraliaad obligation funds.

As of February 28, 2014, we had total assets 09 $2tillion and investments in 37 portfolio compamiand an additional investment
in the subordinated notes of one collateralized laialigation fund, Saratoga Investment Corp. CLQ2Q, Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO"), which
investment had a fair value of $19.6 million ag-ebruary 28, 2014. The overall portfolio compositas of February 28, 2014 consisted of
15.7% of middle market loans, 39.0% of first liennh loans, 13.5% of second lien term loans, 14.6%ewior secured notes, 2.7% of
unsecured notes, 9.5% of subordinated notes of&@m&L O and 5.0% of common equity. As of Febrizy2014 the weighted average yield
on all of our debt investments, including our invesnt in the subordinated notes of Saratoga CLG,approximately 11.8%. As of
February 28, 2014, approximately 99% of our fiish Idebt investments were fully collateralizedhia sense that the portfolio companies in
which we held such investments had an enterprike\a our investment had an asset coverage egalgreater than the principal amount of
the related debt investment. Our investment irstii®rdinated notes of Saratoga CLO representstddas position in a portfolio that, at
February 28, 2014, was composed of $301.3 millioaggregate principal amount of predominantly sesgcured first lien term loans. A first
loss position means that we will suffer the firsbeomic losses if losses are incurred on loans linelthe Saratoga CLO. As a result, this
investment is subject to unique risks. See P#tierly 1A. “Risk Factors—Our investment in SaratogaDConstitutes a leveraged investment ir
a portfolio of predominantly senior secured fifshlterm loans and is subject to additional righd @olatility.”

We are an externally managed, closed-end, nonsifiezt management investment company that haseeléotbe regulated as a
business development company (“BDC”) under the stment Company Act of 1940 (“1940 Act”). As a BD&& are required to comply with
various regulatory requirements, including limibats on our use of debt. We finance our investmibinégigh borrowings. However, as a BDC,
we are only generally allowed to borrow amountshsthat our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940efjuals at least 200.0% after such
borrowing. Pursuant to the 200.0% asset coverageliritation, we are permitted to borrow one @dolto make investments for every dollar
we have in assets less all liabilities and indetésd not represented by preferred stock or debtises issued by us or loans obtained by us s
that for every one dollar of outstanding indebtngeshave two dollars of assets.

We have elected to be treated for U.S. federalnreectax purposes as a regulated investment compRi®"j, under Subchapter M of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”)afRIC, we generally will not have to pay corportsteel federal income taxes on any net
ordinary income or capital gains that we distribiat@ur stockholders if we meet certain sourcerabime, distribution and asset diversification
requirements.

In addition, we have a wholly-owned subsidiary tisdicensed as a small business investment com{i&BIC") and regulated by the
Small Business Administration (“SBA”). See “ltemBusiness—Regulation—Small Business Investment GompRRegulations.” The SBIC
license allows us, through our wholly-owned sulzsigito issue SBA-guaranteed debentures. We ratexemptive relief from the Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) to permit us tduke the debt of our SBIC subsidiary guaranteethbySBA from the 200.0% asset
coverage ratio we are required to maintain unded840 Act. This allows us increased flexibilityden the 200.0% asset coverage test by
permitting us to borrow up to $150.0 million mohah we would otherwise be able to absent the reoéthis exemptive relief.

4




Table of Contents
Corporate History and Information

We commenced operations, at the time known as G8€stment Corp., on March 23, 2007 and completadital public offering of
shares of common stock on March 28, 2007. Pridutg 30, 2010, we were externally managed and adviy GSCP (NJ), L.P., an entity
affiliated with GSC Group, Inc. In connection witie consummation of a recapitalization transaatioduly 30, 2010, we engaged Saratoga
Investment Advisors (“SIA”) to replace GSCP (NJ)PLas our investment adviser and changed our ta®aratoga Investment Corp.

The recapitalization transaction consisted oft(@ private sale of 986,842 shares of our commarkdtor $15.0 million in aggregate
purchase price to Saratoga Investment Advisorscartdin of its affiliates and (ii) the entry intd40.0 million senior secured revolving credit
facility with Madison Capital Funding LLC (the “Cdé Facility”). We used the net proceeds from thieate sale of shares of our common
stock and a portion of the funds available to useurthe Credit Facility to pay the full amount eofgipal and accrued interest, including
default interest, outstanding under our revolviagwsitized credit facility with Deutsche Bank AGeW York Branch. Specifically, in
July 2009, we had exceeded permissible borrowmgdiunder the revolving securitized credit fagilitith Deutsche Bank, which resulted in
an event of default under the revolving securitizeztit facility. As a result of the event of detaeutsche Bank had the right to accelerate
repayment of the outstanding indebtedness undeettudving securitized credit facility and to fotese and liquidate the collateral pledged
under the revolving securitized credit facility.&fevolving securitized credit facility with DeutscBank was terminated in connection with
our payment of all amounts outstanding thereundeluly 30, 2010. In January 2011, we registereginlic resale by Saratoga Investment
Advisors and certain of its affiliates the 986,&k&res of our common stock issued to them in tbapitalization.

On March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary,a@ga Investment Corp. SBIC, LP, received an SRi€hke from the SBA.

Our corporate offices are located at 535 Madisoarie, New York, New York 10022. Our telephone nunib€212) 906-7800. We
maintain a website on the Internet at www.saratogggtmentcorp.com. Information contained on oursitelis not incorporated by reference
into this Annual Report, and you should not consttlat information to be part of this Annual Report

Saratoga Investment Advisors
General

Our investment adviser was formed in 2010 as avlaia limited liability company and became our irtwgsnt adviser in July 2010.
Our investment adviser is led by four principalbyi€tian L. Oberbeck, Michael J. Grisius, Thomadnglesby, and Charles G. Phillips, with
26, 24, 27 and 17 years of experience in leveréigadce, respectively. Our investment adviser iialed with Saratoga Partners, a middle
market private equity investment firm. Saratogaias was established in 1984 to be the middle etgmkvate investment arm of Dillon
Read & Co. Inc. and has been independent of DiRead since 1998. Saratoga Partners has a 28-wtanyhdf private investments in middle
market companies and focuses on public and prequity, preferred stock, and senior and mezzargi idvestments.

Our Relationship with Saratoga Investment Advisors

We utilize the personnel, infrastructure, relatlips and experience of Saratoga Investment Advisoeshance the growth of our
business. We currently have no employees and damlr @xecutive officers is also an officer of Saga Investment Advisors.

We have entered into an investment advisory andagement agreement (the “Management Agreement”) Satiatoga Investment
Advisors. Pursuant to the 1940 Act, the initiahtesf the Management Agreement was for two years fite effective date of July 30, 2010,
with automatic, one-year renewals, subject to agdrioy our board of directors, a majority of whomishbe our independent directors. On
July 15, 2013, our board of directors approved#mewal of the Management Agreement for an additione-year term at an in-person
meeting. Pursuant to the Management Agreementidsgrdnvestment Advisors implements our businasgesiy on a day-to-day basis and
performs certain services for us under the direatibour board of directors. Saratoga Investmentigats is responsible for, among other
duties, performing all of our day-to-day functiodetermining investment criteria, sourcing, analgzand executing investments, asset sales,
financings and performing asset management duties.

Saratoga Investment Advisors has formed an investommmittee to advise and consult with its senmianagement team with respect
to our investment policies, investment portfoliddings, financing and leveraging strategies anéstment guidelines. We believe that the
collective experience of the investment committesrbers across a variety of fixed income assetesdasdl benefit us. The investment
committee must unanimously approve all investmenéscess of $1.0 million made by us. In additialhsales of our investments must be
approved by all four of our investment committeemmbers. The current members of the investment comenitre Messrs. Oberbeck,

Grisius, Inglesby, and Phillips.
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We pay Saratoga Investment Advisors a fee for itmvest advisory and management services consistigopocomponents—a base
management fee and an incentive fee. The base maeag fee is calculated at an annual rate of 1.G66tir gross assets which includes
assets purchased with borrowed funds but excluaes and cash equivalents. As a result, Saratogatiment Advisors will benefit as we inc
debt or use leverage to purchase assets. Our bbdnactors will monitor the conflicts presenteglthis compensation structure by approving
the amount of leverage that we may incur.

In addition to the base management fee, we pay@mdnvestment Advisors an incentive fee whichststs of two parts. First, we
pay Saratoga Investment Advisors an incentive file \espect to our pre-incentive fee net investnigedme in each calendar quarter as
follows:

e noincentive fee in any calendar quarter in whighre-incentive fee income does not exceed a fikaeddle rate”of 1.875% pe
quarter (7.5% annualized); and

e 100.0% of our pre-incentive fee net investmentimeavith respect to that portion of such pre-incenfee net investment
income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate bletsis than or equal to 2.344% in any fiscal qug@g76% annualized) is payable
to the investment adviser. We refer to this portbour pre-incentive fee net investment incomei¢iviexceeds the hurdle rate
but is less than or equal to 2.344%) as the “cafeh-The “catch-up” provision is intended to progidur investment adviser with
an incentive fee of 20.0% on all of our pre-inceatiee net investment income as if a hurdle radendt apply when our pre-
incentive fee net investment income exceeds 2.3#8ay fiscal quarter. Notwithstanding the foregpiwith respect to any
period ending on or prior to December 31, 2010,iouestment adviser was only entitled to 20.0%hef @amount of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income, if any, thateeded 1.875% in any fiscal quarter (7.5% anned)izvithout any catch-up
provision; and

*  20.0% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee neeéstment income, if any, that exceeds 2.344% infisogl quarter (9.376%
annualized) is payable to the investment advisecddhe hurdle is reached and the catch-up isathi®0.0% of all préacentive
fee net investment income thereafter is allocatettie investment adviser).

Pre-incentive fee net investment income meansasténcome, dividend income and other income (diclg any other fees, such as
commitment, origination, structuring, diligence,magerial and consulting fees or other fees thatageive from portfolio companies) earned
during the calendar quarter, minus our operatimgeases for the quarter.

The second part of the incentive fee is determaratipayable in arrears as of the end of each fygaal (or upon termination of the
Management Agreement) and equals 20.0% of our fitive fee capital gains,” which equals our realizagital gains on a cumulative basis
from May 31, 2010 through the end of the fiscalrydaany, computed net of all realized capitaldes and unrealized capital depreciation on &
cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount opeawiously paid capital gain incentive fee. Impatlg, the capital gains portion of the
incentive fee is based on realized gains and exhbind unrealized losses from May 31, 2010. Thezefealized and unrealized losses incurre
prior to such time will not be taken into accouritem calculating the capital gains portion of theeimtive fee, and Saratoga Investment
Advisors will be entitled to 20.0% of incentive feapital gains that arise after May 31, 2010. Iditoh, for the purpose of the “incentive fee
capital gains” calculations, the cost basis for pating realized gains and losses on investmentshhels as of May 31, 2010 will equal the
fair value of such investments as of such date.

We have also entered into a separate administraticgement with Saratoga Investment Advisors putsivawhich Saratoga
Investment Advisors furnishes us with office fa@i, equipment and clerical, bookkeeping and kk&eeping services. The administration
agreement has an initial term of two years froneftective date of July 30, 2010, with automatiegmar renewals, subject to approval by our
board of directors, a majority of whom must be imgiependent directors. On July 15, 2013, our bo&directors approved the renewal of the
Administration Agreement for an additional one-yEam and determined to maintain the cap on thengay or reimbursement of expenses by
us thereunder to $1.0 million for the additionaéegear term. Under the administration agreement,t8gaalnvestment Advisors also perfort
or oversees the performance of our required adtratiige services, which include, among other thjigsng responsible for the financial
records which we are required to maintain, pregaraports for our stockholders and reports requiodok filed with the SEC. Payments under
the administration agreement will be equal to aoamh based upon the allocable portion of Saratogastment Advisors’ overhead in
performing its obligations under the administratemreement, including rent and the allocable portibthe cost of our officers and their
respective staffs relating to the performance ofises under the administration agreement.
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Investments

Our portfolio is comprised primarily of investmetisleveraged loans (both first and second liemtlerans) issued by middle market
companies. Investments in middle market companiegenerally less liquid than equivalent investraémtcompanies with larger
capitalizations. These investments are sourcedtim the primary and secondary markets throughwar&tof relationships with commercial
and investment banks, commercial finance compamiddinancial sponsors. The leveraged loans thgiuehase are generally used to fine
buyouts, acquisitions, growth, recapitalizationd ather types of transactions. Leveraged loangamerally senior debt instruments that rank
ahead of subordinated debt of the portfolio compéaeryeraged loans also have the benefit of secintigrests on the assets of the portfolio
company, which may rank ahead of, or be juniootber security interests. For a discussion of iskesrpertaining to our secured investments,
see Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors—Our investmeanégy be risky, and you could lose all or part of yimwestment.”

As part of our long-term strategy, we also purchasezanine debt and make equity investments inlmitdrket companies.
Mezzanine debt is typically unsecured and subotdihto senior debt of the portfolio company. See Pétem 1A. “Risk Factors—+ we make
unsecured debt investments, we may lack adequetection in the event our portfolio companies beedalistressed or insolvent and will like
experience a lower recovery than more senior déd¢h®in the event our portfolio companies defaotigheir indebtedness.”

Substantially all of the debt investments heldun portfolio hold a non-investment grade ratingdme or more rating agencies or, if
not rated, would be rated below investment gradatéd, which are often referred to as “junk.” Ad-ebruary 28, 2014, 40.1% of our debt
portfolio at fair value consisted of debt secusitier which issuers were not required to make fpadgayments until the maturity of such debt
securities, which could result in a substantiasltwsus if such issuers are unable to refinancemay their debt at maturity. In addition, 59.9%
of our debt investments at February 28, 2014, lsaihble interest rates that reset periodically dasebenchmarks such as LIBOR and the
prime rate. As a result, significant increasesuichsbenchmarks in the future may make it moreadiffifor these borrowers to service their
obligations under the debt investments that we.hold

As a BDC, we are required to comply with certaigulatory requirements. For instance, we have teshat least 70.0% of our total
assets in assets of the type listed in section) 6¢e 1940 Act, including securities of U.S. mdéng companies whose securities are not |
on a national securities exchange (i.e., New YddclSExchange, NYSE MKT and The NASDAQ Stock MajkerS. operating companies
with listed securities that have market capital@s of less than $250.0 million, cash, cash edeita, U.S. government securities and high-
quality debt investments that mature in one yedess, which we refer to as “qualifying assets”.

While our primary focus is to generate current mecand capital appreciation from our debt and ggmitestments in middle market
companies, we may invest up to 30.0% of the padtfiol opportunistic investments in order to seekmdance returns to stockholders. Such
investments may include investments in distressdud, ghrivate equity, securities of public compared are not thinly traded and structured
finance vehicles such as collateralized loan ohbgafunds.

Leveraged loans

Our leveraged loan portfolio is comprised primadffirst lien and second lien term loans. Firenlterm loans are secured by a first
priority perfected security interest on all or salngially all of the assets of the borrower anddgfly include a first priority pledge of the cagl
stock of the borrower. First lien term loans holist priority with regard to right of payment. Gerally, first lien term loans offer floating rate
interest payments, have a stated maturity of fiveelven years, and have a fixed amortization sdbeHinst lien term loans generally have
restrictive financial and negative covenants. Sddmm term loans are secured by a second pripatjected security interest on all or
substantially all of the assets of the borrower gpitally include a second priority pledge of tapital stock of the borrower. Second lien t
loans hold a second priority with regard to righpayment. Second lien term loans offer eithertft@arate or fixed rate interest payments,
generally have a stated maturity of five to eighans, and may or may not have a fixed amortizetatredule. Second lien term loans that d«
have fixed amortization schedules require paymeéthieoprincipal amount of the loan upon the mayudiaite of the loan. Second lien term lo
have less restrictive financial and negative com&than those that govern first lien term loans.

Mezzanine debt
Mezzanine debt usually ranks subordinate in psiaftpayment to senior debt and is often unsecuiesvever, mezzanine debt ranks
senior to common and preferred equity in a borreiveapital structure. Mezzanine debt typically figed rate interest payments and a stated

maturity of six to eight years and does not haxediamortization schedules.
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In some cases, our debt investments may provida fartion of the interest payable to be paid-imdkinterest (“PIK”). To the extent
interest is paid-in-kind, it will be payable thrduthe increase of the principal amount of the ala@n by the amount of interest due on the
then-outstanding aggregate principal amount of sitigation.

Equity Investments

Equity investments may consist of preferred eqliit is expected to pay dividends on a currentshaspreferred equity that does not
pay current dividends. Preferred equity generadly & preference over common equity as to distahaton liquidation and dividends. In some
cases, we may acquire common equity. In generakquity investments are not control-oriented invesits and we expect that in many case
we will acquire equity securities as part of a grad private equity investors in which we are rw tead investor.

Opportunistic Investments

Opportunistic investments may include investmemtdistressed debt, which may include securitiesoafpanies in bankruptcy, debt
and equity securities of public companies thatatethinly traded, emerging market debt, structdieance vehicles such as collateralized loal
obligation funds and debt of middle market compsufdeated outside the United States.

In January 2008, we purchased for $30.0 millioroathe outstanding subordinated notes of Sara®ida, a collateralized loan
obligation fund managed by us that invests pringanilleveraged loans. As of February 28, 2014 Samtoga CLO portfolio consisted of
$301.3 million in aggregate principal amount oftrily senior secured first lien term loans to dbigors with an average obligor exposure
of $2.0 million and $8.0 million in uninvested ca3lhe weighted average maturity of the portfolidis years.

Prospective portfolio company characteristics

Our investment adviser generally selects portfoimpanies with one or more of the following chaeastics:

* a history of generating stable earnings and stfa@ecash flow;

« well-constructed balance sheets, including an éskedal tangible liquidation value;

* reasonable debt-to-cash flow multiples;

* industry leadership with competitive advantages suglainable market shares in attractive sectats; a

e capital structures that provide appropriate termsr@asonable covenants.

Investment selection

In managing us, Saratoga Investment Advisors ensplogy same investment philosophy and portfolio ganmeent methodologies us
by Saratoga Partners. Through this investment ts@feprocess, based on quantitative and qualitahadysis, Saratoga Investment Advisors
seeks to identify portfolio companies with supefiondamental risk-reward profiles and strong, dsilele business franchises with the goal of
minimizing principal losses while maximizing riskljasted returns. Saratoga Investment Advisors’stment process emphasizes the
following:

*  bottoms-up, company-specific research and analysis;

e capital preservation, low volatility and minimizai of downside risk; and

e investing with experienced management teams tHdtrheaningful equity ownership in their businesses.

Our investment adviser’s investment process gelyaraludes the following steps:

» Initial screening. A brief analysis identifies tiiwestment opportunity and reviews the merits eftitansaction. The initial

screening memorandum provides a brief descripticgheocompany, its industry, competitive positioapital structure, financial

equity sponsor and deal economics. If the deatisrchined to be attractive by the senior membetkeotieal team, the
opportunity is fully analyzed.
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*  Full analysis. A full analysis includes:

e Business and Industry analysis—a review of the @mgjs business position, competitive dynamics wiits industry,
cost and growth drivers and technological and gauigc factors. Business and industry research dafidlades meetings
with industry experts, consultants, other investoustomers and competitors.

« Company analysis—a review of the company’s histdfinancial performance, future projections, cistv
characteristics, balance sheet strength, liquidataue, legal, financial and accounting risks,toagent liabilities, marke
share analysis and growth prospects.

e Structural/security analysis—a thorough legal doentranalysis including but not limited to an asses# of financial
and negative covenants, events of default, enfbiligeof liens and voting rights.

e Approval of the investment committee. The investhighen presented to the investment committeepproval. The
investment committee must unanimously approvenattstments in excess of $1 million made by usdutiteon, all sales of our
investments must be approved by all four of ouestmnent committee members. The members of ourtimeed committee are
Christian L. Oberbeck, Michael J. Grisius, Thomadnglesby, and Charles G. Phillips.

Investment structure

In general, our Investment Adviser intends to galestments with financial covenants and ternas teduce leverage over time,
thereby enhancing credit quality. These methodsidiec

*  maintenance leverage covenants requiring a deageeesio of debt to cash flow;

* maintenance cash flow covenants requiring an iisangaatio of cash flow to the sum of interest exgeeand capital
expenditures; and

» debtincurrence prohibitions, limiting a companatslity to re-lever.

In addition, limitations on asset sales and cagxplenditures should prevent a company from chanifji@ nature of its business or
capitalization without our consent.

Our investment adviser seeks, where appropriatentothe downside potential of our investments by

e requiring a total return on our investments (inahgdboth interest and potential equity apprecigtibiat compensates us for cre
risk;

*  requiring companies to use a portion of their exaash flow to repay debt;
» selecting investments with covenants that incorigocall protection as part of the investment striestand

» selecting investments with affirmative and negatiwgenants, default penalties, lien protectionngeaof control provisions and
board rights, including either observation or mapttion rights.

Valuation process

We carry our investments at fair value in accoréanith the Financial Accounting Standards Board\SB") Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC") Topic 820, Fair Value Measurents and Disclosures (“ASC 820”), as approved imdgfaith using written policies and
procedures adopted by our board of directors. tnvests for which market quotations are readily ke are recorded in our financial
statements at such market quotations subject talacigion by our board of directors to approveiavialue determination to reflect significant
events affecting the value of these investmentsvilfige investments for which market quotationsrerereadily available at fair value as
approved in good faith by our board of directorsdihon input from Saratoga Investment Advisors,anglit committee and an independent
valuation firm engaged by our board of directors ihdependently values approximately one quaftérese valuations each quarter.
Determinations of fair value may involve subjectiudgments and estimates. The types of factorsniagtbe considered in determining the
value of our investments include the nature and
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realizable value of any collateral, the portfolangpany’s ability to make payments, the markets linctv the portfolio company does business,
market yield trend analysis, comparison to publichgded companies, discounted cash flow and o#tevant factors.

Our investment in the subordinated notes of Saea€lgO is carried at fair value, which is based aliseounted cash flow model that
utilizes prepayment, re-investment and loss assomgpbased on historical experience and projectefbpnance, economic factors, the
characteristics of the underlying cash flow, anchparable yields for similar collateralized loanightion fund subordinated notes or equity,
when available. Specifically, we use Intex caskfloodels, or an appropriate substitute, to formithgis for Saratoga CLO’s valuation. The
Intex cash flow models use a set of assumptionadit projected default rates, recovery ratesiyvestment rate and prepayment rates in «
to arrive at estimated cash flows. The assumptivadbased on available market data and projectiansded by third parties as well as
management estimates. We use the output from tar inodels (i.e., the estimated cash flows fromiouestment in Saratoga CLO) to
perform a discounted cash flows analysis on expéctieire cash flows from our investment in Sarat6§#® to determine a valuation for the
subordinated notes of Saratoga CLO held by us.

We undertake a multi-step valuation process eaeltejuwhen valuing investments for which markettgtions are not readily
available, as described below:

* each investment is initially valued by the respblesinvestment professionals of Saratoga InvestiAdrisors and preliminary
valuation conclusions are documented and discusghdur senior management; and

e anindependent valuation firm engaged by our bo&directors independently values at least onetguaf our investments each
guarter so that the valuation of each investmanivfich market quotes are not readily availablied®pendently valued by an
independent valuation firm at least annually.

In addition, all our investments are subject toftiilwing valuation process:

» the audit committee of our board of directors resieeach preliminary valuation and our investmenisat and independent
valuation firm (if applicable) will supplement tipeeliminary valuation to reflect any comments pd=ad by the audit committee;
and

e our board of directors discusses the valuationsagpdoves the fair value of each investment in gadtl based on the input of
our investment adviser, independent valuation fifrapplicable) and audit committee.

Because such valuations, and particularly valuatfrprivate investments and private companiesirdn@rently uncertain, they may
fluctuate over short periods of time and may beetam estimates. The determination of fair valug ditier materially from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for thesesiments existed. Our net asset value could berialiy affected if the determinations
regarding the fair value of our investments wereemally higher or lower than the values that winuditely realize upon the disposal of such
investments.

Ongoing relationships with and monitoring of portfim companies

Saratoga Investment Advisors will closely monitacle investment we make and, when appropriate caiitluct a regular dialogue
with both the management team and other debthoddetseek specifically tailored financial reportilgaddition, in certain circumstances,
senior investment professionals of Saratoga InvestrAdvisors may take board seats or board observagats.

Distributions

Our distributions, if any, will be determined byrdaoard of directors and paid out of assets legalbilable for distribution. Any such
distributions generally will be taxable to our #bolders, including to those stockholders who rezeidditional shares of our common stock
pursuant to our dividend reinvestment plan. Poa¥anuary 2009, we paid quarterly dividends tostoickholders. However, in January 2009,
we suspended the practice of paying quarterly divit$ to our stockholders and have only paid fiveddind distributions (December 2013,
2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009) to our stockholdersessnch time, which distributions were made witlombination of cash and the issuance of
shares of our common stock as discussed moreltfaltyw.

In order to maintain our qualification as a RIC, mast for each fiscal year distribute an amountétpat least 90.0% of our ordine
net taxable income and realized net short-termtaiagains in excess of realized net long-term edjosses, if any, reduced by deductible
expenses. In addition, we will be subject to fetlexaise taxes to the extent we do not distributeéng) the calendar year at least (1) 98.0% of
our ordinary income for the calendar year, (2) 98df our capital gains in excess of capital logeeshe one year period ending on October 3.
of the calendar year and (3) any ordinary inconerset capital gains for preceding years that wetalistributed during such years and on
which we paid no federal income tax. For the 204l@rdar year, we made distributions sufficient stiiett we did not incur any federal excise
taxes. We may elect to withhold from distributiopation of our ordinary income for the 2014 calangear and/or portion of the capital gains
in excess of capital losses realized during theya@e period ending October 31, 2014, if any, dnae do so, we would expect to incur fede
excise taxes as a result.
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We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment ptanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend, then
stockholders’ cash dividends will be automaticaflinvested in additional shares of our common stonless they specifically “opt out” of the
dividend reinvestment plan so as to receive cagleatids.

We may distribute taxable dividends that are payabktash or shares of our common stock at thei@teof each stockholder. Under
certain applicable provisions of the Code and ttea3ury regulations, distributions payable in aasim shares of stock at the election of
stockholders are treated as taxable dividendsIiteenal Revenue Service has issued private rulimgjsating that this rule will apply even
where the total amount of cash that may be dideibis limited to no more than 20.0% of the totatribution. Under these rulings, if too me
stockholders elect to receive their distributiomgash, each such stockholder would receive agbeoshare of the total cash to be distributed
and would receive the remainder of their distribatin shares of stock. If we decide to make anfritligions consistent with these rulings that
are payable in part in our stock, taxable stockir@deceiving such dividends will be required tdude the full amount of the dividend
(whether received in cash, our stock, or a comlindhereof) as ordinary income (or as long-teripited gain to the extent such distribution is
properly reported as a capital gain dividend) mektent of our current and accumulated earningganfits for United States federal income
tax purposes. As a result, a U.S. stockholder nearequired to pay tax with respect to such dividgeindexcess of any cash received. If a U.S.
stockholder sells the stock it receives as a divdde order to pay this tax, the sales proceedsmedgss than the amount included in income
with respect to the dividend, depending on the rtgpkice of our stock at the time of the sale. [kemnore, with respect to non-U.S.
stockholders, we may be required to withhold UaR.with respect to such dividends, including irnpeg of all or a portion of such dividend
that is payable in stock. In addition, if a sigo#int number of our stockholders determine to $elfess of our stock in order to pay taxes owed
on dividends, it may put downward pressure onithéirng price of our stock.

Competition

Our primary competitors in providing financing toyate middle market companies include public aridgbe investment funds
(including private equity funds, mezzanine fund®@ and SBICs), commercial and investment banksanmmercial financing companies.
Many of our competitors are substantially largedt have considerably greater financial and marketsgurces than us. For example, some
competitors may have access to funding sourcesthatot available to us. In addition, some of ampetitors may have higher risk tolerar
or different risk assessments, which may allow themonsider a wider variety of investments. Funtihgre, many of our competitors are not
subject to the regulatory restrictions that theQL.84t imposes on us as a BDC. For additional inftion concerning the competitive risks we
face, please see Part |, Item 1A, “Risk Factors—eperate in a highly competitive market for investitn@pportunities.”

Staffing

We do not currently have any employees and do xmeta to have any employees in the future. Senneegssary for our business
provided by individuals who are employees of Sajatmvestment Advisors, pursuant to the terms @eManagement Agreement and the
administration agreement. For a discussion of tamdgement Agreement, see “Business—Investment digvasid Management Agreement”
below. We reimburse Saratoga Investment Advisarstio allocable portion of expenses incurred bg performing its obligations under the
administration agreement, including rent and olacable portion of the cost of our officers anditlespective staffs, subject to certain
limitations. For a discussion of the administratagreement, see “Business—Administration Agreembelw.

Investment Advisory and Management Agreement

Saratoga Investment Advisors serves as our investatviser. Our investment adviser was formed ih02&s a Delaware limited
liability company and became our investment advisduly 2010. Subject to the overall supervisibour board of directors, Saratoga
Investment Advisors manages our day-to-day oparstamd provides investment advisory and manageseevitces to us. Under the terms of
the Management Agreement, Saratoga Investment éidvis

» determines the composition of our portfolio, théuna and timing of the changes to our portfolio #melmanner of implementing
such changes;

* identifies, evaluates and negotiates the struatitiee investments we make (including performing diligence on our
prospective portfolio companies);

e closes and monitors the investments we make; and
» determines the securities and other assets thptivebase, retain or sell.

Saratoga Investment Advisors services under thealylment Agreement are not exclusive, and it istiydarnish similar services to
other entities.

11
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Management Fee and Incentive Fee

Pursuant to the Management Agreement with Sardtogestment Advisors, we pay Saratoga Investmentgails a fee for investme
advisory and management services consisting ottwmaponents—a base management fee and an incesgive f

The base management fee is paid quarterly in &raad equals 1.75% per annum of our gross asghes than cash or cash
equivalents but including assets purchased witholagrd funds) and calculated at the end of eachlftpearter based on the average value of
our gross assets (other than cash or cash equisdenincluding assets purchased with borroweddsyas of the end of such fiscal quarter an
the end of the immediate prior fiscal quarter. Baseagement fees for any partial month or quarteappropriately pro-rated.

The incentive fee has the following two parts:

The first part is calculated and payable quarterigrrears based on our pre-incentive fee net invest income for the
immediately preceding fiscal quarter. Pre-incenfae@net investment income means interest incomglethd income and any other
income (including any other fees such as commitpaergination, structuring, diligence, manageriatlaconsulting fees or other fees
that we receive from portfolio companies) accruadrdy the fiscal quarter, minus our operating exgasrfor the quarter (including the
base management fee, expenses payable under tivéstdation agreement, and any interest expensealamtends paid on any issued
and outstanding preferred stock or debt securityekcluding the incentive fee). Pre-incentive fie¢investment income includes, in
the case of investments with a deferred interegtife (such as market discount, debt instrumerits peiyment-in-kind interest,
preferred stock with payment-in-kind dividends aedo coupon securities), accrued income that we hatyet received in cash. Pre-
incentive fee net investment income does not irekadly realized capital gains, realized capitaldess unrealized capital appreciat
or depreciation. Pre-incentive fee net investmeatine, expressed as a rate of return on the vhloer met assets (defined as total
assets less liabilities) at the end of the immediigtreceding fiscal quarter, is compared to a dreurate” of 1.875% per quarter (7.5%
annualized), subject to a “catch up” provision. Dlase management fee is calculated prior to gigffert to the payment of any
incentive fees.

We pay Saratoga Investment Advisors an incentigenfigh respect to our pre-incentive fee net investirincome in each
fiscal quarter as follows: (A) no incentive feeainy fiscal quarter in which our pre-incentive fe imvestment income does not
exceed the hurdle rate; (B) 100.0% of our pre-itigerfee net investment income with respect to guation of such pre-incentive fee
net investment income, if any, that exceeds thdlauate but is less than or equal to 2.344% infesopl quarter (9.376% annualized)
is payable to Saratoga Investment Advisors; an®0X)% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee neestment income, if any, that
exceeds 2.344% in any fiscal quarter (9.376% aiwadl We refer to the amount specified in claieas the “catch-up.” The
“catch-up” provision is intended to provide Saratdgvestment Advisors with an incentive fee of 20.6n all of our pre-incentive fee
net investment income as if a hurdle rate did pplyawhen our pre-incentive fee net investment meaexceeds 2.344% in any fiscal
quarter. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with resgecany period ending on or prior to DecemberZ1,0, Saratoga Investment
Advisors was only entitled to 20.0% of the amounbur pre-incentive fee net investment incomenij,ahat exceeded 1.875% in any
fiscal quarter (7.5% annualized) without any catphprovision. These calculations are approprigietyrated when such calculations
are applicable for any period of less than threatim

The following is a graphical representation of théculation of the income- related portion of thedntive fee subsequent to
any period ending after December 31, 2010:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on “Pre-Incentive Fé&et Investment Income”

Pre-Incentive Fee Net Investment Income
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net dsye

0 1.875% 2.344%

4 0 > 4 10095, | | 200, |
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Percentage of Pre-Incentive Fee Net Investment
Income allocated to income-related portion of incetive fee

The second part of the incentive fee, the capadaigifee, is determined and payable in arrear$ tie@nd of each fiscal year
(or, upon termination of the Management Agreememtyl, is calculated at the end of each applicabtafiyear by subtracting (1) the
sum of our cumulative aggregate realized capitdds and aggregate unrealized capital depreciation(2) our cumulative aggreg:
realized capital gains, in each case calculated fvtay 31, 2010. If such amount is positive at thd ef such year, then the capital
gains fee for such year is equal to 20.0% of sucbumt, less the cumulative aggregate amount ofalagrins fees paid in all prior
years. If such amount is negative, then there isapital gains fee for such year.

Under the Management Agreement, the capital gansop of the incentive fee is based on realizeidgand realized and
unrealized losses from May 31, 2010. Therefordizeé and unrealized losses incurred prior to ok will not be taken into
account when calculating the capital gains portibthe incentive fee, and Saratoga Investment Ausisvill be entitled to 20.0% of
net capital gains that arise after May 31, 201@ddition, the cost basis for computing our reaigains and losses on investments
held by us as of May 31, 2010 equals the fair vafusuch investments as of such date.

Examples of Quarterly Incentive Fee Calculation
Example 1: Income Related Portion of Incentive Fag{(
Assumptions
e Hurdle rate(2) = 1.875%
* Management fee(3) = 0.4375%
»  Other expenses (legal, accounting, custodian,feaagent, etc.)(4) = 0.33%
Alternative 1
Additional Assumptions
* Investment income (including interest, dividenadgd, etc.) = 1.25%
»  Pre-incentive fee net investment income (investnraadme—(management fee + other expenses)) = 24825
Pre-incentive fee net investment income does no¢ek hurdle rate, therefore there is no incentee f
Alternative 2
Additional Assumptions
* Investment income (including interest, dividenadsd, etc.) = 3.0%

»  Pre-incentive fee net investment income (investnraadme—(management fee + other expenses)) = 22325

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceeddléuate, but does not fully satisfy the “catch-mpdvision, therefore the income
related portion of the incentive fee is 0.3575%.
Incentive Fe¢ (100.0% x (pr-incentive fee net investment inco-1.875%)
100.0% (2.2325-1.875%)
100.0% (0.3575%
0.3575%
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1)
(2)
3)

(4)

The hypothetical amount of pre-incentive fee neesiment income shown is based on a percentageabhiet assets.
Represents 7.5% annualized hurdle rate.

Represents 1.75% annualized management fee. Fputheses of this example, we have assumed thaawe not incurred any
indebtedness and that we maintain no cash or cpstagents.

The “catch-up” provision is intended to provide dwestment adviser with an incentive fee of 20@%all pre-incentive fee net
investment income as if a hurdle rate did not apgign our net investment income exceeds 2.344%yirfiscal quarter.

Alternative 3

Additional Assumptions

e Investment income (including interest, dividenadgd, etc.) = 3.5%

»  Pre-Incentive Fee Net Investment Income (investriterdme—(management fee + other expenses) = 2.7325%

Pre-incentive fee net investment income exceedbuhdle rate, and fully satisfies the “catch-updyision, therefore the income

related portion of the incentive fee is 0.5467%.

Incentive fee
Incentive fee
Catch ug

Incentive fee

100.0% x pr-incentive fee net investment income (subjec catct-up”)(4)

100.0% x“catct-up” + (20.0% x (Pr-incentive fee net investment inco-2.344%))
2.344%-1.875%

0.469%

(100.0% x 0.469%) + (20.0% x (2.732-2.344%))

0.469% + (20.0% x 0.38859

0.469% + 0.0777¢

0.5467%

Example 2: Capital Gains Portion of Incentive Fee:

Alternative 1:
Assumptions(1)

e Year 1: $20.0 million investment made in Compan§/lAvestment A”), and $30.0 million investment madeCompany B
(“Investment B”)

* Year 2: Investment A is sold for $50.0 million diadt market value (“FMV”) of Investment B determuhéo be $32.0 million
*  Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $25ilion

*  Year 4: Investment B sold for $31.0 million

The capital gains portion of the incentive feanfy, calculated under the cumulative method woetd b

* Year 1: None

*  Year 2: $6 million (20.0% multiplied by $30.0 milh realized capital gains on sale of Investment A)

*  Year 3: None; $5 million (20.0% multiplied by ($80nillion realized cumulative capital gains lessillion cumulative
capital depreciation)) less $6.0 million (capitalrgs incentive fee paid in Year 2)

*  Year 4: $200,000; $6.2 million (20.0% multiplied $81.0 million cumulative realized capital gains3d $6.0 million (capital
gains incentive fee paid in Year 2)
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Alternative 2

Assumptions(1)

(1) The examples assume that Investment A and Investthemre acquired by us subsequent to May 31, 2B10vestment A and B
were acquired by us prior to May 31, 2010, thencib&t basis for computing our realized gains asdde on such investments would
equal the fair value of such investments as of Bhy2010.

e Year 1: $20.0 million investment made in Companfflavestment A”), $30.0 million investment made@ompany B
(“Investment B”) and $25.0 million investment madeCompany C (“Investment C”)

Year 2: Investment A sold for $50.0 million, FMV bfvestment B determined to be $25.0 million and&f Investment C
determined to be $25.0 million

Year 3: FMV of Investment B determined to be $2%ilion and Investment C sold for $30.0 million

Year 4: FMV of Investment B determined to be $35ilion

*  Year 5: Investment B sold for $20.0 million

The capital gains portion of the incentive feanfy, calculated under the cumulative method woetd b
* Year 1: None

*  Year 2: $5.0 million (20.0% multiplied by $25.0 fiah ($30.0 million realized capital gains on Intraent A less $5.0 million
unrealized capital depreciation on Investment B))

* Year 3: $1.4 million ($6.4 million (20.0% multiptieby $32.0 million ($35.0 million cumulative reaid capital gains less
$3.0 million unrealized capital depreciation)) 1880 million (capital gains incentive fee paidviear 2))

Year 4: None

Year 5: None ($5.0 million (20.0% multiplied by $@5nillion (cumulative realized capital gains of5$3 million less realized
capital losses of $10.0 million)) less $6.4 millimumulative capital gains incentive fee paid ira¥2 and Year 3))

The Management Agreement with Saratoga InvestmduitsArs was approved by our board of directorqahgerson meeting of the
directors, including a majority of our independdinectors, and was approved by our stockholdetiseaspecial meeting of stockholders helc
July 30, 2010. On July 15, 2013, our board of doecapproved the renewal of the Management Agraefoean additional one-year term at
an in-person meeting.

In approving this Management Agreement, the dimsotonsidered, among other things, (i) the naextsnt and quality of the
advisory and other services to be provided to uSdmatoga Investment Advisors; (ii) our investmegrformance and the investment
performance of Saratoga Investment Advisors; tfii§ expected costs of the services to be provigesiabatoga Investment Advisors (includ
management fees, advisory fees and expense ratidghe profits expected to be realized by Saraliwgestment Advisors; (iv) the limited
potential for economies of scale in investment ngen@ent associated with managing us; and (v) Sadtogstment Advisors estimated pro
forma profitability with respect to managing us.

Payment of our expenses
The Management Agreement provides that all investrpmfessionals of Saratoga Investment Advisodsitmnstaff, when and to the
extent engaged in providing investment advisoryises required to be provided by Saratoga Investrdwisors, and the compensation and

routine overhead expenses of such personnel alltalsuch services, will be provided and paidipiSaratoga Investment Advisors and not
by us.
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We bear all costs and expenses of our operatighgransactions, including those relating to:

e organization;

« calculating our net asset value (including the eost expenses of any independent valuation firm);

» expenses incurred by Saratoga Investment Advisayalpe to third parties, including agents, consiit@r other advisors, in
monitoring financial and legal affairs for us amdmonitoring our investments and performing dueydiice on our prospective
portfolio companies;

» interest payable on debt, if any, incurred to fecgour investments;

»  offerings of our common stock and other securities;

e investment advisory and management fees;

» fees payable to third parties, including agentasatiants or other advisors, relating to, or asgediwith, evaluating and making
investments;

» transfer agent and custodial fees;

» federal and state registration fees;

» all costs of registration and listing our commaackton any securities exchange;

+ federal, state and local taxes;

» independent directors’ fees and expenses;

»  costs of preparing and filing reports or other doeuts required by governmental bodies (includirg3EC and the SBA);
»  costs of any reports, proxy statements or othdéce®to common stockholders including printing spst

» our fidelity bond, directors and officers errorglaymissions liability insurance, and any other rasge premiums;

» direct costs and expenses of administration, inetugrinting, mailing, long distance telephone, yiog, secretarial and other
staff, independent auditors and outside legal casis

« administration fees and all other expenses incuryeds or, if applicable, the administrator in ceation with administering our
business (including payments under the adminismmaigreement based upon our allocable portionechtiministrator’'s overhead
in performing its obligations under the administratagreement, including rent and the allocableiporof the cost of our officers
and their respective staffs (including travel exges)).

Duration and Termination

The Management Agreement will remain in effect sardusly, unless terminated under the terminatimvigions of the agreement.
The Management Agreement provides that it may teitated at any time, without the payment of anyaby, upon 60 days written notice,
the vote of stockholders holding a majority of outstanding voting securities, or by the vote af divectors or by Saratoga Investment
Advisors.

The Management Agreement will, unless terminatedeasribed above, continue in effect until July 304 and will continue in
effect from year to year thereafter so long as @pproved at least annually by (i) the vote oftibard of directors, or by the vote of
stockholders holding a majority of our outstandioging securities, and (ii) the vote of a majoufiyour directors who are not parties to the
Management Agreement or “interested persons” (els &rm is defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 194f) of any party to such agreement, in
accordance with the requirements of the 1940 Act.
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Indemnification

Under the Management Agreement, Saratoga InvestAubrsors and certain of its affiliates are nobleto us for any action taken or
omitted to be taken by Saratoga Investment Advisoc®nnection with the performance of any of itsiels or obligations under the agreement
or otherwise as an investment adviser to us, exodpe extent specified in Section 36(b) of théd@Act concerning loss resulting from a
breach of fiduciary duty (as the same is finallyetlmined by judicial proceedings) with respecthe teceipt of compensation for services and
except to the extent such action or omission ctutss gross negligence, willful misfeasance, bt far reckless disregard of its duties and
obligations under the agreement.

We also provide indemnification to Saratoga InvesttmAdvisors and certain of its affiliates for dagas, liabilities, costs and
expenses incurred by them in or by reason of angipg, threatened or completed action, suit, ingatibn or other proceeding arising out of
or otherwise based upon the performance of antsafiities or obligations under the agreement agretise as an investment adviser to us.
However, we would not provide indemnification agaiany liability to us or our security holders thish Saratoga Investment Advisors or
such affiliates would otherwise be subject by reasfowillful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negfige in the performance of any such
person’s duties or by reason of the reckless distkedf its duties and obligations under the agregme

Organization of the Investment Adviser

Saratoga Investment Advisors is registered as\astment adviser under the Investment Advisersof@940. The principal
executive offices of Saratoga Investment Advisoeslacated at 535 Madison Avenue, New York, Newkrbd022.

Administration Agreement

Pursuant to a separate administration agreemerattdga Investment Advisors, who also serves agduoministrator, furnishes us with
office facilities, equipment and clerical, book-kéey and record keeping services. Under the adtréien agreement, our administrator also
performs, or oversees the performance of, our redédministrative services, which include, amotigepthings, being responsible for the
financial records which we are required to maintpieparing reports for our stockholders and reppatjuired to be filed with the SEC. In
addition, our administrator assists us in detemgjrand publishing our net asset value, overseegrédparation and filing of our tax returns and
the printing and dissemination of reports to oockholders, and generally oversees the paymenirofxpenses and the performance of
administrative and professional services rendeyagstby others. Payments under the administratiomeanent equal an amount based upon ol
allocable portion of our administrator’s overheagerforming its obligations under the administratagreement, including rent and our
allocable portion of the cost of our officers ahdit respective staffs relating to the performamicgervices under this agreement (including
travel expenses). Our allocable portion is basethemroportion that our total assets bears tadta assets administered or managed by our
administrator. Under the administration agreemeaunt,administrator also provides managerial assistaopn our behalf, to those portfolio
companies who accept our offer of assistance. @iherastration agreement may be terminated by ejplaety without penalty upon 60 days
written notice to the other party. The amount p&ydly us under the administration agreement waisiligi capped at $1.0 million for each
annual term of the agreement. On July 15, 2013poard of directors approved the renewal of theiatnation agreement for an additional
one-year term and determined to maintain the capp®payment or reimbursement of expenses by wsuthder to $1.0 million for the
additional one-year term.

Indemnification

Under the administration agreement, Saratoga Imexst Advisors and certain of its affiliates are lable to us for any action taken
or omitted to be taken by Saratoga Investment Axnfgigh connection with the performance of any sfditities or obligations under the
agreement.

We also provide indemnification to Saratoga InvestirAdvisors and certain of its affiliates for dages, liabilities, costs and
expenses incurred by them in or by reason of angdipg, threatened or completed action, suit, irigasbn or other proceeding arising out of
or otherwise based upon the performance of antgsaliities or obligations under the agreement agretise as an administrator to us. Howe
we do not provide indemnification against any ligpto us or our security holders to which Saratdgvestment Advisors or such affiliates
would otherwise be subject by reason of willful fe@sance, bad faith or gross negligence in thepaegnce of any such person’s duties or by
reason of the reckless disregard of its dutiesadnidations under the agreement.
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License Agreement

We entered into a trademark license agreementSatatoga Investment Advisors, pursuant to whickat®ga Investment Advisors
grants us a non-exclusive, royalty-free licenses® the name “Saratoga.” Under this agreementawe a right to use the “Saratoga&me, fo
so long as Saratoga Investment Advisors or onts effiliates remains our investment adviser. Othan with respect to this limited license,
we have no legal right to the “Saratoga” hame. t8geainvestment Advisors has the right to terminéelicense agreement if it is no longer
acting as our investment adviser. In the evenMhaagement Agreement is terminated, we would beired| to change our name to eliminate
the use of the name “Saratoga.”

Business Development Company Regulations

We have elected to be treated as a BDC under #@ A6t. As with other companies regulated by théQl8ct, a BDC must adhere to
certain substantive regulatory requirements. ThHE)1&ct contains prohibitions and restrictions rielgto transactions between BDCs and theil
affiliates (including any investment advisers ob-sualvisers), principal underwriters and affiliatestodse affiliates or underwriters, and reqt
that a majority of the directors be persons othant‘interested persons,” as that term is defindtié 1940 Act. In addition, the 1940 Act
provides that we may not change the nature of osinless so as to cease to be, or to withdraw eutieh as, a BDC, unless approved by a
majority of our outstanding voting securities. Ajoréy of the outstanding voting securities of amquany is defined under the 1940 Act as the
lesser of: (i) 67.0% or more of such company’slsjm@sent at a meeting if more than 50.0% of thetanding stock of such company is
present and represented by proxy or (ii) more 8aA% of the outstanding stock of such company.

Qualifying assets

Under the 1940 Act, a BDC may not acquire any astbetr than assets of the type listed in Sectida)5&f the 1940 Act, which are
referred to as qualifying assets, unless, at the the acquisition is made, qualifying assets seat least 70.0% of the company’s total
assets. The principal categories of qualifying tssaevant to our business are the following:

(1) Securities purchased in transactions not involang public offering from the issuer of such sedesitwhich issuer (subject
to certain limited exceptions) is an eligible polih company, or from any person who is, or hash&ing the preceding
13 months, an affiliated person of an eligible fmdid company, or from any other person, subjectuoh rules as may be
prescribed by the SEC. An eligible portfolio compasdefined in the 1940 Act as any issuer which:

(a) is organized under the laws of, and has its praigiace of business in, the United States;

(b) is not an investment company (other than a smalnags investment company wholly owned by the BB/
company that would be an investment company butddiin exclusions under the 1940 Act; and

(c) satisfies either of the following:
0] does not have any class of securities listed catiamal securities exchange;
(i) has a class of securities listed on a nationalrgesiexchange but has an aggregate market vélue o

outstanding voting and non-voting common equitjest than $250.0 million;

(iii) is controlled by a BDC or a group of companiesudaig a BDC and the BDC has an affiliated person
is a director of the eligible portfolio company;

(iv) is a small and solvent company having total assfat®t more than $4.0 million and capital and suspf
not less than $2.0 million; or

(v) meets such other criteria as may established bgHE
(2) Securities of any eligible portfolio company whiglke control.
3) Securities purchased in a private transaction fadthS. issuer that is not an investment comparisoar an affiliated person

of the issuer, or in transactions incident theriétihye issuer is in bankruptcy and subject to gamization or if the issuer,
immediately prior to the purchase of its securiti@s unable to meet its obligations as they caneendthout material
assistance other than conventional lending or Gimgnarrangements.
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4 Securities of an eligible portfolio company purabdiérom any person in a private transaction iféhemo ready market for
such securities and we already own at least 60f0¥temutstanding equity of the eligible portfobompany.

(5) Securities received in exchange for or distribudaar with respect to securities described inlitpugh (4) above, or
pursuant to the exercise of options, warrantsghtsirelating to such securities.

(6) Cash, cash equivalents, U.S. Government secuoitiegjh-quality debt securities maturing in oneryaaless from the time
of investment.

Managerial assistance to portfolio companies

As a BDC we offer, and must provide upon requeshagerial assistance to our portfolio companies @bsistance could involve,
among other things, monitoring the operations afgmrtfolio companies, participating in board andnmagement meetings, consulting with anc
advising officers of portfolio companies and pranglother organizational and financial guidancesBant to a separate administration
agreement, our investment adviser provides suctagaral assistance on our behalf to portfolio conmgmthat request this assistance,
recognizing that our involvement with each invesiimeill vary based on factors including the sizetef company, the nature of our
investment, the compars/overall stage of development and our relativétiposin the capital structure. We may receive figghese service

In addition, a BDC must have been organized ane fta\principal place of business in the Unitede&@nd must be operated for the
purpose of making investments in the types of seéesidescribed in (1), (2) or (3) above under “—alfying assets.” However, in order to
count portfolio securities as qualifying assetstfar purpose of the 70.0% test, the BDC must eithatrol the issuer of the securities or must
offer to make available to the issuer of the se¢i@sr{other than small and solvent companies desdrabove) significant managerial assista
except that, where the BDC purchases such seauiritieonjunction with one or more other personmgdbgether, one of the other persons in
the group may make available such managerial assist Making available significant managerial dasise means, among other things, any
arrangement whereby the BDC, through its directofficers or employees or those of its investmetviser, offers to provide, and, if accepted,
does so provide, significant guidance and courm@terning the management, operations or busingsstisfes and policies of a portfolio
company.

Temporary investments

As a BDC, pending investment in other types of ‘lifyiag assets,” as described above, our investserdy consist of cash, cash
equivalents, U.S. Government securities or highityudebt securities maturing in one year or lessf the time of investment, which we refer
to, collectively, as temporary investments, so #ta0% of our assets are qualifying assets. Tyipioak will invest in U.S. Treasury bills or in
repurchase agreements, provided that such agregarentully collateralized by cash or securitiesiedd by the U.S. Government or its
agencies. A repurchase agreement involves the gsedby an investor, such as us, of a specifiedisgand the simultaneous agreement by
seller to repurchase it at an agreed-upon futute alad at a price which is greater than the puechase by an amount that reflects an agreed-
upon interest rate. There is no percentage rdstrion the proportion of our assets that may bested in such repurchase agreements.
However, if more than 25.0% of our total assetsstitirte repurchase agreements from a single cquantyr we would not meet the asset
diversification requirements in order to qualifyaRIC for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Tiugsdo not intend to enter into repurchase
agreements with a single counterparty in exceslsi@fimit. Our investment adviser will monitor tieeeditworthiness of the counterparties with
which we enter into repurchase agreement transectio

Indebtedness and senior securities

As a BDC, we are permitted, under specified coodd;j to issue multiple classes of indebtednes®aadlass of shares of stock se
to our common stock if our asset coverage, as e@fimthe 1940 Act, is at least equal to 200.0% édiately after each such issuance. In
addition, while any indebtedness and senior séesniemain outstanding, we must generally makeigias to prohibit any distribution to our
stockholders or the repurchase of such securitistook unless we meet the applicable asset cozesdips at the time of the distribution or
repurchase. We may also borrow amounts up to 5f¥eovalue of our total assets for temporary oeggancy purposes without regard to
asset coverage.
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Common stock

We are generally not able to issue and sell oumgomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however, sell our
common stock, warrants, options or rights to a@jaur common stock, at a price below the currehagset value of the common stock if our
board of directors determines that such sale @giirbest interests and that of our stockholderd,cam stockholders approve such sale. In any
such case, the price at which our securities abe igsued and sold may not be less than a prigghwih the determination of our board of
directors, closely approximates the market valuguch securities (less any distributing commissiodiscount). We may also make rights
offerings to our stockholders at prices per shass than the net asset value per share, subjepplicable requirements of the 1940 Act.

Code of ethics

As a BDC, we and Saratoga Investment Advisors leaeh adopted a code of ethics pursuant to Rulé Liider the 1940 Act that
establishes procedures for personal investmentsestigcts certain personal securities transactiBrssonnel subject to each code may invest
in securities for their personal investment accsyincluding securities that may be purchased ot ye us, so long as such investments are
made in accordance with the code’s requirements.

Proxy voting policies and procedures

SEC registered investment advisers that have tthegaty to vote (client) proxies (which authorityaybe implied from a general gri
of investment discretion) are required to adopiged and procedures reasonably designed to etisatréhe adviser votes proxies in the best
interests of its clients. Registered investmenisatg also must maintain certain records on prating. In most cases, we will invest in
securities that do not generally entitle us tongtiights in our portfolio companies. When we dgéhaoting rights, we will delegate the
exercise of such rights to our investment adviser.

Saratoga Investment Advisors has particular prating policies and procedures in place. In detemmgimow to vote, officers of
Saratoga Investment Advisors will consult with eatter, taking into account our interests and tiverests of our investors, as well as any
potential conflicts of interest. Saratoga Investtrvisors will consult with legal counsel to idéptpotential conflicts of interest. Where a
potential conflict of interest exists, Saratogadsiment Advisors may, if it so elects, resolveyifdilowing the recommendation of a
disinterested third party, by seeking the directibour independent directors or, in extreme casgsbstaining from voting. While Saratoga
Investment Advisors may retain an outside seragerovide voting recommendations and to assishalyaing votes, it will not delegate its
voting authority to any third party.

An officer of Saratoga Investment Advisors will ke written record of how all such proxies are dotewill retain records of
(1) proxy voting policies and procedures, (2) athyy statements received (or it may rely on praaesnents filed on the SEC’s EDGAR
system in lieu thereof), (3) all votes cast, (4)gstor requests for voting information, and (5) apgcific documents prepared or received in
connection with a decision on a proxy vote. Ifgea an outside service, Saratoga Investment Advisay rely on such service to maintain
copies of proxy statements and records, so lorsyes service will provide a copy of such docum@ntsnptly upon request.

Saratoga Investment Advisors’ proxy voting policge not exhaustive and are designed to be resfottsthe wide range of issues
that may be subject to a proxy vote. In generaiatdga Investment Advisors will vote our proxiesastordance with these guidelines unless:
(1) it has determined otherwise due to the speaifit unusual facts and circumstances with respexptrticular vote, (2) the subject matter of
the vote is not covered by these guidelines, (@pterial conflict of interest is present, or (4fiiiids it necessary to vote contrary to its general
guidelines to maximize stockholder value or outt rgerests.

In reviewing proxy issues, Saratoga Investment sahd generally will use the following guidelines:

Elections of Directors: In general, Saratoga Investment Advisors willeviot favor of the management-proposed slate otttirs. If
there is a proxy fight for seats on a portfolio gamy’s board of directors, or Saratoga Investmehtigors determines that there are other
compelling reasons for withholding our vote, itivdétermine the appropriate vote on the mattandy withhold votes for directors that fail to
act on key issues, such as failure to: (1) impldrpesposals to declassify a board, (2) implememigority vote requirement, (3) submit a
rights plan to a stockholder vote or (4) act ord@roffers where a majority of stockholders havelézed their shares. Finally, Saratoga
Investment Advisors may withhold votes for direstof non-U.S. issuers where there is insufficiafdrimation about the nominees disclosed
in the proxy statement.

Appointment of Auditors:We believe that a portfolio company remains i Itlest position to choose its independent audiods
Saratoga Investment Advisors will generally suppeanagement’s recommendation in this regard.
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Changes in Capital StructureChanges in a portfolio company’s organizatior@uments may be required by state or federal
regulation. In general, Saratoga Investment Adgisal cast our votes in accordance with the maneg@ on such proposals. However,
Saratoga Investment Advisors will consider cargfalhy proposal regarding a change in corporatetstre: that is not required by state or
federal regulation.

Corporate Restructurings, Mergers and Acquisitiorid/e believe proxy votes dealing with corporategeaizations are an extension
of the investment decision. Accordingly, Saratogeektment Advisors will analyze such proposals oase-by-case basis and vote in
accordance with its perception of our interests.

Proposals Affecting Stockholder Right&Ve will generally vote in favor of proposals tigise stockholders a greater voice in the
affairs of a portfolio company and oppose any meathat seeks to limit such rights. However, whealyzing such proposals, Saratoga
Investment Advisors will balance the financial irapaf the proposal against any impairment of stotdér rights as well as of our investment
in the portfolio company.

Corporate Governance:We recognize the importance of good corporategwance. Accordingly, Saratoga Investment Advisalis
generally favor proposals that promote transparamclaccountability within a portfolio company.

Anti-Takeover MeasuresSaratoga Investment Advisors will evaluate, @ase-by-case basis, any proposals regarding &etvar
measures to determine the likely effect on stodkdrovalue dilution.

Share Splits: Saratoga Investment Advisors will generally watth management on share split matters.

Limited Liability of Directors: Saratoga Investment Advisors will generally watth management on matters that could adversely
affect the limited liability of directors.

Social and Corporate ResponsibilitySaratoga Investment Advisors will review propsselated to social, political and
environmental issues to determine whether they adagrsely affect stockholder value. It may abstam voting on such proposals where
they do not have a readily determinable finanergact on stockholder value.

Privacy principles

We are committed to protecting the privacy of dockholders. The following explains the privacyip@s of Saratoga Investment
Corp., Saratoga Investment Advisors and theiriaféitl companies.

We will safeguard, according to strict standardseafurity and confidentiality, all information weceive about our stockholders. The
only information we collect from stockholders igtholder's name, address, number of shares anal security number. This information is
used only so that we can send annual reports #ed iifformation about us to the stockholder, amtigbe stockholder proxy statements or
other information required by law.

We do not share this information with any non-&ifeéd third party except as described below.

*  Authorized Employees of Saratoga Investment Aduisbis our policy that only authorized employeesSafratoga Investment
Advisors who need to know a stockholder’s persamfakmation will have access to it.

e Service ProvidersWe may disclose your personal information to congmthat provide services on our behalf, such as
recordkeeping, processing a stockholgiérades, and mailing stockholder information. Ehesmpanies are required to protect
stockholders’ information and use it solely for fhepose for which they received it.

»  Courts and Government Official¢f required by law, we may disclose a stockholdpessonal information in accordance with a
court order or at the request of government regtgdaOnly that information required by law, subpmeor court order will be
disclosed.

Compliance with applicable laws

As a BDC, we are periodically examined by the SBECcbmpliance with the 1940 Act.

We are required to provide and maintain a bonceddiy a reputable fidelity insurance company tdemious against larceny and

embezzlement. Furthermore, as a BDC, we are ptelifiiom protecting any director or officer agaiasy liability to us or our stockholders
arising from willful misfeasance, bad faith, gragsyligence or reckless disregard of the dutieshiragbin the conduct of such person’s office.
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We and Saratoga Investment Advisors are each emjtoradopt and implement written policies and pdores reasonably designet
prevent violation of the federal securities lavesjiew these policies and procedures annually feir tdequacy and the effectiveness of their
implementation, and designate a chief complianieesfto be responsible for administering the pebcand procedures.

Co-investment

We may be prohibited under the 1940 Act from knahyirparticipating in certain transactions with @lffiliates without the prior
approval of our board of directors who are notrieséed persons and, in some cases, prior apprgdhelSEC. Thus, based on current SEC
interpretations, cinvestment transactions involving a BDC like us ancentity that is advised by Saratoga Investmeivigors or an affiliate
adviser generally could not be effected without SEl&f. The staff of the SEC has, however, grameéhction relief permitting for purchases
of a single class of privately-placed securitiesvited that the adviser negotiates no term othear firice and certain other conditions are met.
As a result, currently we only expect toiowest on a concurrent basis with affiliates oféaga Investment Advisors when each of us will |
the same securities of the issuer and when noitenmgotiated other than price. Any such investmenild be made, subject to compliance
with existing regulatory guidance, applicable regioins and our allocation procedures.

We may in the future submit an exemptive applicatmthe SEC to permit greater flexibility to neigte the terms of co-investments
because we believe that it will be advantageousi$dp co-invest with affiliates of Saratoga Invesht Advisors where such investment is
consistent with the investment objective, investopassitions, investment policies, investment styag®, investment restrictions, regulatory
requirements and other pertinent factors applicables. However, there is no assurance that anlycapipn for exemptive relief, if made,
would be granted by the SEC.

Small Business Investment Company Regulations
On March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary,&@ga Investment Corp. SBIC, LP, received an SBi€hke from the SBA.

The SBIC license allows our SBIC subsidiary to obtaverage by issuing SBA-guaranteed debentutdgest to the satisfaction of
certain customary procedures. SBA-guaranteed detssnare non-recourse, interest only debenturésimiigrest payable semi-annually and
have a ten year maturity. The principal amountBASyuaranteed debentures is not required to begrédd to maturity but may be prepaid at
any time without penalty. The interest rate of Sgaranteed debentures is fixed at the time of reseiat a market-driven spread over U.S.
Treasury Notes with 10-year maturities.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedeity capital to eligible small businesses. UrfBBA regulations, SBICs may
make loans to eligible small businesses and irimebie equity securities of small businesses. Updesent SBA regulations, eligible small
businesses include businesses that have a tamgit¥eorth not exceeding $18.0 million and have agerannual fully taxed net income not
exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recentdisgears. In addition, an SBIC must devote 25.0%sahvestment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller conceone that has a tangible net worth not exceeddn@ iillion and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million fortithe most recent fiscal years. SBA regulations glsvide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the inttysn which the business is engaged and are basadch factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA reignstSBICs may make long-term loans to small legsgas, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consudtirjadvisory services.

SBA regulations currently limit the amount of SBAaganteed debentures that an SBIC may issue taGiilion when it has at
least $75.0 million in regulatory capital. Affiled SBICs are permitted to issue up to a combinedrman amount of $225.0 million in SBA-
guaranteed debentures when they have at least3bailllon in combined regulatory capital. As of Febry 28, 2014, our SBIC subsidiary had
$32.0 million in regulatory capital and $50.0 natiof SBA-guaranteed debentures outstanding. Ther8Btricts the ability of SBICs to
repurchase their capital stock. SBA regulations &islude restrictions on a “change of control't@nsfer of an SBIC and require that SBICs
invest idle funds in accordance with SBA regulagiolm addition, our SBIC subsidiary may also batkah in its ability to make distributions to
us if it does not have sufficient capital, in acamce with SBA regulations.

Our SBIC subsidiary is subject to regulation andrsight by the SBA, including requirements withp@st to maintaining certain
minimum financial ratios and other covenants. TBA Sas a creditor, will have a superior claim to &BIC subsidiary’s assets over our
stockholders in the event we liquidate our SBICsgdiary or the SBA exercises its remedies undeStBA-guaranteed debentures issued by
our SBIC subsidiary upon an event of default.
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We received exemptive relief from the SEC to pemmnsito exclude the debt of our SBIC guaranteedhbySBA from the definition of
senior securities in the 200.0% asset coverageiteksr the 1940 Act. This allows us increased iy under the 200.0% asset coverage test
by permitting us to borrow up to $150.0 million radhan we would otherwise be able to absent theipeof this exemptive relief

Available Information

We file with or submit to the SEC annual, quartenhd current periodic reports, proxy statementsathdr information meeting the
informational requirements of the Securities Exgeaf 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Yoy ingpect and copy these reports,
proxy statements and other information at the BuRé&ference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street, MRshington, D.C. 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Publefé&ence Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0B@8pies of these reports, proxy and
information statements and other information mayplb&ined, after paying a duplicating fee, by etawt request at the following e-malil
address: publicinfo@sec.gov, or by writing the SERUblic Reference Section, Washington, D.C. 20B4®. In addition, the SEC maintains
an Internet website that contains reports, proxy/iaformation statements and other informatiordfigdectronically by us with the SEC at
http://lwww.sec.gov. Our Internet address is hitywiv.saratogainvestmentcorp.com. We make availabke éf charge on our Internet website
our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reportd~orm 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amesrus to those reports as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically $ileh material with, or furnish it to, the SEC.dmhation contained on our website is not
incorporated by reference into this Annual Repamt] you should not consider that information tgbg of this Annual Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investing in our securities involves a high degvégsk. The risks set forth below are the printifsks with respect to the Company
generally and with respect to business develope@mpanies, they may not be the only risks we fH@ny of the following risks occur, our
business and financial condition could be matsriafid adversely affected. If any of the risks ocour business, financial condition and res
of operations could be materially adversely affdcta such case, our net asset value and the tradice of our securities could decline.

Risks Related to Our Business and Structure

The current state of the economy and financial matk increases the likelihood of adverse effectsooin financial position and results of
operations.

The broader economic fundamentals of the UniteteStaconomy remain uncertain. Unemployment lewestsain elevated and other
economic fundamentals remain depressed. In the évaithe United States economic performance aotgr it is likely that the financial
results of middle market companies, like those limclv we invest, could experience deteriorationmitéd growth, which could ultimately le:
to difficulty in meeting their debt service requirents and an increase in defaults. Consequentlgawg@rovide no assurance that the
performance of certain of our portfolio companial mot be negatively impacted by economic or otb@nditions, which could also have a
negative impact on our future results.

The current worldwide financial market situatios,veell as various social and political tensionthie United States and around the
world, may continue to contribute to increased raawolatility, may have long-term effects on theited States and worldwide financial
markets, and may cause further economic uncemgioti deterioration in the United States and wadéwSince 2010, several European Uniot
(“EU") countries, including Greece, Ireland, Itafypain, and Portugal, have faced budget issuex sbmhich may have negative long-term
effects for the economies of those countries ahdrdEU countries. There is continued concern abatibnallevel support for the Euro and t
accompanying coordination of fiscal and wage poéinyong European Economic and Monetary Union mermdoantries. In addition, the fiscal
policy of foreign nations, such as China, may hagevere impact on the worldwide and United Statescial markets. Moreover, there are
concerns that the recent economic slowdown in Cbindd have a negative impact on markets througth@uvorld. We do not know how loi
the financial markets will continue to be affectgdthese events and cannot predict the effectsesiet or similar events in the future on the
United States economy and securities markets auoimvestments. We monitor developments and seekainage our investments in a mal
consistent with achieving our investment objectlua, there can be no assurance that we will beesisful in doing so.

Although we have been able to secure access tti@udiliquidity, the potential for volatility inhte debt and in the equity capital
markets provides no assurance that debt or eqaftifad will be available to us in the future ondaable terms, or at all.
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We may be obligated to pay Saratoga Investment saha incentive fees even if we incur a net lossthare is a decline in the value of our
portfolio.

Saratoga Investment Advisors is entitled to inaentees for each fiscal quarter in an amount efgualpercentage of the excess of ou
investment income for that quarter (before dedggdiiitentive compensation, but net of operating expe and certain other items) above a
threshold return for that quarter. Our pre-incemfige net investment income, for incentive compgmsgurposes, excludes realized and
unrealized capital gains or losses that we mayriimcthe fiscal quarter, even if such capital gainsosses result in a net gain or loss on our
statement of operations for that quarter. Thusmag be required to pay Saratoga Investment Advisaentive fees for a fiscal quarter even if
there is a decline in the value of our portfolion@ incur a net loss for that quarter.

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, we rhaye to pay incentive fees to Saratoga Investmidwisors in connection with the
sale of an investment that is sold at a price higlilean the fair value of such investment on May 3010, even if we incur a loss on the s;
of such investment.

Incentive fees on capital gains paid to Saratogadiment Advisors under the Management Agreemarale®0.0% of our “incentive
fee capital gains,ihich equals our realized capital gains on a cutivddasis from May 31, 2010 through the end ofytbar, if any, compute
net of all realized capital losses and unrealizgultal depreciation on a cumulative basis, lesatigregate amount of any previously paid
capital gain incentive fee. Under the ManagemeneAment, the capital gains portion of the incenfideeis based on realized gains and
realized and unrealized losses from May 31, 20b@rd&fore, realized and unrealized losses incumed o such time will not be taken into
account when calculating the capital gains portibthe incentive fee, and Saratoga Investment Aagiwvill be entitled to 20.0% of the
incentive fee capital gains that arise after MayZ110. In addition, the cost basis for computieglized gains and losses on investments held
by us as of May 31, 2010 will equal the fair vabfesuch investments as of such date. See our FOr@ fbr the quarter ended May 31, 2010
that was filed with the SEC on July 15, 2010 fa thir value and other information related to oweistments as of such date. As a result, we
may be required to pay incentive fees to Saratogastment Advisors on the sale of an investmemn &wee incur a realized loss on such
investment, so long as the investment is sold ficeiraount greater than its fair value as of May281,0.

The way in which the base management and incenfe®es under the Management Agreement is determiney ®ncourage Saratoga
Investment Advisors to take actions that may notib@ur best interests

The incentive fee payable by us to our investmdmisgr may create an incentive for it to make itweEsts on our behalf that are ri
or more speculative than would be the case inllserzce of such compensation arrangement, whicld cesult in higher investment losses,
particularly during cyclical economic downturns.elivay in which the incentive fee payable to ouestment adviser is determined, which is
calculated separately in two components as a pegernf the income (subject to a hurdle rate) ana percentage of the realized gain on
invested capital, may encourage our investmentsad¥d use leverage to increase the return omwestments or otherwise manipulate our
income so as to recognize income in quarters wiheréurdle rate is exceeded. Moreover, we pay &gaidhvestment Advisors a base
management fee based on our total assets, inclagiypinvestments made with borrowings, which maate an incentive for it to cause us to
incur more leverage than is prudent, or not toyepa outstanding indebtedness when it may be adgaous for us to do so, in order to
maximize its compensation. Under certain circumstanthe use of leverage may increase the likedittdalefault, which would disfavor the
holders of our securities.

The incentive fee payable by us to our investmdiisgr also may create an incentive for our investinadviser to invest on our
behalf in instruments that have a deferred intdesdtire. Under these investments, we would adtreiénterest over the life of the investment
but would not receive the cash income from the shwent until the end of the investment’s termti&lh Our net investment income used to
calculate the income portion of our incentive feayever, includes accrued interest. Thus, a podfdhe incentive fee would be based on
income that we have not yet received in cash andmager receive in cash if the portfolio companyngble to satisfy such interest payment
obligation to us. Consequently, while we may malcentive fee payments on income accruals that werogcollect in the future and with
respect to which we do not have a “claw back” riggginst our investment adviser per se, the anmafuadcrued income written off in any
period will reduce the income in the period in whauch write-off was taken and may thereby reducé period’s incentive fee payment.

In addition, Saratoga Investment Advisors receavgsiarterly income incentive fee based, in parpunpre-incentive fee net
investment income, if any, for the immediately mdiog calendar quarter. This income incentive $esubject to a fixed quarterly hurdle rate
before providing an income incentive fee returiSéwatoga Investment Advisors. This fixed hurdle rahs determined when then current
interest rates were relatively low on a historigasis. Thus, if interest rates rise, it would beea@asier for our investment income to exceec
hurdle rate and, as a result, more likely that ®gelnvestment Advisors will receive an incomeeimive fee than if interest rates on our
investments remained constant or decreased. Iti@udi we repurchase our outstanding debt sdegtiincluding our 7.50% Notes due 2020
(the “Notes”) and such repurchase results in oconging a net gain on the
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extinguishment of debt for financial reporting @ad purposes, such net gain will be included ingmerincentive fee net investment income
purposes of determining the income incentive fe@pke to our investment adviser under the Managégreement.

Moreover, our investment adviser receives the iticeriee based, in part, upon net capital gainkzaegon our investments. Unlike
the portion of the incentive fee based on incoimexd is no performance threshold applicable tgtrdon of the incentive fee based on net
capital gains. As a result, our investment aduisay have a tendency to invest more in investméatisatre likely to result in capital gains as
compared to income producing securities. Such etipeacould result in our investing in more spetivéasecurities than would otherwise be
the case, which could result in higher investmessés, particularly during economic downturns.

Our board of directors will seek to ensure thaB&aga Investment Advisors is acting in our besriedts and that any conflict of
interest faced by Saratoga Investment Advisortsicapacity as our investment adviser does nottivefjaimpact us.

The base management fee we pay to Saratoga Investievisors may cause it to increase our leveragateary to our interest.

We pay Saratoga Investment Advisors a quarterlg ba@nagement fee based on the value of our ttatsa@including any assets
acquired with leverage). Accordingly, Saratoga bireent Advisors has an economic incentive to irsemur leverage. Our board of directors
monitors the conflicts presented by this compenaaiiructure by approving the amount of leveragé e incur. If our leverage is increased,
we will be exposed to increased risk of loss, bleaiincrease cost of issuing and servicing suclosardebtedness, and will be subject to any
additional covenant restrictions imposed on usiimaenture or other instrument or by the appliedehder.

We employ leverage, which magnifies the potent@l §ain or loss on amounts invested and may incredise risk of investing in us.

Borrowings, also known as leverage, magnify thepal for gain or loss on amounts invested anerefore, increase the risks
associated with investing in us. We borrow from @&stie senior debt securities to banks and othelehs that is secured by a lien on our as
Holders of these senior securities have fixed dall@ms on our assets that are superior to thmslaf the holders of our securities, including
the holders of our securities. Leverage is genecalhsidered a speculative investment techniqug.iderease in our income in excess of
interest payable on our outstanding indebtednessgdaause our net income to increase more thanuldvhave had we not incurred leverage,
while any decrease in our income would cause e to decline more sharply than it would havewwadot incurred leverage. Such a
decline could negatively affect our ability to mat@mmon stock distributions or scheduled debt payseéncluding with respect to the Notes.
There can be no assurance that our leveraginggyratill be successful.

As of February 28, 2014, there was no balance andgtg under the Credit Facility. As of February 2814, we had issued $50.0
million SBA-guaranteed debentures and $48.3 milbbthe Notes. We may incur additional indebtedrieske future, including up to an
additional $45.0 million under the Credit Faciligithough there can be no assurance that we wilbeessful in doing so. Our ability to
service our debt depends largely on our finanaalqggmance and is subject to prevailing economiwd@mns and competitive pressures. The
amount of leverage that we employ at any partictitae will depend on our management’s and our Bedfdirectors’ assessment of market
and other factors at the time of any proposed banmg.

Our outstanding indebtedness imposes, and additilete we may incur in the future will likely impesfinancial and operating
covenants that restrict our business activitiedygling limitations that could hinder our ability finance additional loans and investments or tc
make the distributions required to maintain outustas a RIC. A failure to add new debt facilibesssue additional debt securities or other
evidences of indebtedness in lieu of or in additmexisting indebtedness could have a materiab@#veffect on our business, financial
condition or results of operations.

Saratoga Investment Advisc’ liability is limited under the Management Agreemeand we will indemnify Saratoga Investments Adwis
against certain liabilities, which may lead it tacain a riskier manner on our behalf than it wouldshen acting for its own account.

Saratoga Investment Advisors has not assumed apgnsibility to us other than to render the sewvidescribed in the Management
Agreement. Pursuant to the Management Agreemergtdgm Investment Advisors and its officers and legges are not liable to us for their
acts under the Management Agreement absent witlfsleasance, bad faith, gross negligence or rezklissegard in the performance of their
duties. We have agreed to indemnify, defend antepr&aratoga Investment Advisors and its offieerd employees with respect to all
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses resutimg acts of Saratoga Investment Advisors notrgisiut of willful misfeasance, bad faith,
gross negligence or reckless disregard in the paeoce of their duties under the Management Agreeriéese protections may lead
Saratoga Investment Advisors to act in a riskiennea when acting on our behalf than it would wheting for its own account.
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Substantially all of our assets are subject to seguinterests under our Credit Facility or claimsf the SBA with respect to SE-guaranteed
debentures we may issue and if we default on ouligaiions thereunder, we may suffer adverse conseages, including the foreclosure on
our assets.

Substantially all of our assets are pledged asieohl under the Credit Facility or are subject ®uperior claim over the holders of |
common stock or the Notes by the SBA pursuantecdSBA-guaranteed debentures. If we default on bligations under the Credit Facility or
the SBA-guaranteed debentures, Madison Capital iRgrachd/or the SBA may have the right to foreclopen and sell, or otherwise transfer,
the collateral subject to their security interestsuperior claim. In such event, we may be fortoeskll our investments to raise funds to repay
our outstanding borrowings in order to avoid fooscire and these forced sales may be at times ammat@$ we would not consider
advantageous. Moreover, such deleveraging of ampeny could significantly impair our ability to efftively operate our business in the
manner in which we have historically operated.

In addition, if Madison Capital Funding exercistsright to sell the assets pledged under the CFeility, such sales may be
completed at distressed sale prices, thereby dstiimg or potentially eliminating the amount of casfailable to us after repayment of the
amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility.

We are exposed to risks associated with changesterest rates including potential effects on ouost of capital and net investment income.

General interest rate fluctuations and changesaditcspreads on floating rate loans may have atanbal negative impact on our
investments and investment opportunities and, aaegly, may have a material adverse effect on ate of return on invested capital. In
addition, an increase in interest rates would niak®re expensive to use debt to finance our imaests. Decreases in credit spreads on debt
that pays a floating rate of return would haverapact on the income generation of our floating estgets. Trading prices for debt that pays a
fixed rate of return tend to fall as interest raies. Trading prices tend to fluctuate more fgedl rate securities that have longer maturities.
Although we have no policy governing the maturité®ur investments, under current market conditime expect that we will invest in a
portfolio of debt generally having maturities of tapten years. This means that we will be subgcfreater risk (other things being equal) than
an entity investing solely in shorter-term secasti

Because we may borrow to fund our investments réagmoof our net investment income may be dependpaonh the difference
between the interest rate at which we borrow fuardsthe interest rate at which we invest theseduAdportion of our investments will have
fixed interest rates, while a portion of our bornogs will likely have floating interest rates. Asesult, a significant change in market interest
rates could have a material adverse effect on euinmestment income. In periods of rising interasés, our cost of funds could increase,
which would reduce our net investment income. Wg hexdge against such interest rate fluctuationsdiryg standard hedging instruments
such as futures, options and forward contractgestito applicable legal requirements, includingheut limitation, all necessary registrations
(or exemptions from registration) with the Commepdiutures Trading Commission. These activities tmait our ability to participate in the
benefits of lower interest rates with respect whkdged borrowings. Adverse developments resuitimy changes in interest rates or hedging
transactions could have a material adverse effeciuo business, financial condition and resultepsrations.

There are significant potential conflicts of intest which could adversely impact our investment nets.

Our executive officers and directors, and the membéour investment adviser, serve or may senafasers, directors or principals
of entities that operate in the same or a relateddf business as we do or of investment fundsageah by our affiliates. Accordingly, they n
have obligations to investors in those entities, ftiffillment of which might not be in the bestenests of us or our stockholders. For example,
Christian L. Oberbeck, our chief executive offieed managing member of our investment advisehgisitanaging partner of Saratoga
Partners, a middle market private equity investrfiemt In addition, the principals of our investntetlviser may manage other funds which
may from time to time have overlapping investmerjeotives with those of us and accordingly invastwhether principally or secondarily,
asset classes similar to those targeted by usislshould occur, the principals of our investrmeshtiser will face conflicts of interest in the
allocation of investment opportunities to us anchsother funds. Although our investment profesdi®omall endeavor to allocate investment
opportunities in a fair and equitable manner, wet @ common stockholders could be adversely a&teitt the event investment opportunities
are allocated among us and other investment vehiginaged or sponsored by, or affiliated with,eacutive officers, directors and
investment adviser, and the members of our invastadyviser.

26




Table of Contents

Changes in laws or regulations governing our opdrats, or changes in the interpretation thereof, amdy failure by us to comply with laws
or regulations governing our operations may advdssaffect our business.

We are subject to regulation at the local, statefaderal levels. These laws and regulations, disaseheir interpretation, may be
changed from time to time. Any change in these law®gulations, or their interpretation, or anjuie by us to comply with these laws or
regulations may adversely affect our business.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC wilffect our ability to raise additional capita

Our business requires a substantial amount ofiadditcapital. We may acquire additional capitahfrthe issuance of senior
securities or other indebtedness or the issuanaddifional shares of our common stock. Howevermag not be able to raise additional
capital in the future on favorable terms or at\ale may issue debt securities or preferred seesgritirhich we refer to collectively as “senior
securities,” and we may borrow money from bankstber financial institutions, up to the maximum ambpermitted by the 1940 Act.

Under the provisions of the 1940 Act, we are paaditas a BDC, to incur indebtedness or issue ssagurities only in amounts such
that our asset coverage, as defined in the 1940efjcials at least 200.0% after such incurrencesoiance. Our ability to issue different types
of securities is also limited. Compliance with thesquirements may unfavorably limit our investmapportunities and reduce our ability in
comparison to other companies to profit from fabteaspreads between the rates at which we canwamd the rates at which we can lend
a business development company, therefore, we @ey to issue equity more frequently than our pelyadwned competitors, which may le
to greater stockholder dilution. With respect taa@i@ types of senior securities, we must make igions to prohibit any dividend distribution
to our stockholders or the repurchase of certaimuofsecurities, unless we meet the applicablea asserage ratios at the time of the dividend
distribution or repurchase. If the value of ouradssleclines, we may be unable to satisfy the assetrage test. If that happens, we may be
required to liquidate a portion of our investmesntsl repay a portion of our indebtedness at a titmenvsuch sales may be disadvantageous in
order to make dividend distributions or repurcheesain of our securities.

We are not generally able to issue and sell oumgomstock at a price below net asset value peeskiée may, however, sell our
common stock, or warrants, options or rights tauregqour common stock, at a price below the curneitasset value of the common stock if
our board of directors determines that such saleasir best interests and the best interests p$tmekholders, and our stockholders approve
such sale. In any such case, the price at whiclsecurities are to be issued and sold may notdsethan a price which, in the determination of
our board of directors, closely approximates theketavalue of such securities (less any commissiogiscount). If our common stock trade
a discount to net asset value, this restrictioriccadversely affect our ability to raise capitat.dMr 2013 annual meeting of stockholders, our
stockholders approved a proposal that authorizés sl shares of our common stock below the therent net asset value per share of our
common stock at an offering price per share thabtdess than 85% of the then current net asdeé y@r share in one or more offerings for a
period of one year ending on the earlier of SeptwmB, 2014 or the date of our 2014 annual meetirsgockholders. Continued access to this
exception will require approval of similar propasat future stockholder meetings. If our commoristoades at a discount to net asset value,
this restriction could adversely affect our abilityraise capital.

Pending legislation may allow us to incur additiohkeverage.

As a business development company, we are genaatliyermitted to incur indebtedness unless imnmelgiafter such borrowing we
have an asset coverage for total borrowings cfadt|200% (i.e., the amount of debt may not ex66é6 of the value of our assets). We have
agreed in the covenant in the indenture goverrieg\iotes not to violate this section of the 1948 adether or not we continue to be subject
to such provision, but giving effect, in either ea® any exemptive relief granted to us by the S&€tent legislation introduced in the U.S.
House of Representatives, if passed, would modifydection of the 1940 Act and increase the amofdébt that business development
companies may incur by modifying the percentagmf@®0% to 150%. As a result, we may be able toriadditional indebtedness in the
future and therefore your risk of an investmerun securities may increase.

The agreement governing our Credit Facility contavarious covenants that, among other things, limy@ur discretion in operating our
business and provides for certain minimum financiebvenants.

The agreement governing the Credit Facility corst@instomary default provisions such as the terioinair departure of certain “key
persons” of Saratoga Investment Advisors, a matedeerse change in our business and the failunesiotain certain minimum loan quality
and performance standards. An event of default uthgefacility would result, among other thingstémmination of the availability of further
funds under the facility and an accelerated mataidtte for all amounts outstanding under the figgilivhich would likely disrupt our business
and, potentially, the portfolio companies whosenkwe financed through the facility. This couldued our revenues and, by delaying any
payment allowed to us under the facility until taeder has been paid in full, reduce our liquidibd cash flow and impair our ability to grow
our business and maintain our status as a RIC.
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Each loan origination under the facility is subjecthe satisfaction of certain conditions. We aarassure you that we will be able to
borrow funds under the facility at any particuliane or at all.

We will be subject to corporate-level income taxié fail to qualify as a RIC.

We seek to maintain our qualification as a RIC uride Code, which requires us to qualify continupas a BDC and meet certain
source of income, distribution and asset diverifan requirements.

The source of income requirement is satisfied ifdegve at least 90.0% of our annual gross incamm finterest, dividends, payme
with respect to certain securities loans, gainsiftbe sale or other disposition of securities dioms thereon or foreign currencies, or other
income derived with respect to our business ofstiag in such securities or currencies, and neirimefrom interests in “qualified publicly
traded partnerships,” as defined in the Code.

The annual distribution requirement is satisfieavdf distribute to our stockholders on an annuaisbtes amount equal to at least 90
of our ordinary net taxable income and realizedshett-term capital gains in excess of realizedorgg-term capital losses, if any, reduced by
deductible expenses. We are subject to certairt esgerage ratio requirements under the 1940 Adtcamvenants under our borrowing
agreements that could, under certain circumstamessict us from making distributions necessargualify as a RIC. In such case, if we are
unable to obtain cash from other sources, we matofgualify as a RIC and, thus, may be subjeatdmorate-level income tax.

The diversification requirements will be satisfi€dve diversify our holdings so that at the endeath quarter of the taxable year: (i
least 50.0% of the value of our assets consistast, cash equivalents, U.S. government secusiesirities of other regulated investment
companies, and other securities if such other gexsipf any one issuer do not represent more $:@% of the value of our assets or more thai
10% of the outstanding voting securities of theéssand (i) no more than 25.0% of the value af assets is invested in the securities, other
than U.S. government securities or securities loéiotegulated investment companies, of one issuef two or more issuers that are control
as determined under applicable tax rules, by udtzatcare engaged in the same or similar or relaselbs or businesses or in certain publicly
traded partnerships.

Failure to meet these tests may result in our tgatior(i) dispose of certain investments quicklyigrraise additional capital to preve
the loss of our RIC qualification. Because mosbwf investments will be in private companies, amghsdispositions could be made at
disadvantageous prices and may result in subsitéogies. If we raise additional capital to satifg asset diversification requirements, it cc
take us time to invest such capital. During thisqee we will invest the additional capital in teorary investments, such as cash and cash
equivalents, which we expect will earn yields sabgally lower than the interest income that wdapate receiving in respect of investments
in leveraged loans and mezzanine debt.

If we fail to qualify as a RIC for any reason, afllour taxable income will be subject to U.S. fedéncome tax at regular corporate
rates. The resulting corporate taxes could subatinteduce our net assets, the amount of incovadable for distribution to our common
stockholders or payment of our outstanding indeied including the Notes. Such a failure would reaveaterial adverse effect on us and the
holders of our securities.

Because we intend to distribute between 90% and%@® our income to our stockholders in connectiorntivour election to be treated as
RIC, we will continue to need additional capital fsmance our growth. If additional funds are unavkible or not available on favorabl
terms, our ability to grow will be impaired.

In order to qualify for the tax benefits availabdeRICs and to minimize corporate-level taxes, mend to distribute to our
stockholders between 90% and 100% of our annuabtadncome, except that we may retain certaircapital gains for investment, and treat
such amounts as deemed distributions to our stéd&t® If we elect to treat any amounts as deensdlitions, we must pay income taxes a
the corporate rate on such deemed distributiortsetialf of our stockholders. As a result of thespiirements, we will likely need to raise
capital from other sources to grow our businessa BOC, we generally are required to meet a coverago of total assets, less liabilities and
indebtedness not represented by senior secutibiéstal senior securities, which includes all af borrowings and any outstanding preferred
stock, of at least 200%. These requirements lingitémount that we may borrow. Because we will cntito need capital to grow our
investment portfolio, these limitations may prevestfrom incurring debt and require us to raisetaathl equity at a time when it may be
disadvantageous to do so.

While we expect to be able to borrow and to issigitenal debt and equity securities, we cannotig@sygou that debt and equity
financing will be available to us on favorable tstror at all. Also, as a BDC, we generally arepeimitted to issue equity securities priced
below net asset value without stockholder apprdfaldditional funds are not available to us, weldde forced to curtail or cease new
investment activities, and our net asset valuestiagle price could decline.
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We may have difficulty paying our required distritians if we recognize income before or without rédag cash in respect of such income.

For federal income tax purposes, we may be requireecognize taxable income in circumstances iithvtve do not receive a
corresponding payment in cash. For example, weanagccasion hold debt obligations that are treatater applicable tax rules as having
original issue discount (such as debt instrumeiitts RIK or, in certain cases, increasing interagts or issued with warrants) and we must
include in income each year a portion of the oagjinsue discount that accrues over the life ofothlegation, regardless of whether cash
representing such income is received by us indhgestaxable year. We may also have to includedonre other amounts that we have not ye
received in cash, such as deferred loan origindées that are paid after origination of the loa@ar paid in non-cash compensation such as
warrants or stock. In addition, we may be requitedccrue for federal income tax purposes amoutrtbutable to our investment in Saratoga
CLO, a collateralized loan obligation fund, thatyndliffer from the distributions paid in respectafr investment in the subordinated notes of
such collateralized loan obligation fund becaustheffactors set forth above or because distribstiam the subordinated notes are contract
required to be diverted for reinvestment or to gawn outstanding indebtedness.

Because any original issue discount or other ansoacitrued will be included in our investment conypi@xable income for the year
of accrual, we may be required to make a distrityuto our stockholders in order to satisfy the ahwlistribution requirement, even though we
will not have received any corresponding cash amadma result, we may have difficulty meeting #veual distribution requirement
necessary to obtain and maintain RIC tax treatmedér the Code. We may have to sell some of owsimvents at times and/or at prices we
would not consider advantageous, raise additioali dr equity capital or forgo new investment opoities for this purpose. If we are not
able to obtain cash from other sources, we maydajualify for RIC tax treatment and thus becomigject to corporate-level income tax.

Our ability to enter into transactions with our affates is restricted.

We are prohibited under the 1940 Act from partitiighin certain transactions with certain of ouil@ftes without the prior approval
of the members of our independent directors andpime cases, the SEC. Any person that owns, directhdirectly, 5.0% or more of our
outstanding voting securities is our affiliate farposes of the 1940 Act and we are generally pig from buying or selling any securities
(other than our securities) from or to such affdisabsent the prior approval of our independemictiors. The 1940 Act also prohibits certain
“joint” transactions with certain of our affiliatewhich could include investments in the same ptdfcompany, without prior approval of our
independent directors and, in some cases, the BR@erson acquires more than 25.0% of our vasiecurities, we are prohibited from buying
or selling any security (other than any securitybfch we are the issuer) from or to such persocediain of that persog’affiliates, or enterin
into prohibited joint transactions with such persansent the prior approval of the SEC. Similatrigtsons limit our ability to transact business
with our officers, directors or investment advisetheir affiliates. As a result of these restoos, we may be prohibited from buying or selling
any security (other than any security of which wethe issuer) from or to any portfolio companyagdrivate equity fund managed by our
investment adviser without the prior approval & 8EC, which may limit the scope of investment opputies that would otherwise be
available to us.

We operate in a highly competitive market for inte®nt opportunities.

A number of entities compete with us to make theesyof investments that we make in private midddeket companies. We compete
with other BDCs, public and private funds (inclugli@BICs), commercial and investment banks, commkficiancing companies, insurance
companies, high-yield investors, hedge funds, amthe extent they provide an alternative formio&fcing, private equity funds. Many of our
competitors are substantially larger and have clemably greater financial, technical and marketegpurces than us. Some competitors may
have a lower cost of funds and access to fundingecss that are not available to us. In additiomeof our competitors may have higher risk
tolerances or different risk assessments that calldd/ them to consider a wider variety of investitseand establish more relationships tha
Furthermore, many of our competitors are not suhbgthe regulatory restrictions that the 1940 igposes on us as a BDC. As a result of this
competition, we may not be able to take advantdgét@active investment opportunities from timditoe, and we cannot assure you that we
will be able to identify and make investments tinget our investment objective.

We do not seek to compete primarily based on ttexést rates we offer and we believe that somaio€ompetitors may make loans
with interest rates that are comparable to or |laven the rates we offer.

We may lose investment opportunities if we do natah our competitors’ pricing, terms and structlirece match our competitors’
pricing, terms and structure, we may experienceedsed net interest income and increased riskegitdoss. As a result of operating in such ¢
competitive environment, we may make investmerdasdhe on better terms to our portfolio compartes twe originally anticipated, which
may impact our return on these investments.
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Economic recessions or downturns could impair ouwrtfolio companies and harm our operating resuli

Many of our portfolio companies may be susceptibleconomic slowdowns or recessions and may bel@italbepay our debt
investments during these periods. Therefore, oarga@forming assets are likely to increase andréthige of our portfolio is likely to decrease
during these periods. Adverse economic conditides may decrease the value of collateral secudngesof our debt investments and the
value of our equity investments. Economic slowdowneecessions could lead to financial losses impoutfolio and a decrease in revenues
income and assets. Unfavorable economic conditistscould increase our funding costs, limit owess to the capital markets or result in a
decision by lenders not to extend credit to us.séhevents could prevent us from increasing investisrend harm our operating results.

We are a non-diversified investment company witliire meaning of the 1940 Act, and therefore we am himited with respect to the
proportion of our assets that may be invested iowgdties of a single issuel

We are classified as a non-diversified investmentgany within the meaning of the 1940 Act, whichamegthat we are not limited by
the 1940 Act with respect to the proportion of assets that we may invest in securities of a siisglger. Although we seek to maintain a
diversified portfolio in accordance with our busieestrategies, to the extent that we assume largjggns in the securities of a small numbe
issuers, our net asset value may fluctuate to @grextent than that of a diversified investmemhpany as a result of changes in the financial
condition or the market’s assessment of the issdermay also be more susceptible to any single@oanor regulatory occurrence than a
diversified investment company. Beyond our RIC adseersification requirements, we do not have dixgiidelines for diversification, and our
investments could be concentrated in relatively f@ntfolio companies.

Our financial condition and results of operation geend on our ability to manage future investmentgestively.

Our ability to achieve our investment objective elegls on our ability to acquire suitable investmami$ monitor and administer those
investments, which depends, in turn, on Saratogasktment Advisors’ ability to identify, invest imé monitor companies that meet our
investment criteria.

Accomplishing this result on a cost-effective basigrgely a function of Saratoga Investment Adxgs structuring of the investment
process and its ability to provide competent, ditterand efficient service to us. Our executivaagffs and the officers and employees of
Saratoga Investment Advisors have substantial respitities in connection with their roles at Saiga Partners as well as responsibilities
under the Management Agreement. They may alsolleziagon to provide managerial assistance to odfglio companies. These demands
on their time, which will increase as the numbemetstments grow, may distract them or slow the od investment. In order to grow,
Saratoga Investment Advisors may need to hirey,teaipervise and manage new employees. Howeveramreot assure you that any such
employees will contribute to the work of Saratogedstment Advisors. Any failure to manage our fatgrowth effectively could have a
material adverse effect on our business and fiahoondition.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly réts.

We could experience fluctuations in our quartepgmting results due to a number of factors, inalyidhe interest rate payable on the
debt investments we make, the default rate on swastments, the level of our expenses, variatiorzd the timing of the recognition of
realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degnebich we encounter competition in our marketd general economic conditions. As a
result of these factors, results for any periocdudhaot be relied upon as being indicative of perfance in future periods.

Substantially all of our portfolio investments amecorded at fair value as approved in good faith dwyr board of directors; such valuation
are inherently uncertain and may be materially highor lower than the values that we ultimately ré&ad upon the disposal of such
investments.

Substantially all of our portfolio is, and we expedll continue to be, comprised of investments i@ not publicly traded. The value
of investments that are not publicly traded mayb®teadily determinable. We value these investsnguarterly at fair value as approved in
good faith by our board of directors. Where appadpr Saratoga Investment Advisers may utilizesgmwices of an independent valuation firm
to aid it in determining fair value. The types atfors that may be considered in valuing our imaests include the nature and realizable valu
of any collateral, the portfolio company’s abiltty make payments and its earnings, the markethiochithe portfolio company does business,
market yield trend analysis, comparison to publichgded companies, discounted cash flow and o#tevant factors. Because such valuations
and particularly valuations of private investmeamsl private companies, are inherently uncertairy, finatuate over short periods of time and
may be based on estimates, our determinationgrofélue may differ materially from the values tiaduld have been used if a ready market
for these investments existed. Our net asset \aukel be materially affected if the determinatioegarding the fair value of our investments
were materially higher or lower than the values tha ultimately realize upon the disposal of suokestments.

30




Table of Contents

If we make unsecured debt investments, we may ka&quate protection in the event our portfolio coampes become distressed or insolv
and will likely experience a lower recovery than necsenior debtholders in the event our portfoliomapanies defaults on their indebtedness.

We make unsecured debt investments in portfoliopamies. Unsecured debt investments are unsecudgdraor to other
indebtedness of the portfolio company. As a conseqeg, the holder of an unsecured debt investmeytawk adequate protection in the event
the portfolio company becomes distressed or inswlaad will likely experience a lower recovery thaore senior debtholders in the event the
portfolio company defaults on its indebtednessaddition, unsecured debt investments of middle-etackmpanies are often highly illiquid
and in adverse market conditions may experien@psteclines in valuation even if they are fullyfpeming.

If we invest in the securities and other obligatisf distressed or bankrupt companies, such investts may be subject to significant risk
including lack of income, extraordinary expensesyeertainty with respect to satisfaction of debtyler-than expected investment values or
income potentials and resale restrictions.

We are authorized to invest in the securities ghdroobligations of distressed or bankrupt compsamié times, distressed debt
obligations may not produce income and may requsrt bear certain extraordinary expenses (inctultigal, accounting, valuation and
transaction expenses) in order to protect and exoour investment. Therefore, to the extent weshiedistressed debt, our ability to achieve
current income may be diminished which may affeatability to make distributions on our common g&toc make interest and principal
payments of the Notes.

We also will be subject to significant uncertaiag/to when and in what manner and for what valealistressed debt we invest in \
eventually be satisfied (e.qg., through a liquidatid the obligor's assets, an exchange offer an pfareorganization involving the distressed
debt securities or a payment of some amount isfaation of the obligation). In addition, even if exchange offer is made or plan of
reorganization is adopted with respect to distrebskabt held by us, there can be no assurancehthaeturities or other assets received by us |
connection with such exchange offer or plan of gaaization will not have a lower value or incomégmpial than may have been anticipated
when the investment was made.

Moreover, any securities received by us upon cotigple@f an exchange offer or plan of reorganizatizay be restricted as to resale.
As a result of our participation in negotiationghwiespect to any exchange offer or plan of redegdion with respect to an issuer of distresse
debt, we may be restricted from disposing of swtiusties if we are in possession of material nahlje information relating to the issuer.

Second priority liens on collateral securing loatisat we make to our portfolio companies may be ®dbjto control by senior creditors wit
first priority liens. If there is a default, the Vae of the collateral may not be sufficient to repéan full both the first priority creditors and us

Certain loans that we make to portfolio companidkhe& secured on a second priority basis by theeseaollateral securing senior
secured debt of such companies. The first pridigtys on the collateral will secure the portfolantgpany’s obligations under any outstanding
senior debt and may secure certain other futurettleabmay be permitted to be incurred by the camgpander the agreements governing the
loans. The holders of obligations secured by tfs firiority liens on the collateral will generaltpntrol the liquidation of and be entitled to
receive proceeds from any realization of the cetkltto repay their obligations in full before Usaddition, the value of the collateral in the
event of liquidation will depend on market and emoit conditions, the availability of buyers andetifactors. There can be no assurance the
the proceeds, if any, from the sale or sales dffahe collateral would be sufficient to satisfetloan obligations secured by the second pri
liens after payment in full of all obligations seed by the first priority liens on the collaterdlsuch proceeds are not sufficient to repay
amounts outstanding under the loan obligationsreedoy the second priority liens, then we, to tkieet not repaid from the proceeds of the
sale of the collateral, will only have an unsecwkdim against the company’s remaining assets)if a

The rights we may have with respect to the colidteecuring the loans we make to our portfolio camgs with senior debt
outstanding may also be limited pursuant to theagenf one or more intercreditor agreements thagmter into with the holders of senior debt.
Under such an intercreditor agreement, at any tiraeobligations that have the benefit of the finsority liens are outstanding, any of the
following actions that may be taken with respedht collateral will be at the direction of the éiets of the obligations secured by the first
priority liens: the ability to cause the commencatraf enforcement proceedings against the collhtira ability to control the conduct of such
proceedings; the approval of amendments to collattrcuments; releases of liens on the collataral;waivers of past defaults under collat
documents. We may not have the ability to contralicect such actions, even if our rights are aselgraffected.
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may advelty affect our business.

We primarily make investments in private companfeportion of these securities may be subject ¢all@nd other restrictions on
resale, transfer, pledge or other disposition diratiherwise be less liquid than publicly tradedwdties. The illiquidity of our investments may
make it difficult for us to sell such investmeritshie need arises. In addition, if we are requiceliquidate all or a portion of our portfolio
quickly, we may realize significantly less than ttedue at which we have previously recorded ouestments. In addition, we may face other
restrictions on our ability to liquidate an investmtin a business entity to the extent that weuniiovestment adviser has or could be deem
have material non-public information regarding sbhakiness entity.

The debt securities in which we invest are subjectredit risk and prepayment risk.

An issuer of a debt security may be unable to niatezest payments and repay principal. We could losney if the issuer of a debt
obligation is, or is perceived to be, unable or iliivg to make timely principal and/or interest pagnts, or to otherwise honor its obligations.
The downgrade of a security by rating agencies fudkier decrease its value.

Certain debt instruments may contain call or red@npprovisions which would allow the issuer thdrepprepay principal prior to ti
debt instrument’s stated maturity. This is knowmpespayment risk. Prepayment risk is greater duaifgjling interest rate environment as
issuers can reduce their cost of capital by refimanhigher interest debt instruments with loweerast debt instruments. An issuer may also
elect to refinance their debt instruments with lowterest debt instruments if the credit standifithe issuer improves. To the extent debt
securities in our portfolio are called or redeenveel may receive less than we paid for such secantywe may be forced to reinvest in lower
yielding securities or debt securities of issudr®wer credit quality

Uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation proas may adversely affect the value of our portfatibthe LIBOR-indexed, floating-rate
debt securities.

Concerns have been publicized that some of the reebrdnks surveyed by the British Bankers’ Assoora{BBA”) in connection
with the calculation of LIBOR across a range of uniéies and currencies may have been under-repgpotiotherwise manipulating the inter-
bank lending rate applicable to them in order tfipon their derivatives positions or to avoid @pearance of capital insufficiency or adverse
reputational or other consequences that may hawdted from reporting inter-bank lending rates leigtihan those they actually submitted. A
number of BBA member banks have entered into sedtes with their regulators and law enforcemennaggs with respect to alleged
manipulation of LIBOR, and investigations by regata and governmental authorities in various jucisons are ongoing.

Actions by the BBA, regulators or law enforcemeg¢acies may result in changes to the manner innliBOR is determined.
Uncertainty as to the nature of such potential geai€may adversely affect the market for LIBOR-bassmlrrities, including our portfolio of
LIBOR-indexed, floating-rate debt securities. Ird@idn, any further changes or reforms to the debeation or supervision of LIBOR may
result in a sudden or prolonged increase or deere@agported LIBOR, which could have an adverggaiat on the market for LIBOR-based
securities or the value of our portfolio of LIBORdiexed, floating-rate debt securities.

Our investment in Saratoga CLO constitutes a levged investment in a portfolio of predominantly senisecured first lien term loans and
is subject to additional risks and volatility.

At February 28, 2014, our investment in the submattid notes of Saratoga CLO, a collateralized tddigation fund, had a fair value
of $19.6 million and constituted 9.5% of our polifo This investment constitutes a first loss positin a portfolio that, as of February 28,
2014, was composed of $301.3 million in aggregatecpal amount of primarily senior secured firigin term loans and $8.0 million in
uninvested cash. A first loss position means theatwll suffer the first economic losses if the valof Saratoga CLO decreases. First loss
positions typically carry a higher risk and earmigher yield. Interest payments generated frompbisgfolio will be used to pay the
administrative expenses of Saratoga CLO and irtterethe debt issued by Saratoga CLO before payiregurn on the subordinated notes.
Principal payments will be similarly applied to pagministrative expenses of Saratoga CLO and favestment or repayment of Saratoga
CLO debt before paying a return on, or repaymenthef subordinated notes. In addition, 80.0% offox@d management fee and 100.0% our
incentive management fee for acting as the collhteanager of Saratoga CLO is subordinated to dlyengnt of interest and principal on
Saratoga CLO debt. Any losses on the portfolio aditordingly reduce the cash flow available to fheese management fees and provide a
return on, or repayment of, our investment. Depegndin the amount and timing of such losses, we expgrience smaller than expected
returns and, potentially, the loss of our entineestment.

As the manager of the portfolio of Saratoga CLOwilehave some ability to direct the compositiontbé portfolio, but our discretion
is limited by the terms of the debt issued by SayatCLO which may limit our ability to make invesnis that we feel are
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in the best interests of the subordinated notastlaavailability of suitable investments. Thefpenance of Saratoga CLO’s portfolio is also
subject to many of the same risks sets forth im Afninual Report with respect to portfolio investiisein leveraged loans.

Available information about privately held comparses limited.

We invest primarily in privately-held companies.n@eally, little public information exists about #eecompanies, and we are requirec
to rely on the ability of our investment adviserigsestment professionals to obtain adequate infaomao evaluate the potential returns from
investing in these companies. These companieshaidfinancial information are not subject to thalSnes- Oxley Act of 2002 and other
rules that govern public companies. If we are umabluncover all material information about thesmpanies, we may not make a fully
informed investment decision, and we may lose mamegur investments.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor irpartfolio company, we may not be in a positiondontrol the entity, and its management
may make decisions that could decrease the valueuwfinvestment.

We make both debt and minority equity investmetiistefore, we are subject to the risk that a pbotimmpany may make business
decisions with which we disagree, and the stockdrsldnd management of such company may take nisktherwise act in ways that do not
serve our interests. As a result, a portfolio conmyp@ay make decisions that could decrease the whlaer portfolio holdings.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt or issue efyusecurities that rank equally with, or senior tour investments in such companies.

Our portfolio companies usually will have, or may fermitted to incur, other debt, or issue othetitggecurities that rank equally
with, or senior to, our investments. By their teysisch instruments may provide that the holdereat#ed to receive payment of dividends,
interest or principal on or before the dates onciwhie are entitled to receive payments in respiectioinvestments. These debt instruments
will usually prohibit the portfolio companies fropaying interest on or repaying our investmenthitnevent and during the continuance of a
default under such debt. Also, in the event of Iwesacy, liquidation, dissolution, reorganizationk@mkruptcy of a portfolio company, holders
of securities ranking senior to our investmentiat tportfolio company would typically be entitlemreceive payment in full before we receive
any distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaying such holders, the portfolio company mat/have any remaining assets to use for
repaying its obligation to us. In the case of debanking equally with our investments, we wouldédo share on an equal basis any
distributions with other holders in the event ofiasolvency, liquidation, dissolution, reorganisatior bankruptcy of the relevant portfolio
company.

There may be circumstances where our debt investiseould be subordinated to claims of other credé@r we could be subject to lender
liability claims.

If one of our portfolio companies were to go bamkreven though we may have structured our intea®senior debt, depending on
the facts and circumstances, including the extemtitich we actually provided managerial assistdaadbat portfolio company, a bankruptcy
court might re-characterize our debt holding arabsdinate all or a portion of our claim to thatatifier creditors. In addition, lenders can be
subject to lender liability claims for actions takey them where they become too involved in thedweer’'s business or exercise control over
the borrower. It is possible that we could becomigext to a lender’s liability claim, including agesult of actions taken if we actually render
significant managerial assistance.

Investments in equity securities involve a subsfahtiegree of risk

We purchase common stock and other equity seaurfithough equity securities have historically geated higher average total
returns than fixed-income securities over the ltetga, equity securities also have experienced fegmitly more volatility in those returns and
in recent years have significantly underperformaddtive to fixed-income securities. The equity s#i@s we acquire may fail to appreciate anc
may decline in value or become worthless and oilityato recover our investment will depend on qartfolio companys success. Investme
in equity securities involve a number of signifitaisks, including:

* any equity investment we make in a portfolio compeauld be subject to further dilution as a resiithe issuance of additional
equity interests and to serious risks as a jureousty that will be subordinate to all indebtednes senior securities in the event
that the issuer is unable to meet its obligatiansezomes subject to a bankruptcy process;

»  to the extent that the portfolio company requirgdigonal capital and is unable to obtain it, weymn@t recover our investment in
equity securities; and
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* in some cases, equity securities in which we inwéishot pay current dividends, and our abilityrealize a return on our
investment, as well as to recover our investmeilitpw dependent on the success of our portfolimganies. Even if the portfolio
companies are successful, our ability to realizevilue of our investment may be dependent ondbercence of a liquidity
event, such as a public offering or the sale ofpivgfolio company. It is likely to take a significt amount of time before a
liquidity event occurs or we can sell our equityéstments. In addition, the equity securities weeiee or invest in may be subj
to restrictions on resale during periods in whictoiuld be advantageous to sell.

There are special risks associated with investiréferred securities, including:

» preferred securities may include provisions thainiethe issuer, at its discretion, to defer diaitions for a stated period without
any adverse consequences to the issuer. If we queferred security that is deferring its distribas, we may be required to
report income for tax purposes even though we hateeceived any cash payments in respect of swhmie;

» preferred securities are subordinated with resjpectbrporate income and liquidation payments, apdleerefore subject to
greater risk than debt;

»  preferred securities may be substantially lesdditjuen many other securities, such as common iesuor U.S. government
securities; and

» preferred security holders generally have no votiglts with respect to the issuing company, sulifetimited exceptions.

Our investments in foreign debt, including that efmerging market issuers, may involve significansks in addition to the risks inherent in
U.S. investments.

Although there are limitations on our ability tovest in foreign debt, we may, from time to timeydst in debt of foreign companies,
including the debt of emerging market issuers. $ting in foreign companies may expose us to aduditiasks not typically associated with
investing in U.S. companies. These risks includenges in exchange control regulations, political smcial instability, expropriation,
imposition of foreign taxes, less liquid marketsl éss available information than is generallydhse in the United States, higher transaction
costs, less government supervision of exchangekels and issuers, less developed bankruptcy Riffisulty in enforcing contractual
obligations, lack of uniform accounting and audjtstandards and greater price volatility. Investt@mthe debt of emerging market issuers
may subject us to additional risks such as inftgtiwage and price controls, and the impositiorrade barriers. Furthermore, economic
conditions in emerging market countries are, toesemxtent, influenced by economic and securitiekataronditions in other emerging market
countries. Although economic conditions are différi@ each country, investors’ reaction to develepis in one country can have effects on
the debt of issuers in other countries.

Although most of our investments will be U.S. dolenominated, our investments that are denomiriatadoreign currency will be
subject to the risk that the value of a particalarrency will change in relation to one or moreestburrencies. Among the factors that may
affect currency values are trade balances, thé ¢té\ahort-term interest rates, differences intietavalues of similar assets in different
currencies, long-term opportunities for investmamd capital appreciation, and political developreevite may employ hedging techniques to
minimize these risks, but we cannot assure youtieatill fully hedge against these risks or thattsstrategies will be effective.

We may expose ourselves to risks if we engage ofghreg transactions.

We may utilize instruments such as forward congramtirrency options and interest rate swaps, caflars and floors to seek to hec
against fluctuations in the relative values of partfolio positions from changes in currency exad@nates and market interest rates. Use of
these hedging instruments may expose us to copatgy-credit risk. Hedging against a decline inthkies of our portfolio positions does not
eliminate the possibility of fluctuations in thelwas of such positions or prevent losses if theiesbf such positions decline. However, such
hedging can establish other positions designeaito fgom those same developments, thereby offggttia decline in the value of such
portfolio positions. Such hedging transactions ralgp limit the opportunity for gain if the valuektbe portfolio positions should increase.
Moreover, it may not be possible to hedge againgb@hange rate or interest rate fluctuation thaeinerally anticipated at an acceptable p
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Our board of directors may change our investmenjexdiive, operating policies and strategies withquitor notice or stockholder approval,
the effects of which may be adverse.

Our board of directors has the authority to modifyvaive our current investment objective, opegapolicies and strategies without
prior notice and without stockholder approval. Véamot predict the effect any changes to our cuopatating policies and strategies would
have on our business, financial condition, andeaiuour common stock. However, the effects mighativerse, which could negatively
impact our ability to pay dividends and cause yolose all or part of your investment.

We have limited experience in managing an SBIC aadly failure to comply with SBA regulations, resutiy from our lack of experience or
otherwise, could have an adverse effect on our @piens.

On March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary,a8@ga Investment Corp. SBIC, LP, received a licdrea the SBA to operate as
an SBIC under Section 301(c) of the Small Busihegsstment Act of 1958 and is regulated by the SBA.

The SBA places certain limitations on the finandiegns of investments by SBICs in portfolio comgsniind prohibits SBICs from
providing funds for certain purposes or to busiress a few prohibited industries. Compliance vV8BIC requirements may cause our SBIC
subsidiary to forego attractive investment oppadties that are not permitted under SBA regulations.

Further, SBA regulations require that an SBIC heoggiécally examined and audited by the SBA to deiae its compliance with the
relevant SBA regulations. The SBA prohibits, withpror SBA approval, a “change of contraf an SBIC or transfers that would result in
person (or a group of persons acting in concert)iog'10% or more of a class of capital stock oS&1C. If our SBIC subsidiary fails to
comply with applicable SBA regulations, the SBA kthulepending on the severity of the violation,itior prohibit its use of debentures,
declare outstanding debentures immediately dugpapdble, and/or limit it from making new investmeerin addition, the SBA can revoke or
suspend a license for willful or repeated violatadnor willful or repeated failure to observe, gmpvision of the Small Business Investment
Act of 1958 or any rule or regulation promulgatbdreunder. These actions by the SBA would, in tnegatively affect us because our SBIC
subsidiary is our wholly-owned subsidiary. We do nave any prior experience managing an SBIC. @k bf experience in complying with
SBA regulations may hinder our ability to take awkege of our SBIC subsidiary’s access to SBA-guaethdebentures.

Any failure to comply with SBA regulations couldugan adverse effect on our operations.
Our investments may be risky, and you could loskecalpart of your investment.

Substantially all of our debt investments hold a-movestment grade rating by one or more ratingha@s or, where not rated by any
rating agency, would be below investment gradetéd. A below investment grade rating means thdhe rating agency’s view, there is an
increased risk that the obligor on such debt veluimable to pay interest and repay principal odetst in full. We also invest in debt that defers
or pays PIK interest. To the extent interest paymhansociated with such debt are deferred, sudhwvdklbe subject to greater fluctuations in
value based on changes in interest rates, suctcdelat produce taxable income without a correspundash payment to us, and since we
generally do not receive any cash prior to matwftthe debt, the investment will be of greatek.ris

In addition, private middle market companies in ethive invest are exposed to a number of signifidaks, including:

» limited financial resources and an inability to méwir obligations, which may be accompanied loggerioration in the value of
any collateral and a reduction in the likelihoodusfrealizing any guarantees we may have obtamedrinection with our
investment;

»  shorter operating histories, narrower product liled smaller market shares than larger busines$ésh tend to render them
more vulnerable to competitors’ actions and mackeiditions, as well as general economic downturns;

* dependence on the management talents and effaatsrofll group of persons; the death, disabilégignation or termination of
one or more of which could have a material advemgact on the company and, in turn, on us;

* less predictable operating results and, possiblystantial additional capital requirements to supgheir operations, finance
expansion or maintain their competitive positiongla

difficulty accessing the capital markets to meé¢tifel capital needs.
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In addition, our executive officers, directors and investment adviser may, in the ordinary coafdeusiness, be named as
defendants in litigation arising from our investrteeim the portfolio companies.

Our independent auditors have not assessed ourrimécontrol over financial reporting. If our intenal control over financial reporting is
not effective, it could have a material adverseeeff on our stock price and our ability to raise d&g.

Because we are a “non-accelerated filer” withinrtteaning of Rule 12B-under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, odepender
auditors are not required to assess our interndtaoover financial reporting or to provide a rejpilereon. Although our management
determined that our internal control over financegorting was effective at February 28, 2014 (#sé date that such determination was
required to be made by us), there can be no asmuthat our independent auditors would agree witmeanagement’s conclusion.
Furthermore, if our market capitalization, excluglaffiliated stockholders, at August 31 of any dilsgear is greater than $75 million, then we
will be required to obtain independent auditor ifiegttion on the adequacy of our internal contreéofinancial reporting for that fiscal year. If
our internal control over financial reporting istel@nined in the future to not be effective, whethgiour management or by our independent
auditors, there could be an adverse reaction ifitlacial markets due to a loss of confidencénmreliability of our financial statements,
which could materially adversely affect our stockce and our ability to raise capital necessarggderate our business. In addition, we may b
required to incur costs in improving our internahtrol system and hiring additional personnel.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Investing in our common stock may involve an abaserage degree of risl

The investments we make in accordance with oursiimvent objective may result in a higher amounisi than alternative investme
options and volatility or loss of principal. Ouvestments in portfolio companies may be highly spet/e and aggressive, and therefore, an
investment in our common stock may not be suitbdrieomeone with lower risk tolerance.

We may continue to choose to pay dividends in owncstock, in which case you may be required to pay in excess of the cash you recei

We have in the past, and may continue to, distilarxable dividends that are payable to our stddiens in part through the issuance
of shares of our stock. For example, on Octobe8@3, our board of directors declared a dividelh#2065 per share to shareholders payable
in cash or shares of our common stock. Under ceapplicable provisions of the Code and the Trgasgulations, distributions payable in
cash or in shares of stock at the election of $toltlers are treated as taxable dividends. Thernaté&evenue Service has issued private ruling
indicating that this rule will apply even where tio¢al amount of cash that may be distributednigtéd to no more than 20.0% of the total
distribution. Under these rulings, if too many $toalders elect to receive their distributions isltaeach such stockholder would receive a prec
rata share of the total cash to be distributedvemad receive the remainder of their distributiorshares of stock. If we decide to make any
distributions consistent with these rulings that payable in part in our stock, taxable stockh@deceiving such dividends will be required to
include the full amount of the dividend (whetheteiwed in cash, our stock, or a combination thgrasfordinary income (or as long-term
capital gain to the extent such distribution isgendy reported as a capital gain dividend) to tktemst of our current and accumulated earnings
and profits for United States federal income tasppges. As a result, a U.S. stockholder may beinedjto pay tax with respect to such
dividends in excess of any cash received. If a Bt&kholder sells the stock it receives as a divitlin order to pay this tax, the sales proceec
may be less than the amount included in income reipect to the dividend, depending on the marnke¢ pf our stock at the time of the sale.
Furthermore, with respect to ndhS. stockholders, we may be required to withholf.Wax with respect to such dividends, includimgeaspec
of all or a portion of such dividend that is payali stock. In addition, if a significant numberafr stockholders determine to sell shares o
stock in order to pay taxes owed on dividends,aymput downward pressure on the trading price ofstack.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuaignificantly.

The market price and liquidity of the market for a@mmon stock may be significantly affected by ewous factors, some of which
are beyond our control and may not be directlyteeléo our operating performance. These factofsidiec

»  significant volatility in the market price and tiad volume of securities of BDCs or other compatiesur sector, which are not
necessarily related to the operating performandbasfe companies;

e changes in regulatory policies, accounting proneaments or tax rules, particularly with respect t€& BDCs or SBICs;
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» loss of RIC qualification;
e changes in the value of our portfolio of investnsent
e any shortfall in revenue or net income or any iaseein losses from levels expected by investoseourities analysts;
» departure of any of Saratoga Investment Advisoey personnel;
e  operating performance of companies comparable;to us
» general economic trends and other external fachors;
» loss of a major funding source.
There is a risk that you may not receive distributis or that our distributions may not grow over tén

As a BDC for 1940 Act purposes and a RIC for Ugslefal income tax purposes, we intend to makeildisions out of assets legally
available for distribution to our stockholders orsteh distributions are authorized by our boardigfctors and declared by us. We cannot
assure you that we will achieve investment regbliswill allow us to make a specified level of ealistributions or year-to-year increases in
cash distributions. In addition, due to the assgerage test that is applicable to us as a BDC paoxisions contained in the agreements
governing our borrowings, we may be limited in ability to make distributions. Further, if we int@sgreater amount of assets in equity
securities that do not pay current dividends, itldoeduce the amount available for distribution.

Provisions of our governing documents and the Maagt General Corporation Law could deter future takeer attempts and have ¢
adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

We are governed by our charter and bylaws, whichefer to as our “governing documents.”

Our governing documents and the Maryland Genergb@ation Law contain provisions that may havedffect of delaying,
deferring or preventing a future transaction omgjein control of us that might involve a premiurice for our stockholders or otherwise be in
their best interest.

Our charter provides for the classification of board of directors into three classes of directegsying staggered three-year terms,
which may render a change of control of us or remho¥ our incumbent management more difficult. Rartmore, any and all vacancies on our
board of directors will be filled generally only tiye affirmative vote of a majority of the remaigidirectors in office, even if the remaining
directors do not constitute a quorum, and any threglected to fill a vacancy will serve for therrainder of the full term until a successor is
elected and qualifies.

Our board of directors is authorized to createiasde new series of shares, to classify or re€faasly unissued shares of stock into
one or more classes or series, including prefesteck and, without stockholder approval, to amemdaobarter to increase or decrease the
number of shares of stock that we have authoritgsoe, which could have the effect of diluting@kholder’'s ownership interest. Prior to the
issuance of shares of stock of each class or s@r@gding any reclassified series, our boardicéators is required by our governing
documents to set the terms, preferences, conveosiother rights, voting powers, restrictions, kations as to dividends or other distributions,
qualifications and terms or conditions of redempfior each class or series of shares of stock.

Our governing documents also provide that our boérdirectors has the exclusive power to adopgralt repeal any provision of our
bylaws, and to make new bylaws. The Maryland Gér@ogporation Law also contains certain provisitimst may limit the ability of a third
party to acquire control of us, such as:

e The Maryland Business Combination Act, which, sabfe certain limitations, prohibits certain busae&ombinations between
and an “interested stockholder” (defined generaflyany person who beneficially owns 10% or moriefvoting power of the
common stock or an affiliate thereof) for five ygafter the most recent date on which the stocldndidcomes an interested
stockholder and, thereafter, imposes special mimimtice provisions and special stockholder votieguirements on these
combinations; and
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»  The Maryland Control Share Acquisition Act, whictopides that “control sharegf a Maryland corporation (defined as share
common stock which, when aggregated with othereshaf common stock controlled by the stockholdetifles the stockholder
to exercise one of three increasing ranges of ggiower in electing directors) acquired in a “cohghare acquisition"defined a
the direct or indirect acquisition of ownershipcontrol of “control sharesave no voting rights except to the extent apprdwe
stockholders by the affirmative vote of at leasphirds of all the votes entitled to be cast om itiatter, excluding all interested
shares of common stock.

In addition, the provisions of the Maryland Busim&ombination Act will not apply, however, if ouodrd of directors adopts a
resolution that any business combination betweeandsany other person will be exempt from the miovis of the Maryland Business
Combination Act. Although our board of directorslalopted such a resolution, there can be no assutiaat this resolution will not be alte
or repealed in whole or in part at any time. If tasolution is altered or repealed, the provisiofithe Maryland Business Combination Act r
discourage others from trying to acquire controlief

As permitted by Maryland law, our bylaws contaipravision exempting from the Maryland Control ShAcgjuisition Act any and a
acquisitions by any person of our common stockhdugh our bylaws include such a provision, suchoaipion may also be amended or
eliminated by our board of directors at any timéhia future, subject to obtaining confirmation fréime SEC that it does not object to us being
subject to the Maryland Control Share Acquisitioct.A

Our common stock may trade at a discount to our mstet value per share.

Common stock of BDCs, as closed-end investment eomap, frequently trade at a discount to net agdae. Our common stock has
traded at a discount to our net asset value simazetly after our initial public offering. The rigkat our common stock may continue to trade
discount to our net asset value is separate atidaiffom the risk that our net asset value parsimay decline.

Stockholders may incur dilution if we sell share$ @ur common stock in one or more offerings at pes below the then current net as
value per share of our common stock.

The 1940 Act prohibits us from selling shares af cammon stock at a price below the current nedtasslue per share of such stock,
with certain exceptions. One such exception isriockholder approval of issuances below net agdae provided that our board of directors
makes certain determinations. At our 2013 annuaitimg of stockholders, our stockholders approvedoposal that authorizes us to sell sh.
of our common stock below the then current nettassae per share of our common stock at an offepirice per share that is not less than
85% of the then current net asset value per shavaé or more offerings for a period of one yeatieg on the earlier of September 26, 201
the date of our 2014 annual meeting of stockholdeostinued access to this exception will requppraval of similar proposals at future
stockholder meetings.

If we were to sell shares of our common stock beleivasset value per share, such sales would resuttimmediate dilution to the
net asset value per share. This dilution would pasta result of the sale of shares at a pricabile then current net asset value per share of
our common stock and a proportionately greateredeser in a stockholder’s interest in our earningsamsets and voting interest in us than the
increase in our assets resulting from such issuance

Because the number of shares of common stock thdd be so issued and the timing of any issuanoetisurrently known, the actt
dilutive effect cannot be predicted.

Risks Related to Our Notes

The Notes are unsecured and therefore are effedjivaibordinated to any secured indebtedness we haweently incurred or may incur in
the future.

The Notes are not secured by any of our assetsyoofahe assets of our subsidiaries, includingwlhiolly owned subsidiaries. As a
result, the Notes are effectively subordinatednp secured indebtedness we or they have currerdiyiied and may incur in the future (or any
indebtedness that is initially unsecured to whighsubsequently grant security) to the extent of/tilee of the assets securing such
indebtedness, including indebtedness under theitG¥adility. In any liquidation, dissolution, bankstcy or other similar proceeding, the
holders of any of our existing or future securetkistedness and the secured indebtedness of oudianies may assert rights against the asse
pledged to secure that indebtedness in order wvwedull payment of their indebtedness beforeabsets may be used to pay other creditors,
including the holders of the Notes. As of Februz8y 2014, there was no outstanding balance undeCtadit Facility and we had the ability to
borrow up to $45.0 million under the Credit Fagilisubject to certain conditions. As of February 2814, we had $50.0 million in SBA-
guaranteed debentures outstanding. The
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indebtedness under the Credit Facility and to SBArgnteed debentures is senior to the Notes textieat of the value of the assets securing
such indebtedness.

The Notes are structurally subordinated to the indedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries.

The Notes are obligations exclusively of Sarataneestment Corp., and not of any of our subsidiafeme of our subsidiaries is a
guarantor of the Notes and the Notes are not redu be guaranteed by any subsidiary we may aequicreate in the future. Any assets of
our subsidiaries are not directly available tosfgtihe claims of our creditors, including holdefghe Notes. Except to the extent we are a
creditor with recognized claims against our sulasids, all claims of creditors of our subsidiamal have priority over our equity interests in
such entities (and therefore the claims of ouritwesi including holders of the Notes) with respiecthe assets of such entities. Even if we are
recognized as a creditor of one or more of theiie=) our claims would still be effectively subimated to any security interests in the assets
of any such entity and to any indebtedness or didlgitities of any such entity senior to our clanConsequently, the Notes are structurally
subordinated to all indebtedness and other ligsliof any of our subsidiaries and portfolio conmparmwith respect to which we hold equity
investments. In addition, our subsidiaries anddtesgities may incur substantial indebtednessarfuture, all of which would be structurally
senior to the Notes.

The indenture under which the Notes are issued ains limited protection for holders of the Notes.

The indenture under which the Notes are issuedofifaited protection to holders of the Notes. Téens of the indenture and the
Notes do not restrict our or any of our subsidg’ ability to engage in, or otherwise be a partyawariety of corporate transactions,
circumstances or events that could have a matatiarse impact on your investment in the Notepalmicular, the terms of the indenture and
the Notes do not place any restrictions on ourusrsoibsidiaries’ ability to:

»  issue securities or otherwise incur additional biddness or other obligations, including (1) ardeistedness or other
obligations that would be equal in right of paymenthe Notes, (2) any indebtedness or other ofitiga that would be
secured and therefore rank effectively seniorghtrdf payment to the Notes to the extent of tHaesof the assets securing
such debt, (3) indebtedness of ours that is gueedrty one or more of our subsidiaries and whiehefiore is structurally
senior to the Notes and (4) securities, indebtesloesbligations issued or incurred by our subsieaor the portfolio
companies with respect to which we hold an equityestment that would be senior to our equity irgerén those entities and
therefore rank structurally senior to the Notedwieispect to the assets of these entities, in e@s other than an incurrence
of indebtedness or other obligation that would eaasiolation of Section 18(a)(1)(A) as modified ®gction 61(a)(1) of the
1940 Act or any successor provisions (whether ommoare subject thereto), but giving effect, ioteaase, to any exemptive
relief granted to us by the SEC. Currently, thaswigions generally prohibit us from making addit borrowings, includin
through the issuance of additional debt or the shélditional debt securities, unless our asse¢iame, as defined in the
1940 Act, equals at least 200% after such borrosying

e pay dividends on, or purchase or redeem or makeapyents in respect of, capital stock or otheustes ranking junior il
right of payment to the Notes, including subordétbindebtedness, in each case other than dividpodshases, redemptions
or payments that would cause a violation of Secti®fa)(1)(B) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of #1820 Act or any
successor provisions, but giving effect to any exive relief granted to us by the SEC or no-actaiter granted by the SEC
to another BDC (or the Company if it determineseek such similar no-action or other relief) petimit the BDC to declare
any cash dividend or distribution in order to maintthe BDC'’s RIC status. These provisions gengmibhibit us from
declaring any cash dividend or distribution upow elass of our capital stock, or purchasing anynstapital stock if our ass
coverage, as defined in the 1940 Act, is below 2@d%he time of the declaration of the dividendlmtribution or the
purchase and after deducting the amount of suddetid, distribution or purchase;

» sell assets (other than certain limited restriction our ability to consolidate, merge or selloalsubstantially all of our
assets);

. enter into transactions with affiliates;

create liens (including liens on the shares ofsulnsidiaries) or enter into sale and leasebackadions;
*  make investments; or

e  create restrictions on the payment of dividendstber amounts to us from our subsidiaries.

39




Table of Contents
In addition, the indenture does not require usfterdo purchase the Notes in connection with angeaof control or any other event.

Furthermore, the terms of the indenture and the®ldb not protect holders of the Notes in the etrattwe experience changes
(including significant adverse changes) in ourfiicial condition, results of operations or creditngs, if any, as they do not require that we
adhere to any financial tests or ratios or speatifgeels of net worth, revenues, income, cash flmwiquidity.

Our ability to recapitalize, incur additional detitd take a number of other actions that are nateahby the terms of the Notes may
have important consequences for you as a holdéedflotes, including making it more difficult fos to satisfy our obligations with respect to
the Notes or negatively affecting the trading vadfithe Notes.

Other debt we issue or incur in the future couldtam more protections for its holders than theeimtdre and the Notes, including
additional covenants and events of default. Fomgte, the indenture under which the Notes are tsloes not contain cross-default
provisions that are contained in the Credit Facillthe issuance or incurrence of any such debt witemental protections could affect the
market for and trading levels and prices of theddot

An active trading market for the Notes may not deg which could limit your ability to sell the Nes or the market price of the Note

The Notes are listed on the NYSE under the symB&Q.” We cannot provide any assurances that divad¢rading market will
develop or be maintained for the Notes or thatwdlbe able to sell your Notes. If the Notes aadid after their initial issuance, they may
trade at a discount from their initial offering ggidepending on prevailing interest rates, the etddc similar securities, our credit ratings, if
any, general economic conditions, our financialditon, performance and prospects and other factdre underwriters involved in the
offering of the Notes have advised us that thegridtto make a market in the Notes, but they ar@blidated to do so. The underwriters may
discontinue any market-making in the Notes at @ng @t their sole discretion.

Accordingly, we cannot assure you that a liquidiitng market will develop for the Notes, that youle able to sell your Notes at a
particular time or that the price you receive wigen sell will be favorable. To the extent an actiradling market does not develop, the
liquidity and trading price for the Notes may berhad. Accordingly, you may be required to bearfthencial risk of an investment in the
Notes for an indefinite period of tim

We may choose to redeem the Notes when prevailiberést rates are relatively low.

On or after May 31, 2016, we may choose to reddémnNbtes from time to time, especially when prengiinterests rates are lower
than the rate borne by the Notes. If prevailingsare lower at the time of redemption, you wouwltlhe able to reinvest the redemption
proceeds in a comparable security at an effectitarést rate as high as the interest rate on thesNeing redeemed. Our redemption right als
may adversely impact your ability to sell the Naassthe optional redemption date or period appmgch

If we default on our obligations to pay our othendebtedness, we may not be able to make paymentsenotes

Any default under the agreements governing ourlitetiness, including a default under the Creditlacr other indebtedness to
which we may be a party that is not waived by #guired lenders, and the remedies sought by tletobf such indebtedness could make us
unable to pay principal, premium, if any, and ietgron the Notes and substantially decrease thiceinaalue of the Notes. If we are unable to
generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwisélent obtain funds necessary to meet required paysrof principal, premium, if any, and
interest on our indebtedness, or if we otherwidedacomply with the various covenants, includiiitgancial and operating covenants, in the
instruments governing our indebtedness, we could default under the terms of the agreements ggrsuch indebtedness, including the
Notes. In the event of such default, the holdersuch indebtedness could elect to declare allthdds borrowed thereunder to be due
payable, together with accrued and unpaid intetlestiender under the Credit Facility or other debtmay incur in the future could elect to
terminate its commitment, cease making furtherdammd institute foreclosure proceedings againsassets, and we could be forced into
bankruptcy or liquidation. In addition, any sucHaddt may constitute a default under the Notes ciwhtiould further limit our ability to repay
our debt, including the Notes. If our operatingfpenance declines, we may in the future need tk seebtain waivers from the lender under
the Credit Facility or other debt that we may intuthe future to avoid being in default. If we &ch our covenants under the Credit Facility ol
other debt and seek a waiver, we may not be aldbttin a waiver from the required lenders. If thisurs, we would be in default under the
Credit Facility or other debt, the lender couldreige its rights as described above, and we caallibized into bankruptcy or liquidation. If we
are unable to repay debt, lenders having securightibns could proceed against the collateral sagithe debt. Because the Credit Facility
has, and any future credit facilities will likelahe, customary cross-default provisions, if theebtddness under the Notes, the Credit Facility
or under any future credit facility is accelerate®, may be unable to repay or finance the amourgs d
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other physicgbgmies important to our operations, however, dificgé of our investment adviser
leases office space for our executive offices &t/gadison Avenue, New York, New York 10022.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On August 31, 2012, a complaint was filed in thetébh States Bankruptcy Court for the Southern istf New York by GSC
Acquisition Holdings, LLC against us to recover,ar other things, approximately $2.6 million foethenefit of the estates and the general
unsecured creditors of GSC Group, Inc. and itdiafis, including the Company’s former investmethtiser, GSCP (NJ), L.P. The complaint
alleges that the former investment adviser madnatouctively fraudulent transfer of $2.6 milliamdeferred incentive fees by waiving then
connection with the termination of the Managemegite®ment with us, and that the termination of ttenbjement Agreement was itself a
fraudulent transfer. These transfers, the comphdiages, were made without receipt of reasonatpyvalent value and while the former
investment adviser was insolvent. The complaintri@s/et been served, and the plaintiff's motiondathority to prosecute the case on behal
of the estates was taken under advisement by ti¢ @o October 1, 2012. We opposed that motion bédleeve that the claims in this lawsuit
are without merit and, if the plaintiff is authagik to proceed, intend to vigorously defend agdhistaction.

Except as discussed above, neither we nor our yoelhed subsidiaries, Saratoga Investment Fundirn@ and Saratoga Investment
Corp. SBIC LP, are currently subject to any matéeigal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

None.

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Rity Securities
Price range of common stock

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stoc&Haxge under the symbol “SAR.” Prior to July 301@0our common stock
traded on the New York Stock Exchange under thebsytGNV.” The following table sets forth, for thevo most recent fiscal years and the
current fiscal year, the range of high and low sgleces of our common stock as reported on the Xesk Stock Exchange, the sales price

percentage of our net asset value (“NAV”) and tiwidends declared by us for each fiscal quartee fiét asset value per share and high and
low sales prices listed below reflect the 1:10 regestock split that occurred on August 12, 2010.

Price Range
Fiscal Year ended February 28, 201 NAV(1) High Low
First Quarte! $ 259¢ % 182t $ 15.1¢
Second Quarte $ 27.2C % 17.2C $ 16.5(
Third Quartel $ 217 % 19.97 $ 15.15%
Fourth Quarte $ 229t $ 185( $ 15.07
Fiscal Year ended February 28, 201 NAV(1) High Low
First Quartel $ 23.7¢  $ 19.0¢ $ 16.3¢
Second Quarte $ 2371 $ 18.7C % 17.4(
Third Quartel $ 2061 $ 1958 $ 15.4(
Fourth Quarte $ 21.3¢ % 16.5¢ $ 15.2¢
Fiscal Year ended February 28, 201 NAV(1) High Low
First Quarter through May 23, 20 * $ 1591 $ 15.0¢
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* Not determinable at the time of filing.

(1) Net asset value per share is determined as oashedy in the relevant quarter and therefore naaiyeflect the net
asset value per share on the date of the highcandlbsing sales prices. The net asset values shosvhased on
outstanding shares at the end of each period.

Holders

The last reported price for our common stock on 3y2014 was $15.45 per share. As of May 23, 20ikte were 22 holders of
record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

The following table summarizes our dividends otréisitions declared during fiscal 2009, 2010, 202012 and 2013:

Amount
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date per Share
May 22, 200¢ May 30, 200¢ June 13, 200 $ 3.9C
August 19, 200t August 29, 200! September 15, 20( $ 3.9C
December 8, 2008 December 18, 200 December 29, 200 $ 2.50
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 200¢ $ 10.3(
November 13, 200 November 25, 200 December 31, 20C $ 18.25(1)
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 201( $ 18.2¢
November 12, 201 November 19, 201 December 29, 201 $ 4.4((1)
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 201 $ 4.4
November 15, 201 November 25, 201 December 30, 201 $ 3.0((1)
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 2012 $ 3.0C
November 9, 201 November 20, 201  December 31,201  $ 4.25(1)
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 201 $ 4.0k
October 30, 2013 November 13,201  December 27,201  $ 2.65(1)
Total Dividends Declared for Fiscal 201+ $ 2.6t
Q) This dividend was paid by combination of sharesasfimon stock and cash. Please see the discussioediattely following this

table for more detail about the composition of thiiddend.

Our distributions, if any, will be determined byrdaoard of directors and paid out of assets legalbilable for distribution. Any such
distributions will be taxable to our stockholddrsluding to those stockholders who receive addélshares of our common stock pursuant tc
our dividend reinvestment plan. Prior to Januar§®@ve paid quarterly dividends to our stockholdeiswever, in January 2009, we
suspended the practice of paying quarterly dividandur stockholders and have made five dividdsulilbutions (in December 2013, 2012,
2011, 2010 and 2009) to our stockholders since 8owh which distributions were made with a comhbimaof cash and the issuance of share:
of our common stock as discussed more fully below.

We are prohibited from making distributions thatiga us to fail to maintain the asset coveragegatipulated by the 1940 Act,
subject to certain exceptions, or that violate defst covenants.

Given the size of our asset base and our growipglipe of attractive investments, our board of clives believes that using our cap
resources to build and diversify our portfolio sss\stockholders’ interests best by better positignis to generate current income and capital
appreciation on an increasing scale in future pkstid herefore, our board of directors determinegitpa 20.0% cash and 80.0% stock divic
with respect to a significant portion of our tavx@abicome for our 2014 fiscal year in accordancé wértain IRS private letter rulings. For mi
detailed information about this dividend, please the discussion below.

In order to maintain our qualification as a RIC, mast for each fiscal year distribute an amountétpat least 90.0% of our ordine
net taxable income and realized net short-terntalbgdins in excess of realized net long-term ehpasses, if any, reduced by deductible
expenses. In addition, we will be subject to fetlexaise taxes to the extent we do not distributeéng) the calendar year at least (1) 98.0% of
our ordinary income for the calendar year, (2) 98df our capital gains in excess of capital logeeshe one year period ending on October 3
of the calendar year and (3) any ordinary inconrset capital gains for preceding years that wetalistributed during such years and on
which we paid no federal income tax. For the 20dl@rdar year, the
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Company made distributions sufficient such thatdicenot incur any federal excise taxes. We maytetewithhold from distribution a portion
of our ordinary income for the 2014 calendar yeat/ar portion of the capital gains in excess ofitedjosses realized during the one year
period ending October 31, 2014, if any, and, ifdeeso, we would expect to incur federal excisetas®a result.

We maintain an “opt out” dividend reinvestment pfanour common stockholders. As a result, if weldee a dividend, then
stockholders’ cash dividends will be automatica#linvested in additional shares of our common stonless they specifically “opt out” of the
dividend reinvestment plan so as to receive cagdetids.

Pursuant to a revenue procedure (Revenue Proc2@lifel?2), or the Revenue Procedure, issued bynthenal Revenue Service, or
IRS, the IRS indicated that it would treat disttibns from certain publicly traded RICs (includiBgCs) that were paid part in cash and pa
stock as dividends that would satisfy the RIC’suairistribution requirements and qualify for theidends paid deduction for federal income
tax purposes. In order to qualify for such treatmtiie Revenue Procedure required that at lea@%d.0f the total distribution be payable in
cash and that each stockholder have a right ta ®leeceive its entire distribution in cash. lbtmany stockholders elected to receive cash,
each stockholder electing to receive cash mustweeeproportionate share of the cash to be digib (although no stockholder electing to
receive cash may receive less than 10.0% of socklsblder’s distribution in cash). This Revenuededure applied to distributions declared
on or before December 31, 2012 with respect tolexgears ending on or before December 31, 2011.

Although this Revenue Procedure is no longer abkgland did not apply to our distributions for digcal year ended February 28,
2014, the revenue procedure was based upon cagplitable provisions of the Code and the Treasegulations pursuant to which
distributions payable in cash or in shares of sttdke election of stockholders are treated aablexdividends. Consistent with these
provisions, the IRS has issued private letter gdinoncluding that a RIC may treat a distributibitoown stock as fulfilling its RIC
distribution requirements if each stockholder miggeto receive his or her entire distribution ither cash or stock of the RIC subject to a
limitation on the aggregate amount of cash to k&itluted to all stockholders, which limitation mbg at least 20.0% of the aggregate dec
distribution.

On October 30, 2013, our board of directors dedlardividend of $2.65 per share payable on Deceibe2013, to common
stockholders of record on November 13, 2013. Studalehs had the option to receive payment of thaldivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common spyokided that the aggregate cash payable tdatlehiolders was limited to approximately
$2.5 million or $0.53 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend casif approximately $2.5 million in cash and 648 5hares of common stock, or
13.7% of our outstanding common stock prior todividend payment. The amount of cash elected t@beived was greater than the cash
limit of 20.0% of the aggregate dividend amountsthesulting in the payment of a combination ohcaisd stock to shareholders who elected
to receive cash. The number of shares of commank stmmprising the stock portion was calculated basea price of $15.439 per share,
which equaled the volume weighted average tradiiw per share of the common stock on Decembet3,land 16, 2013.

On November 9, 2012, our board of directors dedlardividend of $4.25 per share payable on Dece®be2012, to common
stockholders of record on November 20, 2012. Studdehs had the option to receive payment of theddivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common sprokided that the aggregate cash payable tdafehiolders was limited to approximately
$3.3 million or $0.85 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cusef $3.3 million in cash and 853,455 sharesoofimon stock, or 22.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivecgvesder than the cash limit of 20.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenpdlyment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtbek portion was calculated based on a pricel 64814 per share, which equaled the
volume weighted average trading price per shateetommon stock on December 14, 17 and 19, 2012.

On November 15, 2011, our board of directors dediar dividend of $3.00 per share payable on Dece8the011, to common
stockholders of record on November 25, 2011. Studdlens had the option to receive payment of theldivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common spokided that the aggregate cash payable tdatkehiolders was limited to $2.0 million
$0.60 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend causif $2.0 million in cash and 599,584 sharesoofimon stock, or 18.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivedgvesder than the cash limit of 20.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenpidlyment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtibek portion was calculated based

43




Table of Contents

on a price of $13.12 per share, which equaled theénve weighted average trading price per shareetbmmon stock on December 20, 21
22, 2011.

On November 12, 2010, we declared a dividend ofGgper share which was paid on December 29, 2Gb8kISolders had the option
to receive payment of the dividend in cash, shafe®smmon stock, or a combination of cash and shefeommon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watedrto $1.2 million or $0.44 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cmusef $1.2 million in cash and 596,235 sharesoofimon stock, or 22.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivecgvesder than the cash limit of 10.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenmpdayment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtibek portion was calculated based on a pricel@f8049 per share, which equaled the
volume weighted average trading price per shate@tommon stock on December 20, 21 and 22, 2010.

On November 13, 2009, we declared a dividend of 28 Ber share payable on December 31, 2009. Sthiischad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, sharemofmon stock, or a combination of cash and shdresromon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all stockholders watelihto $2.1 million or $0.25 per share.

Based on stockholder elections, the dividend ctedisf $2.1 million in cash and 8,648,725 sharesoofimon stock, or 104.0% of ¢
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivecgvesder than the cash limit of 13.7% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingeénpdlyment of a combination of cash and stock tckmiders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtbek portion was calculated based on a pricel @9 per share, which equaled the
volume weighted average trading price per shateetommon stock on December 24 and 28, 2009.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the return on our camistock with that of the Standard & Poor’s 500c&timdex and the NASDAQ
Financial 100 index, for the period from March 2807, the date our common stock began tradingugfiré-ebruary 28, 2013. The graph
assumes that, on March 23, 2007, a person invg&te@l in each of our common stock, the Standard &'B&00 Stock Index and the
NASDAQ Financial 100 index. The graph measured stareholder return, which takes into account lobidnges in stock price and divider
It assumes that dividends paid are reinvestedkédecurities.
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Sales of unregistered securities
Not applicable.
Issuer purchases of equity securities
We did not purchase any shares of our common stoitie open market during the year ended Februgyg@14.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial and other datatf@ years ended February 28, 2014, February 28, Zebruary 29, 2012,
February 28, 2011 and February 28, 2010 are defre@d our consolidated financial statements whiakiehbeen audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, an independent registered public acdagrfirm, whose report thereon is included withiistAnnual Report. The data should be
read in conjunction with our consolidated finanattements and notes thereto, which are inclutdesveere in this Annual Report, and
Part Il, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Asa@yof Financial Condition and Results of Operagion

SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollar amounts in thousands, except share and pahare numbers)

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
February 28, February 28, February 29, February 28, February 28,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Income Statement Data:
Interest and related portfolio incon
Interest $ 20,187 $ 14,45( $ 11,26: $ 12,05( $ 13,32«
Management fee and other income 2,70¢ 2,557 2,25( 2,12: 2,29:
Total interest and related portfolio
income 22,89: 17,00° 13,51: 14,17: 15,617
Expenses
Interest and debt financing expen 6,08¢ 2,54( 1,29¢ 2,617 4,09¢
Base management and incentive
management fees( 4,01¢ 4,15 2,87¢ 3,51¢ 2,27¢
Administrator expense 1,00(¢ 1,00(¢ 1,00¢ 81C 671
Administrative and othe 2,67( 2,28 2,63¢ 4,88z 3,50z
Expense reimbursement — — — (2,894 (671)
Total operating expenses after
reimbursement 13,77 9,97¢ 7,811 8,924 9,87¢
Net investment income before income
taxes 9,121 7,02¢ 5,701 5,24¢ 5,741
Income tax expenses, including excise tax — — — — (27)
Net investment income 9,121 7,02¢ 5,701 5,24¢ 5,714
Realized and unrealized gain (loss) on
investments and derivative
Net realized gain (los: 1,271 431 (12,186 (24,689 (6,659
Net change in unrealized gain (loss) (1,64 7,14 19,76( 36,39: (9,529
Total net gain (loss) (377) 7,57¢ 7,57¢ 11,70¢ (16,177
Net increase (decrease) in net assets
resulting from operatior $ 8,74¢ $ 14,60: $ 13,27 $ 16,95¢ $ (10,469)
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
February 28, February 28, February 29, February 28, February 28,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Per Share:
Earnings (loss) per common share—basic and

diluted(2)(5) $ 1.7t $ 358 3 387 $ 6.9¢ $ (9.8¢)
Net investment income per sh—basic and

diluted(2)(5) $ 1.8 % 171 % 166 $ 21t $ 5.3¢
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) per «—

basic and diluted(2)(t $ 0.0y $ 18 % 221 % 481 $ (15.29)
Dividends declared per common share(3 $ 265 $ 428 $ 3.0 $ 4.4C $ 18.2¢
Dilutive impact of dividends paid in stock on net

asset value per share! $ 0.75) % 1.49 % (2.01) $ (9.0 % (21.10
Net asset value per sh: $ 21.3¢ $ 229t $ 251 $ 26.2¢ $ 32.7¢
Statement of Assets and Liabilities Data
Investment assets at fair val $ 205,84' % 155,08( $ 95,36( $ 80,02t $ 89,37
Total asset 219,17 174,41 125,49: 98,76¢ 96,93t
Total debt outstandin 98,30( 60,30( 20,00( 4,50( 36,99:
Stockholder' equity 114,92: 108,68 97,38( 86,07: 55,47¢
Net asset value per common shart $ 21.3¢ $ 229t $ 251: $ 26.2¢ $ 32.7¢
Common shares outstanding at end of 5,379,61 4,730,11 3,876,66. 3,277,07 1,694,01!
Other Data:
Investments funde $ 121,07: $ 71,59¢ $ 38,67¢ $ 9,012 % —
Principal collections related to investment

repayments or sal $ 71,600 $ 21,48t $ 33,56¢ $ 31,97 $ 15,18¢
Number of investments at year € 6C 47 33 37 41
Weighted average yield of income producing ¢

investment—Non-control/nor-affiliate 10.62% 11.2¢% 11.8¢% 11.1% 9.€%
Weighted average yield on income producing

investment—Control 18.55% 27.19% 20.1%% 15.8% 8.2%
(1) See note 6 in consolidated financial statementtagued elsewhere herein.

(2) For the years ended February 28, 2014, Februarg®@&, February 29, 2012, February 28, 2011 anduaep 28, 2010 amounts are
calculated using weighted average common sharssaoding of 4,920,517, 4,110,484, 3,434,345, 25¥%7,and 1,061,351,

respectively.
3) Calculated using the shares outstanding at ex-eliddlate.
4 Dilutive effect of the issuance of shares of comretmtk below net asset value per share in connestith the satisfaction of the

Company’s annual RIC distribution requirement. Strice Range of Common Stock and Distributions —vi@énd Policy.”

(5) Earnings per share, dividend per share and net\easse per share figures for February 28, 201Gewedated and do not reflect

historical 10-K'’s.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our financial statements and related nated other financial information
appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on FOBAK1In addition to historical information, the foWing discussion and other parts of this
Annual Report contain forward-looking informatidrat involves risks and uncertainties. Our actusiliits could differ materially from those
anticipated by such forward-looking information doghe factors discussed under Part I, Item 1/skRiactors” and “Note about Forward-

Looking Statements” appearing elsewhere herein.

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futuropmance, taking into account
all information currently available to us. Thesdidfe, assumptions and expectations can changeemiti of many possible events or factors,
not all of which are known to us or are within @antrol. If a change occurs, our business, findrgadition, liquidity and results of
operations may vary materially from those expressexir forward-looking statements.
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The forward-looking statements contained in thim#al Report on Form 10-K involve risks and uncatias, including statements as
to:

e our future operating results;

e our business prospects and the prospects of otfoli@companies;

» the impact of investments that we expect to make;

e our contractual arrangements and relationships thitd parties;

» the dependence of our future success on the geemmabmy and its impact on the industries in whighinvest;

« the ability of our portfolio companies to achieheit objectives;

e our expected financings and investments;

e our regulatory structure and tax treatment, inglgddur ability to operate as a BDC, or to operateSBIC subsidiary, and to
continue to qualify to be taxed as a RIC;

» the adequacy of our cash resources and workingatapi

» the timing of cash flows, if any, from the operascf our portfolio companies; and

the ability of our investment adviser to locatetabiie investments for us and to monitor and eféetyi administer our

investments.

You should not place undue reliance on these fat@oking statements. The forward-looking stateraenade in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K relate only to events as of the datevbich the statements are made. We undertake ligatibn to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances oicguafter the date of this Annual Report on ForrrKL0

OVERVIEW

We are a Maryland corporation that has electectdated as a business development company (“BD@f¢r the Investment
Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”). Our investrhebjective is to generate current income and,lesser extent, capital appreciation from
our investments. We invest primarily in leverageains and mezzanine debt issued by private U.S.|eniddrket companies, which we define
as companies having EBITDA of between $5 milliod 50 million, both through direct lending and thgh participation in loan syndicates.
We may also invest up to 30.0% of the portfoli@mpportunistic investments in order to seek to enbarpturns to stockholders. Such
investments may include investments in distressdd, dvhich may include securities of companiesanKouptcy, foreign debt, private equity,
securities of public companies that are not thirdged and structured finance vehicles such aateddllized loan obligation funds. We have
elected and qualified to be treated as a regulatestment company (“RIC”) under Subchapter M & thternal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”).

Corporate History and Recent Developments

We commenced operations, at the time known as G8€stment Corp., on March 23, 2007 and completadiaal public offering of
shares of common stock on March 28, 2007. Pridutp 30, 2010, we were externally managed and adviy GSCP (NJ), L.P., an entity
affiliated with GSC Group, Inc. In connection witie consummation of a recapitalization transaatioduly 30, 2010, as described below we
engaged Saratoga Investment Advisors (“SIA”) tdaep GSCP (NJ), L.P. as our investment adviserchadged our name to Saratoga
Investment Corp.

As a result of the event of default under a revajvéecuritized credit facility with Deutsche Bank previously had in place, in
December 2008 we engaged the investment bankimgafirStifel, Nicolaus & Company to evaluate strategansaction opportunities and
consider alternatives for us. On April 14, 2010G38vestment Corp. entered into a stock purchasseagent with Saratoga Investment
Advisors and certain of its affiliates and an assignt, assumption and novation agreement with gadhvestment Advisors, pursuant to
which GSC Investment Corp. assumed certain righdsadbligations of Saratoga Investment Advisors urdéebt commitment letter Saratoga
Investment Advisors received from Madison Capitahéing LLC, which indicated Madison Capital Fundsgillingness to provide GSC
Investment Corp. with a $40.0 million senior sedurevolving credit facility, subject to the satisfian of certain terms and conditions. In
addition, GSC Investment Corp. and GSCP (NJ), érfered into a termination and release agreenehg effective as of the closing of the
transaction contemplated by the stock purchasesagget, pursuant to which GSCP (NJ), L.P., amongrdttings, agreed to waive any and all
accrued and unpaid deferred incentive managemestuie to and as of the closing of the transactimernplated by the stock purchase
agreement but continued to be entitled to recdigebaise management fees earned through the date dbsing of the transaction
contemplated by the stock purchase agreement.

On July 30, 2010, the transactions contemplatetthéstock purchase agreement with Saratoga Invest#tyisors and certain of its
affiliates were completed, the private sale of 888,shares of our common stock for $15.0 millioaggregate
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purchase price to Saratoga Investment Advisorscartdin of its affiliates closed, the Company esdeinto the Credit Facility, and the
Company began doing business as Saratoga Inves@oent

We used the net proceeds from the private salsacdion and a portion of the funds available tander the Credit Facility to pay the
full amount of principal and accrued interest, uthg default interest, outstanding under our rewgl securitized credit facility with Deutsche
Bank. The revolving securitized credit facility WwiDeutsche Bank was terminated in connection withpayment of all amounts outstanding
thereunder on July 30, 2010.

On August 12, 2010, we effected a one-for-ten mvetock split of our outstanding common stockaAssult of the reverse stock
split, every ten shares of our common stock wereeded into one share of our common stock. Angtfoaal shares received as a result of
reverse stock split were redeemed for cash. Tla¢ dash payment in lieu of shares was $230. Imnbelgliafter the reverse stock split, we had
2,680,842 shares of our common stock outstanding.

In January 2011, we registered for public resadedB2,842 shares of our common stock issued tddggrénvestment Advisors and
certain of its affiliates.

On March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary,a@ga Investment Corp. SBIC, LP (“SBIC LP”), re@siva Small Business
Investment Company (“SBIC”) license from the Sniallsiness Administration (“SBA”).

In May 2013, we issued $48.3 million in aggregaiagipal amount of our 7.50% unsecured notes d@&® 20r net proceeds of $46.1
million after deducting underwriting commissionsif.9 million and offering costs of $0.3 millionh& proceeds included the underwriters’
full exercise of their overallotment option. Intstr®n these notes is paid quarterly in arrearsatmuary 15, May 15, August 15 and
November 15, at a rate of 7.50% per year, beginAingust 15, 2013. The notes mature on May 31, 20#Dmay be redeemed in whole o
part at any time or from time to time at our optamor after May 31, 2016. The notes are listetherNYSE under the trading symbol “SAQ”
with a par value of $25.00 per share.

Critical Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The preparation of financial statements in accacdamith U.S. generally accepted accounting prirsiglu.S. GAAP”) requires
management to make certain estimates and assumpfil@cting amounts reported in the Company's cidested financial statements. We
have identified investment valuation, revenue redamn and the recognition of capital gains inceatiee expense as our most critical
accounting estimates. We continuously evaluateestimates, including those related to the mattessribed below. These estimates are base
on the information that is currently available ®band on various other assumptions that we bet@be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results could differ materially from thosstienates under different assumptions or conditidndiscussion of our critical accounting
policies follows.

Investment Valuation

The Company accounts for its investments at fdiresen accordance with the Financial Accountingn8tads Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 8Fair Value Measurements and Disclosu(&sSC 820"). ASC 820 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valstgliishes a fair value hierarchy based on thatgualinputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair valuesmmeanents. ASC 820 requires the Company to asshahés investments are to be sold at
the statement of assets and liabilities date irptivcipal market to independent market participaot in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market, which may be a hgposh market. Market participants are defined @gelns and sellers in the principal or
most advantageous market that are independent,l&dgeable, and willing and able to transact.

Investments for which market quotations are reaalifgilable are fair valued at such market quotatimtained from independent th
party pricing services and market makers subjeahtodecision by our board of directors to appravair value determination to reflect
significant events affecting the value of theseestments. We value investments for which marketatioms are not readily available at fair
value as approved, in good faith, by our boardifatiors based on input from Saratoga Investmenriskds, the audit committee of our board
of directors and a third party independent valuafion. Determinations of fair value may involvebgective judgments and estimates. The
types of factors that may be considered in detdngithe fair value of our investments include tla¢une and realizable value of any collateral,
the portfolio company’s ability to make paymentsrket yield trend analysis, the markets in whidah pbrtfolio company does business,
comparison to publicly traded companies, discountesh flow and other relevant factors.
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We undertake a multi-step valuation process eaentejuwhen valuing investments for which markettgtions are not readily
available, as described below:

e Each investment is initially valued by the respblesinvestment professionals of Saratoga Investrdiitsors and preliminary
valuation conclusions are documented and discusghddur senior management; and

* Anindependent valuation firm engaged by our badrdirectors reviews approximately one quartetefse preliminary
valuations each quarter so that the valuation ofi @estment for which market quotes are not fgadiailable is reviewed by
the independent valuation firm at least annually.

In addition, all our investments are subject toftiwing valuation process:

e The audit committee of our board of directors rexeach preliminary valuation and Saratoga Investdvisors and
independent valuation firm (if applicable) will quipment the preliminary valuation to reflect anymroents provided by the audit
committee; and

»  Our board of directors discusses the valuationsagpdoves the fair value of each investment, indgaith, based on the input of
Saratoga Investment Advisors, independent valudiion(to the extent applicable) and the audit cdttee of our board of
directors.

Our investment in Saratoga Investment Corp. CLGB82D1Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO") is carried at fair vajuehich is based on a
discounted cash flow model that utilizes prepaymeminvestment and loss assumptions based orricatexperience and projected
performance, economic factors, the characterisfitse underlying cash flow, and comparable yiétdsequity interests in collateralized loan
obligation funds similar to Saratoga CLO, when tlde, as determined by SIA and recommended tdoard of directors. Specifically, we
use Intex cash flow models, or an appropriate #ubstto form the basis for the valuation of oowveéstment in Saratoga CLO. The models
set of assumptions including projected defaults;atecovery rates, reinvestment rate and prepayrated in order to arrive at estimated
valuations. The assumptions are based on avaitadtket data and projections provided by third partis well as management estimates. We
use the output from the Intex models (i.e., thexeted cash flows) to perform a discounted cashdlanalysis on expected future cash flow
determine a valuation for our investment in SaratG.0.

Revenue Recognition
Income Recognition

Interest income, adjusted for amortization of premiand accretion of discount, is recorded on aruatdasis to the extent that such
amounts are expected to be collected. The Compgapg accruing interest on its investments whes determined that interest is no longer
collectible. Discounts and premiums on investmeunighased are accreted/amortized over the lifa@féspective investment using the
effective yield method. The amortized cost of irtm@nts represents the original cost adjusted ®atttretion of discounts and amortizations
of premium on investments.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual statehuhrere is reasonable doubt that principal oréstewill be collected. Accrued
interest is generally reserved when a loan is placenon-accrual status. Interest payments receimatbn-accrual loans may be recognized a
a reduction in principal depending upon managersgatigment regarding collectability. Non-accrualrie are restored to accrual status wher
past due principal and interest is paid and, inagament’s judgment, are likely to remain currelibocaugh we may make exceptions to this
general rule if the loan has sufficient collateralue and is in the process of collection.

Interest income on our investment in Saratoga Gi.f@¢orded using the effective interest methoc@oadance with the provisions of
ASC Topic 325-40,Investments-Other, Beneficial Interests in SeaedtiFinancial Assetsbased on the anticipated yield and the estimated
cash flows over the projected life of the invest&ields are revised when there are changes irahot estimated cash flows due to changes
in prepayments and/or re-investments, credit loss@sset pricing. Changes in estimated yield @egnized as an adjustment to the estimate
yield over the remaining life of the investmentrfréhe date the estimated yield was chan

Paid-in-Kind Interest

The Company holds debt investments in its portftiat contain a payment-in-kind (“PIK”) interesppision. The PIK interest, which
represents contractually deferred interest addéldetinvestment balance that is generally due ainityg is generally recorded on the accrual
basis to the extent such amounts are expecteddolleeted. We stop accruing PIK interest if wendxd expect the issuer to be able to pay all
principal and interest when due.
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Capital Gains Incentive Fee

The Company records an expense accrual relatitigetoapital gains incentive fee payable by the Camgpo its investment adviser
when the unrealized gains on its investments exabedalized capital losses on its investmentggithe fact that a capital gains incentive fee
would be owed to the investment adviser if the Canypwere to liquidate its investment portfolio atls time. The actual incentive fee payable
to the Company’s investment adviser related totabgains will be determined and payable in arreatie end of each fiscal year and will
include only realized capital gains for the period.

Revenues

We generate revenue in the form of interest incamcapital gains on the debt investments thatole dnd capital gains, if any, on
equity interests that we may acquire. We expectebt investments, whether in the form of leveragads or mezzanine debt, to have terms
of up to ten years, and to bear interest at edHered or floating rate. Interest on debt will p@yable generally either quarterly or semi-
annually. In some cases, our debt investments mayde for a portion of the interest to be PIK. fhe extent interest is paid-in-kind, it will be
payable through the increase of the principal arhotithe obligation by the amount of interest duettoe then-outstanding aggregate principal
amount of such obligation. The principal amounthaf debt and any accrued but unpaid interest willegally become due at the maturity date.
In addition, we may generate revenue in the forroomfimitment, origination, structuring or diligerfees, fees for providing managerial
assistance or investment management services asifyoconsulting fees. Any such fees will be gateat in connection with our investments
and recognized as earned. We may also invest farped equity securities that pay dividends on e basis.

On January 22, 2008, we entered into a collatesslagement agreement with Saratoga CLO, pursuavtitin we act as its collateral
manager. The Saratoga CLO was refinanced in Oc®liE3 and its reinvestment period ends in Octob&62The Saratoga CLO remains
100% owned and managed by Saratoga Investment Gtapeceive a senior collateral management fee2®% and a subordinate collateral
management fee of 0.25% of the outstanding prihe@pmunt of Saratoga CLO's assets, paid quarterthe extent of available proceeds. We
are also entitled to an incentive management fealéq 20.0% of excess cash flow to the extenSh&toga CLO subordinated notes receive
an internal rate of return equal to or greater thaf%.

We recognize interest income on our investmenténsubordinated notes of Saratoga CLO using tleetafé interest method, based
on the anticipated yield and the estimated casksflover the projected life of the investment. Y#etde revised when there are changes in
actual or estimated cash flows due to changesgpgyments and/or ievestments, credit losses or asset pricing. Chairgestimated yield a
recognized as an adjustment to the estimated gigdd the remaining life of the investment from tiade the estimated yield was changed.

Expenses

Our primary operating expenses include the paymgimvestment advisory and management fees, priofeaslsfees, directors and
officers insurance, fees paid to independent dirscdnd administrator expenses, including our aldte portion of our administrator’'s
overhead. Our investment advisory and managemestdempensate our investment adviser for its woiéntifying, evaluating, negotiating,
closing and monitoring our investments. We beaotiler costs and expenses of our operations anskirtions, including those relating to:

e organization;

»  calculating our net asset value (including the eost expenses of any independent valuation firm);

« expenses incurred by our investment adviser payalitdrd parties, including agents, consultantstber advisers, in monitoring
our financial and legal affairs and in monitoringr anvestments and performing due diligence onpraspective portfolio
companies;

» interest payable on debt, if any, incurred to foc®our investments;

» offerings of our common stock and other securities;

* investment advisory and management fees;

+ fees payable to third parties, including agentasatiants or other advisers, relating to, or asgediwith, evaluating and making
investments;
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» transfer agent and custodial fees;
» federal and state registration fees;
« all costs of registration and listing our commaockton any securities exchange;
+ federal, state and local taxes;
» independent directors’ fees and expenses;
»  costs of preparing and filing reports or other doeuts required by governmental bodies (includirg3EC and the SBA);
»  costs of any reports, proxy statements or othdce®to common stockholders including printing spst
» our fidelity bond, directors and officers errorglaymissions liability insurance, and any other rasge premiums;

« direct costs and expenses of administration, inetugdrinting, mailing, long distance telephone, yiog, secretarial and other
staff, independent auditors and outside legal casis

« administration fees and all other expenses incusyeds or, if applicable, the administrator in ceation with administering our
business (including payments under the administnedigreement based upon our allocable portioneoatiministrator’s overhead
in performing its obligations under an administsatagreement, including rent and the allocableigouf the cost of our officers
and their respective staffs (including travel exges)).

Pursuant to the investment advisory and manageaggaement that we had with GSCP (NJ), L.P., ouné&mrinvestment adviser and
administrator, we had agreed to pay GSCP (NJ),dsfvestment adviser a quarterly base managdeenf 1.75% of the average value of
our total assets (other than cash or cash equisabern including assets purchased with borrowedd$yat the end of the two most recently
completed fiscal quarters, and appropriately adpigbr any share issuances or repurchases duengpiplicable fiscal quarter, and an incen
fee.

The incentive fee had two parts:

* Afee, payable quarterly in arrears, equal to 200d%ur pre-incentive fee net investment incomegyregsed as a rate of return on
the value of the net assets at the end of the inatedg preceding quarter, that exceeded a 1.8758fteply (7.5% annualized)
hurdle rate measured as of the end of each fiseater. Under this provision, in any fiscal quartarr investment adviser
received no incentive fee unless our pre-incerféeenet investment income exceeded the hurdleofate375%. Amounts
received as a return of capital were not inclusedaiculating this portion of the incentive feen&i the hurdle rate was based on
net assets, a return of less than the hurdle ratetal assets could still have resulted in anritige fee.

» Afee, payable at the end of each fiscal year, lelgu20.0% of our net realized capital gains, iy acomputed net of all realized
capital losses and unrealized capital depreciatipeach case on a cumulative basis, less the gaigramount of capital gains
incentive fees paid to the investment adviser thhosuch date.

We deferred cash payment of any incentive fee wfiserearned by our former investment adviser ifirduthe then most recent four
full fiscal quarters ending on or prior to the dateeh payment was to be made, the sum of (a) @reggte distributions to our stockholders
(b) our change in net assets (defined as totatsakeses liabilities) (before taking into accouny amcentive fees payable during that period) was
less than 7.5% of our net assets at the beginrisgah period. These calculations were appropsigisd-rated for the first three fiscal quarters
of operation and adjusted for any share issuance=parchases during the applicable period. Sucéritive fee would become payable on the
next date on which such test had been satisfiethtomost recent four full fiscal quarters or ugentain terminations of the investment
advisory and management agreement. We commenceridgfcash payment of incentive fees during theriguly period ended August 31,
2007, and continued to defer such payments thrthgluarterly period ended May 31, 2010. As of B@ly2010, the date on which GSCP
(NJ), L.P. ceased to be our investment adviseraainainistrator, we owed GSCP (NJ), L.P. $2.9 milliofiees for services previously provid
to us; of which $0.3 million has been paid by uSGPR (NJ), L.P. agreed to waive payment by us oféh@aining $2.6 million in connection
with the consummation of the stock purchase traisawith Saratoga Investment Advisors and certdiits affiliates described elsewhere in
this Annual Report.
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The terms of the investment advisory and manageageement with Saratoga Investment Advisors, atreat investment adviser,
are substantially similar to the terms of the inrent advisory and management agreement we hacdkdnteo with GSCP (NJ), L.P., our
former investment adviser, except for the followmgterial distinctions in the fee terms:

The capital gains portion of the incentive fee weset with respect to gains and losses from May2810, and therefore losses
and gains incurred prior to such time will not bken into account when calculating the capital géde payable to Saratoga
Investment Advisors and, as a result, Saratogastment Advisors will be entitled to 20.0% of netrgathat arise after May 31,
2010. In addition, the cost basis for computindized gains and losses on investments held by o$ sy 31, 2010 equal the
fair value of such investment as of such date. Uttteinvestment advisory and management agreewitmour former
investment adviser, GSCP (NJ), L.P., the capitalgiee was calculated from March 21, 2007, andytias were substantially
outweighed by losses.

Under the “catch up” provision, 100.0% of our pneéntive fee net investment income with respettab portion of such pre-
incentive fee net investment income that exceeig5% (7.5% annualized) but is less than or equal3d44% in any fiscal quart
is payable to Saratoga Investment Advisors. Thikemable Saratoga Investment Advisors to receB@% of all net investment
income as such amount approaches 2.344% in anjeguaind Saratoga Investment Advisors will rec&0e€% of any additional
net investment income. Under the investment adyiaod management agreement with our former investaviser, GSCP
(NJ), L.P. only received 20.0% of the excess netstment income over 1.875%.

We will no longer have deferral rights regardingantive fees in the event that the distributionstozkholders and change in net
assets is less than 7.5% for the preceding focalfiguarters.

To the extent that any of our leveraged loans amnhinated in a currency other than U.S. dollaespvay enter into currency hedg
contracts to reduce our exposure to fluctuatiormiimency exchange rates. We may also enter it¢odst rate hedging agreements. Such
hedging activities, which will be subject to congpice with applicable legal requirements, may ineltiee use of interest rate caps, futures,
options and forward contracts. Costs incurred termy into or settling such contracts will be batyy us.

Portfolio and investment activity

Corporate Debt Portfolio Overview

At February 28, At February 28, At February 29,
2014 2013 2012
($ in millions) ($ in millions) ($ in millions)
Number of investments(: 59 44 30
Number of portfolio companies( 37 28 21
Average investment size( $ 32 % 2¢ % 2.2
Weighted average maturity( 4.3yrs¢ 3.7yrs 3.0yrs
Number of industries(1 16 15 15
Average investment per portfolio company $ 5C $ 4€ $ 3.8
Non-performing or delinquent investments $ 0 $ 6.7 $ 0.C
Fixed rate debt (% of interest bearing portfoli)! $ 70.6(40.)%$ 53.4(43.9%%$ 18.7(29.)%
Weighted average current coupon 12.5% 12.€% 13.(%
Floating rate debt (% of interest bearing portffy $ 105.4(59.)%$ 68.2(56.)%3$ 45.1(70.)%

Weighted average current spread over LIBOF 7.2% 7.5% 7.4%

1)
(2)

Excludes our investment in the subordinated not&aoatoga CLO.

Excludes our investment in the subordinated nat&aoatoga CLO and investments in common stocks.

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2014invested $121.1 million in new or existing porttbiompanies and had $71.6
million in aggregate amount of exits and repaymeessilting in net investments of $49.5 million fbe year.

During the fiscal year ended February 28, 2013invested $71.6 million in new or existing portfotompanies and had $21.5 mill
in aggregate amount of exits and repayments ragui net investments of $50.1 million for the year
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During the fiscal year ended February 29, 2012invested $38.7 million in new or existing portfobompanies and had $33.6 mill
in aggregate amount of exits and repayments raguhi net investments of $5.1 million for the year.

Our portfolio composition at February 28, 2014, ey 28, 2013, and February 29, 2012 at fair valae as follows:

Portfolio composition

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013 At February 29, 2012
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Percentage Average Percentage Average Percentage Average
of Total Current of Total Current of Total Current
Portfolio Yield Portfolio Yield Portfolio Yield
Middle market loans 15.7% 6.2% —% —% —% —%
First lien term loan: 39.C 10.7 54.C 10.C 38.C 10.1
Second lien term loar 13.t 11.1 6.2 11.1 9.2 10.2
Senior secured nott 14.¢ 13.¢ 15.C 14.¢ 11.2 16.C
Senior unsecured loal — — — — 6.2 15.C
Unsecured note 2.7 15.2 3.1 16.4 2.1 19.2
Saratoga CLO subordinated no 9.t 18.€ 16.5 27.1 27.1 20.2
Equity interests 5.C N/A 5.2 N/A 6.C N/A
Total 100.(% 11.8% 100.(% 14.(% 100.(% 13.4%

Our investment in the subordinated notes of Sasa@IgO represents a first loss position in a podftiat, at February 28, 2014,
February 28, 2013, and February 29, 2012, was ceetpof $301.3 million, $383.3 million, and $380.Rlion, respectively, in aggregate
principal amount of predominantly senior securest fien term loans. This investment is subjeain@ue risks. (See “Risk Factors—Our
investment in Saratoga CLO 2013-1 LTD. constit@désveraged investment in a portfolio of predomthasenior secured first lien term loans
and is subject to additional risks and volatilit¥)Jye do not consolidate the Saratoga CLO portfioliour financial statements. Accordingly, the
metrics below do not include the underlying SaratG4 O portfolio investments. However, at Februa8y 2014, $298.9 million or 99.5% of
the Saratoga CLO portfolio investments in termmafket value had a CMR (as defined below) coldangabf green or yellow and three
Saratoga CLO portfolio investments were in defadth a fair value of $1.6 million. At February 28013, $368.9 million or 98.5% of the
Saratoga CLO portfolio investments in terms of neaskalue had a CMR color rating of green or yellwvd one Saratoga CLO portfolio
investment was in default with a fair value of $illion. At February 28, 2012, $379.5 million 08.8% of the Saratoga CLO portfolio
investments in terms of market value had a CMRra@ting of green or yellow and one Saratoga CL@fplio investment was in default with
a fair value of $0.7 million. For more informatioelating to Saratoga CLO, see the audited finarst&ements for Saratoga CLO included
elsewhere herein.

Saratoga Investment Advisors normally grades atiusfinvestments using a credit and monitoringhgasystem (“CMR”). The CMR
consists of a single component: a color rating. ddler rating is based on several criteria, inahgdiinancial and operating strength, probab
of default, and restructuring risk. The color rg8rare characterized as follows: (Green)—stronditcrgy ellow)—satisfactory credit; (Red)—
payment default risk, in payment default and/on#igant restructuring activity.

The CMR distribution of our investments at Febru28y 2014 and February 28, 2013 was as follows:

Portfolio CMR distribution

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013
Percentage Percentage
Investments of Investments of
Color at Total at Total
Score Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
($ in thousands)
Green $ 159,20° 77.2%$ 100,17( 64.€%
Yellow 8,46¢ 4.1 8,14: 5.8
Red 8,27( 4.C 13,22¢ 8.t
N/A(1) 29,90: 14.F 33,53¢ 21.€
Total $ 205,84! 100.%$ 155,08( 100.(%
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(1) Comprised of our investment in the subordinate@sof Saratoga CLO and equity interests.
The CMR distribution of Saratoga CLO investmentBetbruary 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013 was ksl

Portfolio CMR distribution

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013
Percentage Percentage
Investments of Investments of
Color at Total at Total
Score Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
(% in thousands)
Green $ 284,79t 94.8%$ 318,18: 85.(%
Yellow 14,10¢ 4.7 50,67 13.t
Red 1,58¢ 0.5 5,562 1.t
Total $ 300,49 100.(% $ 374,42( 100.(%

Portfolio composition by industry grouping at fairalue

The following table shows our portfolio compositiby industry grouping at fair value at February 2814 and February 28, 2013:

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013
Percentage Percentage
Investments of Investments of
at Total at Total
Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
(% in thousands)
Business Service $ 57,33( 27.<%% 22,15t 14.5%
Healthcare Service 23,81( 11.€ 12,40( 8.C
Consumer Service 21,89 10.€ 10,65¢ 6.C
Software 21,73¢ 10.5 — —
Structured Finance Securities 19,57( 9.t 25,517 16.5
Food and Beverac 17,28¢ 8.4 18,19¢ 11.7
Automotive 10,62 5.2 14,80¢ 3
Electronics 6,741 3.G 6,721 4.3
Metals 6,64~ 3.2 6,72¢ 4.3
Consumer Produc 6,11¢ 3.C 13,727 8.¢
Manufacturing 5,97( 2.¢ — —
Environmenta 5,24¢ 2.t 2,99 1.¢
Publishing 1,191 0.€ 5,631 3.6
Building Products 901 0.4 267 0.2
Aerospace 344 0.z 3,50( 2.3
Homebuilding 344 0.2 31t 0.2
Education 90 0.C 292 0.2
Logistics — — 11,18: 7.2
Total $ 205,84! 100.(% $ 155,08( 100.(%
(1) Comprised of our investment in the subordinate@sof Saratoga CLO.
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The following table shows Saratoga CLO’s portfal@mposition by industry grouping at fair value abFRuary 28, 2014 and
February 28, 2013:

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013
Percentage Percentage
Investments of Investments of
at Total at Total
Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
($ in thousands)
Healthcare $ 37,89¢ 12.€%$ 40,50: 10.8%
Business Equipment and Servit 28,38t 9.4 28,30( 7.€
Chemicals/Plastic 26,34¢ 8.€ 28,81% 7.7
Conglomeratt 24,28t 8.1 29,88¢ 8.C
Industrial Equipmen 24,14 8.C 21,86¢ 5.8
Aerospace and Defen 20,46 6.€ 20,91« 5.€
Retailers (Except Food and Dru 15,31« 5.1 19,05( 5.1
Food Product 12,45( 4.1 21,01¢ 5.€
Drugs 11,87: 4.C 18,22¢ 4.9
Electronics/Electric 11,86: 4.C 26,32: 7.C
Automotive 10,27¢ 3.4 10,62t 2.8
Leisure Goods/Activities/Movie 8,99( 3.C 8,87¢ 2.4
Financial Intermediarie 8,13¢ 2.7 20,19¢ 5.4
Telecommunication 6,627 2.2 10,95: 2.9
Utilities 5,83( 1.¢ 9,93 2.6
Food Service 5,612 1.¢ 5,491 1.t
Insurance 5,517 1.8 6,64¢ 1.8
Food/Drug Retailer 5,012 1.7 4,32¢ 1.1
Nonferrous Metals/Mineral 4,32¢ 1.4 5,18 1.4
Brokers/Dealers/Investment Hous 3,74( 1.2 3,311 0.¢
Building and Developmer 3,24¢ 1.1 2,12¢ 0.€
Publishing 2,91¢ 1.C 5,651 1.t
Containers/Glass Produc 2,90¢ 1.C 2,00¢ 0.t
Cable and Satellite Televisic 2,66¢ 0.¢ 4,05¢ 1.1
Oil & Gas 2,48¢ 0.€ — —
Telecommunications/Cellul 2,46( 0.€ 3,07¢ 0.8
Broadcast Radio and Televisi 1,50t 0.t 1,01(C 0.3
Computers & Electronic 1,47¢ 0.t — —
Ecological Services and Equipmg 1,241 0.4 753 0.2
Media 1,00(¢ 0.2 — —
Gaming And Hotel: 50C 0.2 — —
Lodging and Casinc 49¢ 0.2 7,40( 2.C
Leasing 497 0.2 — —
Beverage and Tobaci — — 3,03 0.8
Home Furnishing — — 2,98¢ 0.8
Steel — — 1,001 0.3
Clothing/Textiles — — 861 0.2
Total $ 300,49: 100.(%$ 374,42 100.(%
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Portfolio composition by geographic location at faralue

The following table shows our portfolio compositibyp geographic location at fair value at Februe8y2014 and February 28, 2013.
The geographic composition is determined by thatloa of the corporate headquarters of the podfotimpany.

At February 28, 2014 At February 28, 2013
Percentage Percentage
Investments of Investments of
at Total at Total
Fair Value Portfolio Fair Value Portfolio
(% in thousands)
Southeas $ 83,16: 40.0%% 70,47¢ 45.4%
West 44.47( 21.€ 26,57: 17.1
Midwest 41,45: 20.1 18,46¢ 11.¢€
Other(1) 19,57( 9.t 25,517 16.5
Northeas 17,19 8.4 14,04¢ 9.1
Total $ 205,84! 100.(% $ 155,08( 100.(%
(1) Comprised of our investment in the subordinate@sof Saratoga CLO.

Results of operations

Operating results for the fiscal years ended Felra@, 2014, February 28, 2013 and February 292 20& as follows:

For the Year Ended

February 28, February 28, February 29,
2014 2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Total investment incom $ 22,89: $ 17,000 $ 13,51:
Total expenses, net 13,77: 9,97¢ 7,811
Net investment incom 9,121 7,02¢ 5,701
Net realized gains (losse 1,271 431 (12,18¢)
Net unrealized gain (1,64¢) 7,14: 19,76(
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers. $ 8,74¢ $ 14,60: $ 13,27¢

Investment income

The composition of our investment income for tteedi years ended February 28, 2014, February 28 20d February 29, 2012 are
as follows:

February 28, February 28, February 29,
2014 2013 2012
($ in thousands)
Interest from investmen $ 20,17¢ $ 14,44 $ 11,25
Management fees from Saratoga C 1,77t 2,00¢ 2,012
Interest from cash and cash equivalents and atlcenie 93¢ 563 24€
Total $ 22,89: $ 17,000 $ 13,51:

For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2014, totastment income increased $5.9 million, or 34d&mpared to the fiscal year
ended February 28, 2013. Interest income from imvests increased $5.7 million, or 39.7%, to $20iien for the year ended February 28,
2014 from $14.4 million for the fiscal year endesbFuary 28, 2013. This reflects an increase of%2n total investments to $205.8 million
February 28, 2014 from $155.1 million at FebruaBy 2013, while the weighted average current couparained relatively unchanged at
12.5%.

For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2013, totastment income increased $3.5 million, or 25@&%mpared to the fiscal year
ended February 29, 2012. Interest income from imvests increased $3.2 million, or 28.4%, to $14ikion for the year ended February 28,
2013 from $11.2 million for the fiscal year endezbFuary 29, 2012,

For the fiscal year ended February 29, 2012, tnte@stment income decreased $0.6 million, or 4. 8% mared to the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2011. Interest income from our investnin the subordinated notes of Saratoga CLO asae $0.9 million, or 27.4%, to
$4.2 million for the year ended February 29, 20b21f $3.3 million for the fiscal year ended Febru28y 2011.

For the fiscal years ended February 28, 2014, Fep28, 2013, and February 29, 2012, total PIK ineavas $0.9 million, $1.1
million, and $1.4 million, respectively.

The Saratoga CLO was refinanced in October 2013 result, proceeds from principal payments inldla@ portfolio of Saratoga
CLO must now be used to paydown its outstandingsidthus, the management fee income and invesimeame that we will receive frol



Saratoga CLO will decline in future periods.
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Operating expenses

The composition of our operating expenses for @y ended February 28, 2014, February 28, 2018 elmdiary 29, 2012 are as
follows:

Operating Expenses

February 28, February 28, February 29,
2014 2013 2012
(% in thousands)
Interest and credit facility expen $ 6,082 $ 2540 $ 1,29¢
Base management fe 3,32i 2,10 1,61¢
Professional fee 1,212 1,191 1,45t
Incentive management fe 691 2,04t 1,257
Administrator expense 1,00¢ 1,00¢ 1,00(C
Insurance expensi 44% 51€ 57¢
Directors fee: 20t 207 20¢
General and administrative and other expenses 81C 373 39t
Total expenses $ 13,77. $ 9,97¢ $ 7,811

For the year ended February 28, 2014, total opera&kpenses before manager expense waiver andursiembent increased
$3.8 million, or 38.0% compared to the fiscal yeaded February 28, 2013. For the year ended Fgh28a2013, total operating expenses
before manager expense waiver and reimbursemeeiised $2.2 million, or 27.8% compared to the figear ended February 29, 2012.

For the years ended February 28, 2014 and 201&)¢hease in interest and credit facility experssprimarily attributable to an
increase in outstanding debt during the year fleenisgsuance of $48.3 million notes during the ysated February 28, 2013, and the increase
of our SBA debentures during both years, respdgtiV®r the year ended February 28, 2014, the vedyhaverage interest rate on our
outstanding indebtedness was 5.35% compared t&®i@5the fiscal year ended February 28, 2013 ab@l% for the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2012. This decrease was primarilyedrivy increased SBA debentures that have a lowsnest rate.

For the year ended February 28, 2014, base managéeses increased $1.2 million, or 57.9% compaceithé¢ fiscal year ended
February 28, 2013. The increase in base managdeemntesults from the increase in the average \aloar total net assets from $108.7
million to $114.9 million as of February 28, 20181a2014, respectively. For the year ended Febr28r2013, base management fees
increased $0.5 million, or 30.3% compared to thedi year ended February 29, 2012. The increasasa management fees results from the
increase in the average value of our total nettassse

For the year ended February 28, 2014, professferalincreased $0.02 million, or 1.8% comparethédfiscal year ended
February 28, 2013. For the year ended Februar@@83, professional fees decreased $0.3 milliod8d2% compared to the fiscal year ended
February 29, 2012.

For the year ended February 28, 2014, incentiveagement fees decreased $1.4 million, or 66.2 % eosapto the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2013. The decrease in incentive manegefees is primarily attributable to the secoad pf the incentive fee accrual, with the
year ending February 28, 2013 being an accrual &f fillion as compared to the year ending Febr28ry2014 being a reversal of the acci
of $0.3 million. For the year ended February 28,20ncentive management fees increased $0.8 mikin62.7% compared to the fiscal year
ended February 29, 2012. The increase in incentimeagement fees is primarily attributable to ameéase in accrued incentive fees related to
net investment income.

As discussed above, the increase in interest atitdacility expense for the years ended Febr@2&y2014, February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012 is primarily attributable to aorease in the amount of outstanding debt as cadgarthe prior periods. For the years er
February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013 and Februayr2@12, the weighted average interest rate onukstanding borrowings under the Credit
Facility was 7.50%, 7.50% and 7.50%, respectiviety.the years ended February 28, 2014 and Feb28ar3013, the weighted average inte
rate on the outstanding borrowings of the SBA délres was 3.03% and 1.42%, respectively. There weroutstanding borrowings for the
year ended February 29, 20

Net realized gains/losses on sales of investments

For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2014, theg2my had $71.6 million of sales, repayments, exitestructurings resulting in
$1.3 million of net realized gains. The most sigaint realized gains and losses during the yeagdReébruary 28, 2014 were as follows:
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Fiscal year ended February 28, 2014

Net
Gross Realized
Issuer Asset Type Proceeds Cost Gain/(Loss)
($ in thousands)
Penton Media, Inc First Lien Term Loar $ 4881 $ 4681 $ 20¢€
Sourcehov, LLC Second Lien Term Loa 3,03( 2,65¢ 371
Worldwide Express Operations, LL Warrants 12¢ — 12¢

For the fiscal year ended February 28, 2013, thagamy had $21.5 million of sales, repayments, exitestructurings resulting in
$0.6 million of net realized gains. The most sigmift realized gains and losses during the yeaedhReébruary 28, 2013 were as follows:

Fiscal year ended February 28, 2013

Net
Gross Realized
Issuer Asset Type Proceeds Cost Gain/(Loss)
($ in thousands)
Grant US Holdings LLF Second Lien Term Loa $ 18z $ — $ 18:
Energy Alloys LLC Warrants 14¢€ — 14¢€

For the fiscal year ended February 29, 2012, thegamy had $33.6 million of sales, repayments, exitestructurings resulting in
$12.2 million of net realized losses. The most ifigamt realized gains and losses during the yeded February 29, 2012 were as follows:

Fiscal year ended February 29, 2012

Net
Gross Realized
Issuer Asset Type Proceeds Cost Gain/(Loss)
($ in thousands)
Grant US Holdings LLF Second Lien Term Loa $ — $ (6,348 $ (6,34¢)
Pracs Institute Ltc Second Lien Term Loa — (4,079 (4,079
Bankruptcy Management Solutions, i Second Lien Term Loa 222 (2,645 (2,4272)

Net unrealized appreciation/depreciation on invesnts

For the year ended February 28, 2014, our invedsifead a decrease in net unrealized depreciati®i.6fmillion versus an increase
in net unrealized appreciation of $7.0 million the year ended February 28, 2013. The most significumulative changes in unrealized
appreciation and depreciation for the year endduauzey 28, 2014, were the following:

Fiscal year ended February 28, 2014

Total YTD Change

Unrealized in Unrealized

Fair Appreciation/ Appreciation/

Issuer Asset Type Cost Value (Depreciation) (Depreciation)

($ in thousands)

Saratoga CLC Other/ Structured Finance Securit $16,55¢ $1957( $ 3,012 $ (3,55¢)
Targus Holdings, Inc Common Stocl 567 73C 162 (2,595
USS Parent Holding Cor Voting Common Stoc 3,02¢ 5,02¢ 2,00z 2,16:
Group Dekko, Inc Second Lien Term Loa 6,90z 6,741 (161 (56)
Elyria Foundry Company, LL( Senior Secured Not¢ 9,031 6,771 (2,260) (2,259

For the year ended February 28, 2013, our invedsriead an increase in net unrealized appreciafi®i.@ million versus an increase
in net unrealized appreciation of $19.8 million foe year ended February 29, 2012. The most sigmficumulative changes in unrealized
appreciation and depreciation for the year endduiuzey 28, 2013, were the following:
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Fiscal year ended February 28, 2013

Total YTD Change

Unrealized in Unrealized

Fair Appreciation/ Appreciation/

Issuer Asset Type Cost Value (Depreciation) (Depreciation)

($ in thousands)

Saratoga CLC Other/ Structured Finance Securit $18,94f $2551° $ 6,57 $ 4,26¢
Targus Holdings, Inc Common Stocl 567 3,32t 2,75¢ 64¢
USS Parent Holding Cor Voting Common Stoc!| 3,02¢ 2,86¢ (160 641
Group Dekko, Inc Second Lien Term Loa 6,82¢ 6,721 (1049) 464
Worldwide Express Operations, LL  First Lien Term Loar 6,461 6,50¢ 43 352
Penton Media, Inc First Lien Term Loar 4,497 4,67(C 17¢ 79¢

For the year ended February 29, 2012, our invedsitead an increase in net unrealized appreciafi®i®.8 million versus an
increase in net unrealized appreciation of $36 lanifor the year ended February 28, 2011. Thetrammificant cumulative changes in
unrealized appreciation and depreciation for ther yeded February 29, 2012, were the following:

Fiscal year ended February 29, 2012

Total YTD Change

Unrealized in Unrealized

Fair Appreciation/ Appreciation/

Issuer Asset Type Cost Value (Depreciation) (Depreciation)

($ in thousands)

Saratoga CLC Other/ Structured Finance Securit $23,54: $2584¢ $ 2,308 $ 6,93¢
Targus Holdings, Inc Common Stocl 567 2,67¢ 2,10¢ 20€
USS Parent Holding Cor Voting Common Stocl 3,02¢ 2,22¢ (801) 603
Penton Media, Inc First Lien Term Loar 4,281 3,65¢ (62€) (539

The $6.9 million net unrealized appreciation in mwestment in the Saratoga CLO subordinated neéssdue to higher cash flow
projections based on an increase in principal legl@amd an improvement in the overcollateralizatatios, a decrease in the assumed portfolic
default rate (based on better than forecast adefallt rates and improved default forecasts) anidnprovement in reinvestment assumptions
based on current market conditions and projectimnaddition, for the year ended February 29, 2@&zhad approximately $15.7 million of
unrealized appreciation due to the reversal ofrgrésiod unrealized depreciation recorded uporettieof certain investments including
approximately $6.1 million related to Energy AllpysL.C., $6.3 million related to Grant U.S. HoldmLLP., $2.3 million related to
Bankruptcy Management Solutions and $1.1 millidatesl to Pracs Institute, LTD.

Changes in net assets resulting from operations

For the fiscal years ended February 28, 2014, ep28, 2013 and February 29, 2012 we recorded mcrease in net assets
resulting from operations of $8.7 million, $14.6lan, and $13.3 million, respectively. Based 0820,517 weighted average common shares
outstanding as of February 28, 2014, our per shetrencrease in net assets resulting from opersiticas $1.78 for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2014. This compares to a per sharacrease in net assets resulting from operaidi$8.55 for the fiscal year ended
February 28, 2013 (based on 4,110,484 weightecagearommon shares outstanding as of February 28) 28nd a per share net increase in
net assets resulting from operations of $3.87Herfiscal year ended February 29, 2012 (based484 345 weighted average common shares
outstanding as of February 29, 2012). These ineeds not reflect the impact of the payment of dimidends.

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S

We intend to continue to generate cash primardynficash flows from operations, including interesthed from our investments in
debt in middle market companies, interest earnem the temporary investment of cash in U.S. govemtrsecurities and other high-quality
debt investments that mature in one year or lessyd borrowings and future offerings of securities

Although we expect to fund the growth of our inwvesnt portfolio through the net proceeds from SBAafdgure drawdowns and
future equity offerings, including our dividend meestment plan, and issuances of senior secusititgure borrowings, to the extent permitted
by the 1940 Act, we cannot assure you that oursplamaise capital will be successful. In thisaiely because our common stock has
historically traded at a price below our current amset value per share and we are limited in bilityato sell our common stock at a price
below net asset value per share, we have been apdaontinue to be limited in our ability to raisguéty capital. Our stockholders approved a
proposal at our annual meeting of stockholders bel&eptember 26, 2013 that authorizes us to
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sell shares of our common stock at an offeringeppier share to investors that is not less than &584r then current net asset value per share
in one or more offerings for a period ending onehdier of September 26, 2014 or the date of et annual meeting of stockholders. We
would need stockholder approval of a similar pr@bts issue shares below net asset value per aharg time after the earlier of

September 26, 2014 or our next annual meetingookbkblders.

In addition, we intend to distribute to our stockiers substantially all of our taxable income idanrto satisfy the distribution
requirement applicable to RICs under Subchaptef MeCode. In satisfying this distribution requirent, we have in the past relied on IRS
issued private letter rulings concluding that a Ri@y treat a distribution of its own stock as fliffg its RIC distribution requirements if each
stockholder may elect to receive his or her emliséribution in either cash or stock of the RIC jggbto a limitation on the aggregate amour
cash to be distributed to all stockholders, whinotfithtion must be at least 20% of the aggregatéaded distribution. We may rely on these
private letter rulings in future periods to satisfyr RIC distribution requirement.

Also, as a BDC, we generally are required to meshaerage ratio of total assets, less liabilitied Bndebtedness not represented by
senior securities, to total senior securities, Whiclude all of our borrowings and any outstandingferred stock, of at least 200%. This
requirement limits the amount that we may borrowr @sset coverage ratio, as defined in the 1940whad 337.9% as of February 28, 2014
and 547.3% as of February 28, 2013. To fund gramtiur investment portfolio in the future, we aifiite needing to raise additional capital
from various sources, including the equity marketd other debt-related markets, which may or mayaavailable on favorable terms, if at
all.

Consequently, we may not have the funds or thékil fund new investments, to make additionakisiments in our portfolio
companies, to fund our unfunded commitments tofplastcompanies or to repay borrowings. Also, iflliquidity of our portfolio investments
may make it difficult for us to sell these investiteewhen desired and, if we are required to seBefinvestments, we may realize significantly
less than their recorded value.

Madison revolving credit facility

Below is a summary of the terms of the senior sstuevolving credit facility we entered into withadison Capital Funding (the
“Credit Facility”) on June 30, 2010.

Availability. The Company can draw up to the lesser of (i) G4dillion (the “Facility Amount”) and (ii) the practt of the applicable
advance rate (which varies from 50.0% to 75.0% déjpg on the type of loan asset) and the valuerdehed in accordance with the Credit
Facility (the “Adjusted Borrowing Value”), of ceita“eligible” loan assets pledged as security far lban (the “Borrowing Base)y each cas
less (a) the amount of any undrawn funding commitihéhe Company has under any loan asset and w&hgchot covered by amounts in the
Unfunded Exposure Account referred to below (theftithded Exposure Amount”) and (b) outstanding beings. Each loan asset held by the
Company as of the date on which the Credit Facilifg closed was valued as of that date and eantaks®t that the Company acquires after
such date will be valued at the lowest of its failue, its face value (excluding accrued interast) the purchase price paid for such loan asse
Adjustments to the value of a loan asset will belen@ reflect, among other things, changes inaitsvialue, a default by the obligor on the loar
asset, insolvency of the obligor, acceleratiorheflban asset, and certain modifications to thedesf the loan asset.

The Credit Facility contains limitations on the ¢ypf loan assets that are “eligible” to be includtethe Borrowing Base and as to the
concentration level of certain categories of loaseds in the Borrowing Base such as restrictiongemgraphic and industry concentrations,
asset size and quality, payment frequency, statddeams, average life, and collateral interestaddition, if an asset is to remain an “eligible”
loan asset, the Company may not make changes fmatment, amortization, collateral and certain othams of the loan assets without the
consent of the administrative agent that will aittesult in subordination of the loan asset or lagemially adverse to the lenders.

Collateral. The Credit Facility is secured by substantiallyohthe assets of the Company (other than a$sdtsby our SBIC
subsidiary) and includes the subordinated notek@Glotes”) issued by Saratoga CLO and the Compatigtgs under the CLO Management
Agreement (as defined below).

Interest Rate and FeesUnder the Credit Facility, funds are borrowedror through certain lenders at the greater optiegailing
LIBOR rate and 2.00%, plus an applicable margif.60%. At the Compang’option, funds may be borrowed based on an atteenbase rate
which in no event will be less than 3.00%, andapplicable margin over such alternative base sa#e50%. In addition, the Company pays the
lenders a commitment fee of 0.75% per year on thised amount of the Credit Facility for the dunatid the Revolving Period (defined
below). Accrued interest and commitment fees ayalpi@ monthly. The Company was also obligated jogeatain other fees to the lenders in
connection with the closing of the Credit Facility.
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Revolving Period and Maturity DateThe Company may make and repay borrowings umaeCtedit Facility for a period of three
years following the closing of the Credit Facil{the “Revolving Period”). The Revolving Period may bentinated at an earlier time by the
Company or, upon the occurrence of an event ofultetay action of the lenders or automatically. Btirrowings and other amounts payable
under the Credit Facility are due and payable lirfifte years after the end of the Revolving Period

Collateral Tests. It is a condition precedent to any borrowing uritie Credit Facility that the principal amountstanding under the
Credit Facility, after giving effect to the propdseorrowings, not exceed the lesser of the Borrgviase or the Facility Amount (the
“Borrowing Base Test”). In addition to satisfyinget Borrowing Base Test, the following tests musbdde satisfied (together with Borrowing
Base Test, the “Collateral Tests”):

» Interest Coverage Ratiolhe ratio (expressed as a percentage) of inteodisttions with respect to pledged loan assets, les
certain fees and expenses relating to the Creditifyato accrued interest and commitment fees amyg breakage costs payable
the lenders under the Credit Facility for the Bxplayment periods must equal at least 175.0%.

*  Overcollateralization Ratio.The ratio (expressed as a percentage) of the aafgrégljusted Borrowing Value of “eligible”
pledged loan assets plus the fair value of ceitaligible pledged loan assets and the CLO Notesdch case, subject to certain
adjustments) to outstanding borrowings under tregliCFacility plus the Unfunded Exposure Amount trecgual at least 200.0%.

*  Weighted Average FMV TesEhe aggregate adjusted or weighted value of “dijipledged loan assets as a percentage of the
aggregate outstanding principal balance of “elgjilgledged loan assets must be equal to or gréwtar72.0% and 80.0% during
the one-year periods prior to the first and secmuversary of the closing date, respectively, 8@% at all times thereafter.

The Credit Facility also requires payment of outdiag borrowings or replacement of pledged loartzsspon the Company’s breach
of its representation and warranty that pledged kssets included in the Borrowing Base are “diggilman assets. Such payments or
replacements must equal the lower of the amountiigh the Borrowing Base is overstated as a regiduch breach or any deficiency under
the Collateral Tests at the time of repayment plaegement. Compliance with the Collateral Testdss a condition to the discretionary sale of
pledged loan assets by the Company.

Priority of Payments. During the Revolving Period, the priority of pagnts provisions of the Credit Facility require gafpayment of
specified fees and expenses and any necessarynfuofiihe Unfunded Exposure Account, that collewtiof principal from the loan assets ¢
to the extent that these are insufficient, coltatdi of interest from the loan assets, be appliegdamh payment date to payment of outstanding
borrowings if the Borrowing Base Test, the Overatgfalization Ratio and the Interest Coverage Radiold not otherwise be met. Similarly,
following termination of the Revolving Period, aaitions of interest are required to be appliegrgfayment of certain fees and expenses, to
cure any deficiencies in the Borrowing Base Téw,Ihterest Coverage Ratio and the Overcollatextidim Ratio as of the relevant payment
date.

Reserve Account.The Credit Facility requires the Company to stl@an amount equal to the sum of accrued integestmitment
fees and administrative agent fees due and pagaltiee next succeeding three payment dates (cesgwnding to three payment periods). If
for any monthly period during which fees and otbayments accrue, the aggregate Adjusted Borrowadgé/of “eligible” pledged loan assets
which do not pay cash interest at least quarteitgeds 15.0% of the aggregate Adjusted Borrowinigé/af “eligible” pledged loan assets, t
Company is required to set aside such interesteexldue and payable on the next succeeding sirgraydates. Amounts in the reserve
account can be applied solely to the payment ofisidtrative agent fees, commitment fees, accrueduapaid interest and any breakage cost
payable to the lenders.

Unfunded Exposure AccouniWith respect to revolver or delayed draw loaretssgthe Company is required to set aside in a
designated account (the “Unfunded Exposure AccQurt0.0% of its outstanding and undrawn funding aotments with respect to such loan
assets. The Unfunded Exposure Account is fundéteatime the Company acquires a revolver or delayad loan asset and requests a relate
borrowing under the Credit Facility. The UnfundedpBsure Account is funded through a combinatioproteeds of the requested borrowing
and other Company funds, and if for any reason smobunts are insufficient, through applicationhs priority of payment provisions
described above.

Operating ExpensesThe priority of payments provision of the Creéécility provides for the payment of certain opergexpenses
of the Company out of collections on principal amerest during the Revolving Period and out ofaxtilons on interest following the
termination of the Revolving Period in accordandtthe priority established in such provision. Tdpgerating expenses payable pursuant to
the priority of payment provisions is limited toS§B000 for each monthly payment date or $2.5 mmilfiar the immediately preceding period of
twelve consecutive monthly payment dates. Thidragitan be increased by the lesser of 5.0% oréhesptage increase in the fair market
value of all the Company’s assets only on the fivshthly payment date to occur after each one-geaiversary following the closing of the
Credit Facility. Upon the occurrence of a Manageer (described
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below), the consent of the administrative agen¢dgiired in order to pay operating expenses throlglpriority of payments provision.

Events of Default. The Credit Facility contains certain negativeemants, customary representations and warrantteafimmative
covenants and events of default. The Credit Fadllites not contain grace periods for breach byCibmpany of certain covenants, including,
without limitation, preservation of existence, niagapledge, change of name or jurisdiction anchsafe legal entity status of the Company
covenants and certain other customary covenanter@vents of default under the Credit Facilityude, among other things, the following:

» an Interest Coverage Ratio of less than 150.0%;

» an Overcollateralization Ratio of less than 175.0%;

» the filing of certain ERISA or tax liens;

« the occurrence of certain “Manager Events” such as:

« failure by Saratoga Investment Advisors and itdiafés to maintain collectively, directly or inéictly, a cash equity
investment in the Company in an amount equal teast $5,000,000 at any time prior to the thirdieersary of the
closing date;

» failure of the Management Agreement between Saaaimgestment Advisors and the Company to be inféutte and
effect;

e indictment or conviction of Saratoga Investment &dvs or any “key person” for a felony offenseaay fraud,
embezzlement or misappropriation of funds by Sgatavestment Advisors or any “key person” andhm case ofKey
persons,” without a reputable, experienced indigidaasonably satisfactory to Madison Capital Fagdippointed to
replace such key person within 30 days;

*  resignation, termination, disability or death dkay person” or failure of any “key person” to pide active
participation in Saratoga Investment Advisors’ gaittivities, all without a reputable, experiendedividual reasonably
satisfactory to Madison Capital Funding appointétthiw 30 days; or

» occurrence of any event constituting “cause” urtderCollateral Management Agreement between thep@ognand
Saratoga CLO (the “CLO Management Agreement”) vaeji of a notice under Section 12(c) of the CLO kigement
Agreement with respect to the removal of the Commncollateral manager or the Company ceased ssamwllateral
manager under the CLO Management Agreement.

Conditions to Acquisitions and Pledges of Loan Bsss&he Credit Facility imposes certain additionahditions to the acquisition al
pledge of additional loan assets. Among other thitige Company may not acquire additional loantasgi#hout the prior written consent of
the administrative agent until such time that thmmistrative agent indicates in writing its sadision with Saratoga Investment Advisors’
policies, personnel and processes relating todue assets.

Fees and ExpensesThe Company paid certain fees and reimbursed $dadCapital Funding for the aggregate amount of all
documented, out-of-pocket costs and expenses dimgjuhe reasonable fees and expenses of lawyersréd by Madison Capital Funding in
connection with the Credit Facility and the cargymut of any and all acts contemplated thereungdeoand as of the date of closing of the
stock purchase transaction with Saratoga Investddvisors and certain of its affiliates. These amtsutotaled $2.0 million.

On February 24, 2012, we amended our senior secevetl/ing credit facility with Madison Capital Fdimg LLC to, among other
things:

» expand the borrowing capacity under the creditifadrom $40.0 million to $45.0 million;
» extend the Revolving Period from July 30, 2013 ¢biary 24, 2015; and
*  remove the condition that we may not acquire aditi loan assets without the prior written consérihe administrative agent.

As of February 28, 2014, we had no outstandingriz@ainder the Credit Facility and $50.0 million SBéaranteed debentures
outstanding (which are discussed below). Our bamgwase under the Credit Facility was $44.6 millad February 28, 2014.
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Our asset coverage ratio, as defined in the 1940wlas 337.9% and 547.3% for the years ended Fgb28 2014 and February 28,
2013, respectively.

SBA-guaranteed debentures

In addition, we, through a wholly-owned subsidiaggught and obtained a license from the SBA toaipean SBIC. In this regard, on
March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Sagattnvestment Corp. SBIC, LP, received a licensmfthe SBA to operate as an SBIC
under Section 301(c) of the Small Business InvestrAet of 1958. SBICs are designated to stimulageflow of private equity capital to
eligible small businesses. Under SBA regulatio®CS may make loans to eligible small businessesimrest in the equity securities of small
businesses.

The SBIC license allows our SBIC subsidiary to obtaverage by issuing SBA-guaranteed debentui@s-@iaranteed debentures
are non-recourse, interest only debentures widrést payable semi-annually and have a ten yearityafThe principal amount of SBA-
guaranteed debentures is not required to be paidtprmaturity but may be prepaid at any time withpenalty. The interest rate of SBA-
guaranteed debentures is fixed on a semi-annuil &Ba market-driven spread over U.S. Treasurgdlafith 10-year maturities.

SBA regulations currently limit the amount that @BIC subsidiary may borrow to a maximum of $150iam when it has at least
$75 million in regulatory capital, receives a capdommitment from the SBA and has been througexamination by the SBA subsequent to
licensing. As of February 28, 2014, our SBIC sulasidhad $32.0 million in regulatory capital andd3®million SBA-guaranteed debentures
outstanding.

We received exemptive relief from the Securitied Bmchange Commission to permit us to exclude #i# df our SBIC subsidiary
guaranteed by the SBA from the definition of sesiecurities in the 200% asset coverage test uhder340 Act. This allows us increased
flexibility under the 200% asset coverage test éyrptting us to borrow up to $150 million more thaa would otherwise be able to absent the
receipt of this exemptive relief.

Unsecured notes

In May 2013, we issued $48.3 million in aggregatagipal amount of our 7.50% unsecured notes d&® 26r net proceeds of $46.1
million after deducting underwriting commissions%if.9 million and offering costs of $0.3 millionh& proceeds included the underwriters’
full exercise of their overallotment option. Intst®n these notes is paid quarterly in arrearsatmuary 15, May 15, August 15 and
November 15, at a rate of 7.50% per year, beginAingust 15, 2013. The notes mature on May 31, 20@Dmay be redeemed in whole o
part at any time or from time to time at our opt@mor after May 31, 2016. In connection with ib&uance of the notes, we agreed to the
following covenants for the period of time duringieh the notes are outstanding:

« we will not violate (whether or not we are subjegtSection 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by Section §{Ijpof the 1940 Act or an
successor provisions, but giving effect to any exée relief granted to us by the SEC. Currentigse provisions generally
prohibit us from making additional borrowings, imding through the issuance of additional debt erghile of additional debt
securities, unless our asset coverage, as defindx 1940 Act, equals at least 200% after suctolangs.

» we will not violate (regardless of whether we anbjsct to) Section 18(a)(1)(B) as modified by Satit1(a)(1) of the 1940 Act
Or any successor provisions, but giving effectary exemptive relief granted to us by the SE@ @i) no-action relief granted
by the SEC to another BDC (or to the Companydieitermines to seek such similar action or other relief) permitting the BL
to declare any cash dividend or distribution ndtatanding the prohibition contained in Section J@(4B) as modified by
Section 61(a)(1) of the 1940 Act in order to maimthe BDCS5 status as a regulated investment company undeh8pter M o
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Currently tipeerisions generally prohibit us from declaring aagh dividend or
distribution upon any class of our capital stoakporchasing any such capital stock if our assee@ge, as defined in the 1940
Act, is below 200% at the time of the declaratiémhe dividend or distribution or the purchase aftér deducting the amount
such dividend, distribution or purchase.

The Notes are listed on the NYSE under the tradymgbol “SAQ” with a par value of $25.00 per share.

At February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, thevidue of investments, cash and cash equivalentsash and cash equivalents,
securitization accounts were as follows:
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At February 28, At February 28,
2014 2013
Percent Percent
of of
Fair Value Total Fair Value Total
($ in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,29¢ 1.€%%$ 14¢ 0.1%
Cash and cash equivalents, securitization acct 3,29¢ 1.€ 12,08¢ 7.2
Middle market loan: 32,39( 15.2 — —
First lien term loan: 80,24¢ 37.¢ 83,79: 50.1
Second lien term loar 27,80¢ 13.1 9,571 5.7
Senior secured nott 30,03: 14.1 23,30t 13.€
Unsecured note 5,471 2.€ 4,87¢ 2.9
Structured finance securiti 19,57( 9.2 25,517 15.c
Equity Interest 10,33 4.8 8,021 4.8

Total $ 212,43. 100.(% $ 167,31! 100.(%

On October 30, 2013, our board of directors dedlardividend of $2.65 per share payable on Deceibe2013, to common
stockholders of record on November 13, 2013. Studdehs had the option to receive payment of th&ddivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common sprokided that the aggregate cash payable tdafehiolders was limited to approximately
$2.5 million or $0.53 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cusef approximately $2.5 million in cash and 648 5hares of common stock, or
13.7% of our outstanding common stock prior todividend payment. The amount of cash elected t@beived was greater than the cash
limit of 20.0% of the aggregate dividend amountisthesulting in the payment of a combination ohcaisd stock to shareholders who elected
to receive cash. The number of shares of commak stmmprising the stock portion was calculated dasea price of $15.439 per share,
which equaled the volume weighted average tradiitg per share of the common stock on Decembet3,1and 16, 2013.

On November 9, 2012, our board of directors dedlardividend of $4.25 per share payable on Deceibe2012, to common
stockholders of record on November 20, 2012. Studdlehns had the option to receive payment of thaldivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common spyokided that the aggregate cash payable tdatlehiolders was limited to approximately
$3.3 million or $0.85 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cmusef $3.3 million in cash and 853,455 sharesoofimon stock, or 22.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivedgvesder than the cash limit of 20.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenpidlyment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtibek portion was calculated based on a pricel 64814 per share, which equaled the
volume weighted average trading price per shate@tommon stock on December 14, 17 and 19, 2012.

On November 15, 2011, our board of directors dedlar dividend of $3.00 per share payable on DeceB8the2011, to common
stockholders of record on November 25, 2011. Studdehs had the option to receive payment of theddivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common sprokided that the aggregate cash payable tdatesiolders was limited to $2.0 million
$0.60 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cusef $2.0 million in cash and 599,584 sharesoofimon stock, or 18.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivecgvesder than the cash limit of 20.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenpdayment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtbek portion was calculated based on a pricel8f11 7067 per share, which equaled
the volume weighted average trading price per sbftiee common stock on December 20, 21 and 221.201

On November 12, 2010, our board of directors dedlar dividend of $4.40 per share to shareholderalpa in cash or shares of our
common stock, in accordance with the provisiontheflRS Revenue Procedure 2010-12, which allowsbdigly-traded regulated investment
company to satisfy its distribution requirementshwé distribution paid partly in common stock paed that at least 10.0% of the distributio
payable in cash. The dividend was paid on Decer2®e2010 to common shareholders of record on Noeerh®, 2010.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend causaf $1.2 million in cash and 596,235 sharesoofimon stock, or 22.0% of our
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivedgvesder than the cash limit of 10.0% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingenpidlyment of a combination of cash and stock teestudders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtibek portion was calculated based
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on a price of $17.8049 per share, which equaleddheme weighted average trading price per shatbetommon stock on December 20, 21
and 22, 2010.

On November 13, 2009, our board of directors dedar dividend of $18.25 per share payable on Deeeih 2009, to common
stockholders of record on November 25, 2009. Studdehs had the option to receive payment of theddivd in cash, shares of common stock
or a combination of cash and shares of common spokided that the aggregate cash payable tdhatesiolders was limited to $2.1 million
$0.25 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend cusef $2.1 million in cash and 8,648,725 sharesoofimon stock, or 104.0% of ¢
outstanding common stock prior to the dividend paginThe amount of cash elected to be receivecgvesder than the cash limit of 13.7% of
the aggregate dividend amount, thus resultingerpdayment of a combination of cash and stock teestwdders who elected to receive cash.
The number of shares of common stock comprisingtibek portion was calculated based on a priceldd®9 per share, which equaled the
volume weighted average trading price per shateetommon stock on December 24 and 28, 2009.

We cannot provide any assurance that these measilirpsovide sufficient sources of liquidity to pport our operations and growth.

Contractual obligations

The following table shows our payment obligatioosrepayment of debt and other contractual obligestiat February 28, 2014:

Payment Due by Perioc

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(% in thousands)
Long-Term Debt Obligations $ 98,30( $ — 3 — $ — 3 98,30(

Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company’s off-balance sheet arrangements d¢edsi$ $12.2 million and $0.0 million of unfundednomitments to provide debt
financing to its portfolio companies or to fund ited partnership interests as of February 28, 2012013, respectively. Such commitments
are generally up to the Company’s discretion taayp, or the satisfaction of certain financial avhfinancial covenants and involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in exodéshe amount recognized in the Company’s Constdili&tatement of Assets and Liabilities
and are not reflected in the Company’s Consolid&tatements of Assets and Liabilities.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosuresabout Market Risk

Our business activities contain elements of matikkt We consider our principal market risk to be fluctuation in interest rates.
Managing this risk is essential to our businescotdingly, we have systems and procedures designieiéntify and analyze our risks, to
establish appropriate policies and thresholds amahtinually monitor this risk and thresholds bgans of administrative and information
technology systems and other policies and processes

Interest rate risk is defined as the sensitivitpof current and future earnings to interest rafatility, including relative changes in
different interest rates, variability of spreadata@nships, the difference in re-pricing interviaddween our assets and liabilities and the effect
that interest rates may have on our cash flowsn@ésin the general level of interest rates cagcaffur net interest income, which is the
difference between the interest income earned tenast earning assets and our interest expensgedadn connection with our interest bearing
debt and liabilities. Changes in interest ratesataa affect, among other things, our ability tg@ce leveraged loans, high yield bonds and
other debt investments and the value of our investrportfolio.

Our investment income is affected by fluctuatiamsarious interest rates, including LIBOR and thieng rate. A large portion of our
portfolio is, and we expect will continue to bepgarised of floating rate investments that utilizBOR. Our interest expense is affected by
fluctuations in LIBOR. At February 28, 2014, we %8B.3 million of borrowings outstanding.
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We have analyzed the potential impact of chang@#énest rates on interest income from investmeatof interest expense on the
Credit Facility. Assuming that our investments &E@bruary 28, 2014 were to remain constant faidleitcal year and no actions were take
alter the existing interest rate terms, a hypotlaétthange of 1.0% in interest rates would causargsponding increase of approximately
$0.5 million to our interest income net of interespense.

Although management believes that this measuredisative of our sensitivity to interest rate chesgt does not adjust for potential
changes in credit quality, size and compositiothefassets on the statement of assets and liebititid other business developments that coul
magnify or diminish our sensitivity to interesteathanges, nor does it account for divergence$BOR and the commercial paper rate, which
have historically moved in tandem but, in timesin@isual credit dislocations, have experienced gerid divergence. Accordingly no
assurances can be given that actual results watlchaterially differ from the potential outcome silated by this estimate.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DAT A

Our financial statements are annexed to this AnReglort beginning on page F-1. In addition, theaRkiial Statements of Saratoga
Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd. are annexedi®Annual Report beginning on page S-1.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Our CEO and our CFO have evaluated the effectiveeakthe design and operation of our disclosurdro®and procedures (as
defined in Rule 1345(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of théoperovered by this report. Based upon that eveloabur CEO and CF
have concluded that our current disclosure conttotsprocedures are effective as of the end gb¢hnied covered by this report.

Management’s annual report on internal control ovéinancial reporting

The Company’s management is responsible for estabfj and maintaining adequate internal controt émancial reporting (as
defined by Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) fordhe assessment of the effectiveness of intexmatrol over financial reporting. The
Company’s internal control over financial reportisglesigned to provide reasonable assurance iiagdte reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of the consolidated finant¢&ksnents. Because of its inherent limitationsrimal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements and even whemdiegt to be effective, can only provide reasonabkurance with respect to financial
statement preparation and presentation. Undemhergision and with the participation of managemamiuding the CEO and CFO, the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveioéshe Company’s internal control over financigorting based on the criteria
established in thinternal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrise Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Based on the Company’s assessment, managketieves that the Company maintained effectivernal control over financial
reporting as of February 28, 2014.

Changes in internal controls over financial reportg

There have been no changes in the Company’s inteon&rol over financial reporting (as defined inl& 13a-15(f) of Exchange Act)
that occurred during our most recently completeddi quarter that have materially affected, orraasonably likely to materially affect, the
Company'’s internal control over financial reporting
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
Director and Executive Officer Information
Directors
The following table sets forth the names, agespasitions held by each of our directors, followgdabborief biography of each

individual, including the business experience afeimdividual during the past five years and thecsfic qualifications that led to the
conclusion that each individual should serve asectbr.

Director Term
Name Age Position Since Expires
Interested Directors
Christian L. Oberbec 54 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi 201C 201¢
Michael J. Grisiut 5C President and Directc 2011 201¢
Independent Directors
Steven M. Loone! 64 Director 2007 201¢
Charles S. Whitman Il 72 Director 2007 201¢
G. Cabell Williams 6C Director 2007 201¢

Christian L. Oberbeck—Mr. Oberbeck has over 26 years of experiencevierlged finance, from distressed debt to privatatgq
and has been involved in originating, structurimggotiating, consummating, managing and monitarrgstments in these businesses.
Mr. Oberbeck is the Managing Partner of SaratoginPes, a middle market private equity investmémb fand has served on its investment
committee since 1995. Mr. Oberbeck is also the MamgpMember of Saratoga Investment Advisors, L@ €ompany’s investment adviser,
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mherbeck also served as our President until FepaGi4.

Prior to assuming management responsibility foafega Partners in 2008, Mr. Oberbeck has co-man@geatoga Partners since
1995, when he joined Dillon Read and Saratoga Pexrtinom Castle Harlan, Inc., a corporate buyaut fivhich he had joined at its founding
1987 and was a Managing Director, leading succkssfestments in manufacturing and financial sezgicompanies. Prior to that, he worked
in the Corporate Development Group of Arthur Yoamgl in corporate finance at Blyth Eastman PaineelMr. Oberbeck has been a
director of numerous middle market companies.

Mr. Oberbeck graduated from Brown University in 298ith a BS in Physics and a BA in Mathematics1985, he earned an MBA
from Columbia University. Mr. Oberbeck’s qualifigats as a director include his extensive experiém¢lee investment and finance industry,
as well as his intimate knowledge of the Compapogsrations, gained through his service as an eixecofficer.

Michael J. Grisius—Mr. Grisius has over 23 years of experience irfaged finance, investment management and finaseigices.
He has originated, structured, negotiated, consustnaanaged and monitored numerous successfudtineats in mezzanine debt, private
equity, senior debt, structured products and corialereal estate debt. Mr. Grisius is Chief InvestinOfficer and a Managing Director of
Saratoga Investment Advisors, LLC, the Companyeatment adviser, and was appointed Presidened€tdmpany in February 2013.
Mr. Grisius joined Saratoga Investment AdvisorsCLin July 2011.

Prior to joining Saratoga Investment Advisors, Erisius served as Managing Director at Allied Calp@orporation, where he was
investment professional for 16 years. At Allied @alpCorporation, Mr. Grisius held several seniosiions including co-head of Mezzanine
Finance and member of its Management Committedtamavestment Committee. In 2008, Mr. Grisius wwapointed co-chairman of the
Allied Capital Corporation’s Investment Committéte also had responsibility for structuring and ngang Unitranche Fund, LLC. During his
tenure at Allied, Mr. Grisius built and led tearhattmade investments in subordinated debt, coatiuity and real estate mortgage debt.

Mr. Grisius has served on the board of directonsusherous middle market companies. Prior to joiriged Capital Corp., Mr. Grisius
worked in leveraged finance at Chemical Bank fr®89.to 1992 and held senior accountant and comsydtasitions with KPMG LLP from
1985 to 1988.

Mr. Grisius graduated with a BS from Georgetownwuénsity in 1985 and earned an MBA from Cornell Wasity’s Johnson Graduz
School of Management in 1990. Mr. Grisius’ qualifions as a director include his broad experiendevierage finance, investment
management, private equity and financial services.
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Steven M. Looney—Mr. Looney is a Managing Director of Peale Dae€o. Inc., a consulting firm with particular expise in
financial process and IT outsourcing, and is a @GR4 an attorney. Mr. Looney also serves as a camiwnd director to numerous companies
in the healthcare, manufacturing and technologyises industries, including WH Industries Inc. Beem 2000 and 2005, he served as Seniol
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PCIaL., a private IT staffing and outsourcing firBetween 1992 and 2000, Mr. Looney
worked at WH Industries as Chief Financial and Auistrative Officer. Mr. Looney also serves as &dior of Excellent Education for
Everyone, a nonprofit organization. Mr. Looney grattd summa cum laude from the University of Wagtoin with a B.A. degree in
Accounting and received a J.D. from the UniversityVashington School of Law where he was a membtrelaw review. Mr. Looney’s
qualifications as director include his experiens@dianaging Director of Peale Davies & Co. Ind aa Chief Financial and Administrative
Officer of WH Industries, as well as his financiatcounting and legal expertise.

Charles S. Whitman IIl—Mr. Whitman is senior counsel (retired) at DavidkP& Wardwell LLP. Mr. Whitman was a partner in
Davis Polk’'s Corporate Department for 28 yearstaegnting clients in a broad range of corporatafoe matters, including shelf registrations.
securities compliance for financial institutionstdign asset privatizations, and mergers and aitiguis. From 1971 to 1973, Mr. Whitman
served as Executive Assistant to three successia@@en of the SEC. Mr. Whitman graduated from Hah\College and graduated magna
cum laude from Harvard Law School with a LL.B. Mvhitman also received an LL.M. from Cambridge Umnsity in England. Mr. Whitmarg'
qualifications as director include his 28 yeargxjberience representing clients, including AT&T xBx Mobil, General Motors and BP, in
securities matters as a partner in Davis Polk'paa@te department.

G. Cabell Williams—Mr. Williams has served as the Managing Genereneaof Williams and Gallagher, a private equity
partnership located in Chevy Chase, Maryland skf®l. Mr Williams is also a Senior Manager, DirecibFarragut Capital Partners which is
a Chevy Chase, Maryland based Mezzanine Fund. 80itg, Mr. Williams has also served as a partnétanfagut Capital Partners, an
investment firm based in Fairfax, VA. In 2004, Mvilliams concluded a 23 year career at Allied Cap@orporation, a business development
company based in Washington, DC, which was acquiyefires Capital Corporation in 2010. While at Ai Mr. Williams held a variety of
positions, including President, COO and finally Mgimg Director following Allied’s merger with itdfdiates in 1998. From 1991 to 2004,

Mr. Williams either led or co-managed the firm’svte Equity Group. For the nine years prior to 2.99r. Williams led Allied’s Mezzanine
investment activities. For 15 years, Mr. Williang\ed on Allied’s Investment Committee where he vesponsible for reviewing and
approving all of the firm’s investments. Prior t891l, Mr. Williams ran Allied’s Minority Small Busess Investment Company. He also
founded Allied Capital Commercial Corporation, alrestate investment vehicle. Mr. Williams has edren the Board of various public and
private companies. Mr. Williams attended The Lan8echool, and graduated from Mercersburg AcademyRailihs College, receiving a B.S.
in Business Administration from the latter. Mr. Wains’ qualifications as director include his 28y of experience managing investment
activities at Allied Capital, where he served imagiety of positions, including President, COO &tahaging Director.

Executive Officer Who Is Not also a Directc

The following table sets forth the name, age arsitipm held by our executive officer who is notasdirector, followed by a brief
biography, including the business experience dutiegpast five years.

Name Age Position
Executive Officer
Henri J. Steenkamp 38 Interim Chief Financial Officer, Interim Chief Cotigmnce

Officer, Interim Treasurer and Interim Secret

Henri J. Steenkamp— Mr. Steenkamp, 37 years old, had served as tlef Emancial Officer of MF Global Holdings Ltd.,lmoker
in commodities and derivatives, from April 2011idPto that, Mr. Steenkamp held the position of&ticcounting Officer and Global
Controller at MF Global for four years. He joined=N&lobal, then Man Financial, in 2006 as Vice Rfest of External Reporting and
Accounting Policy. After MF Global filed for bankptcy protection in October 2011, he continued twaas Chief Financial Officer through
January 2013.

Before joining MF Global, Mr. Steenkamp spent eigiars with PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), inabgdiour years in
Transaction Services in its New York office, mamaga variety of capital-raising transactions orabal basis. His focus was also on the SEC
registration and public company filing processjuding technical accounting. He spent four yeaith \WRwC in South Africa, where he served
as an auditor primarily for SEC registrants andsésg South African companies as they went publihée U.S. Mr. Steenkamp is a chartered
accountant and holds an honors degree in Finance.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of41&@Rjuires our directors and executive officersl p@rsons who own 10.0% or
more of our voting stock, to file reports of owrtdpsand changes in ownership of our equity seaitvith the SEC. Directors, executive
officers and 10.0% or more holders are require&BZ regulations to furnish us with copies of akkt®m 16(a) forms they file. Based solely
on a review of the copies of those forms furnisteeds, or written representations that no such $onrare required, we believe that our
directors, executive officers and 10.0% or morediieral owners complied with all Section 16(a)ritj requirements during the year ended
February 28, 2014.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsEttat applies to which applies to, among othtmrsgxecutive officers,
including our principal executive officer and prippal financial officer, as well as every officeirettor and employee of the Company.
Requests for copies should be sent in writing t@®ga Investment Corp., 535 Madison Avenue, NewkYNew York 10022. The Comparsy
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is also availa our website dittp://saratogainvestmentcorp.cam

If we make any substantive amendment to, or graveiger from, a provision of our Code of Businesm@uct and Ethics, we will
promptly disclose the nature of the amendment éavevan our website dtttp://saratogainvestmentcorp.cam

Nomination of Directors

There have been no material changes to the proegthyrwhich stockholders may recommend nomineesrt@oard of Directors
implemented since the filing of our Proxy Statenfentour 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Audit Committee

The current members of the audit committee areedtdw. Looney (Chairman), Charles S. Whitman Ill &dCabell Williams. The
Board has determined that Mr. Looney is an “audihmittee financial expert” as defined under Itend 40 Regulation S-K of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that each of Messrs. Waritand Williams are “financially literate” as retpd by NYSE corporate governance
standards. All of these members are independesdtdiis.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation

Currently, none of our executive officers are congaged by us. We currently have no employees, acll @ our executive officers is
also an employee of Saratoga Investment Advis@i&s necessary for our business are provideddiyiduals who are employees of
Saratoga Investment Advisors, pursuant to the terfrtise Management Agreement and an administraipaement.

Director Compensation

Our independent directors receive an annual f&0f000. They also receive $2,500 plus reimburséofareasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with attending éaeiid meeting and receive $1,000 plus reimburseoferasonable out-giocket expenst
incurred in connection with attending each comraitteeeting. In addition, the chairman of the audimittee receives an annual fee of $5,
and the chairman of each other committee receivesaual fee of $2,000 for their additional sersioethese capacities. In addition, we have
purchased directors’ and officelibility insurance on behalf of our directors asfticers. Independent directors have the optioreteive thei
directors’ fees in the form of our common stockuess at a price per share equal to the greatertafsset value or the market price at the time
of payment. No compensation is paid to directors ate “interested persons.”

The following table sets forth information concengitotal compensation earned by or paid to eacuntlirectors during the fiscal
year ended February 28, 20:

Fees Earned o1
Name Paid in Cash Total

Interested Director

Christian L. Oberbeck(1 — —
Michael J. Grisius(1 — —
Independent Directors

Steven M. Loone! $ 69,00 $ 69,00(
Charles S. Whitman | $ 66,000 $ 66,00(
G. Cabell Williams $ 66,000 $ 66,00(
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(1) No compensation was paid to directors who areésted persons of us as defined in the 1940 Act.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

The current members of the compensation commitee&aCabell Williams (Chairman), Steven M. Loorsey Charles S.
Whitman Ill. All of these members are independédreators. The compensation committee is responéilleverseeing the Company’s
compensation policies generally and making reconuiagons to the Board with respect to incentive cengation and equity-based plans of
the Company that are subject to Board approvaluatiag executive officer performance and reviewing Company’s management
succession plan, overseeing and setting compendatithe Company’s directors and, as applicaltdegxecutive officers and, as applicable,
preparing the report on executive officer compdarahat SEC rules require to be included in ourwaah report on Form 10-K. Currently, none
of our executive officers are compensated by the@my and as such the compensation committee i®qotred to produce a report on
executive officer compensation for inclusion in amnual report on Form 10-K.

During fiscal year 2014, none of the Company’s exige officers served on the board of directorsg@ompensation committee
thereof or other board committee performing eqenmafunctions) of any entities that had one or neecutive officers serve on the
compensation committee or on the board of directéoscurrent or past executive officers or emplayekthe Company or its affiliates serve
on the compensation committee.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth, as of May 27, 20t beneficial ownership of each current diredioe,nominees for director, the
Company'’s executive officers, each person knownstto beneficially own 5.0% or more of the outstagdhares of our common stock, and
the executive officers and directors as a group.

The percentage ownership is based on 5,379,616ssbcommon stock outstanding as of May 27, 28h4res of common stock tl
are subject to warrants or other convertible séiesrcurrently exercisable or exercisable withindé®s thereof, are deemed outstanding for th
purposes of computing the percentage ownershipeopérson holding these options or convertible réiies) but are not deemed outstanding
for computing the percentage ownership of any gbleeson. Beneficial ownership is determined undenrtles of the SEC and generally
includes voting or investment power with respecdourities. To our knowledge, unless otherwise&aidd in the footnotes to this table, the
persons and entities named in the table have stilegvand sole investment power with respect tsladires beneficially owned. Unless
otherwise indicated by footnote, the address fohdiated individual is Saratoga Investment Cosg5 Madison Avenue, New York, New
York 10022.

Number of Shares of

Common Stock Percent of

Name of Beneficial Owners Beneficially Owned Class

Interested Directors

Christian L. Oberbec 1,572,32(1) 29.2%

Michael J. Grisiut 34,71( *

Executive Officer

Henri J. Steenkam — —

Independent Directors

Steven M. Loone! 1,54 *

Charles S. Whitman I 1,83: *

G. Cabell Williams 22,40¢ &

All Directors and Executive Officers as a Grouf 1,632,82 30.4%

Owners of 5% or more of our common stock

Black Diamond Capital Management, L.L.C. 505,93! 9.4%

Raging Capital Management, LLC( 318,07" 5.€%

Thomas V. Inglesby(4 269,54¢ 5.(%
* Less than 1.0%
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Mr. Oberbeck and Mr. Inglesby are affiliates whokeap 34.2% of the ownership of SAR.

(1) Includes 1,217,556 shares of common stock dirdetlgl by Mr. Oberbeck, 180,738 shares of commorkdtetd by Saratoga
Investment Advisors, which Mr. Oberbeck controlsl 474,035 shares of common stock held by CLO BestinLC, an entity wholly
owned by Mr. Oberbeck per records as of 12/31/2013

(2 Based on information included in Amendment No. Sthedule 13G filed by Black Diamond Capital Mamagat, L.L.C. with the
SEC on February 14, 2014.

3) Based on information included in Amendment No. &thedule 13G filed by Raging Capital Managemeh€ with the SEC on
February 14, 2014.

4) Based on information included in Schedule 13D fiblydThomas V. Inglesby with the SEC on January0d 42
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Transactions with Related Persons

We have entered into an Management Agreement witat§ga Investment Advisors, LLC. We have alsoredtito a license
agreement with Saratoga Investment Advisors, LLEspant to which Saratoga Investment Advisors lyaseal to grant us a non-exclusive,
royalty-free license to use the name “Saratogadddition, pursuant to the terms of the adminigtrahgreement, Saratoga Investment
Advisors, LLC provides us with the office faciliend administrative services necessary to cormluaiay-to-day operations. Mr. Oberbeck,
our chief executive officer, is the primary invesitmand controls Saratoga Investment Advisors, LLC

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions wih Related Persons

The Audit Committee of our Board is required toieewand approve any transactions with related per¢as such term is defined in
Item 404 of Regulation S-K).

Director Independence

In accordance with rules of the New York Stock Exute (the “NYSE”), the Board annually determinesittdependence of each
director. No director is considered independenéssmthe Board has determined that he or she hasitewial relationship with the Company.
The Company monitors the status of its directos@ficers through the activities of the Company@minating and Corporate Governance
Committee and through a questionnaire to be comglley each director no less frequently than anpuaith updates periodically if
information provided in the most recent questiornhias changed.

In order to evaluate the materiality of any sudhatrenship, the Board uses the definition of diceéhdependence set forth in the
NYSE Listed Company Manual. Section 303A.00 of RNSE Listed Company Manual provides that businesebbpment companies,
BDCs, such as the Company, are required to comiplyall of the provisions of Section 303A applicalib domestic issuers other than
Sections 303A.02, the section that defines dirdotependence.

Section 303A.00 provides that a director of a Bb@llsbe considered to be independent if he or sim@i an “interested persoaf the
Company, as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 18d0 Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act defines amerested person” to include, among
other things, any person who has, or within thetles years had, a material business or profeskretationship with the Company.

The Board has determined that each of the dire@@dnglependent and has no relationship with theng@my, except as a director and
stockholder of the Company, with the exception &dsts. Oberbeck and Grisius who are interestedped the Company due to their
positions as officers of the Company and its inwestt adviser.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

For the years ended February 28, 2014 and Feb2813013, the Company incurred the following femsskrvices provided by
Ernst & Young LLP, including expenses:
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Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013
Audit Fees $ 536,60( $ 437,50!
Audit Related Fee — —
Tax Fees 40,00( 37,00(
All Other Fees — —
Total Fees $ 576,600 $ 474,50(

Audit FeesAudit fees include fees for services that normalbuld be provided by the accountant in connectigth statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements and that geneaally the independent accountant can providedtiten to fees for the audit of our annual
financial statements, the audit of the effectiverafsour internal control over financial reportiagd the review of our quarterly financial
statements in accordance with generally acceptditirmg standards, this category contains fees donfort letters, statutory audits, consents,
and assistance with and review of documents filed the SEC.

Audit Related Feegwudit related fees are assurance related servieggraditionally are performed by the independemibuntant,
such as attest services that are not requiredabytstor regulation.

Tax FeesTax fees include services in conjunction with pragian of the Company’s tax return.
All Other FeesFees for other services would include fees for petgland services other than the services repatiede.

It is the policy of the audit committee to pre-apge all audit, review or attest engagements anachissible non-audit services to be
performed by our independent registered public actog firm.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENT SCHEDULES
The following documents are filed or incorporatgdréference as part of this Annual Report:
1. Consolidated Financial Statements
The following financial statements of the Compang filed herewith:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféing
Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilitiesfa-ebruary 28, 2014 and February 28, 2

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013, ahdubey 29, 201.
Consolidated Schedules of Investments as of Fep2&r2014 and February 28, 2C

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assethdoyears ended February 28, 2014, February®&g,2and February 2
2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yerailed February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013, ahcubkey 29, 201:
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
2. Financial Statement Schedule
Reference is made to the Index to Other Finan¢aksents on page S-1.
Schedule 12-14—Investments in and advances tiaéS|
3. Exhibits required to be filed by Item 601 of Regultion S-K
The following exhibits are filed as part of thipoet or hereby incorporated by reference to exbipitviously filed with the SEC:
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(a Articles of Incorporation of Saratoga Investment|Cdincorporated by reference to Saratoga Investi@erp.’'s Form 1 for
the quarterly period ended May 31, 2007, File Nii-33376).
3.1(b} Articles of Amendment of Saratoga Investment Crorporated by reference to Saratoga Investmenp.G Current Report
on Form &K filed August 3, 2010)
3.1(c. Articles of Amendment of Saratoga Investment Cérorporated by reference to Saratoga Investmenp.(d Current Report
on Form &K filed August 13, 2010}
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Saratoga Invest@emt. (incorporated by reference to Saratoga Imvest Corp.’s Current
Report on Form-K filed on March 5, 2008’
4.1 Specimen certificate of Saratoga Investment Cogmiemon stock, par value $0.001 per share. (incatpd by reference to
Saratoga Investment Ca’'s Registration Statement on Forr-2, File No. 33-169135, filed on September 1, 201
4.2 Registration Rights Agreement dated July 30, 20dtveen GSC Investment Corp., GSC CDO Il L.L.Cd #re investors
party thereto (incorporated by reference to Saetogestment Cor’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 3, 2010
4.2 Form of Dividend Reinvestment Plan (incorporateddfgrence to Amendment No. 2 to the Saratoga tmesgt Corp.’s
Registration Statement on Forn-2, File No. 33-138051, filed on January 12, 200
4.4 Form of Indenture by and between the Company afd Bank National Association, as trustee (incorfgatdy reference to
Saratoga Investment Corp.’s Pre-Effective AmendnNmtl to the Registration Statement on Form N#2, Ifo. 333-186323
filed April 30, 2013).
4.5 Form of First Supplemental Indenture between the@omy and U.S. Bank National Association (incorpetay reference to
Saratoga Investment Corp.’s Pre-Effective Amendmntl to the Registration Statement on Form Ni2, [Ro. 333-186323
filed April 30, 2013).
4.€ Form of Note (Filed as Exhibit A to First Supplertanndenture referred to in Exhibit 4.
10.1 Investment Advisory and Management Agreement dahd30, 2010 between GSC Investment Corp. and@mdnvestment
Advisors, LLC (incorporated by reference to Saratbgestment Cor’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 3, 2010
10.z Custodian Agreement dated March 21, 2007 betwedd IB%stment LLC and U.S. Bank National Associafimeorporated
by reference to Saratoga Investment C's Form 1i-Q for the quarterly period ended May 31, 20(
10.2  Administration Agreement dated July 30, 2010 betw&&C Investment Corp. and Saratoga Investmentsadyi LLC
(incorporated by reference to Saratoga Investmerp.'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 3, 2010
10.£ Trademark License Agreement dated July 30, 2010dwat Saratoga Investment Advisors, LLC and GSCsltnvent Corp.
(incorporated by reference to Saratoga Investmerp.'s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 3, 2010
10.5  Credit, Security and Management Agreement dated32010 by and among GSC Investment Funding Ll3aatoga
Investment Corp., Saratoga Investment Advisors, [ M&dison Capital Funding LLC and U.S. Bank NatioAssociation
(incorporated by reference to Saratoga Investmenp.’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 3, 2010
10.€ Form of Indemnification Agreement between Saratogastment Corp. and each officer and directorarbfbga Investment

Corp. (incorporated by reference to Amendment Nio. Saratoga Investment Corp.’s Registration Statéran Form N-2 filed
on January 12, 2007
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.7 Amendment No. 1 to Credit, Security and Managemgneement dated February 24, 2012 by and amonddgariénvestment
Funding LLC, Saratoga Investment Corp., Saratogadiment Advisors, LLC, Madison Capital Funding La@d U.S. Bank
National Association (incorporated by referenc&#matoga Investment Ca’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 29, 2012
10.¢ Indenture, dated as of January 22, 2008, among I@&3tment Corp. CLO 2007, Ltd., GSC InvestmentgC&@LO 2007, Inc.
and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporateddfgrence to the registrant’s Registration Statéroa Form N-2, File
No. 333186323, filed on April 30, 2013
12.1 Statement of Computation of Ratios of Earningsikeé Charges (incorporated by reference to thestegit's Registration
Statement on Form-2, File No. 33-186323, filed on April 29, 2013
21.1 List of Subsidiaries and jurisdiction of incorpaca/organization: Saratoga Investment Funding LLCeldWare; Saratoga
Investment Corp. SBIC, l|—Delaware; and Saratoga Investment Corp. GP,—Delaware.
31.1* Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant tal® 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2* Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant talR 13a-14 of the Securities Act of 1934, as adbptesuant to Section 302
of the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1* Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002
* Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP

Date: May 27, 2014 By: /s/ CHRISTIAN L. OBERBECK
Christian L. Oberbec
Chief Executive Office
By: /s/ HENRI J. STEENKAMF

Henri J. Steenkamp
Interim Chief Financial Officer and Interim Chieb@pliance
Officer

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENT, that each penstiose signature appears below hereby constitatksa@points
Christian L. Oberbeck and Henri J. Steenkamp, acti ef them (with full power to each of them to alcine), his true and lawful attorneys-in-
fact and agents, with full power of substitutiordarsubstitution, for him and in his name, placel stead, in any and all capacities, to sign
report and any and all amendments thereto, aritetthe same, with the Securities and Exchange Cigsiom, granting unto said attorneys-in-
fact and agents full power and authority to do pedorm each and every act and thing requisiteresngssary to be done in and about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposeseasiight or could do in person, hereby ratifying andfirming all that said attorneys-faet anc
agents, or their substitute or substitutes, mayubyvdo or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ CHRISTIAN L. OBERBECK
Christian L. Oberbec

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Executive  May 27, 2014
Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

/sI MICHAEL J. GRISIUS Member of the Board of Directors May 27, 2014
Michael J. Grisiu
/sl HENRI J. STEENKAMF Interim Chief Financial Officer (Principal Accoung May 27, 2014

Henri J. Steenkam

Officer and Principal Financial Officer)

/sl STEVEN M. LOONEY Member of the Board of Directors May 27, 2014
Steven M. Loone!
/s CHARLES S. WHITMAN IlI Member of the Board of Directors May 27, 2014
Charles S. Whitman |
/sl G. CABELL WILLIAMS Member of the Board of Directors May 27, 2014

Cabell Williams
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding

Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilitiesfa-ebruary 28, 2014 and February 28, 2

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeraded February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013, ahdubey 29, 201.
Consolidated Schedules of Investments as of Fep2&r2014 and February 28, 2C

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assethdoyears ended February 28, 2014, February®g,2and February 29, 20
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the ysadled February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013, abdikey 29, 201:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Saratagastment Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséateof assets and liabilities of Saratoga Investr@®rp. (the “Company”3s of
February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, incluttiegconsolidated schedule of investments, andeflaged consolidated statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flovilsfyears ended February 28, 2014, February®® and February 29, 2012. These
financial statements are the responsibility of@mmpany’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform ai afuthe Company’s internal control over finanaiaporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financigbogting as a basis for designing audit procedurasdre appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion oreffectiveness of the Company’s internal contrarofinancial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includesnéxiag, on a test basis, evidence supporting theusts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlesars significant estimates made by managementeaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our procedures includefirowtion of securities owned as of February 28,20y correspondence with the
custodian, debt agents and lenders. We believethaudits provide a reasonable basis for ouriopin

In our opinion, the financial statements referedlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
Saratoga Investment Corp. at February 28, 2014abduary 28, 2013, and the consolidated results operations, changes in its net assets
and its cash flows for the years ended Februar@84, February 28, 2013 and February 29, 201&formity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
New York, NY
May 27, 2014
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Assets and Liabilities

ASSETS

Investments at fair valt
Non-control/non-affiliate investments (amortizedgtof $185,266,607 and $130,465,086,
respectively’
Control investments (cost of $16,555,808 and $183Bb respectively
Total investments at fair value (amortized cos$201,822,415 and $149,410,052 respectiv
Cash and cash equivalel
Cash and cash equivalents, reserve acce
Interest receivable, (net of reserve of $150,058%68,543, respectivel:
Deferred debt financing costs, 1
Management fee receivat
Other asset
Receivable from unsettled trac
Total asset

LIABILITIES

Revolving credit facility

SBA debentures payak

Notes payabli

Management and incentive fees pay:
Accounts payable and accrued expei
Interest and debt fees paya

Due to manage

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (See Not

NET ASSETS

Common stock, par value $.001, 100,000,000 comrhares authorized, 5,379,616 and 4,730,116
common shares issued and outstanding, respec

Capital in excess of par val

Distribution in excess of net investment inca

Accumulated net realized loss from investmentsderivatives

Net unrealized appreciation on investments and/divies
Total Net Asset:

Total liabilities and Net Asse
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARI

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.

F-3

As of

February 28,2014  February 28, 2012

186,275,10 $ 129,563,42

19,569,59 25,516,95
205,844,70 155,080,38
3,293,89 149,02!
3,293,111 12,086,14
2,571,85: 2,889,35!
4,008,70 2,090,18
150,10¢ 215,85!
14,46: 83,40°

— 1,817,07.

219,176,83 $ 174,411,43

— $ 24,300,00
50,000,00 36,000,00
48,300,00 —

3,856,96: 4,509,32.
824,56 435,03t
873,13! 257,791
398,15: 222,51

104,252,81 $ 65,724,66

5380 $ 4,73(
184,851,15 174,824,07
(29,627,57) (24,522,95)
(44,327,22) (47,289,42)

4,022,28 5,670,33.

114,924,01 108,686,76

219,176,83 $ 174,411,43

21.3¢ $ 22.9¢
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the year ended
February 28, 2014

For the year ended
February 28, 2013

For the year ended
February 29, 2012

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest from investmen
Non-control/Nor-affiliate investment: $
Payment-in-kind interest income from Non-
control/Nor-affiliate investment:
Control investment

Total interest incom
Interest from cash and cash equival¢
Management fee incon
Other income

Total investment incom

EXPENSES

Interest and debt financing expen
Base management fe
Professional fee

Administrator expense

Incentive management fe
Insurance

Directors fees and expens
General & administrativ

Other expens

Total expense

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN
(LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS

Net realized gain (loss) from investme

Net realized loss from derivativ:

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
investment:

Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
derivatives

Net gain (loss) on investmer

NET INCREASE IN NET ASSET!
RESULTING FROM OPERATION¢ $

WEIGHTED AVERAGE - BASIC AND
DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON
SHARE $

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON STOCK
OUTSTANDING - BASIC AND DILUTED

15,832,08 $ 9,176,15! 5,613,70!
936,20t 1,062,68 1,442,00.
3,410,86! 4,205,50! 4,198,00
20,179,15 14,444,35 11,253,71
7,932 5,95¢ 7,86¢
1,775,14 2,000,07; 2,011,51
931,51: 556,42 238,57!
22,893,74 17,006,80 13,511,67
6,083,89. 2,540,41. 1,297,98
3,326,87! 2,107,37: 1,617,49
1,211,83 1,190,58 1,455,38!
1,000,00t 1,000,00t 1,000,001
691,49: 2,044,78: 1,257,08
442 ,97" 516,12: 578,74t
204,60’ 206,70! 208,85:
789,20¢ 368,81! 389,82!
21,20 4,43¢ 5,44¢
13,772,09 9,979,24. 7,810,81!
9,121 64! 7,027,561 5,700,86
1,270,76! 561,70( (12,185,99)
— (131,000 —
(1,648,04) 7,012,722 19,776,46
— 130,92! (16,190
(377,28) 7,574,35. 7,574,28;
8,744,36° $ 14,601,91 13,275,14
1.7t $ 3.5 3.8i
4,920,51 4,110,48 3,434,34!

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

February 28, 2014

Principal/ % of
Company (a) Industry Investment Interest Rate / Maturity Number of Shares Cost Fair Value (c) Net Assets
Non-control/Non-affiliated
investments - 162.1% (b)
PATS Aircraft, LLC Aerospace Common Stocl 51,81 89,63¢ 89,63¢ 0.1%
PATS Aircraft, LLC Aerospace First Lien Term Loan 8.50% Cash, 10/6/2 $ 254,591 254,59t 254,59¢ 0.2%
Total Aerospac 344,23: 344,23« 0.2%
National Truck Protection Co., Inc. (d, = Automotive Common Stocl 1,11¢ 1,000,001 1,152,53: 1.(%
National Truck Protection Co., Inc. ( Automotive First Lien Term Loan 15.50% Cas
9/13/2018 $ 8,250,001 8,250,001 8,250,001 7.2%
Take 5 Oil Change, L.L.C. (d, ¢ Automotive Common Stocl 7,12¢ 712,80( 1,217,74 1.1%
Total Automotivt 9,962,80! 10,620,27. 9.2%
Legacy Cabinets Holdings (d, Building Product: Common Stock Voting -1 2,53¢ 220,901 552,35 0.£%
Legacy Cabinets Holdings (d, Building Product: Common Stock Voting -1 1,60( 139,42 348,62« 0.2%
Total Building Produc 360,32: 900,97¢ 0.£%
ARSloane Acquistion, LL( Business Service First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cash, 10/1/2  $ 997,501 988,20( 1,004,98: 0.€%
BMC Software, Inc. (d Business Service First Lien Term Loan 5.00% Cash, 9/10/2 $ 6,000,001 5,943,80 6,013,801 5.2%
Dispensing Dynamics International ( Business Service Senior Secured Note 12.50% Cash, 1/1/z2  $ 7,000,001 6,882,27: 7,525,001 6.5%
Easy Ice, LLC (d Business Service First Lien Term Loan 14.00% (11.00% Cz
3.00% PIK), 3/29/201: $ 7,507,02. 7,387,971 7,507,02: 6.5%
Emily Street Enterprises, L.L.C. ( Business Service Senior Secured Note 12.00% (11.0
Cash/1.00% PIK), 12/28/20: $ 5,767,98: 5,680,70: 5,767,98: 5.(%
Emily Street Enterprises, L.L.C. (d, Business Service Warrant Membership Interes 49,31¢ 400,00( 601,67¢ 0.5%
Help/Systems Holdings, Ir Business Service
(Help/Systems, LLC) (d First Lien Term Loan 5.50% Cash, 6/28/2 $ 3,990,001 3,954,38! 3,960,07! 3.5%
Help/Systems Holdings, Ir Business Service Second Lien Term Loan 9.50% Ca
(Help/Systems, LLC) (d 6/28/202C $ 2,000,001 1,972,75 2,000,001 1.7%
Knowland Technology Holdings, L.L.C  Business Service First Lien Term Loan 11.00% Cas
(d) 11/29/2017 $ 6,200,001 6,107,03 6,200,001 5.4%
Trinet HR Corporation (SC Business Service
Holdings, Inc.) (d First Lien Term Loan 5.00% Cash, 8/20/2 $ 4,987,501 4,941,33! 5,018,92. 4.4%
Trinet HR Corporation (SC Business Service Second Lien Term Loan 8.75% Ca
Holdings, Inc.) (d; 2/20/2021 $ 2,500,001 2,453,14! 2,518,75! 2.2%
Vector Controls Holding Co., LLC (c Business Service First Lien Term Loan, 14.00% (12.0C
Cash, 2.00% PIK), 3/6/201 $ 9,261,07 9,115,41! 9,075,85! 7. %
Vector Controls Holding Co., LLC (d, t  Business Service Warrants to Purchase Limited Liabili
Company Interesi 101 — 136,21 0.1%
Total Business Servic 55,827,02 57,330,28 49.8%
Targus Group International, Inc. ( Consumer Produc First Lien Term Loan 11.00% Cas
5/24/201€ $ 3,738,36! 3,704,761 3,663,60: 3.2%
Targus Holdings, Inc. (d, ¢ Consumer Produc Common Stocl 62,41: 566,76! 730,23: 0.€%
Targus Holdings, Inc. (c Consumer Produc Unsecured Note 10.00% PIK, 6/14/2( $ 2,054,15! 2,054,15! 1,387,84i 1.2%
Targus Holdings, Inc. (c Consumer Produc Unsecured Note 16.00% Cash, 10/26/2 $ 384,57 379,47 336,50 0.2%
Total Consumer Produt 6,705,16! 6,118,18 5.5%
Avionte Holdins, LLC Consumer Service Common Stocl $ 100,00¢ 100,00( 100,00( 0.1%
Avionte Holdins, LLC Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 9.75% Cash, 1/8/2( $ 3,000,001 2,940,001 3,000,001 2.€%
CFF Acquisition L.L.C. (d Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cash, 7/31/2  $ 1,319,89 1,273,599 1,319,89: 1.1%
Expedited Travel L.L.C. (0 Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 9.00% Cas
12/28/2017 $ 4,580,001 4,501,10 4,580,001 4.(%
PrePaid Legal Services, Inc. ( Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 6.25% Cash, 7/1/2C $ 4,274,19. 4,236,03! 4,247,69. 3.™%



PrePaid Legal Services, Inc. (

M/C Acquisition Corp., L.L.C. (d, g

M/C Acquisition Corp., L.L.C. (d

Group Dekko, Inc. (d

Consumer Service

Educatior

Educatior

Electronics

Second Lien Term Loan 9.75% Ca
7/1/2020

Total Consumer Servic
Class A Common Stoc
First Lien Term Loan 1.00% Cash, 3/13,
Total Educatio

Second Lien Term Loan 11.00% (10.0!
Cash/1.00% PIK), 5/1/201

Total Electronic
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5,000,001

544,76

2,512,18:

6,901,54

4,931,88! 5,044,000 4.4%
17,982,62 18,291,58 15.9%
30,24: — 0.C%
1,358,25! 90,12¢ 0.1%
1,388,49 90,12¢ 0.1%
6,901,54 6,741,43. 5.£%
6,901,54 6,741,43. 5.€%
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USS Parent Holding Corp. (d,

USS Parent Holding Corp. (d,

DS Waters of America, Inc. (t
HOA Restaurant Group, L.L.C. (i
TB Corp. (d)

TB Corp. (d)

TM Restaurant Group L.L.C. (t

Bristol Hospice, LLC

Oceans Acquisition, Inc. (¢

Oceans Acquisition, Inc. (¢

Smile Brands Group Inc. (¢

Surgical Specialties Corporation (US), |
(d)

Zest Holdings, LLC (d

McMillin Companies L.L.C. (d, g

Distribution International, Inc. (c

Elyria Foundry Company, L.L.C. (¢

Elyria Foundry Company, L.L.C. (d,

Elyria Foundry Company, L.L.C. (d,

Network Communications, Inc. (d,

Network Communications, Inc. (i

Community Investors, Inc. (d, |
Community Investors, Inc. (¢
Community Investors, Inc. (¢
Community Investors, Inc. (d,

Per-Link, Ltd.

Advanced Air & Heat of Florida, LL(

Sub Total Nor-control/Non-affiliated
investments

Control investments- 17.0% (b)

Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2-
1, Ltd. (d, e, f)

Sub Total Control investments

TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 179.1% (b)

Environmenta

Environmenta

Food and Beverac
Food and Beverac
Food and Beverag

Food and Beverac

Food and Beverag

Healthcare Service

Healthcare Service

Healthcare Service

Healthcare Service

Healthcare Service

Healthcare Service

Homebuilding

Manufacturing

Metals

Metals

Metals

Publishing

Publishing

Software
Software
Software
Software

Software

Utilities

Structured Financ
Securities

Non Voting Common Stoc
Voting Common Stoc

Total Environment:
First Lien Term Loan 5.25% Cash, 8/30/2
Senior Secured Note 11.25% Cash, 4/1/Z
First Lien Term Loan 5.75% Cash, 6/19/2

Unsecured Note 13.50% (12.0(
Cash/1.50% PIK), 12/20/20:

First Lien Term Loan 7.75% Cash, 7/16/2
Total Food and Bevera

Senior Secured Note 11.00%(10.0!
Cash/1.00% PIK), 11/29/20:

First Lien Term A Loan 10.75% Cas
12/27/2017%

First Lien Term B Loan 10.75% Cas
12/27/2017%

First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cash, 8/16/2

First Lien Term Loan 7.25% Cash, 8/22/2:
First Lien Term Loan 6.50% Cash, 8/16/2
Total Healthcare Servic

Senior Secured Note 0% Cash, 12/31/2
Total Homebuildini
First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cash, 7/16/2
Total Manufacturin

Senior Secured Note 17.00% (13.0
Cash/4.00% PIK), 9/14/201

Warrants to Purchase Limited Liabili
Company Interests (200

Warrants to Purchase Limited Liabili
Company Interests (201

Total Metal:

Common Stocl
Unsecured Notes 8.60% PIK, 1/14/2(

Total Publishin
Common Stocl
First Lien Term Loan 9.75% Cash, 5/9/2(
Revolver
Preferred Stoc

Second Lien Term Loan 12.50% Ca
5/26/201¢

Total Softwar

First Lien Term Loan 10.00% Cas
1/31/201¢

Total Utilities

Other/Structured Finance Securities 15.1
10/17/202%

768 133,00: 220,99; 0.2%
17,39¢ 3,025,79 5,027,57 4.4%
3,158,80! 5,248,561 4.6%

2,493,75 2,470,501 2,531,15 2.2%
4,000,001 3,918,43 4,240,00 3.7%
5,101,97 5,082,01: 5,127,48 4.5%
2,543,15. 2,513,13) 2,555,87 2.2%
2,845,691 2,831,27 2,831,46 2.5%
16,815,35 17,285,96 15.1%

5,509,78; 5,405,32! 5,509,78; 4.8%
6,373,11: 6,273,02 6,373,11; 5.6%
500,00( 490,22: 500,00( 0.4%
4,488,751 4,406,55! 4,488,75 3.9%
2,437,501 2,415,59 2,449,68 2.1%
4,488,75! 4,405,07: 4,488,75 3.9%
23,395,79 23,810,08 20.1%

550,00( 558,43 344,35 0.2%
558,43« 344,35! 0.%%

5,970,001 5,916,09. 5,970,00 5.20
5,916,09. 5,970,001 5.2%

8,859,61. 8,859,61. 6,644,71 5.8%
7,00 20 = 0.0%
18,22 — = 0.0%
8,859,63 6,644,71 5.8%

380,57 = = 0.0%
2,601,73 2,202,161 1,190,88 1.0%
2,202,161 1,190,88 1.0%

1,28: 1,28 1,44¢ 0.0%
6,983,33; 6,863,91! 6,983,33 6.1%
166,66° = = 0.0%
135,58 135,58 153,21 0.1%
11,500,00 11,280,88 11,500,00 10.0%
18,281,66 18,637,99 16.2%

6,705,44 6,606,45 6,705,44 5.8%
6,606,45 6,705,44 5.8%

185,266,60 186,275,10 162.1%

30,000,00 16,555,80 19,569,59 17.0%
16,555,80 19,569,59 17.0%

$201,82241 $ 205,844,70 179.9%




(a) All of our equity and debt investments areiesbby eligible portfolio companies, as definethie Investment Company Act of 1940, except Sarabegestment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

(b) Percentages are based on net assets of $2101182as of February 28, 2014.

(c) Because there is no readily available markéiesfor these investments, the fair value of thiegestments is approved in good faith by our badrdirectors. (see Note 3 to the consolidatednfona
statements).

(d) These securities are pledged as collaterauadenior secured revolving credit facility (diee 6 to the consolidated financial statements).

(e) 15.16% represents the modeled effective inteags that is expected to be earned over thefifae investment.

(f) As defined in the Investment Company Act, v@ohtrol” this portfolio company because we own miti@n 25% of the portfolio company’s outstandingvg securities. Transactions during the period
in which the issuer was both an Affiliate and atfadio company that we Control are as follows:

Interest Management Net Realized Net Unrealized
Company Purchases Redemptions Sales (cost Income fee income gains/(losses gains/(losses
Saratoga Investment Corp. Cl
20131, Ltd. $ — 8 — — 3 3,410,860 $ 1,775,14 3 —  $ 3,013,78!

(g9) Non-income producing at February 28, 2014.
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

February 28, 2013

Consolidated Schedule of Investments

% of
Principal/ Net
Company (a) Industry Investment Interest Rate / Maturity Number of Shares Cost Fair Value (c) Assets
Non-control/Non-affiliated investments-
119.2% (b)
Coast Plating, Inc. (c Aerospace First Lien Term Loan 11.70% Cas
9/13/2014 2,550,001 2,550,000 $ 2,550,001 2.%%
Coast Plating, Inc. (c Aerospace First Lien Term Loan 13.20% Cas
9/13/2014 950,00 950,00( 950,00( 0.%
Total Aerospac 3,500,001 3,500,001 3.2%
National Truck Protection Co., Inc. (d), (  Automotive Common Stocl 58¢ 500,00( 591,82° 0.£%
National Truck Protection Co., Inc. ( Automotive First Lien Term Loan 15.50% Ca
8/10/2017 5,500,001 5,500,001 5,500,001 5.1%
Take 5 Oil Change, L.L.C. ( Automotive First Lien Term Loan 9.00% Cas
11/28/201€ 6,000,001 6,000,001 6,000,001 5.5%
Take 5 Oil Change, L.L.C. ( Automotive First Lien Term Loan 13.00% Cas
11/28/201€ 2,000,001 1,961,76 2,000,00! 1.€%
Take 5 Oil Change, L.L.C. (d), (! Automotive Common Stocl 7,12¢ 712,80( 712,80( 0.7%
Total Automotive 14,674,56 14,804,62 13.6%
Legacy Cabinets Holdings (d), ( Building Products Common Stock Voting -1 2,53t 220,90( — 0.C%
Legacy Cabinets Holdings (d), ( Building Product: Common Stock Voting -1 1,60( 139,42: — 0.C%
Legacy Cabinets, Inc. (1 Building Product: First Lien Term Loan 7.25% (1.00
Cash/6.25% PIK), 5/3/201 332,22¢ 332,22¢ 267,37t 0.2%
Total Building Produc 692,55( 267,37¢ 0.2%
Emily Street Enterprises, L.L.C. ( Business Service Senior Secured Note 14.00% (13.0
Cash/1.00% PIK), 12/28/20: 5,705,38: 5,595,31 5,705,38: 5.2%
Emily Street Enterprises, L.L.C. (d), ( Business Service Warrant Membership Interes 49,31¢ 400,00( 399,96¢ 0.4%
Dispensing Dynamics International ( Business Service Senior Secured Note 12.50% Cash, 1/1/z 7,000,001 6,860,18! 7,000,001 6.4%
Knowland Technology Holdings, L.L.( Business Service First Lien Term Loan 11.00% Cas
(d) 11/29/2017 6,200,001 6,082,24! 6,200,001 5.7%
Sourcehov LLC (d Business Service Second Lien Term Loan 10.50% Ca
4/29/2018 3,000,00¢ 2,648,29 2,850,001 2.6%
Total Business Servic 21,586,04 22,155,35 20.%
C.H.I. Overhead Doors, Inc. ( Consumer Produc First Lien Term Loan 7.25% Cash, 8/17/2 4,974,74 4,930,48 5,024,49! 4.7%
Targus Group International, Inc. ( Consumer Produc First Lien Term Loan 11.00% Cas
5/24/201€ 3,940,00: 3,888,461 3,956,55! 3.6%
Targus Holdings, Inc. (c Consumer Produc Unsecured Note 10.00% PIK, 6/14/2C 1,914,34. 1,914,34. 1,116,25: 1.(%
Targus Holdings, Inc. (c Consumer Produc Unsecured Note 16.00% Cash, 10/26/2 332,50( 326,32( 305,33« 0.2%
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% of
Principal/ Net
Company (a) Industry Investment Interest Rate / Maturity Number of Shares Cost Fair Value (c) Assets
Targus Holdings, Inc. (d), (I Consumer Produc Common Stocl 62,41% 566, 76! 3,324,74. 3.1%
Total Consumer Produt 11,626,36 13,727,37 12.1%
CFF Acquisition L.L.C. (d' Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cas
7/31/201% 2,161,39 2,032,06! 2,154,47! 2.(%
Expedited Travel L.L.C. (¢ Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 12.00% Cas
12/28/2017 5,500,00! 5,380,52 5,500,001 5.(%
PrePaid Legal Services, Inc. ( Consumer Service First Lien Term Loan 11.00% Cas
12/31/201€ 3,000,001 2,936,86! 3,000,001 2.&8%
Total Consumer Servic 10,349,44 10,654,47 9.6%
M/C Acquisition Corp., L.L.C. (d Educatior First Lien Term Loan 1.00% Cas
12/31/201z 2,740,78! 1,586,841 291,89: 0.5%
M/C Acquisition Corp., L.L.C. (d), (h Educatior Class A Common Stoc 544,76: 30,24: — 0.(%
Total Educatio 1,617,08: 291,89: 0.5%
Group Dekko, Inc. (d Electronics Second Lien Term Loan 11.00% (10.0!
Cash/1.00% PIK), 5/1/201 6,824,71 6,824,71 6,720,98. 6.2%
Total Electronic 6,824,71 6,720,98. 6.2%
USS Parent Holding Corp. (d), ( Environmenta Non Voting Common Stoc 76E 133,00: 125,98: 0.1%
USS Parent Holding Corp. (d), ( Environmenta Voting Common Stoc 17,39¢ 3,025,79i 2,866,06! 2.7%
Total Environment: 3,158,801 2,992,041 2.8%
DS Waters of America, Inc. (t Food and Beverac First Lien Term Loan 10.50% Cas
8/29/2017 3,970,001 3,994,70: 4,049,401 3.1%
HOA Restaurant Group, L.L.C. (i Food and Beverac Senior Secured Note 11.25% Ca
4/1/2017 4,000,001 3,897,941 3,560,001 3.2%
TB Corp. (d) Food and Beverag First Lien Term Loan 5.81% Cas
6/19/2018 5,153,501 5,128,66: 5,140,62: 4.1%
TB Corp. (d) Food and Beverag Unsecured Note 13.50% (12.0(
Cash/1.50% PIK), 2/19/201 2,504,58! 2,468,31 2,492,06: 2.%
TM Restaurant Group L.L.C. (t Food and Beverag First Lien Term Loan 7.75% Cas
7/17/2017 2,962,501 2,943,04! 2,956,87. 2.1%
Total Food and Bevera 18,432,66 18,198,95 16.1%
Oceans Acquisition, Inc. (¢ Healthcare Service First Lien Term Loan 10.75% Cas
12/27/2017 7,500,001 7,351,43: 7,500,001 6.%
Maverick Healthcare Group (i Healthcare Service First Lien Term Loan 10.75% Cas
12/31/201€ 4,900,001 4,835,38! 4,900,001 4.5%
Total Healthcare Servic 12,186,82 12,400,00 11.2%
McMillin Companies L.L.C. (d), (h Homebuilding Senior Secured Note 0% Cash, 12/31/2 550,00( 536,76+ 315,37( 0.2%
Total Homebuildini 536,76¢ 315,37( 0.5%
Capstone Logistics, L.L.C. (1 Logistics First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cas
9/16/201€ 899,76 889,79¢ 908,76t 0.8%
Capstone Logistics, L.L.C. (t Logistics First Lien Term Loan 13.50% Ca:s
9/16/201€ 3,693,36! 3,652,44: 3,767,231 3.5%
Worldwide Express Operations, L.L. Logistics First Lien Term Loan 7.50% Cas
(d) 6/30/2013 6,527,97! 6,461,29! 6,504,47: 6.(%
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% of
Principal/ Net
Company (a) Industry Investment Interest Rate / Maturity Number of Shares Cost Fair Value (c) Assets
Total Logistict 11,003,53 11,180,48 10.5%
Elyria Foundry Company, L.L.C. (t Metals Senior Secured Note 17.00% (13.0
Cash/4.00% PIK), 3/1/201 $ 7,728,561 7,728,561 6,723,85: 6.2%
Elyria Foundry Company, L.L.C. (d), ( Metals Warrants to Purchase Limited Liabili
Company Interesi 3,00(¢ — — 0.C%
Total Metal: 7,728,56! 6,723,85: 6.2%
Network Communications, Inc. (i Publishing Unsecured Note 8.60% PIK, 1/14/2C $ 2,500,19: 2,049,661 960,82 0.2%
Network Communications, Inc. (d), ( Publishing Common Stocl 211,42¢ — — 0.0%
Penton Media, Inc. (c Publishing First Lien Term Loan 6.00% (4.00
Cash/2.00% PIK), 8/1/201 $ 4,839,18! 4,497,49! 4,669,811 4.3%
Total Publishini 6,547,15! 5,630,64! 5.2%
Sub Total Nor-control/Non-affiliated
investments 130,465,08 129,563,42 119.2%
Control investments- 23.5% (b)
GSC Partners CDO GP IlI, LP (g), ( Financial Service 100% General Partnership Inter — — — 0.0%
GSC Investment Corp. CLO 2007 LT Structured Financ Other/Structured Finance Securities 23.0
(d), (e), (@) Securities 1/21/202C $ 30,000,00 18,944,96 25,516,95 23.5%
Sub Total Control investments 18,944,96 25,516,95 23.5%
Affiliate investments - 0.0% (b)
GSC Partners CDO GP lI, LP (f), ( Financial Service 6.24% Limited Partnership Intere — — — 0.C%
Sub Total Affiliate investments — — 0.0%
TOTAL INVESTMENTS - 142.7% (b) $ 149,410,05 $ 155,080,38 142.%%

(@) All of our equity and debt investments are issugeligible portfolio companies, as defined in thedstment Company Act of 1940, except GSC Investi@erp. CLO 2007 Ltd. and GSC Partners
CDO GP Ill, LP.

(b) Percentages are based on net assets of $108,688, 06 February 28, 2013.

(c) Because there is no readily available market viduéhese investments, the fair value of thesestments is approved in good faith by our boardiators. (see Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements).

(d) These securities are pledged as collateral undeniar secured revolving credit facility (see Nét® the consolidated financial statements).

(e) 23.06% represents the modeled effective interéstthat is expected to be earned over the lifb@frivestment.

(f)  Asdefined in the Investment Company Act, we aréAfiliate” of this portfolio company because weva 5% or more of the portfolio company’s outstamioting securities. Transactions during
the period in which the issuer was an Affiliate asefollows:

Interest Management Net Realized Net Unrealized
Company Purchases Redemptions Sales (cost Income fee income gains/(losses gains/(losses
GSC Partners CDO GP llI, L $ —  $ —  $ — 3 — % — — —

(g) As defined in the Investment Company Act, we “Colitthis portfolio company because we own more tB&#6 of the portfolio company’s outstanding votserurities. Transactions during the
period in which the issuer was both an Affiliatelanportfolio company that we Control are as foBow

Interest Management Net Realized Net Unrealized
Company Purchases Redemptions Sales (cost Income fee income gains/(losses gains/(losses
GSC Investment Corp. CL
2007 LTD. $ — 8 —  $ — % 4,205,500 $ 2,000,07. $ —  $ 6,571,99:
GSC Partners CDO GP Il L $ — 3 — % — 3 — 3 —  $ —  $ —

(h) Non-income producing at February 28, 2013.
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended
February 28, 2014

For the year ended
February 28, 2013

For the year ended
February 29, 2012

INCREASE FROM OPERATIONS

Net investment incom $ 9,121,641 $ 7,027,561 $ 5,700,86.
Net realized gain (loss) from investme 1,270,76! 561,70( (12,185,99)
Net realized loss from derivativ: — (131,001 —
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on iwesits (1,648,04) 7,012,72 19,776,46
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on dgiies — 130,92! (16,190
Net increase in net assets from operat 8,744,36 14,601,91 13,275,14
DECREASE FROM SHAREHOLDER DISTRIBUTION¢

Distributions declare (12,534,80) (16,475,80) (9,831,23)

Net decrease in net assets from shareholder distits (12,534,80) (16,475,80) (9,831,23)
CAPITAL SHARE TRANSACTIONS:

Stock dividend distributiol 10,027,69 13,180,50 7,864,78
Net increase in net assets from capital sharedchioss 10,027,69 13,180,50 7,864,78
Total increase in net assi 6,237,25 11,306,61 11,308,69

Net assets at beginning of peri 108,686,76 97,380,15 86,071,45
Net assets at end of peri $ 114,924,01 108,686,76 97,380,15
Net asset value per common sh $ 21.3¢ 22.9¢ 25.12
Common shares outstanding at end of pe 5,379,61 4,730,11 3,876,66
Distribution in excess of net investment inco $ (29,627,57) $ (24,522,95) $ (13,920,06)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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Saratoga Investment Corp.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities
NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONM
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCREASE IN NET
ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Paic-in-kind interest incom
Net accretion of discount on investme
Amortization of deferred debt financing co
Net realized (gain) loss from investme
Net realized loss from derivativ:
Net unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on itwesits
Net unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on dgies
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investrr
Purchase of investmer
(Increase) decrease in operating as!
Cash and cash equivalents, reserve acce
Interest receivabl
Management fee receivat
Other asset
Receivable from unsettled trac
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilit
Payable for unsettled trad
Management and incentive fees pay:
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Interest and credit facility fees payal
Due to manage
NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Financing activities

Borrowings on dek

Paydowns on del

Issuance of note

Debt financing cos

Payments of cash dividen

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CAS
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI

Supplemental Informatiot
Interest paid during the perit

Supplemental nc¢-cash information
Paic-in-kind interest incom:
Net accretion of discount on investme
Amortization of deferred credit facility financirapsts
Stock dividend distributiol

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.

For the year ended
February 28, 2014

For the year ended
February 28, 2013

For the year ended
February 29, 2012

$ 8,744,36 $ 14,601,91 $ 13,275,14
(1,007,49) (1,062,68) (1,442,00)
(666,849 (975,47Y) (1,191,82)
903,28t 482,30 674,72
(1,270,76) (561,70) 12,185,99

— 131,00 —
1,648,04 (7,012,72) (19,776,46)
— (130,92Y) 16,19(
71,606,73 21,487,69 33,568,14
(121,073,99) (71,595,64) (38,678,93)
8,793,02! 13,448,05 (21,164,20)
317,50 (1,199,95) (23,32)
65,74 11,72¢ 4,17:
68,94¢ 11,41¢ (9,657
1,817,07: (1,757,56) (59,51)
— (4,072,501 (827,50
(652,36() 1,623,65. 681,86
389,53 (269,91} (80,53)
615,33 204,53« (14,53()
175,64 (171,58) 154,09
(29,526,20) (36,808,36) (22,708,16)
18,000,00 55,550,00 20,000,00
(28,300,00) (15,250,00) (4,500,001
48,300,00 — —
(2,821,80) (1,373,00) (235,440)
(2,507,11) (3,295,30) (1,966,44)
32,671,08 35,631,69 13,298,10
3,144,87. (1,176,67) (9,410,05)
149,02 1,325,69: 10,735,75

$ 3,293,809 $ 149,02! $ 1,325,69

$ 4,565,26. $ 1,853,57. $ 637,79

$ 1,007,49. $ 1,062,68 $ 1,442,00.

$ 666,84¢ $ 975,47! $ 1,191,82

$ 903,28¢ $ 482,30( $ 674,72

$ 10,027,69 $ 13,180,50 $ 7,864,78.
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SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2014
Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Saratoga Investment Corp. (the “Company”, “we”,"oand “us”) is a non-diversified closed end maragat investment company
incorporated in Maryland that has elected to batéek and is regulated as a business developmemacgni*BDC”) under the Investment
Company Act of 1940 (the “1940 Act”). We commenaogerations on March 23, 2007 as GSC Investment.@oigbcompleted our initial
public offering (“IPO”) on March 28, 2007. We hagfected to be treated as a regulated investmenpaoyn(“RIC”) under subchapter M of t
Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). We expect wiooe to qualify and to elect to be treated forparposes as a RIC. Our investment
objective is to generate current income and, &sadr extent, capital appreciation from our investis

GSC Investment, LLC (the “LLC") was organized in 2006 as a Maryland limited liability company. 8sFebruary 28, 2007,
the LLC had not yet commenced its operations anésiment activities.

On March 21, 2007, the Company was incorporatedcandurrently therewith the LLC was merged with amtd the Company, with
the Company as the surviving entity, in accordanmitle the procedure for such merger in the LLC'sited liability company agreement and
Maryland law. In connection with such merger, eaatstanding limited liability company interest betLLC was converted into a share of
common stock of the Company.

On July 30, 2010, the Company changed its name f@&C Investment Corp.” to “Saratoga InvestmentgCoin conjunction with
the transaction described in “Note 14. Recapitdbpalransaction” below.

We are externally managed and advised by our imexstadviser, Saratoga Investment Advisors, LL€ {Manager”), pursuant to
the Management Agreement. Prior to July 30, 20Owere managed and advised by GSCP (NJ), L.P.

On March 28, 2012, our wholly-owned subsidiary,&@ga Investment Corp. SBIC, LP (“SBIC LP”), reaziva Small Business
Investment Company (“SBIC”") license from the Snialkiness Administration (“SBA”).

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieae been prepared on the accrual basis of acaguntconformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. G8Aand include the accounts of the Company anshiéxial purpose financing subsidiary,
Saratoga Investment Funding, LLC (previously kn@srGSC Investment Funding LLC). All intercompangamts and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation. All referencesdmto the “Company,” “we,” and “us” herein incluBaratoga Investment Corp. and its
consolidated subsidiary, except as stated otherwise

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial $tements

The preparation of the accompanying consolidateahitial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAPuigs management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemints of assets and liabilities, and disclosficmntingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and income, gainsé@spand expenses during the period reported. Aesualts could differ materially from those

estimates.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term diguiestments in a money market fund. Cash and easivalents are carried at cost
which approximates fair value. Per section 12(q¥)Lpf the 1940 Act, the Company may not invesaimother registered investment company
such as, a money market fund if such investmentidvwoause the Company to exceed any of the followmgations:

* we were to own more than 3.0% of the total outdtandoting stock of the money market fund;

* we were to hold securities in the money market foadng an aggregate value in excess of 5.0% ofahee of our total assets;
or

*« we were to hold securities in money market fund$@ther registered investment companies and BD@sdan aggregate val
in excess of 10.0% of the value of our total assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Reserve Accounts

Cash and cash equivalents, reserve accounts inahadants held in designated bank accounts in time & cash and shoterm liquid
investments in money market funds representing paysreceived on secured investments or otherves@mounts associated with our $45.(
million senior secured revolving credit facility twiMadison Capital Funding LLC. The Company is iieggito use these amounts to pay
interest expense, reduce borrowings, or pay ottm@uats in accordance with the terms of the semounid revolving credit facility.

Investment Classification

The Company classifies its investments in accoreavith the requirements of the 1940 Act. Under1f40 Act, “Control
Investments” are defined as investments in comganigzhich we own more than 25.0% of the votingus#ies or maintain greater than 50.0%
of the board representation. Under the 1940 AcffiliAted Investments” are defined as those nont@rinvestments in companies in which
we own between 5.0% and 25.0% of the voting saearitynder the 1940 Act, “Non-affiliated Investm&mdre defined as investments that are
neither Control Investments nor Affiliated Invesime

Investment Valuation

The Company accounts for its investments at fdiresin accordance with the Financial Accountingh8tads Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC") Topic 8Hair Value Measurements and Disclosuf&sSC 8207). ASC 820 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair vals&ldishes a fair value hierarchy based on thatgualinputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair valuesmmeanents. ASC 820 requires the Company to asshahés investments are to be sold at
the statement of assets and liabilities date irpthcipal market to independent market participaot in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market, which may be a hgpcth market. Market participants are defined @gelbs and sellers in the principal or
most advantageous market that are independent,l&dgeable, and willing and able to transact.

Investments for which market quotations are reaalilgilable are fair valued at such market quotatimtained from independent th
party pricing services and market makers subjeahtodecision by our board of directors to appra¥air value determination to reflect
significant events affecting the value of theseestments. We value investments for which marketajioms are not readily available at fair
value as approved, in good faith, by our boardifatiors based on input from our Manager, the azatitmittee of our board of directors and a
third party independent valuation firm. Determinat of fair value may involve subjective judgmeanutsl estimates. The types of factors that
may be considered in determining the fair valuewfinvestments include the nature and realizahleevof any collateral, the portfolio
company’s ability to make payments, market yiedhtt analysis, the markets in which the portfolimpany does business, comparison to
publicly traded companies, discounted cash flow @thér relevant factors.
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We undertake a multi-step valuation process eaentejuwhen valuing investments for which markettgtions are not readily
available, as described below:

¢ Each investment is initially valued by the respblesinvestment professionals of our Manager antinireary valuation
conclusions are documented and discussed withetiiersmanagement of our Manager; and

¢ Anindependent valuation firm engaged by our badrdirectors reviews approximately one quartethefse preliminary
valuations each quarter so that the valuation ofi @vestment for which market quotes are not fgadiailable is reviewed by
the independent valuation firm at least annually.

In addition, all our investments are subject toftiwing valuation process:

e The audit committee of our board of directors resgeach preliminary valuation and our Manager andépendent valuation fir
(if applicable) will supplement the preliminary uation to reflect any comments provided by the acalinmittee; and

¢ Our board of directors discusses the valuationsagpdoves the fair value of each investment, indgadth, based on the input of
our Manager, independent valuation firm (to theeakipplicable) and the audit committee of our 8adrdirectors.

Our investment in Saratoga Investment Corp. CLGB82D1Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO") is carried at fair valwehich is based on a
discounted cash flow model that utilizes prepaymeminvestment and loss assumptions based orricatexperience and projected
performance, economic factors, the characterisfitse underlying cash flow, and comparable yiétdsequity interests in collateralized loan
obligation funds similar to Saratoga CLO, when klde, as determined by our Manager and recommetudedr board of directors.
Specifically, we use Intex cash flow models, oagpropriate substitute, to form the basis for thleation of our investment in Saratoga CLO.
The models use a set of assumptions including piexjedefault rates, recovery rates, reinvestmeatanad prepayment rates in order to arri\
estimated valuations. The assumptions are basedalable market data and projections providedhyl tparties as well as management
estimates. We use the output from the Intex ma(els the estimated cash flows) to perform a disted cash flows analysis on expected
future cash flows to determine a valuation for inwestment in Saratoga CLO.

Because such valuations, and particularly valuatmfrprivate investments and private companiesindmerently uncertain, they may
fluctuate over short periods of time and may beebam estimates. The determination of fair valug diier materially from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for thesesiments existed. Our net asset value could berially affected if the determinations
regarding the fair value of our investments weréemially higher or lower than the values that winuditely realize upon the disposal of such
investments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We account for derivative financial instrumentsgtordance with ASC Topic 81Begrivatives and Hedgin(fASC 815"). ASC 815
requires recognizing all derivative instrumentiiser assets or liabilities on the consolidatedieshents of assets and liabilities at fair value.
The Company values derivative contracts at theragoiir value provided by the counterparty. Chanigethe values of derivative contracts
included in the consolidated statements of oparatio

Investment Transactions and Income Recognition

Purchases and sales of investments and the reshzied gains or losses are recorded on a traebdais. Interest income, adjusted
for amortization of premium and accretion of diseus recorded on an accrual basis to the extentstuch amounts are expected to be
collected. The Company stops accruing interestimvestments when it is determined that inteégesb longer collectible. Discounts and
premiums on investments purchased are accretediaaetbover the life of the respective investmenhgshe effective yield method. The
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amortized cost of investments represents the @ligiost adjusted for the accretion of discountsamdrtizations of premium on investments.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual stat@nhuhrere is reasonable doubt that principal oréstewill be collected. Accrued
interest is generally reserved when a loan is placenon-accrual status. Interest payments recamatbn-accrual loans may be recognized a
a reduction in principal depending upon managersgatigment regarding collectability. Non-accrualrie are restored to accrual status wher
past due principal and interest is paid and, inagament’s judgment, are likely to remain currelibhoagh we may make exceptions to this
general rule if the loan has sufficient collateralue and is in the process of collection.

Interest income on our investment in Saratoga Gi.f@¢orded using the effective interest methoct@oadance with the provisions of
ASC Topic 325-40,Investments-Other, Beneficial Interests in SeagdiFinancial Assety(“*ASC 325-40"),based on the anticipated yield ¢
the estimated cash flows over the projected lifthefinvestment. Yields are revised when thereehamges in actual or estimated cash flows
due to changes in prepayments and/or re-investmenetdit losses or asset pricing. Changes in estiingeld are recognized as an adjustment
to the estimated yield over the remaining lifeled thvestment from the date the estimated yield chasged.

Paid-in-Kind Interest

The Company holds debt investments in its portftiat contain a payment-in-kind (“PIK”) interesppision. The PIK interest, which
represents contractually deferred interest addélgetinvestment balance that is generally due #tinityg, is generally recorded on the accrual
basis to the extent such amounts are expecteddolleeted. We stop accruing PIK interest if wenad expect the issuer to be able to pay all
principal and interest when due.

Deferred Debt Financing Costs

Financing costs incurred in connection with ouddrécility are deferred and amortized using ttraight line method over the life of
their respective facilities. Financing costs inedrin connection with our SBA debentures are defeand amortized using the effective yield
method over the life of the debentures.

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compaay enter into contracts or agreements that aoimidemnifications or warranties.
Future events could occur that lead to the exeswtfdhese provisions against the Company. Basdt$ dristory and experience, management
feels that the likelihood of such an event is reamot

In the ordinary course of business, the Company div@gtly or indirectly be a defendant or plaintifflegal actions with respect to
bankruptcy, insolvency or other types of proceeslirBuch lawsuits may involve claims that could aslely affect the value of certain financial
instruments owned by the Company.

Income Taxes

The Company has filed an election to be treatedsfopurposes as a RIC under Subchapter M of tlie @od, among other things,
intends to make the requisite distributions teiteckholders which will relieve the Company fronddeal income taxes. Therefore, no provis
has been recorded for federal income taxes.

In order to qualify as a RIC, among other requireteethe Company is required to timely distributét$ stockholders at least 90.0%
of its investment company taxable income, as ddflnethe Code, for each fiscal tax year. The Compeiii be subject to a nondeductible U
federal excise tax of 4.0% on undistributed incafitedoes not distribute at least 98.0% of itsioedy income in any calendar year and 98.2%
of its capital gain net income for each one-yeaiogeending on October 31.

Depending on the level of taxable income earnealtax year, the Company may choose to carry forteat@ble income in excess of
current year dividend distributions into the next year and pay a 4.0% excise tax on such incosnescuired. To the extent that the Company
determines that its estimated current year anisxakbie
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income will be in excess of estimated current ykadend distributions for excise tax purposes,@lmnpany accrues excise tax, if any, on
estimated excess taxable income as taxable incoearned.

In accordance with certain applicable Treasury laggns and private letter rulings issued by therdmal Revenue Service, a RIC may
treat a distribution of its own stock as fulfillifig RIC distribution requirements if each stoclkdelmay elect to receive his or her entire
distribution in either cash or stock of the RIC jgabto a limitation on the aggregate amount ohdasbe distributed to all stockholders, which
limitation must be at least 20.0% of the aggregatdared distribution. If too many stockholderscete receive cash, each stockholder electini
to receive cash will receive a pro rata amountashc(with the balance of the distribution paidtck). In no event will any stockholder,
electing to receive cash, receive less than 20.08ts@r her entire distribution in cash. If thes®l certain other requirements are met, for U.S
federal income tax purposes, the amount of theldind paid in stock will be equal to the amountasficthat could have been received insteac
of stock.

ASC 740, Income Taxes(“ASC 740"), provides guidance for how uncerttan positions should be recognized, measured, prege
and disclosed in the financial statements. ASCrédires the evaluation of tax positions takenxpeeted to be taken in the course of
preparing the Company’s tax returns to determinetidr the tax positions are “more-likely-than-not'being sustained by the applicable tax
authority. Tax positions deemed to meet a “moreHlikhan-not” threshold would be recorded as abxefit or expense in the current period.
The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesyif i@lated to unrecognized tax benefits as inctamexpense in the consolidated statem
of operations. During the fiscal year ended Felyr@&; 2014, the Company did not incur any intecegienalties. Although we file federal and
state tax returns, our major tax jurisdiction ideal. The 2011, 2012 and 2013 federal tax yearth@Company remain subject to examinatiol
by the IRS.

Dividends

Dividends to common stockholders are recorded erefadividend date. The amount to be paid outdisidend is determined by the
board of directors. Net realized capital gaingny, are generally distributed at least annualtipagh we may decide to retain such capital
gains for reinvestment.

We have adopted a dividend reinvestment plan tiwatiges for reinvestment of our dividend distritouis on behalf of our
stockholders unless a stockholder elects to reasish. As a result, if our board of directors atites, and we declare, a cash dividend, then
our stockholders who have not “opted out” of owidgnd reinvestment plan will have their cash davids automatically reinvested in
additional shares of our common stock, rather teariving the cash dividends. If our common stackading below net asset value at the
of valuation, the plan administrator may receive dividend or distribution in cash and purchasermom stock in the open market, on the New
York Stock Exchange or elsewhere, for the accofirtioh participant in our dividend reinvestmennpla

Capital Gains Incentive Fee

The Company records an expense accrual on the latatsd statements of operations, relating to éygtal gains incentive fee
payable on the consolidated statements of assétadilities, by the Company to its investment isdv when the unrealized gains on its
investments exceed all realized capital lossessonvestments given the fact that a capital gaiosntive fee would be owed to the investmen
adviser if the Company were to liquidate its inmesnt portfolio at such time. The actual incentige payable to the Company’s investment
adviser related to capital gains will be determinad payable in arrears at the end of each fisal gnd will include only realized capital ge
for the period.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-08, “Fir@rgervices — Investment Companies (Topic 946): Adneents to the Scope,
Measurement, and Disclosure Requirements,” whicbrat®s the criteria that define an investment compantyclarifies the measurement
guidance and requires new disclosures for investemnpanies. Under ASU 2013-08, an entity alre&dplated under the 1940 Act will be
automatically deemed an investment company undengfiv GAAP definition. As such, the Company antit@#s no impact from adopting this
standard on the Company’s consolidated financallte. The Company is currently assessing the iaddit

F-16




Table of Contents

disclosure requirements. ASU 2013-08 will be effexfor interim and annual reporting periods ircéibyears that begin after December 15,
2013.

Risk Management

In the ordinary course of its business, the Compaagages a variety of risks, including market esk credit risk. Market risk is the
risk of potential adverse changes to the valuaegstments because of changes in market condgigisas interest rate movements and
volatility in investment prices.

Credit risk is the risk of default or non-perfornearby portfolio companies, equivalent to the inresit’'s carrying amount.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk reladadaintaining all of its cash and cash equivalgntduding those in reserve
accounts, at a major financial institution and @rgdk related to any of its derivative counteripes.

The Company has investments in lower rated and acaiyte quality unrated high yield bonds and baakio Investments in high
yield investments are accompanied by a greateredegfrcredit risk. The risk of loss due to deféwlthe issuer is significantly greater
holders of high yield securities, because suchstments are generally unsecured and are oftendinbted to other creditors of the issuer.

Note 3. Investments

As noted above, the Company values all investmardascordance with ASC 820. ASC 820 requires enddugésclosures about ass
and liabilities that are measured and reportediavalue. As defined in ASC 820, fair value is fivece that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly traction between market participants at the measuredzage.

ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framewaich prioritizes and ranks the level of margdte observability of inputs
used in measuring investments at fair value. Mapkiee observability is affected by a number oftdas, including the type of investment and
the characteristics specific to the investmentefitments with readily available active quoted ricefor which fair value can be measured
from actively quoted prices generally will haveigher degree of market price observability andsade degree of judgment used in measuring
fair value.

Based on the observability of the inputs used éwluation techniques, the Company is requirqutdeide disclosures on fair value
measurements according to the fair value hierarthg.fair value hierarchy ranks the observabilityhe inputs used to determine fair values.
Investments carried at fair value are classified disclosed in one of the following three categarie

* Level 1—Valuations based on quoted prices in aatiaekets for identical assets or liabilities the Company has the ability to
access.

¢ Level 2—Valuations based on inputs other than gliptees in active markets, which are either diyeat indirectly observable.

e Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unafadde and significant to the overall fair value s@@ment. The inputs used
in the determination of fair value may require #igant management judgment or estimation. Sucbrinftion may be the result
of consensus pricing information or broker quotéclv include a disclaimer that the broker would ldetheld to such a price in
an actual transaction. The non-binding nature aeasus pricing and/or quotes accompanied by disetavould result in
classification as Level 3 asset, assuming no amfditicorroborating evidence.

In addition to using the above inputs in investmaitiations, the Company continues to employ theateon policy approved by the
board of directors that is consistent with ASC 82d the 1940 Act (see Note 2). Consistent with@ampany's valuation policy, we evaluate
the source of inputs, including any markets in Wroar investments are trading, in determining v¥aiue.
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The following table presents fair value measuremehtnvestments, by major class, as of Februan2@84 (dollars in thousands),
according to the fair value hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Middle market loans $ — % — % 32,39 $ 32,39(
First lien term loan: — — 80,24¢ 80,24¢
Second lien term loar — — 27,80 27,80
Senior secured nott — — 30,03: 30,03:
Unsecured note — — 5,471 5,471
Structured finance securiti — — 19,57( 19,57(
Equity interest — — 10,33 10,33
Total $ — 3 —  $ 205,84 % 205,84!

The following table presents fair value measuresehinvestments, by major class, as of Februan2@83 (dollars in thousands),
according to the fair value hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
First lien term loans $ — % — % 83,79: $ 83,79:
Second lien term loar — — 9,571 9,571
Senior secured nott — — 23,30 23,30¢
Unsecured note — — 4,87¢ 4.87¢
Structured finance securiti — — 25,517 25,517
Equity interest — — 8,021 8,021
Total $ — — $ 155,08( $ 155,08(

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances for investmentaut@lLevel 3 inputs for the year
ended February 28, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Middle Second Senior Structured
market First lien lien secured Unsecured finance Common
loans term loans term loans notes notes securities stock/equities Total
Balance as of
February 28, 201 $ — $ 8379 $ 9571 $ 23,30 $ 487, $ 25517 $ 8,021 $ 155,08
Net unrealized gain
(losses, 407 (395) 16& 41 207 (3,55¢) 1,48¢ (1,64¢)
Purchases and other
adjustments to co: 37,04¢ 49,32¢ 20,72: 14,41« 39C — 841 122,74¢
Sales and redemptio (5,139 (53,167 (3,030 (7,729 — (2,389 (160 (71,607
Net realized gain (los:
from investment: 73 682 371 — — — 14k 1,271
Balance as of
February 28, 201 $ 32,39C $ 80,24¢ $ 2780+ $ 30,03 $ 5471 $ 1957( $ 10,33: $ 205,84!

Purchases and other adjustments to cost includdases of new investments at cost, effects ofartimg/restructuring,
accretion/amortization of income from discount/piem on debt securities, and PIK.

Sales and redemptions represent net proceeds eéddedm investments sold, and principal paydowesiked, during the period.
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The net change in unrealized gain/(loss) on investmheld as of February 28, 2014 is $(1,767,288)isincluded in net unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on investments in thresolidated statements of operations.

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances for investmentauf@Level 3 inputs for the year
ended February 28, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Senior Senior Structured
First lien Second lien secured unsecured Unsecured finance Common
term loans term loans notes loans notes securities stock/equities Total
Balance as of February 29,

2012 $ 36,19¢ $ 891« $ 10,70t $ 6,000 $ 2,006 $ 2584t $ 5,69C $ 95,36(
Net unrealized gains (losse 2,09( 657 (409 (14¢) (169 4,26 71¢ 7,01z
Purchases and other

adjustments to co: 52,87: 3,00t 13,00z 107 3,03¢ — 1,612 73,63
Sales and redemptio (7,569 (3,099 — (6,090 — (4,596 (14€) (21,489
Net realized gain (loss) fro

investments 19¢ 87 — 131 — — 14€ 562
Balance as of February 28,

2013 $ 8379: % 9,571 $ 23,30 $ — 3 487¢ $ 25517 $ 8,021 $ 155,08(

Purchases and other adjustments to cost includinases of new investments at cost, effects ofaréiimg/restructuring,
accretion/amortization of income from discount/piem on debt securities, and PIK.

Sales and redemptions represent net proceeds eéddedm investments sold, and principal paydowesiked, during the period.

The net change in unrealized gain/loss on investsriegid as of February 28, 2013 is $7,143,012 sumtluded in net unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on investments in thresolidated statements of operations.

The valuation techniques and significant unobsdevaiputs used in recurring Level 3 fair value megaments of assets as of
February 28, 2014 were as follows (dollars in tlamas):

Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range
Middle market loan: $ 32,39( Market Comparable Third-Party Bid 99.5-100.6
First lien term loan: 80,24¢ Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 5.1%- 15.5%
EBITDA Multiples (x) 3.0x
Third-Party Bid 83.3-101.5
Second lien term loar 27,80« Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 9.6%- 12.5%
Third-Party Bid 100.0-101.8
Senior secured not 30,03: Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 11.0%- 42.5%
EBITDA Multiples (x) 5.0x
Third-Party Bid 106.0-107.5
Unsecured note 5,471 Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 12.8%- 20.3%
Structured finance securiti 19,57( Discounted Cash Flo Discount Rate (% 9.0%
Equity interest: 10,33: Market Comparable EBITDA Multiples (x) 6.3x—12.0x
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The valuation techniques and significant unobsdevaiputs used in recurring Level 3 fair value megaments of assets as of
February 28, 2013 were as follows (dollars in tlamas):

Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range
First lien term loan: $ 83,79: Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 5.8%- 26.9%
EBITDA Multiples (x) 3.0x
Third-Party Bid 96.5- 102.0
Second lien term loar 9,571 Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 11.5%
Third-Party Bid 90.5
Senior secured not 23,30t Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 14.0%- 42.5%
EBITDA Multiples (x) 5.5x
Third-Party Bid 89.0-101.0
Unsecured note 4,87¢ Market Comparable Market Yield (%) 13.6%- 23.8%
Structured finance securiti 25,517 Discounted Cash Flo Discount Rate (% 13.0%
Equity interest: 8,021 Market Comparable EBITDA Multiples (x) 3.0x— 8.9x

For investments utilizing a market comparables atidun technique, a significant increase (decremstie market yield, in isolation,
would result in a significantly lower (higher) faialue measurement, and a significant increasaddse) in any of the EBITDA valuation
multiples, in isolation, would result in a sign#iatly higher (lower) fair value measurement. Feestments utilizing a discounted cash flow
valuation technique, a significant increase (desggan the discount rate, in isolation, would reguk significantly lower (higher) fair value
measurement.

The composition of our investments as of Febru&y2P14, at amortized cost and fair value weraeHtaws (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Investments at Percentage of Investments at Percentage of

Amortized Cost Total Portfolio Fair Value Total Portfolio
Middle Market loans $ 31,98: 15.€% $ 32,39( 15.7%
First lien term loan: 80,73¢ 40.C 80,24¢ 39.C
Second lien term loar 27,54( 13.¢ 27,80« 13.k
Senior secured nott 31,30¢ 15.¢ 30,03: 14.€
Unsecured note 7,14¢ 3.t 5,471 2.7
Structured finance securiti 16,55¢ 8.2 19,57( 9.t
Equity interest 6,55¢€ B2 10,33: 5.C
Total $ 201,82: 100.(% $ 205,84! 100.(%
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The composition of our investments as of Febru@;y2P13, at amortized cost and fair value werebaviis (dollars in thousands):

Amortized Cost Fair Value

Investments at Percentage of Investments at Percentage of

Amortized Cost Total Portfolio Fair Value Total Portfolio
First lien term loans $ 83,88¢ 56.2% $ 83,79: 54.(%
Second lien term loar 9,47: 6.2 9,571 6.2
Senior secured not 24,61¢ 16.5 23,30¢ 15.C
Unsecured note 6,75¢ 4.t 4,87¢ 3.1
Structured finance securiti 18,94t 12.7 25,517 16.5
Equity interest 5,72¢ 3.€ 8,021 5.2
Total $ 149,41( 100.(% $ 155,08( 100.(%

For loans and debt securities for which market aimris are not available, we determine their falug based on third party indicative
broker quotes, where available, or the assumptimatsa hypothetical market participant would usedlue the security in a current hypothet
sale using a market yield valuation methodologyapplying the market yield valuation methodologg, getermine the fair value based on ¢
factors as market participant assumptions includinghetic credit ratings, estimated remaining lifierrent market yield and interest rate
spreads of similar securities as of the measuredwt If, in our judgment, the market yield metblody is not sufficient or appropriate, we
may use additional methodologies such as an age&tdtion or expected recovery model.

For equity securities of portfolio companies andmership interests, we determine the fair valugeldaon the market approach with
value then attributed to equity or equity like sées using the enterprise value waterfall valoatmethodology. Under the enterprise value
waterfall valuation methodology, we determine theeeprise fair value of the portfolio company ahdrt waterfall the enterprise value over
portfolio company’s securities in order of theiefarence relative to one another. To estimate riterjgrise value of the portfolio company, we
weigh some or all of the traditional market valoatmethods and factors based on the individualioistances of the portfolio company in
order to estimate the enterprise value. The metbgdss for performing investments may be basedhomgng other things: valuations of
comparable public companies, recent sales of gri@atl public comparable companies, discountindaiteecasted cash flows of the portfolio
company, third party valuations of the portfoliaqeany, considering offers from third parties to Ity company, estimating the value to
potential strategic buyers and considering theevalurecent investments in the equity securitiethefportfolio company. For non-performing
investments, we may estimate the liquidation olatetal value of the portfolio company’s assets katuilities. We also take into account
historical and anticipated financial results.

Our investment in Saratoga Investment Corp. CLGB2D1Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO") is carried at fair vajuehich is based on a
discounted cash flow model that utilizes prepaymeminvestment and loss assumptions based orricatexperience and projected
performance, economic factors, the characterisfitse underlying cash flow, and comparable yiétdsequity interests in collateralized loan
obligation funds similar to Saratoga CLO, when klde, as determined by our Manager and recommetudedr board of directors.
Specifically, we use Intex cash flow models, oagpropriate substitute, to form the basis for thkation of our investment in Saratoga CLO.
The models use a set of assumptions including giexjedefault rates, recovery rates, reinvestmeatanad prepayment rates in order to arri\
estimated valuations. The assumptions are basesdalable market data and projections providedhyl tparties as well as management
estimates. For the quarter ended November 30, 20E8nnection with the refinancing of the Sarat@iaD liabilities, we ran Intex models
based on assumptions about the refinanced Sar@lo@a structure, including capital structure, cobtiabilities and reinvestment period. We
use the output from the Intex models (i.e., thexeted cash flows) to perform a discounted cashdlanalysis on expected future cash flow
determine a valuation for our investment in Sarat6f4O at February 28, 2014. The significant ingatshe valuation model include:

. Default rates: 2.0%

* Recovery rates: 35-75%
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*  Prepayment rate: 25.0%

e Reinvestment rate / price: L+375bps / $99.75
Note 4. Investment in Saratoga Investment Corp. CLQ013-1, Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO")

On January 22, 2008, we invested $30 million irohthe outstanding subordinated notes of GSC knwvesst Corp. CLO 2007, Ltd., a
collateralized loan obligation fund managed byhat tnvests primarily in senior secured loans. Aiddally, we entered into a collateral
management agreement with GSC Investment Corp. Z0337, Ltd. pursuant to which we act as collaterahager to it. The Saratoga CLO
was refinanced in October 2013 and its reinvestmperibd ends in October 2016. The Saratoga CLGires.00% owned and managed by
Saratoga Investment Corp. We receive a base mamesgdee of 0.25% and a subordinated managemenf f&25% of the Fee Basis Amount
at the beginning of the Collection Period, paidrtgrdy to the extent of available proceeds. Weadse entitled to an incentive management
equal to 20.0% of the remaining interest proceedspaincipal proceeds, if any, after the subordidaiotes have realized the incentive
management fee target return of 12.0%, in accoraiith the Priority of Payments after making thepdistributions on the relevant payment
date. For the years ended February 28, 2014 ar®l 20@ February 29, 2012, we accrued $1.8 millk&0) million and $2.0 million in
management fee income, respectively, and $3.4amjl$4.2 million and $4.2 million in interest incenrespectively, from Saratoga CLO. We
did not accrue any amounts related to the incemiaaagement fee as the 12.0% hurdle rate has nbega achieved.

At February 28, 2014, the Company determined thafdir value of its investment in the subordinatetes of Saratoga CLO was
$19.6 million. The Company determines the fair eadfi its investment in the subordinated notes c&®ga CLO based on the present value ¢
the projected future cash flows of the subordinaetgs over the life of Saratoga CLO. At Februas8y2014, Saratoga CLO had investments
with a principal balance of $301.3 million and aigi®ed average spread over LIBOR of 4.1%, and tedod @ith a principal balance of $284.1
million with a weighted average spread over LIBOAR 8%. As a result, Saratoga CLO earns a “spréativeen the interest income it recei
on its investments and the interest expense it payts debt and other operating expenses, whidistabuted quarterly to the Company as the
holder of its subordinated notes. At February ZRA the total “spread”, or projected future cdelv$ of the subordinated notes, over the life
of Saratoga CLO was $24.9 million, which had a en¢value of approximately $20.2 million, using.8% discount rate.

At February 28, 2013, the Company determined thafdir value of its investment in the subordinatetes of Saratoga CLO was
$25.5 million, whereas the net asset value of 8geaCLO on such date was $30.8 million. The Compmhogs not believe that the net asset
value of Saratoga CLO, which is the difference lsetwSaratoga CLO’s assets and liabilities at angdagnt in time, necessarily equates to the
fair value of its investment in the subordinatetesmf Saratoga CLO. Specifically, the Company rieitees the fair value of its investment in
the subordinated notes of Saratoga CLO based goréfsent value of the projected future cash floih® subordinated notes over the life of
Saratoga CLO. At February 28, 2013, Saratoga CLdDitaestments with a principal balance of $383.Biomi and a weighted average spread
over LIBOR of 4.3%, and had debt with a principaldmce of $366.0 million with a weighted averageeafd over LIBOR of 1.4%. As a result,
Saratoga CLO earns a “spread” between the interesine it receives on its investments and the éstegxpense it pays on its debt and other
operating expenses, which is distributed quarterthe Company as the holder of its subordinatedsn@dt February 28, 2013, the total
“spread”,or projected future cash flows of the subordinatetts, over the life of Saratoga CLO was $38.7iomijlwhich had a present value
approximately $26.0 million, using a 13.0% discorate. At February 28, 2013, the fair value of shbordinated notes, which we base upon
the present value of the projected cash flows,$2&5 million, which was less than the net assktevaf Saratoga CLO on such date by
approximately $5.3 million.

The separate audited financial statements of Sgaa@d.O as of February 28, 2014 and 2013, pursgaRtite 3-09 of SEC
rules Regulation S-X, and for the twelve monthsezhBebruary 28, 2014 and 2013 and February 29, 20&2resented on page S-1.
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Note 5. Income Taxes

The Company intends to operate so as to qualibettaxed as a RIC under Subchapter M of the Codgaansuch, will not be subject
to federal income tax on the portion of taxableome and gains distributed to stockholders.

The Company owns 100.0% of Saratoga CLO, an exehguiepany incorporated in the Cayman Islands. iRantial reporting
purposes, the Saratoga CLO is not included asop#éne consolidated financial statements. For faldecome tax purposes, the Company has
requested and received approval from the IntereakRue Service to treat the Saratoga CLO as agdisted entity. As such, for federal
income tax purposes and for purposes of meetint8equalification and diversification tests, thesults of operations of the Saratoga CLO
are included with those of the Company.

To qualify as a RIC, the Company is required to nceetain income and asset diversification testddition to distributing at least
90.0% of its investment company taxable incomejedmed by the Code. Because federal income taxagigns differ from U.S. GAAP,
distributions in accordance with tax regulations/rddfer from net investment income and realizethgaecognized for financial reporting
purposes. Differences may be permanent or temparargture. Permanent differences are reclassifimdng capital accounts in the financial
statements to reflect their tax character. Diffeemnin classification may also result from thettresnt of short-term gains as ordinary income
for tax purposes. As of February 28, 2014 and Fa®r8, 2013, the Company reclassified for boolppaes amounts arising from permanent
book/tax differences primarily related to nondedhletexcise tax, meals & entertainment, marketalist, interest income with respect to the
Saratoga CLO which is consolidated for tax purp@sebsthe tax character of distributions as foll¢dallars in thousands):

February 28, February 28,
2014 2013
Accumulated net investment income/(loss) $ (1,69) $ (1,15%
Accumulated net realized gains (losses) on invests 1,691 1,15¢

Additional paic-in-capital — —

For income tax purposes, distributions paid toshalders are reported as ordinary income, retugapital, long term capital gains or
a combination thereof. The tax character of distidns paid for the years ended February 28, 20@4F&bruary 28, 2013 was as follows
(dollars in thousands):

February 28, February 28,
2014 2013
Ordinary Income $ 12,53t $ 16,47¢
Capital gains — —
Return of capital — —
Total $ 12,53t $ 16,47¢

For federal income tax purposes, as of Februarg@84, the aggregate net unrealized depreciatioallfgecurities is $0.04 million.
The aggregate cost of securities for federal inctargpurposes is $486.8 million.

For federal income tax purposes, as of Februarg@83, the aggregate net unrealized depreciatioalifgecurities is $2.7 million.
The aggregate cost of securities for federal inctargourposes is $506.7 million.

At February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, thepmorents of accumulated losses on a tax basis adediebelow differ from the
amounts reflected per the Company’s consolidat@stents of assets and liabilities by temporankhaw differences primarily arising from
the consolidation of the Saratoga CLO for tax pagsy market discount and original issue discowrire, interest income accrual on defat
bonds, write-off of investments, and amortizatidomanizational expenditures (dollars in thousands

February 28, February 28,
2014 2013
Post October loss deferred $ —  $ —
Accumulated capital loss: (64,10:) (58,249
Other temporary differenct (304) (1,51
Undistributed ordinary incom 963 3,927
Unrealized depreciation (42) (2,750
Total components of accumulated losses $ (63,487 $ (58,58¢)
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The Company has incurred capital losses of $19.8,1%and $3.2 million for the years ended Febr@&y2011, 2010 and 2009. Such
capital losses will be available to offset futuapital gains if any and if unused, will expire ogbFuary 28, 2019, 2018 and 2017.

At February 28, 2014, the Company had a short tapital loss of $11.2 million and a lomgrm capital loss of $16.3 million availal
to offset future capital gains. Post RIC-modern@anct losses are deemed to arise on the firsbittye fund’s following fiscal year and there
is no expiration for these losses.

Management has analyzed the Company'’s tax positaden on federal income tax returns for all opeary (fiscal years 2010-2014),
and has concluded that no provision for uncertaoine tax positions is required in the Companyiaricial statements.

On December 22, 2010, the Regulated Investment @oymnplodernization Act of 2010 (the “Modernizatiortdy was enacted, and
the provisions with the Modernization Act are effee for the Company for the year ended February2292. The Modernization Act is the
first major piece of legislation affecting RICs &n1986 and it modernizes several of the fedecalnte and excise tax provisions related to
RICs. Some highlights of the enacted provisionsaaréollows:

New capital losses may now be carried forward iimitefy, and retain the character of the origiredd. Under pre-enactment law,
capital losses could be carried forward for eigkeng, and carried forward as short-term capitaspective of the character of the original loss

The Modernization Act contains simplification preiins, which are aimed at preventing disqualifmatf a RIC for “inadvertent”
failures of the asset diversification and/or quati§ income tests. Additionally, the Modernizatidot exempts RICs from the preferential
dividend rule, and repealed the 60-day designagqoirement for certain types of pay-through incand gains.

Finally, the Modernization Act contains several\psimns aimed at preserving the character of distitons made by a fiscal year RIC
during the portion of its taxable year ending afdetober 31 or December 31, reducing the circunestmunnder which a RIC might be required
to file amended Forms 1099 to restate previoughpnted distributions.

Note 6. Agreements and-Related Party Transactions

On July 30, 2010, the Company entered into the idameent Agreement with our Manager. The initial tefithe Management
Agreement is two years, with automatic, one-yeaewals at the end of each year subject to cerfgmaals by our board of directors and/or
our stockholders. On July 15, 2013, our board idadors approved the renewal of the Managementekgeat for an additional one-year term.
Pursuant to the Management Agreement, our Manag@eiments our business strategy on a day-to-ddy dad performs certain services for
us, subject to oversight by our board of direct@st Manager is responsible for, among other dutiesermining investment criteria, sourcing,
analyzing and executing investments transactiesgtasales, financings and performing asset marageatuties. Under the Management
Agreement, we have agreed to pay our Manager ageament fee for investment advisory and managenggnices consisting of a base
management fee and an incentive fee.

The base management fee of 1.75% is calculated lmasthe average value of our gross assets (dthardash or cash equivalents,
including assets purchased with borrowed fundf)eend of the two most recently completed fisealrtprs, and appropriately adjusted for
any share issuances or repurchases during theablglifiscal quarter.

The incentive fee consists of the following twotpar

The first, payable quarterly in arrears, equal®20of our pre-incentive fee net investment incoexgressed as a rate of return on the
value of our net assets at the end of the immdglipteceding quarter, that exceeds a 1.875% qup(fe6% annualized) hurdle rate measured
as of the end of each fiscal quarter, subject to a
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“catch-up” provision. Under this provision, in afigcal quarter, our Manager receives no incentdeufnless our pre-incentive fee net
investment income exceeds the hurdle rate of 1.8T&% Manager will receive 100.0% of pre-incentige net investment income, if any, that
exceeds the hurdle rate but is less than or equaB®#4% in any fiscal quarter (9.376% annualizady§l 20.0% of the amount of the our pre-
incentive fee net investment income, if any, thateeds 2.344% in any fiscal quarter (9.376% anned)i

The second part of the incentive fee is determaratipayable in arrears as of the end of each fygaal (or upon termination of the
Management Agreement) and equals 20.0% of our fitive fee capital gains,” which equals our realizagital gains on a cumulative basis
from May 31, 2010 through the end of the yearnif,acomputed net of all realized capital losses ame@alized capital depreciation on a
cumulative basis, less the aggregate amount opeawiously paid capital gain incentive fee. Impatlg, the capital gains portion of the
incentive fee is based on realized gains and exhbind unrealized losses from May 31, 2010. Thezefealized and unrealized losses incurre
prior to such time will not be taken into accourtem calculating the capital gains portion of theeimtive fee, and our Manager will be entitled
to 20.0% of incentive fee capital gains that aaffer May 31, 2010. In addition, for the purposetaf “incentive fee capital gainsalculations
the cost basis for computing realized gains ansele®n investments held by us as of May 31, 20ll@gual the fair value of such investme
as of such date.

For the years ended February 28, 2014, Februar®&, and February 29, 2012, we incurred $3.3anill$2.1 million, and $1.6
million in base management fees, respectively tk®years ended February 28, 2014, February 28, 20t February 29, 2012, we incurred
$0.7 million, $1.0 million, and $0.5 million in ieative fees related to pre-incentive fee net inmesit income. For the year ended February 2¢
2014, there was a reduction of $0.3 million in imideée fees related to capital gains. For the yeaded February 28, 2013 and February 29,
2012, we accrued $1.0 million and $0.7 millionrieéntive management fees related to capital geespgectively. The accrual is calculated
using both realized and unrealized capital gainghie period. The actual incentive fee relatedapitel gains will be determined and payable ir
arrears at the end of the fiscal year and willudel only realized capital gains for the period.oA&ebruary 28, 2014, the base managemen
accrual was $0.9 million and the incentive feesw@aovas $3.0 million and is included in managenserd incentive fees payable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of assetsadilities. As of February 28, 2013, the base ngamaent fees accrual was $0.6 million :
incentive fees accrual was $3.9 million and isudeld in management and incentive fees payablesiacbompanying consolidated statements
of assets and liabilities.

On July 30, 2010, the Company entered into a sepadministration agreement (the “Administrationrédgment”) with our Manager,
pursuant to which our Manager, as our administrdias agreed to furnish us with the facilities addhinistrative services necessary to con
our day-today operations and provide managerial assistanoc&obehalf to those portfolio companies to whighave required to provide st
assistance. The initial term of the Administratisgreement is two years, with automatic, one-yeaewals at the end of each year subject to
certain approvals by our board of directors andlorstockholders. The amount of expenses payabiegimbursable thereunder by the
Company is capped at $1.0 million for the initibtyear term of the administration agreement. Gy I8, 2013, our board of directors
approved the renewal of the Administration Agreetfenan additional one-year term and determinesh&intain the cap on the payment or
reimbursement of expenses by the Company theretio@dr.0 million for the additional one-year term.

For the years ended February 28, 2014, Februar®&, and February 29, 2012, we recognized $1l®mi$1.0 million, and $1.0
million in administrator expenses for the periagspectively, pertaining to bookkeeping, recordpieg and other administrative services
provided to us in addition to our allocable port@frrent and other overhead related expenses. Aslmfuary 28, 2014, $0.4 million of
administrator expenses were accrued and includdderto manager in the accompanying consolidatgdraents of assets and liabilities. As
February 28, 2013, $0.2 million of administratoperses were accrued and included in due to maiatie® accompanying consolidated
statements of assets and liabilities. For the yeaded February 28, 2014 and 2013, and Februa3(2, the Company bought investments
fair valued at $0.3 million, $0.0 million and $1516llion, respectively, from the Saratoga CLO aonttisno investments to related parties.
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Note 7. Borrowings
Credit Facility

As a BDC, we are only allowed to employ leveragthwextent that our asset coverage, as defindgait940 Act, equals at least
200.0% after giving effect to such leverage. Th@am of leverage that we employ at any time depemdsur assessment of the market and
other factors at the time of any proposed borrowing

On April 11, 2007, we entered into a $100.0 milliewolving securitized credit facility (the “Revahg Facility”). On May 1, 2007, w
entered into a $25.7 million term securitized daréaliility (the “Term Facility” and, together witlhe Revolving Facility, the “Facilities”),
which was fully drawn at closing. In December 20@€,consolidated the Facilities by using a drawaunrnile Revolving Facility to repay the
Term Facility. In response to the market wide dexin financial asset prices, which negatively @fd the value of our portfolio, we
terminated the revolving period of the Revolvingifity effective January 14, 2009 and commenceda@\year amortization period during
which all principal proceeds from the collateralsnwesed to repay outstanding borrowings. A signifiggercentage of our total assets had beer
pledged under the Revolving Facility to secureahligations thereunder. Under the Revolving Fagifitnds were borrowed from or through
certain lenders and interest was payable monthlyeatjreater of the commercial paper rate andemddrs prime rate plus 4.00% plus a def
rate of 2.00% or, if the commercial paper marke$ waavailable, the greater of the prevailing LIBf#es and our lender’s prime rate plus
6.00% plus a default rate of 3.00%.

In March 2009, we amended the Revolving Facilitintrease the portion of the portfolio that couddibvested in “CCC” rated
investments in return for an increased interest aad expedited amortization. As a result of thesesactions, we expected to have additional
cushion under our borrowing base under the Revgliacility that would allow us to better manage capital in times of declining asset
prices and market dislocation.

On July 30, 2009, we exceeded the permissible dmgplimit under the Revolving Facility for 30 cawutive days, resulting in an
event of default under the Revolving Facility. Aseault of this event of default, our lender hagl tight to accelerate repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness under the Revolving Baaifid to foreclose and liquidate the collateralgled thereunder. Acceleration of the
outstanding indebtedness and/or liquidation ofcibitateral could have had a material adverse effeaiur liquidity, financial condition and
operations.

On July 30, 2010, we used the net proceeds frothdistock purchase transaction and (ii) a porioithe funds available to us under
the $45.0 million senior secured revolving creditifity (the “Credit Facility”) with Madison Capit&unding LLC, in each case, described in
“Note 14. Recapitalization Transaction” below, #yphe full amount of principal and accrued interggluding default interest, outstanding
under the Revolving Facility. As a result, the Reirgg Facility was terminated in connection therwiSubstantially all of our total assets,
other than those held by SBIC LP, have been pledgéddr the Credit Facility to secure our obligasidinereunder.

On February 24, 2012, we amended our senior secevet/ing credit facility with Madison Capital Fdimg LLC to, among other
things:

» expand the borrowing capacity under the credififgdrom $40.0 million to $45.0 million;

» extend the period during which we may make andyré&parowings under the credit facility from July,3013 to February 24,
2015 (the “Revolving Period”). The Revolving Perimdy upon the occurrence of an event of defaulgdiipn of the lenders or
automatically. All borrowings and other amountsadalg under the credit facility are due and payéikteyears after the end of
the Revolving Period; and

* remove the condition that we may not acquire adiditi loan assets without the prior written conséiladison Capital
Funding LLC.

As of February 28, 2014, there was no outstandatgrize under the Credit Facility and the Company waompliance with all of tf
limitations and requirements of the Credit Facilig.3 million of financing costs related to thee@it Facility have been capitalized and are
being amortized over the term of the facility. Hoe years ended February 28, 2014, February 28 20d February 29, 2012, we recorded
$1.0 million, $2.0 million, and $0.6 million of ietest expense, respectively. For the years endadidy 28, 2014, February 28, 2013 and
February 29, 2012, we recorded $0.4 million, $0ikion and $0.7 million of amortization of deferréidancing costs related to the Credit
Facility and Revolving Facility, respectively. Theterest rates during the years ended
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February 28, 2014, February 28, 2013 and Februgyw2@12 on the outstanding borrowings under thei€CFeacility ranged from 7.50% to
7.50%, 7.50% to 7.50%, and 7.50% to 7.50%, respeyti

The Credit Facility contains limitations as to hbarrowed funds may be used, such as restrictionsdurstry concentrations, asset
size, weighted average life, currency denominaiod collateral interests. The Credit Facility dlsdudes certain requirements relating to
portfolio performance, the violation of which coukkult in the limit of further advances and, im&ocases, result in an event of default,
allowing the lenders to accelerate repayment ofuartsoowed thereunder. The Credit Facility has ghtejear term, consisting of a three year
period (the “Revolving Period”), under which ther@many may make and repay borrowings, and a fin&lintafive years from the end of the
Revolving Period. Availability on the Credit Fatjliwill be subject to a borrowing base calculatibased on, among other things, applicable
advance rates (which vary from 50.0% to 75.0% ofgpdair value depending on the type of loan gsmed the value of certain “eligible” loan
assets included as part of the Borrowing Base. §umaly be borrowed at the greater of the prevalllBPR rate and 2.00%, plus an applica
margin of 5.50%. At the Comparsybption, funds may be borrowed based on an atieenlaase rate, which in no event will be less tB@00%,
and the applicable margin over such alternative bate is 4.50%. In addition, the Company will plag lenders a commitment fee of 0.75%
per year on the unused amount of the Credit Faddit the duration of the Revolving Period.

Our borrowing base under the Credit Facility wad.84million subject to the Credit Facility cap of350 million at February 28, 2014.
For purposes of determining the borrowing base tmssets are assigned the values set forth in ost macent Annual Report on Form KQr
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SE@cArdingly, the February 28, 2014 borrowing basieseipon the valuations set forth in
the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endebriary 28, 2013. The valuations presented in&hisual Report on Form 10-K will not
be incorporated into the borrowing base until aftés Annual Report on Form 10-K is filed with tB&C.

SBA Debenture:

SBIC LP is able to borrow funds from the SBA aganegulatory capital (which approximates equityitapthat is paid in and is
subject to customary regulatory requirements inolgidbut not limited to an examination by the SBA @& February 28, 2014, we have fundec
SBIC LP with $32.0 million of equity capital, andvye $50.0 million of SBA-guaranteed debenturestanting. SBA debentures are non-
recourse to us, have a 10-year maturity, and maydgeaid at any time without penalty. The interast of SBA debentures is fixed at the time
of issuance, often referred to as pooling, at &etadriven spread over 10-year U.S. Treasury N@&B# current regulations limit the amount
that SBIC LP may borrow to a maximum of $150.0 imil] which is up to twice its potential regulataapital.

SBICs are designed to stimulate the flow of privedaity capital to eligible small businesses. UrfBBA regulations, SBICs may
make loans to eligible small businesses and iringbie equity securities of small businesses. Updesent SBA regulations, eligible small
businesses include businesses that have a tamgit¥eorth not exceeding $18.0 million and have agerannual fully taxed net income not
exceeding $6.0 million for the two most recentdisgears. In addition, an SBIC must devote 25.0%sahvestment activity to “smaller”
concerns as defined by the SBA. A smaller conceone that has a tangible net worth not exceeddn@ iillion and has average annual fully
taxed net income not exceeding $2.0 million fortilie most recent fiscal years. SBA regulations glsivide alternative size standard criteria
to determine eligibility, which depend on the inttysn which the business is engaged and are basadch factors as the number of
employees and gross sales. According to SBA reignstSBICs may make long-term loans to small legsgas, invest in the equity securities
of such businesses and provide them with consudtirjadvisory services.

SBIC LP is subject to regulation and oversighthiy 8BA, including requirements with respect to rtaining certain minimum
financial ratios and other covenants. Receipt 0BBIT license does not assure that SBIC LP wikkiez SBA guaranteed debenture funding,
which is dependent upon SBIC LP continuing to beampliance with SBA regulations and policies. B®A, as a creditor, will have a
superior claim to SBIC LP’s assets over our stotddrs and debtholders in the event we liquidateCSEP or the SBA exercises its remedies
under the SBA-guaranteed debentures issued by EBIGpon an event of default.

The Company received exemptive relief from the &es and Exchange Commission to permit it to edelthe debt of SBIC LP
guaranteed by the SBA from the definition of semiecurities in the 200.0% asset
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coverage test under the 1940 Act. This allows tbm@any increased flexibility under the 200.0% assgtrage test by permitting it to borrow
up to $150.0 million more than it would otherwisedble to absent the receipt of this exemptivefeli

As of February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013gthers $50.0 million and $36.0 million outstandifigs8A debentures,
respectively. The carrying amount of the amounstauiding of SBA debentures approximates its fduezgb1.7 million of financing costs
related to the SBA debentures have been capitadimddare being amortized over the term of the cammnit and drawdown. For the years
ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013gearded $1.3 million and $0.1 million of interegpense related to the SBA debentures.
For the years ended February 28, 2014 and Feb28ar3013, we recorded $0.2 million and $0.1 millaframortization of deferred financing
costs related to the SBA debentures, respectiVélg.weighted average interest rate during the ysaated February 28, 2014 and February 2¢
2013 on the outstanding borrowings of the SBA dalres was 3.03% and 1.42%, respectively. There nemutstanding SBA debentures at
February 29, 2012.

Notes
On May 10, 2013, the Company issued $42.0 millloadgregate principal amount of 7.50% fixed-rateesalue 2020 (the “Notes”).
The Notes will mature on May 31, 2020, and maydskeemed in whole or in part at any time or frometitm time at the Company’s option on

or after May 31, 2016. Interest will be payabladerly beginning August 15, 2013.

On May 17, 2013, the Company closed an additiofa hillion in aggregate principal amount of thet&& pursuant to the full
exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchasditamhal Notes.

As of February 28, 2014, the carrying amount amdvilue of the Notes was $48.3 million and $48i6iom, respectively. The fair
value of the Notes, which are publicly traded,asdd upon closing market quotes as of the measotefage and would be classified as a leve
1 liability within the fair value hierarchy. As éfebruary 28, 2014, $2.5 million of financing cogtlated to the Notes have been capitalizec
are being amortized over the term of the Notes. tik@year ended February 28, 2014, we recordetiriflion of interest expense and $0.3
million of amortization of deferred financing costdated to the Notes.

Note 8. Commitments and contingencies
Contractual obligations

The following table shows our payment obligatioosrepayment of debt and other contractual obligestiat February 28, 2014:

Payment Due by Perioc

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
($ in thousands)
Long-Term Debt Obligations $ 98,30( $ — $ — $ — $ 98,30(

Off-balance sheet arrangements

The Company'’s off-balance sheet arrangements d¢edsi$ $12.2 million and $0.0 million of unfundednomitments to provide debt
financing to its portfolio companies or to fund ited partnership interests as of February 28, 2012013, respectively. Such commitments
are generally up to the Company’s discretion taayg or the satisfaction of certain financial amhfinancial covenants and involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit risk in exoéshe amount recognized in the Company’s Constdili&tatement of Assets and Liabilities
and are not reflected in the Company’s Consolid&tatements of Assets and Liabilities.

Note 9. Directors Fees

The independent directors receive an annual f&40f000. They also receive $2,500 plus reimbursénfereasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with attending &aeind meeting and receive $1,000
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plus reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket es@eincurred in connection with attending eachroigtee meeting. In addition, the
chairman of the Audit Committee receives an anfembf $5,000 and the chairman of each other coreenieceives an annual fee of $2,000
for their additional services in these capacitivsaddition, we have purchased directors’ and effitliability insurance on behalf of our
directors and officers. Independent directors lheeoption to receive their directoffg’es in the form of our common stock issued atigeger
share equal to the greater of net asset valueeantrket price at the time of payment. No compémsés paid to directors who are “interested
persons” of the Company (as such term is definglerl 940 Act). For the years ended February 284 2Bebruary 28, 2013 and February 29,
2012, we accrued $0.2 million, $0.2 million, andZfhillion for directorsfees expense, respectively. As of February 28, 20UFebruary 2
2013, $0.05 million and $0.05 million in directofees expense were unpaid and included in accparytble and accrued expenses in the
consolidated statements of assets and liabilifisof February 28, 2014, we had not issued any comstock to our directors as compensatiol
for their services.

Note 10. Stockholders’ Equity

On May 16, 2006, GSC Group, Inc. capitalized th€hy contributing $1,000 in exchange for 67 shareastituting all of the issut
and outstanding shares of the LLC.

On March 20, 2007, the Company issued 95,995.84®6.2 shares of common stock, priced at $15008Hpare, to GSC Group and
certain individual employees of GSC Group, respetfi in exchange for the general partnership @gtand a limited partnership interest in
GSC Partners CDO Il GP, LP, collectively valuedba5.6 million. At this time, the 6.7 shares owhgdGSC Group in the LLC were
exchanged for 6.7 shares of the Company.

On March 28, 2007, the Company completed its IP@2&f,000 shares of common stock, priced at $158:0@hare, before
underwriting discounts and commissions. Total pedsereceived from the IPO, net of $7.1 million mdarwriter’s discount and commissions,
and $1.0 million in offering costs, were $100.7lion.

On November 13, 2009, we declared a dividend of 28 Ber share payable on December 31, 2009. SHdezbdad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, share®afmon stock, or a combination of cash and shdresmomon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watirto $2.1 million or $2.50 per share. Based @redtolder elections, the dividend consistec
of $2.1 million in cash and 864,872.5 of newly sdishares of common stock.

On July 30, 2010, our Manager and its affiliaterchased 986,842 shares of common stock at $15r26hpee. Total proceeds
received from this sale were $15.0 million. See td\d4. Recapitalization Transaction.”

On August 12, 2010, we effected a one-for-ten mvetock split of our outstanding common stockaAssult of the reverse stock
split, every ten shares of our common stock wereeded into one share of our common stock. Angtfoaal shares received as a result of
reverse stock split were redeemed for cash. Tla¢ dash payment in lieu of shares was $230. Imnbelgliafter the reverse stock split, we had
2,680,842 shares of our common stock outstanding.

On November 12, 2010, we declared a dividend cf@gper share payable on December 29, 2010. Shdezsdiad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, sharemofmon stock, or a combination of cash and shdresromon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders wagtirto approximately $1.2 million or $0.44 per sh&ased on shareholder elections, the
dividend consisted of approximately $1.2 millioncash and 596,235 shares of common stock.

On November 15, 2011, we declared a dividend diGbBer share payable on December 30, 2011. Shdekdiad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, sharemofmon stock, or a combination of cash and shdresromon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watedito approximately $2.0 million or $0.60 per h&ased on shareholder elections, the
dividend consisted of approximately $2.0 millioncish and 599,584 shares of common stock.

On November 9, 2012, the Company declared a dididéi$4.25 per share payable on December 31, ZHaeholders had the
option to receive payment of the dividend in cattares of common stock, or a combination
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of cash and shares of common stock, provided tieadggregate cash payable to all shareholdersimisd to approximately $3.3 million or
$0.85 per share. Based on shareholder electiomslividend consisted of approximately $3.3 milliorcash and 853,455 shares of common
stock.

On October 30, 2013, the Company declared a dididéi$2.65 per share payable on December 27, ZHaeholders had the option
to receive payment of the dividend in cash, shafe®smmon stock, or a combination of cash and shefeommon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watedito approximately $2.5 million or $0.53 per sh&ased on shareholder elections, the
dividend consisted of approximately $2.5 millioncimsh and 649,500 shares of common stock.

Note 11. Earnings Per Share

In accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Z&arnings per Share” (“ASC 260"), basic earnings gfeare is computed by
dividing earnings available to common shareholthgrthe weighted average number of shares outstgmiiring the period. Other potentially
dilutive common shares, and the related impacatairgs, are considered when calculating earniegsipare on a diluted basis.

The following information sets forth the computatiof the weighted average basic and diluted netdese in net assets per share 1
operations for the years ended February 28, 20ddruary 28, 2013 and February 29, 2012 (dollatednsands except share and per share
amounts):

February 28, February 28, February 29,
Basic and diluted 2014 2013 2012
Net increase in net assets from operat $ 8,74¢ % 14,60: $ 13,27¢
Weighted average common shares outstan 4,920,51 4,110,48 3,434,34!
Earnings per common sh-basic and dilute: $ 1.7¢ $ 3.5 % 3.87

Note 12. Dividend

On October 30, 2013, the Company declared a dididé1$2.65 per share payable on December 27, ZH&eholders had the option
to receive payment of the dividend in cash, shafe®smmon stock, or a combination of cash and shafeommon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watetirto approximately $2.5 million or $0.53 per ghar

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend casif approximately $2.5 million in cash and 648 5hares of common stock, or
13.7% of our outstanding common stock prior todividend payment. The number of shares of commackstomprising the stock portion
was calculated based on a price of $15.439 peesténich equaled the volume weighted average tgagliite per share of the common stock
on December 11, 13, and 16, 2013.

On November 9, 2012, the Company declared a dididéi$4.25 per share payable on December 31, ZHaeholders had the
option to receive payment of the dividend in castares of common stock, or a combination of cashshares of common stock, provided tha
the aggregate cash payable to all shareholderéimissd to approximately $3.3 million or $0.85 perare.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend casif approximately $3.3 million in cash and 85%,4hares of common stock, or
22.0% of our outstanding common stock prior todhvdend payment. The amount of cash elected t@beived was greater than the cash
limit of 20.0% of the aggregate dividend amountsthesulting in the payment of a combination ohcaisd stock to shareholders who elected
to receive cash. The number of shares of commank stmmprising the stock portion was calculated basea price of $15.444 per share,
which equaled the volume weighted average tradiiwe per share of the common stock on Decembet 2,419, 2012.

On November 15, 2011, we declared a dividend d&Ber share payable on December 30, 2011. Shderkdiad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, share®ofmon stock, or a combination
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of cash and shares of common stock, provided tieadggregate cash payable to all shareholdersimisd to approximately $2.0 million or
$0.60 per share.

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend ctusef approximately $2.0 million in cash and 583, Shares of common stock, or
18.0% of our outstanding common stock prior todividend payment. The amount of cash elected t@beived was greater than the cash
limit of 20.0% of the aggregate dividend amountisthesulting in the payment of a combination ohcasd stock to shareholders who elected
to receive cash. The number of shares of commaik stmmprising the stock portion was calculated dasea price of $13.1171 per share,
which equaled the volume weighted average tradiiwg per share of the common stock on Decembe?@nd 22, 2011.

On November 12, 2010, we declared a dividend ofGbper share payable on December 23, 2010. Shderkdiad the option to
receive payment of the dividend in cash, share®afmon stock, or a combination of cash and shdresmomon stock, provided that the
aggregate cash payable to all shareholders watetirto approximately $1.2 million or $0.44 per ghar

Based on shareholder elections, the dividend casif approximately $1.2 million in cash and 5%& &hares of common stock, or
22.0% of our outstanding common stock prior todhvdend payment. The amount of cash elected t@beived was greater than the cash
limit of 10.0% of the aggregate dividend amountisthesulting in the payment of a combination ohcaisd stock to shareholders who elected
to receive cash. The number of shares of commak stmmprising the stock portion was calculated dasea price of $17.8049 per share,
which equaled the volume weighted average tradiiag per share of the common stock on Decembe22@nd 22, 2010. The financial
statements for the period ended November 30, 2846 heen retroactively adjusted to reflect thegase in common stock as a result of the
dividend in accordance with the provisions of ASI520-S50 regarding disclosure of a capital stmgctinange after the interim balance shee
but before the release of the financial statements.

The following tables summarize dividends declaredrd) the years ended February 28, 2014, Februar2@13, February 29, 2012
and February 28, 2011 (dollars in thousands expepshare amounts):

Amount Total
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share* Amount
October 30, 2013 November 13, 201 December 27, 201 $ 26 $ 12,53¢
Total dividends declared $ 268 $ 12,53¢
Amount Total
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share* Amount
November 9, 201 November 20, 201 December 31, 201 $ 425 $ 16,47¢
Total dividends declared $ 425 $ 16,47¢
Amount Total
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share* Amount
November 15, 201 November 25, 201 December 30, 201 $ 3.0 $ 9,831
Total dividends declared $ 300 $ 9,831
Amount Total
Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Per Share* Amount
November 12, 201 November 19, 201 December 29, 201 $ 44C $ 11,79¢
Total dividends declared $ 44C $ 11,79¢
* Amount per share is calculated based on the nupfterares outstanding at the date of declaration.
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Note 13. Financial Highlights

The following is a schedule of financial highligtits the years ended February 28, 2014, Februar2@B3, February 29, 2012,
February 28, 2011, and February 28, 2010:

For 2010, the amount per share has been adjustefldot a one-for-ten reverse stock split effetdan August 2010.

February 28, February 28, February 29, February 28, February 28,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Per share data:(’
Net asset value at beginning of per $ 229t % 251: % 26.2¢ $ 327t $ 82.0(
Net investment income(: 1.8t 1.71 1.6€ 2.1¢ 5.4(C
Net realized and unrealized gains and losse

investments and derivativ: (0.07) 1.84 2.21 4.81 (15.30
Net increase (decrease) in net assets

operations 1.7¢ 3.5t 3.87 6.9¢ (9.90
Distributions declared from net investment

income (2.65) (4.25) (3.00 (4.40 (18.25
Distributions declared from net realized cap

gains — — — — —
Total distributions to stockholders (2.65) (4.25) (3.00) (4.40 (18.2%)
Other(5) (0.75) (1.44) (2.01) (9.0%) (21.10
Net asset value at end of per $ 21.3¢ $ 22.9¢ $ 2512 $ 26.2¢ $ 32.7¢
Net assets at end of peri $ 114,924,001 $ 108,686,76 $ 97,380,115 $ 86,071,45 $ 55,478,15
Shares outstanding at end of pet 5,379,61 4,730,111 3,876,66. 3,277,07 1,694,011
Per share market value at end of perio $ 158t $ 17.0: % 15.8¢ $ 2128 $ 19.2(
Total return based on market value 9.11% 36.61% 12.82% 38.25% 113.1%
Total return based on net asset valu 8.92% 16.65% 17.51% 0.1€6% (11.99%
Ratio/Supplemental data:(6)
Ratio of net investment income to average,

assets(4)(6 8.09% 6.72% 6.11% 6.53% 8.1(%
Ratio of operating expenses to average net

assets(4 6.2(% 5.17% 5.62% 12.05% 9.7¢%
Ratio of incentive management fees to aver

net asset 0.61% 1.96% 1.35% 2.45% 0.52%
Ratio of credit facility related expenses to

average net asse 5.4(% 2.4% 1.3% 3.42% 6.5%
Ratio of total expenses to average net asse 12.21% 9.5€% 8.3t% 12.02% 16.8%
Portfolio turnover rate(€ 37.8% 17.3(% 36.3% 10.1/% 14.6t%
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(1) Net investment income per share is calculated usiegveighted average shares outstanding duringdtied. Net investment incor
excluding expense waiver and reimbursement eqZa5%ind $4.75 per share for the years ended Fgi28a2011 and 2010,
respectively.

(2 Total investment return is calculated assumingrahmse of common shares at the current market walube first day and a sale at

the current market value on the last day of théopsrreported. Dividends and distributions, if aase assumed for purposes of this
calculation to be reinvested at prices obtaineceutite Company dividend reinvestment plan. Total investmentrretioes not refle
brokerage commissions. Total investment returngiiog less than a full period are not annualized.

3) Total investment return is calculated assumingralmse of common shares at the current net adset @a the first day and a sale at
the current net asset value on the last day of¢hieds reported. Dividends and distributionsif,aare assumed for purposes of this
calculation to be reinvested at prices obtaineceutite Company dividend reinvestment plan. Total investmentrretioes not refle
brokerage commissions.

(@) For the year ended February 28, 2011, net of therese waiver and reimbursement arrangement, tioeofatet investment income,
operating expenses, total expenses to averagassetsas 6.87%, 11.71%, and 11.68%, respectivelytite year ended February 28,
2010, net of the expense waiver and reimbursentesmigement, the ratio of net investment incomeratp® expenses, total expen
to average net assets is 9.12%, 8.71% and 15.&&¢ectively.

(5) Represents the dilutive effect of issuing commaclsbelow net asset value per share during th@gémi connection with the
satisfaction of the Company’s annual RIC distribatrequirement. See Note 12, Dividend.

(6) The ratio for the year ended February 28, 2010adantlude the effect of the waiver of deferredentive fees which is (3.83)% on a
non-annualized basis as this is a one time waiver.

@) February 28, 2010 data has been adjusted to reflene-for-ten reverse stock split effectuated uigést 2010.

(8) Portfolio turnover rate is calculated using thesérf year-to-date sales or year-to-date purchasasthe average of the invested

assets at fair value.
Note 14. Recapitalization Transaction

In July 2010, we consummated a recapitalizationstaation that was necessitated by the fact thdtadeexceeded permissible
borrowing limits under the Revolving Facility inlyi2009, which resulted in an event of default urtthe Revolving Facility. As a result of the
event of default under the Revolving Facility, theder had the right to accelerate repayment obthstanding indebtedness under the
Revolving Facility and to foreclose and liquidate tollateral pledged thereunder. We engaged tresitment banking firm of Stifel,

Nicolaus & Company to evaluate strategic transaatipportunities and consider alternatives for udéeember 2008. On April 14, 2010,
entered into a stock purchase agreement with oualgier and certain of its affiliates and an assigrtressumption and novation agreement
with our Manager, pursuant to which we assumeairerights and obligations of our Manager undeelbtdommitment letter our Manager
received from Madison Capital Funding LLC, indiogtiMadison Capital Funding'willingness to provide us with the Credit Fagilisubject t(
the satisfaction of certain terms and conditionsaaddition, we and GSCP (NJ), L.P., our then eddnvestment adviser, entered into a
termination and release agreement, to be effeasvaf the closing of the transaction contemplatethb stock purchase agreement, pursuant
which GSCP (NJ), L.P., among other things, agreesidive any and all accrued and unpaid deferreghitiee management fees up to and &
the closing of the transaction contemplated bystbek purchase agreement but continued to beeashtitl receive the base management fees
earned through the date of the closing of the &atisn contemplated by the stock purchase agreement

On July 30, 2010, the transactions contemplatetthéstock purchase agreement with our Manager ertdie of its affiliates was
completed, and included the following actions:
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» the private sale of shares of our common stoc1&.0 million in aggregate purchase price to oundger and certain of its
affiliates;

» the closing of the $40.0 million Credit FacilitytwiMadison Capital Funding;

» the execution of a registration rights agreemettt tie investors in the private sale transactiomsyant to which we agreed to
file a registration statement with the SEC to regifor resale the shares of our common stockisdlde private sale transaction;

» the execution of a trademark license agreementauitiManager pursuant to which our Manager granged non-exclusive,
royalty-free license to use the “Saratoga” nameséolong as our Manager or one of its affiliat®ains our investment adviser;

* replacing GSCP (NJ), L.P. as our investment adésdradministrator with our Manager by executirgManagement
Agreement, which was approved by our stockholderd,an administration agreement with our Manager;

« the resignations of Robert F. Cummings, Jr. anth& M. Hayden, both of whom are affiliates of GSGB) L.P., as members
of the board of directors and the election of QGraisL. Oberbeck and Richard A. Petrocelli, botlwbiom are affiliates of our
Manager, as members of the board of directors;

» the resignation of all of our then existing execaitbfficers and the appointment by our board ofators of Mr. Oberbeck as our
chief executive officer and Mr. Petrocelli as ohref financial officer, secretary and chief compba officer; and

* our name change from “GSC Investment Corp.” to &&zga Investment Corp.”

We used the net proceeds from the private salsacdion and a portion of the funds available tander the Credit Facility to pay the
full amount of principal and accrued interest, uthg default interest, outstanding under Revohkiagility. The Revolving Facility with
Deutsche Bank was terminated in connection withpayment of all amounts outstanding thereundendn3D, 2010.

Note 15. Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

2014

($ in thousands, except per share number: Qtr 4 Qtr 3 Qtr 2 Qtr 1
Interest and related portfolio incor $ 521t $ 4,997 $ 4,79 $ 5,172
Net investment incom 1,48 2,89¢ 2,27 2,47(
Net realized and unrealized gain (lo 2,23¢ (1,630 (2,319 1,33(
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dperation: 3,71¢ 1,26¢ (42) 3,80(
Net investment income per common share at endabf

quarter $ 0.2t $ 0.6C $ 0.4¢ $ 0.52
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) per comsiane a

end of each quartt $ 04z $ (039 % (049 % 0.2¢
Dividends declared per common sh $ — $ 268 % — $ —
Net asset value per common sh $ 21.3¢ $ 20.67 $ 23.71  $ 23.7¢

2013

($ in thousands, except per share number: Qtr 4 Qtr 3 Qtr 2 Qtr 1
Interest and related portfolio incor $ 4,30¢ $ 3,51 $ 351s $ 3,111
Net investment incom 1,952 2,48¢ 1,31« 1,27:
Net realized and unrealized gain (lo 3,84: (1,749 3,551 1,91¢
Net increase in net assets resulting from opers 5,79¢ 745 4,871 3,191
Net investment income per common share at endabf

quarter $ 04z $ 0.6z $ 032 $ 0.3¢
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) per comshame a

end of each quart $ 081 $ (049 % 09z $ 0.4¢
Dividends declared per common sh $ — $ 428 $ — 3 —
Net asset value per common sh $ 229¢ % 217 $ 27.2C $ 25.9¢
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2012

($ in thousands, except per share number: Qtr 4 Qtr 3 Qtr 2 Qtr 1
Interest and related portfolio incor $ 294¢ $ 3,03: $ 2881 $ 2,381
Net investment incom 1,57¢ 824 2,72( 57¢
Net realized and unrealized gain (lo 1,50z 5,38¢ (4,449 5,131
Net increase (decrease) in net assets resulting dperation: 3,08( 6,21: (1,728 5,70¢
Net investment income per common share at endabf

quarter $ 04C $ 028 $ 0.8: $ 0.17
Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) per comsiane a

end of each quartt $ 03¢ $ 16 $ (1.3¢) $ 1.57
Dividends declared per common sh $ — $ 3.0C $ — $ —
Net asset value per common sh $ 251 % 243 $ 2748 $ 28.01

Note 16. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events thifoeiglate of issuance of the consolidated finarsté&ibments included herein. There have
been no subsequent events that occurred duringparayd that would require disclosure in this FdraK or would be required to be
recognized in the consolidated financial statemastsf and for the year ended February 28, 2014.
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IMPORTANT NOTE

In accordance with certain SEC rules, Saratogasknvent Corp. (the “Company”) is providing additibirdormation
regarding one of its portfolio companies, Saratogastment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd. (“Saratoga CLO'he Company owns 100%
the subordinated notes of the Saratoga CLO. Thitiada financial information regarding the Saraad@LO does not directly impact
the Company’s financial position, results of opienat or cash flows.
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Report of Independent Auditors
The Collateral Manager and Directors,
Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

We have audited the accompanying financial statésrefrSaratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltue (1ssuer”), which comprise the
statements of assets and liabilities, as of Fepr28r 2014 and February 28, 2013, including theedales of investments, and the statements
operations, changes in net assets, and cash ftovtisef years ended February 28, 2014, Februar@@®8 and February 29, 2012, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparation aimgpfesentation of these financial statement®ifarmity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles; this includes the desigmlémentation, and maintenance of internal congtawant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are dfewaterial misstatement, whether due to fraudrmre

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hsancial statements based on our audits. Weuwstad our audits in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the UrStates. Those standards require that we plan enfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatises of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidibevidence about the amounts and disclosuréigifinancial statements. The procedure:s
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, inclutie assessment of the risks of material missttenf the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assesdgs) the auditor considers internal control radéta the Issuer’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in ordeatesign audit procedures that are appropriateartircumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofsbadr’s internal control. Accordingly, we expresessach opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting msiosed and the reasonableness of significant aticglestimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation offthancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Saratoga Investment
Corp. CLO 2013t, Ltd. at February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2808,the results of its operations, changes indtsassets and its cash flo
for the years ended February 28, 2014, Februarg@B3 and February 29, 2012, in conformity with W8&nerally accepted accounting
principles.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, NY
May 27, 2014
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Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

Statements of Assets and Liabilities

As of

February 28, 2014

February 28, 2012

ASSETS
Investments
Fair Value Loans (amortized cost of $299,137,566 $366,099,395, respectivel $ 300,491,07 362,494,00
Fair Value Other/Structured finance securities (diped cost of $0 and $13,743,946, respectiv — 11,925,97
Total investments at fair value (amortized cos$289,137,566 and $379,843,341, respectiv 300,491,07 374,419,97
Cash and cash equivalel 8,018,93 28,804,87
Receivable from open trad 1,801,26 5,131,53
Interest receivabl 1,450,95. 1,584,98!
Deferred debt financing costs, 1 2,166,63. 2,092,78
Other asset 91,33¢ —
Total asset $ 314,020,19 412,034,16
LIABILITIES
Interest payabl $ 622,47t 666,12:
Payable from open trad 9,445,00! 16,346,25
Accrued base management 75,05 43,17
Accrued subordinated management 75,05 172,68:
Class A note- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — 296,000,00
Class B note- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — 22,000,00
Discount on class B not- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — (417,01)
Class C note- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — 14,000,00
Class D note- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — 16,000,00
Discount on class D not- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — (441,13))
Class E note- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — 17,960,04
Discount on class E not- GSCIC CLO 2007, Ltd — (1,134,77)
Class X Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 1,666,66! —
Class /-1 Notes- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 170,000,00 —
Discount on Class -1 Notes- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (1,671,86) —
Class /-2 Notes- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 20,000,00 —
Discount on Class -2 Notes- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (173,300 —
Class B Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 44,800,00 —
Discount on Class B Not« SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (1,125,75) —
Class C Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 16,000,00 —
Discount on Class C Not«- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (700,90 —
Class D Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 14,000,00 —
Discount on Class D Not+ SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (909,829 —
Class E Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 13,100,00 —
Discount on Class E Not- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (1,715,28) —
Class F Note- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. 4,500,001 —
Discount on Class F Not+- SIC CLO 201-1, Ltd. (623,88() —
Subordinated Note 30,000,00 30,000,00

Total liabilities $

317,363,43 $ 411,195,34

Commitments and contingencies (See Not
NET ASSETS

Ordinary equity, par value $1.00, 250 ordinary skauthorized, 250 and 250 issued and outstanding,

respectively $
Accumulated gain (los
Net income (loss

Total net assel

25C 25C
838,56 (5,963,09)
(4,182,05) 6,801,65
(3,343,23) 838,81

Total liabilities and net asse $

314,020,19 $ 412,034,16

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INVESTMENT INCOME

Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

Statements of Operations

For the year ended
February 28, 2014

For the year ended
February 28, 2013

For the year ended
February 29, 2012

Interest from investmen $ 15,486,41 $ 19,328,85 $ 20,032,68
Interest from cash and cash equival¢ 6,792 16,581 12,16"
Other income 945,44’ 967,99: 509,36!
Total investment incom 16,438,64 20,313,43 20,554,21
EXPENSES
Interest expens 11,678,51 15,613,00 14,480,62
Professional fee 433,07: 417,08t 400,62¢
Misc. Fee Expens 175,28 133,79 176,76¢
Base management fi 517,56: 400,01 402,30:
Subordinated management" 1,257,57 1,600,05 1,609,21.
Trustee expense 83,22: 100,82( 100,55:
Amortization expens 994,60: 1,015,33. 1,016,12
Loss on extinguishment of de 3,442,44. — —
Total expense 18,582,27 19,280,10 18,186,20
NET INVESTMENT INCOME (LOSS (2,143,63i) 1,033,32 2,368,00!
REALIZED AND UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS
Net realized gain (loss) on investme (8,815,29)) 2,532,55! (4,547,95)
Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on itwests 6,776,87 3,235,77. (650,24)
Net gain (loss) on investmer (2,038,42) 5,768,33; (5,198,19)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS RESULTING FRIC
OPERATIONS (4,182,05) $ 6,801,65 $ (2,830,189

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1 Ltd.
Schedule of Investments

February 28, 2014

Issuer Name Industry Asset Name Asset Type  Current Rate Maturity Date Principal Cost Fair Value
Academy, LTD. Retailers (Except Food a1 Initial Term Loan (2012 Loan
Drugs) 4.5(% 8/3/201¢ $ 1,960,18 $ 1,948,85. $ 1,969,96!
Acosta, Inc Food Product Term B Loan (2013 Loan 4.25% 3/2/201¢ 4,162,741 4,101,03! 4,177,311
Aderant North America, Inc Business Equipment at Term Loan (First Lien Loan
Services 6.25% 12/20/201  3,473,75! 3,470,181 3,482,43.
Aegis Toxicology Science Healthcare Initial Term Loan (First Lien Loan
Corporation 5.5(% 2/24/202: 1,000,001 990,00 990,00(
Aegis Toxicology Science Healthcare Initial Term Loan (Second Lier Loan
Corporation 9.5(% 8/24/202: 500,00( 492,50( 492,50(
Aeroflex Incorporater Aerospace and Defen Tranche I-1 Term Loar Loan 4.5(% 11/9/201¢ 3,208,85: 3,194,69 3,223,55!
Akorn, Inc. Healthcare Term Loan B Loan 4.5(% 11/13/202! 500,00( 497,50( 503,12¢
Alere Inc. (fka IM US Holdings Healthcare Incremental I-1 Term Loar Loan
LLC) 4.2%% 6/30/201° 1,960,001 1,930,56! 1,968,17.
Applied Systems, Inc Business Equipment at Term Loan Loan
Services 4.25% 12/8/201¢ 500,00( 498,75( 498,75(
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product LC-2 Facility Loan 3.6% 7/26/201 79,18 79,18 79,20¢
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product LC-3 Facility Loan 3.6% 7/26/201¢ 43,96 43,96 43,97
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product U.S. Term F Loal Loan 3.25% 2/24/202: 3,206,53 3,206,53 3,207,30°
Ardagh Holdings USA Inc Containers/Glass Produc Dollar Term Loar Loan
(Ardagh Packaging Financ
S.A) 4.25% 12/17/201! 1,000,001 995,10¢ 1,002,501
ARG IH Corporatior Food Service Term Loan Loan 5.0(% 11/15/2021 500,00( 498,79 502,50(
Asurion, LLC (fka Asurior Insurance Incremental Tranche-1 Term  Loan
Corporation) Loan 4.5(% 5/24/201¢ 5,508,78: 5,462,69! 5,516,66!
Auction.Com, LLC Business Equipment at Term Loan /-4 Loan
Services 4.6€% 2/28/201 980,65: 979,81 970,84!
Autotrader.com, Inc Automotive Tranche I-1 Term Loar Loan 4.0(% 12/15/2011  3,791,77 3,791,77: 3,805,99°
Avantor Performance Materis Chemicals/Plastic Term Loan Loan
Holdings, Inc. 5.25% 6/24/201°  4,875,00! 4,861,40: 4,875,001
AZ Chem US Inc Chemicals/Plastic Term Loan Loan 5.25% 12/22/201°  1,355,94. 1,329,85! 1,362,72
Bass Pro Group, LLt Retailers (Except Food ai New Term Loar Loan
Drugs) 3.7%% 11/20/201! 498,72} 498,12t 500,71¢
Berry Plastics Corporatic Chemicals/Plastic Term E Loar Loan 3.7%% 1/6/202: 1,500,001 1,496,25! 1,495,501
Big Heart Pet Brands (fkaD  Food/Drug Retailer Initial Term Loan Loan
Monte Corporation 3.5(% 3/9/202( 3,000,001 3,022,861 2,999,25!
Biomet, Inc. Healthcare Dollar Term E-2 Loan Loan 3.65% 7/25/201° 1,970,13 1,970,13 1,972,79
BJ's Wholesale Club, In« Food/Drug Retailer New 2013 (Novembel Loan
Replacement Loan (First Lie 4.5(% 9/26/201¢ 500,00( 497,59. 502,75(
Bombardier Recreation Leisure Term B Loan Loan
Products Inc Goods/Activities/Movies 4.0(% 1/30/201¢ 754,28t 748,08( 756,64"
Brickman Group Ltd. LLC, Th:  Brokers/Dealers/Investme Initial Term Loan (First Lien Loan
Houses 4.0(% 12/18/202! 250,00( 248,75( 250,93°
Brock Holdings llI, Inc. Industrial Equipmen Term Loan (First Lien Loan 6.7% 3/16/201° 1,959,83! 1,976,82 1,967,18:
Burlington Coat Factor Retailers (Except Food ai Term E-2 Loan Loan
Warehouse Corporatic Drugs) 4.25% 2/23/201° 2,660,37 2,653,88! 2,675,67!
C.H.l. Overhead Doors, In Building and Developmer ~ Term Loan (First Lien Loan 5.5(% 3/18/201¢ 2,739,01: 2,692,93. 2,745,86
Camp International Holdin Aerospace and Defen 2013 Replacement Term Lo Loan
Company (First Lien) 4.7%% 5/31/201¢ 990,00( 990,00( 999,90(
Capital Automotive L.P Conglomeratt Tranche -1 Term Loan Facility Loan 4.0(% 4/10/201¢ 2,137,36! 2,141,92 2,142,71.
Capstone Logistics, LL! Business Equipment at Term Note A Loan
Services 6.5(% 9/16/201t  2,658,62! 2,637,55! 2,618,89!
Capsugel Holdings US, In Drugs Initial Term Loan Loan 3.5(% 8/1/201¢ 3,145,52 3,138,95! 3,141,58!
Celanese US Holdings LL Chemicals/Plastic Dollar Term (-2 Commitmen Loan 2.2% 10/31/2011 2,176,32. 2,201,89. 2,192,25.
Charter Communicatior Cable and Satellit Term F Loar Loan
Operating, LLC Television 3.0(% 12/31/2021  2,682,70° 2,672,72 2,666,36!
CHS/Community Healt Healthcare 2017 Term E Loa Loan
Systems, Inc 3.4&% 1/25/201° 1,108,90: 1,082,71: 1,113,98
CHS/Community Healt Healthcare 2021 Term D Loat Loan
Systems, Inc 4.25% 1/27/202.  2,955,60! 2,862,02 2,980,22i
Cinedigm Digital Funding | Business Equipment at Term Loan Loan
LLC Services 3.7%% 2/28/201t 825,12: 820,89: 825,12:
Covanta Energy Corporatic Ecological Services ar Term Loan Loan
Equipment 3.5(% 3/28/201¢ 491,25( 489,46¢ 492,78¢
CPI Internationa Electronics/Electric Term B Loan Loan
Acquisition, Inc. (f/k/a
Catalyst Holdings, Inc. 5.00% 2/13/201°  4,622,50 4,611,09: 4,622,500
Crosby US Acquisition Corf Industrial Equipmen Initial Term Loan (First Lien Loan 4.0(% 11/23/202! 750,00( 749,09: 748,31%
Crown Castle Operatir Telecommunications/Cellul Extended Incremental Tranc ~ Loan
Company B-2 Term Loar 3.25% 1/31/201¢ 2,460,199 2,441,02! 2,460,311
Culligan International Compar Conglomeratt Dollar Loan (First Lien! Loan 6.25% 12/19/201 787,65¢ 738,10: 734,49:
Culligan International Compar Conglomeratt Dollar Loan (Second Lier Loan 9.5(% 6/19/201¢ 783,16: 732,06: 657,85¢
Cumulus Media Holdings Ini  Broadcast Radio ar Term Loan Loan
Television 4.25% 12/23/202! 500,00( 495,00( 502,81!
DaVita HealthCare Partners Ir Healthcare Tranche B Term Loa Loan
(fka DaVita Inc.) 4.5(% 10/20/2011 3,909,32 3,909,32 3,927,65!
DCS Business Services, Ir Financial Intermediarie Term B Loan Loan 7.25% 3/19/201¢  3,831,59! 3,792,82. 3,735,80!
DealerTrack Technologies, Ir  Computers & Electronic Term Loan Loan 3.5(% 2/28/202: 500,00( 498,75( 498,75(
Dell International LLC Retailers (Except Food ai  Term B Loan Loan
Drugs) 4.5(% 4/29/202(  1,995,00! 1,982,81! 1,988,93!
Delos Finance S.ar Leasing Loan Loan 3.5(% 2/26/202: 500,00( 497,50( 497,50(
Deluxe Entertainment Servic Media Initial Term Loan Loan
Group Inc. 6.5(% 2/28/202( 1,000,001 1,000,001 1,000,001
Digitalglobe, Inc. Ecological Services ar Term Loan Loan
Equipment 3.7%% 1/31/202( 248,12! 248,12! 247,81%
Drew Marine Group Inc Chemicals/Plastic Term Loan (First Lien Loan 4.5(% 11/19/202! 500,00( 499,39° 502,50(
Dunkin' Brands, Inc Food Service Term E-4 Loan Loan 3.25% 2/7/202.  3,956,73. 3,946,92! 3,936,94
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500,00(

496,25(
498,75(
2,393,98
250,00(
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2,973,68:
2,313,42!
3,262,06!
3,919,021
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491,10¢
972,65¢

2,568,05:
492,50¢

500,00(

497,30:
499,37¢
2,398,48;
252,08!

1,082,13
2,215,38!
4,873,45:
493,59°
3,872,16!
799,55¢

143,84¢
1,312,191
4,582,13!
980,00(
1,509,67
1,008,75!
2,990,641
1,489,10:!
1,967,84!
4,942,35;
501,87¢
437,02:
1,955,38:

500,48¢
3,685,18!

502,91¢
1,667,03!
1,993,36!
1,960,51!

1,562,55



Rovi Solutions Corporation
Rovi Guides, Inc

RPI Finance Trus

Scitor Corporatior

Sensata Technologi

B.V./Sensata Technology

Finance Company, LL¢
Sensus USA Inc. (fka Sens
Metering Systems
ServiceMaster Company, Tl
S| Organization, Inc., Th
Sonneborn, LLC
Sophia, L.P

Southwire Company, LLC (f.k.

Southwire Company
SRA International Inc
SRAM, LLC
SS&C Technologies Holding

Europe S.A.R.L
SS&C

Technologies, Inc., /Sunsh

Acquisition I, Inc.
SunCoke Energy, In
SunGard Data Systems |

(Solar Capital Corp.
SunGard Data Systems |

(Solar Capital Corp.
SuperMedia Inc. (fka Idea

Inc.)

Syniverse Holdings, In
Taminco Global Chemic:

Corporation
Team Health, Inc
TECTUM HOLDINGS INC

Tomkins, LLC / Tomkins, Inc

(f/k/a Pinafore, LLC /
Pinafore, Inc..

TransDigm Inc

Tricorbraun Inc. (fka Kranso
Industries, Inc.

Truven Health Analytics Inc
(fka Thomson Reuters
(Healthcare) Inc.

U.S. Security Associate
Holdings, Inc.

U.S. Security Associate
Holdings, Inc.

U.S. Security Associate
Holdings, Inc.

U.S. Silica Compan

U.S. Xpress Enterprises, Ir

United Surgical Partne|
International, Inc

Univar Inc.

Univision Communications In

UPC Financing Partnersh

Valeant Pharmaceutice
International, Inc

Verint Systems Inc

Verint Systems Inc

Vertafore, Inc

Visant Corporation (fka Joster

W.R. Grace & C-CONN
W.R. Grace & C-CONN

Washington Inventory Servic

Wendy's International, Ini

Wesco Aircraft Hardware Cor

West Corporatiol

Electronics/Electric

Drugs

Business Equipment at
Services

Industrial Equipmen

Utilities

Conglomeratt
Aerospace and Defen
Chemicals/Plastic
Electronics/Electric
Building and Developmer

Aerospace and Defen
Industrial Equipmen
Business Equipment at
Services

Business Equipment at
Services

Nonferrous Metals/Mineral
Conglomeratt

Conglomeratt
Publishing

Telecommunication
Chemicals/Plastic

Healthcare
Industrial Equipmen
Conglomeratt

Aerospace and Defen
Containers/Glass Produc

Healthcare

Business Equipment at
Services

Business Equipment at
Services

Business Equipment at
Services

Nonferrous Metals/Mineral
Industrial Equipmen
Healthcare

Chemicals/Plastic
Telecommunication

Broadcast Radio ar
Television
Drugs

Business Equipment at
Services

Business Equipment at
Services

Business Equipment at
Services

Leisure
Goods/Activities/Movies
Chemicals/Plastic
Chemicals/Plastic
Business Equipment at
Services

Food Service
Aerospace/Defens
Telecommunication

Tranche -3 Term Loar

Term E-2 Term Loar
Term Loan

Term Loan

Term Loan (First Lien

Tranche B Term Loa
New Tranche B Term Loa
Initial US Term Loar
Term B Loan

Initial Term Loan

Term Loan

Term Loan (First Lien
2013 Replacement Tern-2
Loan

2013 Replacement Ternm-1
Loan

Tranche B Term Loa
Tranche C Term Loa

Tranche E Term Loa
Loan

Initial Term Loan

Initial Tranche -3 Dollar Term

Loan

Tranche B Term Loa
Term Loan

Term E-2 Loan

Tranche C Term Loa
Term Loan

New Tranche B Term Loa

Delayed Draw Loal
Term B Loan
Term B Loan

Term Loan
Extended Term Loa
New Tranche B Term Loa

Term B Loan

Replacement Fir-Lien Term
Loan

Facility AF

Series D2 Term Loan
Term Loan

Tranche B Incremental Ter
Loan

Term Loan (2013

Tranche B Term Loan (201
Delayed Draw Term Loa
U.S. Term Loar

U.S. Term Loan (First Lier
Term B Loan

Tranche B Term Loa
Term E-10 Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

S-5

3.5(%
3.25%

5.00%

3.25%
5.7%
4.45%
5.5(%
6.5(%
4.5(%
3.25%
6.5(%
4.01%
3.25%
3.25%
4.0(%
3.95%
4.0(%

11.6(%
4.0(%

3.25%

3.7%%
6.5(%

3.7%%

3.7%%

4.00%

4.5(%
6.0(%
6.0(%
6.0(%
4.0(%
9.3&%

4.7%
5.00%

4.0(%
4.0(%
3.7%%
4.0(%
3.5(%
4.25%
5.25%
0.00%
3.0(%
6.75%
3.25%

4.7%
3.25%

3/29/201
5/9/201¢

2/15/201°

5/12/201¢
5/9/201"
1/31/201°
11/22/2011
3/30/201
7/19/201
2/10/202:
7/20/201
4/10/202(
6/7/201¢
6/7/201¢
7/26/201
2/28/201°
3/8/202(

12/30/2011
4/23/201¢

2/15/201¢

6/29/201
12/3/201!

9/29/201
2/28/202(

5/3/201¢

6/6/201¢
7/28/201
7/28/201
7/28/201°
7/23/202(
11/13/2011

4/3/201¢
6/30/201°

3/1/202(
1/31/202:
2/13/201¢

9/6/201¢

9/6/201¢
10/3/201¢
12/22/2011
2/3/202:
2/3/202:
12/20/201:
5/15/201¢

2/28/202:
6/30/201

1,344,45
5,308,21i

463,97°

1,524,731
1,945,01:
2,822,72!
3,880,67
807,05¢
928,38t
500,00(
3,268,57.
3,304,61
64,63t
624,83t
1,367,31.
304,31:
4,221,84!

264,33(
479,910

1,473,86:

4,387,501
3,800,16!

2,356,68!
4,896,51:

1,902,08:

492,52¢
160,14t
122,49:
818,17:
1,950,201
2,805,27:

2,456,501
3,884,94.

2,977,501
1,000,001
2,947,68i
1,900,801
1,000,001
2,899,62.
3,658,441

368,&
1,980,001

680,47(

500,00(
2,926,11

1,339,561
5,283,39°

462,83

1,524,731
1,939,82.
2,830,16!
3,863,00!
795,97t
917,17:
498,75¢
3,184,53
3,278,55
64,07(
619,34«
1,359,201
302,16°
4,096,931

257,13:
476,37:

1,464,16!

4,373,85!
3,788,701

2,360,79!
4,904,84:

1,895,43.

484,75!
159,23!
122,10¢
813,51
1,941,29
2,766,40!

2,429,621
3,884,23!

2,959,201
974,61
2,936,43,
1,892,73
997,52
2,899,62,
3,658,441
(329)
367,50:
2,004,18
674,56

498,75(
2,976,17

1,341,08:
5,339,16!

460,35«

1,529,10i
1,957,98
2,825,55!
3,800,65!
815,13(
934,19:
499,73(
3,276,74:
3,304,61
64,83¢
626,78
1,367,31.
305,45
4,238,94

196,76:
480,91:

1,473,401

4,387,501
3,762,15!

2,361,98;
4,914,871

1,903,28

493,51¢
160,34¢
122,64¢
819,19¢
1,954,251
2,777,22!

2,470,82
3,859,22!

2,984,46
1,002,501
2,955,52i
1,904,60:
1,000,001
2,909,771
3,607,00:

367,8;
1,965,15!

679,19

498,75(
2,909,66!

$ 299,137,56 $ 300,491,07
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Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

Schedule of Investments

February 28, 2013

Principal / Number of

Issuer_Name Industry Asset_Name Asset_Type Current Rate Maturity Date Shares Cost Fair Value
Elyria Foundry Company Industrial Equipmen Warrants Equity
LLC 0.0(% — 3 — 3 —
Network Business Equipment ai Common Equity
Communications, Inc Services 0.0(% 169,14: 169,14: 659,65¢
OLD All, Inc (fka Aleris Conglomerat¢ Common Equity
International Inc. 0.0(% 2,62¢ 224,65t 128,57¢
PATS Aircraft, LLC Aerospace and Defen Common Equity 0.0(% 51,81! 282,32t 282,32¢
SuperMedia Inc. (fka Idear  Publishing Common Stocl Equity
Inc.) 0.0(% 10,82: 28,78¢ 5,411
Academy, LTD. Retailers (Except Food a1 Initial Term Loan Loan
Drugs) (2012) 4.7%% 8/3/201¢ $ 1,980,03 1,966,00: 2,000,92'
ACCO Brands Corporatio Conglomerat¢ Term B Loar Loan 4.25% 5/1/201¢ $ 351,94 348,84 354,58
Acosta, Inc Food Product Term D Loan Loan 5.0(% 3/2/201¢ $ 4,183,65! 4,120,77. 4,216,08:
Aderant North America, Inc  Business Equipment ar Term Loan (First Lien Loan
Services 6.25% 12/20/201 $ 3,500,001 3,495,66. 3,552,501
Aeroflex Incorporater Aerospace and Defen Tranche B Term Loa Loan 5.7% 5/9/201¢ $ 3,345,51 3,333,08 3,369,20.
Alcatel-Lucent USA Inc Telecommunications/Cellul US Term Loar Loan 0.0(% 1/30/201¢ $ 1,075,001 1,069,62! 1,087,00i
Alere Inc. (fka IM US Healthcare Incremental -1 Term  Loan
Holdings, LLC) Loan 4.7%% 6/30/201" $ 1,980,001 1,941,34i 1,999,44.
Aptalis Pharma, Inc. (fk Drugs Term E-1 Loan Loan
Axcan Intermediate
Holdings Inc.) 5.5(% 2/10/201" $ 1,960,001 1,953,53! 1,963,92
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product LC-2 Facility Loan 3.45% 7/26/2011 $ 79,18° 79,187 79,60(
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product LC-3 Faclility Loan 3.45% 7/26/2011 $ 43,96 43,96 44,19(
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product U.S. Term B Loar Loan
(Extending) 3.45% 7/26/2011 $ 1,204,09: 1,204,09: 1,210,36!
Aramark Corporatiol Food Product U.S. Term C Loal Loan 3.52% 7/26/2011 $ 2,545,701 2,545,701 2,558,96:
Armstrong World Building and Developmer  Term Loan E-1 Loan
Industries, Inc 4.0(% 3/10/201 $ 2,122,93 2,109,741 2,124,26!
Asurion, LLC (fka Asurior Insurance Amortizing Term Loar Loan
Corporation) 4.7%% 7/23/201 $ 968,75( 960,22¢ 973,59
Asurion, LLC (fka Asurior Insurance Incremental Tranche- Loan
Corporation) 1 Term Loar 4.5(% 5/24/201! $ 5,659,09 5,602,69: 5,674,14.
Auction.Com, LLC Business Equipment ar Term Loan /-4 Loan
Services 4.9¢% 8/30/2011 $ 1,018,69 1,017,47! 1,013,601
Aurora Diagnostics, LLC Conglomeratt Tranche B Term Loa Loan 6.25% 5/26/2011 $ 3,188,88! 3,198,28. 3,077,27:
Autotrader.com, Inc Automotive Tranche -1 Term Loar Loan 4.0(% 12/15/201 $ 3,830,76: 3,830,76! 3,853,52;
Avantor Performanc Chemicals/Plastic Term Loan Loan
Materials Holdings, Inc 5.25% 6/24/201" $ 4,925,00! 4,907,12. 4,925,001
AZ Chem US Inc Chemicals/Plastic Term Loan Loan 5.28% 12/22/201 $ 1,570,57! 1,532,44 1,585,171
Biomet, Inc. Healthcare Dollar Term E-1 Loan Loan 4.0(% 7/25/201° $ 1,990,011 1,990,01: 2,003,44!
Bombardier Recreation Leisure Term B Loar Loan
Products Inc Goods/Activities/Movies 5.0(% 1/30/201¢ $ 1,000,001 990,10: 1,007,501
Brock Holdings I, Inc. Industrial Equipmen Term Loan (First Lien Loan 0.0(% 3/16/201° $ 2,000,001 2,022,501 2,013,341
Burlington Coat Factor Retailers (Except Food a1 Term E-1 Loan Loan
Warehouse Corporatic Drugs) 5.5(% 2/23/201" $ 2,776,84 2,767,80: 2,802,301
C.H.l. Overhead Doors, In  Home Furnishing Term Loan (First Lien Loan
(CHI) 7.25% 8/17/201° $ 2,976,291 2,931,55! 2,983,73
Camp International Holdin ~ Aerospace and Defen Refinanced Term Loa Loan
Company (First Lien) 5.25% 5/31/201! $ 997,50( 988,13t 1,005,401
Capital Automotive L.P Conglomerate Tranche B Term Loa Loan 5.25% 3/11/201° $ 2,811,08 2,817,77 2,823,96
Capstone Logistics, LL! Business Equipment ar Term Note A Loan
Services 7.5(% 9/16/2011 $ 2,699,30! 2,669,39 2,658,811
Capsugel Holdings US, In  Drugs Initial Term Loan Loan
(New) 4.7%% 8/1/201¢ $ 3,605,19! 3,595,971 3,641,21.
Celanese US Holdings LL  Chemicals/Plastic Dollar Term C Loar Loan
(Extended; 3.06% 10/31/201 $ 2,198,53. 2,219,21. 2,208,91.
Cenveo Corporatio Publishing Term B Facility Loan 7.0(% 12/21/201 $ 2,437,39! 2,421,92! 2,444,511
Charter Communicatior Cable and Satellit Term C Loar Loan
Operating, LLC Television 3.4€% 9/6/201¢ $ 2,047,54 2,044,04: 2,057,78!
Charter Communicatior Cable and Satellit Term D Loan Loan
Operating, LLC Television 4.0(% 5/15/201! $ 1,985,001 1,976,31 2,000,50:
CHS/ Community Healt Healthcare Extended Term Loa Loan
Systems, Inc 3.7%% 1/25/201° $ 4,064,511 3,963,65: 4,090,93!
Cinedigm Digital Funding | Business Equipment ar Term Loan Loan
LLC Services 5.7%% 2/28/201 $ 1,066,26! 1,059,42! 1,068,92!
Contec, LLC Electronics/Electric Second Lien Terr Loan
Notes 10.0(% 11/2/201¢ $ 401,20: 2,400,89. 2,578,211
Covanta Energy Corporatic  Ecological Services ar Term Loan Loan
Equipment 4.0(% 3/28/201! $ 496,25( 494,09! 501,83
CPI Internationa Electronics/Electric Term B Loar Loan
Acquisition, Inc. (f/k/a
Catalyst Holdings, Inc. 5.0(% 2/13/201° $ 4,805,83: 4,789,96 4,829,86:
Crown Castle Operatir Telecommunications/Cellul Tranche B Term Loa Loan
Company 4.0(% 1/31/201¢ $ 1,980,001 1,963,12! 1,989,48
Culligan Internationa Conglomerate Dollar Loan (First Lien Loan
Company 6.25% 12/19/201 $ 795,67! 732,45¢ 729,37:
Culligan Internationa Conglomeratt Dollar Loan (Secon: Loan
Company Lien) 9.5(% 6/19/2011 $ 783,16: 720,18¢ 604,34:
DaVita HealthCare Partne  Healthcare Tranche B Term Loa  Loan
Inc. (fka DaVita Inc.] 4.5(% 10/20/201 $ 3,949,62. 3,949,62: 3,977,82:
DCS Business Services, Ir  Financial Intermediarie Term B Loar Loan 7.25% 3/19/201 $ 3,970,011 3,919,90 3,910,461
Del Monte Foods Compar Food Product Initial Term Loan Loan 4.0% 3/8/201¢ $ 4,438,13 4,473,06 4,443,68
Delphi Corporatior Electronics/Electric Tranche A Term Loa Loan
Retired 03/01/201 4.25% 3/31/2011 $ 1,683,35 1,685,40: 1,682,65!



Digitalglobe, Inc.

DS Waters of America, Ini
Dunkin’ Brands, Inc
DynCorp International Inc
Education Management LL

elnstruction Corporatio
Electrical Component
International, Inc
Electrical Component
International, Inc
Evergreen Acqco 1 L

Federe-Mogul Corporatior
Federe-Mogul Corporatior
First Data Corporatio

First Data Corporatio
Freescale Semiconductor, It

FTD Group, Inc

Generac Power Systems, i
General Nutritior

Centers, Inc
Global Tel*Link Corporatior

Goodyear Tire & Rubbe
Company, The
Grifols Inc.

Grosvenor Capite
Management Holdings,
LLLP

Hanger Orthopedi
Group, Inc.

HCA Inc.

Health Managemer
Associates, Inc

Hertz Corporation, Th

HIBU PLC (fka Yell Groug
PLC)

HMH Holdings (Delaware
Inc.

Hologic, Inc.

Hunter Defens:
Technologies, Inc

Huntsman International LL!

Infor (US), Inc. (fka Lawsol
Software Inc.,

Inventiv Health, Inc. (fk:
Ventive Health, Inc

J. Crew Group, Inc

JFB Firth Rixson Inc

Kalispel Tribal Economi
Authority

Kinetic Concepts, Inc

Kronos Worldwide, Inc

MetroPCS Wireless, In(

Michaels Stores, Inc

Microsemi Corporatiol
National CineMedia, LLC

Newsday, LLC

Novelis, Inc.

Novelis, Inc.

NPC International, Inc

NRG Energy, Inc

NusSil Technology LLC

OEP Pearl Dutch Acquisitic
B.V.

On Assignment, Inc

Onex Carestream Finance
OpenLink International, Inc

P.F. Chan’s China
Bistro, Inc. (Wok
Acquisition Corp.)
PATS Aircraft, LLC
Penn National Gaming, In
Penn National Gaming, In
PetCo Animal Supplies, In

Pharmaceutical Produ
Development, Inc. (Jagui
Holdings, LLC)

Physician Oncology Service
LP

Physician Oncology Service
LP

Pinnacle Foods Finance LL

Preferred Proppants, LL

Ecological Services ar
Equipment

Beverage and Tobact
Food Service:
Aerospace and Defen
Leisure
Goods/Activities/Movies
Electronics/Electric
Electronics/Electric

Electronics/Electric

Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)

Automotive

Automotive

Financial Intermediarie
Financial Intermediarie
Electronics/Electric

Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)

Industrial Equipmen
Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)

Business Equipment ai
Services
Chemicals/Plastic

Drugs

Brokers/Dealers/Investme
Houses

Healthcare

Healthcare
Healthcare

Automotive

Business Equipment ai
Services

Conglomerate

Healthcare
Aerospace and Defen

Chemicals/Plastic
Business Equipment ar
Services

Conglomerate

Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)
Industrial Equipmen

Lodging and Casinc

Healthcare
Chemicals/Plastic
Telecommunication
Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)
Electronics/Electric
Leisure
Goods/Activities/Movies
Publishing
Conglomerate
Conglomerate

Food Service

Utilities
Chemicals/Plastic
Chemicals/Plastic

Business Equipment ar
Services

Healthcare

Business Equipment ar
Services

Food/Drug Retailer

Aerospace and Defen
Lodging and Casinc
Lodging and Casinc
Retailers (Except Food ai
Drugs)

Conglomerat¢

Healthcare
Healthcare

Food Product

Nonferrous Metals/Mineral

Term Loan

Term Loan (First Lien
Term E-3 Loan

Term Loan

Tranche (-2 Term Loar

Initial Term Loan
Synthetic Revolving
Loan

Term Loan

New Term Loar

Tranche B Term Loa
Tranche C Term Loa
2017 Dollar Term Loal
2018 Dollar Term Loal
Tranche I-1 Term Loar
Retired 03/01/201
Initial Term Loan

Term Loan
Amended Tranche
Term Loan
Replacement Terr
Loan

Loan (Second Lier

New U.S. Tranche |
Term Loan
Tranche C Term Loa

Term C Loar

Tranche -3 Term Loar
Term B Loar

Tranche -1 Term Loar
Facility B1- YB (USA)
LLC (11/2009)

Term Loan (Exit
Facility)

Tranche A Term Loa
Term Loan

Extended Term B Loa
Tranche I-2 Term Loar

Consolidated Terr
Loan
Term E-1 Loan

2013 Replacemel
Dollar Term Facility
Loan

Term Loan

Dollar Term (-1 Loan
Initial Term Loan
Tranche -2 Term Loar
Term B Loar

Term Loan
Term Loan

Term Loan

Term E-2 Loan
Term Loan

Term Loan

Term Loan

Term Loan

Initial BV Term Loan

Initial Term B Loan

Term Loan
Initial Term Loan

Term Borrowing

Term Loan
Term A Facility
Term B Facility
New Loans

2013 Term Loat

Delayed Draw Tern
Loan

Effective Date Tern
Loan

Extended Initial Tern
Loan

Term B Loar

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan

Loan
Loan
Loan
Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

Loan

0.0(%
10.5(%
0.0(%
6.25%

4.31%
0.0(%

6.75%
6.75%
5.0(%
2.14%
2.1%
5.2(%
4.2(%
4.45%

4.7%
6.25%

3.7%

6.0(%

4.7%

4.25%

4.25%

4.0(%
3.45%

4.5(%
0.0(%

3.95%

7.25%
3.2(%

3.54%
2.7%%

5.28%

7.5(%

4.0(%

4.25%

7.5(%
5.5(%
7.00%
4.01%

3.7%%
3.7%%

3.4%
3.7(%
4.0(%
4.00%
4.5(%
3.25%
5.0(%

6.5(%

5.0(%
5.0(%

7.7%%
5.25%
8.5(%
1.72%
3.7%%

4.00%

4.25%

7.7%%

7.7%

3.7%
7.5(%

1/31/202(
8/29/201°
2/14/2021

7/7/201¢

6/1/201¢
7/2/201:

2/4/201¢
2/4/201°
7/9/201¢
12/29/201
12/28/201
3/24/201°
3/23/201!
12/1/2011

6/11/201!
5/30/201!

3/2/201¢
12/14/201
4/30/201!

6/1/201°

12/5/201(

12/1/201¢
5/1/201¢

11/16/201
3/11/201¢

7/31/201-

5/22/201!
8/1/201"

8/22/201:
4/19/201

4/5/201¢
8/4/201¢

3/7/201¢

6/30/201°

2/24/201°

5/4/201¢
6/13/201!
11/3/2011

1/28/202(
2/20/202!

11/26/201
10/12/201
3/10/201°
3/10/201°
12/28/201
7/1/201¢
4/7/201°

3/30/201!

5/15/201!
2/25/201°

10/30/201
6/22/201!
10/6/201(
7/14/2011
7/16/201!

11/24/201

12/5/201
1/31/201°
1/31/201°

10/2/2011
12/15/201

VY B B L B B PR B B L HBHROH

® B B B B B B B B

B HBPE B PO BHL LR B

® O HLe

Ve B » B

250,00(
2,977,501
4,000,001

574,16:

3,925,001
2,997,72.

117,64
1,786,47

497,50:
2,589,03
1,320,93
2,111,02:
2,290,45
2,534,34i

3,715,72:
906,11:

4,746,59
1,964,91.
4,000,001

3,465,98

3,336,37:

3,910,66
5,734,691

2,970,001
3,000,001

3,030,60!

992,50(
2,437,501

3,679,93!
3,920,001
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5,761,16!
1,841,401
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Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2012 February 29, 2012
INCREASE FROM OPERATIONS

Net investment income (los $ (2,143,63) $ 1,033,32 % 2,368,00!
Net realized gain (loss) from investme (8,815,29)) 2,532,55! (4,547,95)
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on ibwesits 6,776,87. 3,235,77 (650,24
Net increase (decrease) in net assets from opes: (4,182,05) 6,801,65! (2,830,18)
Total increase (decrease) in net as (4,182,05) 6,801,65! (2,830,18)
Net assets at beginning of peri 838,81 (5,962,84) (3,132,65)
Net assets at end of peri $ (3,343,23) $ 838,81 $ (5,962,84)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013 February 29, 2012

Operating activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS FRC

OPERATIONS $ (4,182,05) $ 6,801,65 $ (2,830,18)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE NET INCREASE

(DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS TO

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:
Paic-in-kind interest incom: (10,129 — (223,449
Net accretion of discount on investme (568,674 (1,383,97) (2,997,51)
Amortization of deferred debt financing co 994,60: 1,015,33: 1,016,12.
Loss on extinguishment of de 3,442,44. — —
Net realized (gain) loss from investme 8,815,29 (2,532,55) 4,547,95
Net unrealized (appreciation) depreciation on itwesits (6,776,87) (3,235,77) 650,24
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investrr 128,190,65 165,363,96 216,319,52
Purchase of investmer (55,721,38) (151,267,16) (208,491,10)
(Increase) decrease in operating as!
Interest receivabl 134,03: (3,547 155,57¢
Receivable from open trad 3,330,27. 4,915,10: (10,046,64)
Other Asset: (91,336 — —
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilit
Interest Payabl (43,645 (160,62() 125,10:
Payable for open trad: (6,901,250 (8,510,89) (293,95)
Accrued base management 31,88: (2,34 (83%)
Accrued subordinated management (97,629 (9,387) (3,339
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED BY) OPERATIN(
ACTIVITIES 70,546,21 10,989,78 (2,072,49)
Financing activities
Borrowings on dek 277,711,62 — —
Paydowns on del (366,793,37) — —
Deferred debt financing cos (2,250,39) — —
NET CASH USED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES (91,332,15) — —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CAS
EQUIVALENTS (20,785,93) 10,989,78 (2,072,49)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI 28,804,87 17,815,08 19,887,58
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI $ 8,018,93 $ 28,804,87 $ 17,815,08
Supplemental Informatior
Interest paid during the peri $ 11,722,15 $ 15,773,62 $ 14,355,52
Supplemental nc-cash information
Paic-in-kind interest incom: $ 10,12 $ — 3 223,44t
Net accretion of discount on investme $ 568,67 $ 1,383,971 $ 2,997,51.
Amortization of deferred debt financing co $ 994,60 $ 1,01533, $ 1,016,12.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP. CLO 2013-1, LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Organization and Purpose

Saratoga Investment Corp. CLO 2013-1, Ltd. (theu€s”, “we”, “our”, “us”, “CLO” and “Saratoga CLO})an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated under the lawe the Cayman Islands was formed on November 287 20d commenced operations on
January 22, 2008. The Issuer was established taracoy participate in U.S. dollar-denominated avgte debt obligations.

On January 22, 2008, the Issuer issued $400.0omitlif notes, consisting of Class A Floating Ratei&eNotes, Class B Floating Re
Senior Notes, Class C Deferrable Floating Rate §d@tass D Deferrable Floating Rate Notes, ClaBeferrable Floating Rate Notes
(collectively the “Secured Notes”), and Subordidatotes. The notes were issued pursuant to antimdgmated January 22, 2008 (the
“Indenture”), with U.S. Bank National Associatiaihg “Trustee”) servicing as the Trustee there under

On October 17, 2013, in a refinancing transactioba,Issuer issued $284.9 million of notes (the ‘2Q1CLO Notes”), consisting of
Class X Floating Rate Senior Notes, Class A-1 kigaRate Senior Notes, Class A-2 Floating Rate @evotes, Class B Floating Rate Senior
Notes, Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Notes,sdlaBeferrable Floating Rate Notes, Class E Defégr&loating Rate Notes, and Clas
Deferrable Floating Rate Notes. The 201810 Notes were issued pursuant to the Indentitfethve same Trustee. Proceeds of the issuar
the 2013-1 CLO Notes were used, along with existisgets held by the Trustee, to redeem all of doeir®d Notes issued in 2008. As of
February 28, 2014, Saratoga Investment Corp. 00886 of the Subordinated Notes of the CLO.

Pursuant to an investment management agreemeritritrestment Management Agreement”), Saratoga tmeest Corp. (the
“Investment Manager”), provides investment manag@reervices to the Issuer, and makes day-to-dassinvent decisions concerning the
assets of the Issuer. The Investment Manager alorms certain administrative services on behiihe Issuer under the Investment
Management Agreement.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentatio

The accompanying financial statements have begraped in accordance with U.S. generally accepteduatting principles (“U.S.
GAAP”) and are stated in U.S. dollars. The follogris a summary of the significant accounting pedollowed by the Issuer in the
preparation of its financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with U.S. GAAP requires the Investment Maaatp make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts eftsssd liabilities at the date of the financiatsments, including the fair value of
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SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP. CLO 2013-1, LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

investments, and the amounts of income and expelseg) the reporting period. Actual results codiffer from these estimates and such
differences could be material.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Issuer defines cash and cash equivalents hky figuid financial instruments with original matties of three months or less. Ci
and cash equivalents may include investments inepomarket mutual funds, which are carried at falue. At February 28, 2014 and
February 28, 2013, cash and cash equivalents asdtmt$8.0 million and $28.8 million, respectivedyid are swept on an overnight basis intc
a money market deposit account and invested irestarJP Morgan Liquidity Institutional fund heltthe Trustee.

Valuation of Investments

The Issuer accounts for its investments at faineah accordance with the Financial Accounting 8#ads Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 8Zair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASCBZBC 820 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valstgliishes a fair value hierarchy based on thatgualinputs used to measure fair value and
enhances disclosure requirements for fair valuesmmeanents. ASC 820 requires the Issuer to assuahé@ghnvestments are to be sold at the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities date in thagipal market to independent market participantsy the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market, which may be a hypotthetiarket. Market participants are defined as baiged sellers in the principal or most
advantageous market that are independent, knowdétiyeand willing and able to transact.

Investments for which market quotations are reaalifgilable are fair valued at such market quotatimtained from independent th
party pricing services and market makers subjeahtodecision by the Investment Manager to appeofar value determination to reflect
significant events affecting the value of theseestments. The Investment Manager values investnienighich market quotations are not
readily available at fair value. Determinationdaif value may involve significant judgments antireates. The types of factors that may be
considered in determining the fair value of investits include the nature and realizable value ofcatiateral, the portfolio company’s ability
to make payments, market yield trend analysisiiagkets in which the portfolio company does businesmparison to publicly traded
companies, discounted cash flow and other relefeahdrs.

Because such valuations, and particularly valuatmfrprivate investments and private companiesindrerently uncertain, they may
fluctuate over short periods of time and may beebam estimates. The determination of fair valug diier materially from the values that
would have been used if a ready market for thesesiments existed. Our net asset value could berially affected if the determinations
regarding the fair value of our investments wer¢emally higher or lower than the values that dtamately realized upon the disposal of such
investments.
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SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP. CLO 2013-1, LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Investment Transactions and Income Recogn

Purchases and sales of investments and the retsikried gains or losses are recorded on a traigebdais. Interest income, adjusted
for amortization of premium and accretion of disaus recorded on an accrual basis to the extetstuch amounts are expected to be
collected. The Issuer stops accruing interestomitestments when it is determined that inteseabilonger collectible. Discounts and
premiums on investments purchased are accretediaetbover the life of the respective investmenhgshe effective yield method. The
amortized cost of investments represents the @ligiost adjusted for the accretion of discountsamdrtizations of premium on investments.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual statenhuhrere is reasonable doubt that principal oréstewill be collected. Accrued
interest is generally reserved when a loan is placenon-accrual status. Interest payments receimatbn-accrual loans may be recognized a
a reduction in principal depending upon the InvesthManager’s judgment regarding collectability.iNaccrual loans are restored to accrual
status when past due principal and interest is @iy in management’s judgment, are likely to rencairrent, although we may make
exceptions to this general rule if the loan hasi@aht collateral value and is in the processafection.

Paid-in-Kind Interest

The Issuer holds debt investments in its portftiimt contain a PIK interest provision. The PIK iet&, which represents contractually
deferred interest added to the investment baldratds generally due at maturity, is generally rded on the accrual basis to the extent such
amounts are expected to be collected. We stopiagcRIK interest if we do not expect the issuebéoable to pay all principal and interest
when due.

Deferred Debt Financing Costs, r
Included in deferred debt financing costs of $2iltian as of February 28, 2014 are structuring fekthe investment bank, rating
agency fees and legal fees associated with tharissuwf the 2013-1 CLO Notes on October 17, 2048h$osts have been capitalized and

amortized using an effective yield method, overliteeof the related notes.

Deferred debt financing costs of $1.6 million, imad in connection with the issuance of the Secilets, were expensed when the
Secured Notes were extinguished on October 17,.2013

Deferred debt financing cost of $2.1 million ad~ebruary 28, 2013 included structuring fees ofitivestment bank, rating agency
fees and legal fees associated with the assoacidtedhe establishment of the Issuer in 2007. Stadts have been capitalized and amortized
using an effective yield method, over the life lné facility.
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Management Fee

The Issuer is externally managed by the Investrivlmager pursuant to the Investment Management Aggat As compensation for
the performance of its obligations under the Inwestt Management Agreement, the Investment Managattitled to receive from the Issuer a
base management fee (the “Base Management Femihcadinated management fee (the “Subordinated damant Fee”) and an incentive
management fee (the “Incentive Management Fee'®.Bdse Management Fee is payable in arrears dydgebject to availability of funds
and to the satisfaction of payment obligationshandebt obligations of the Issuer (the “PriorityRafyments”) in an amount equal to 0.25% pel
annum of the Fee Basis Amount at the beginning@fQollection Period. The Subordinated Managemeati§ payable in arrears quarterly
(subject to availability of funds and to the Prigiof Payments) in an amount equal to 0.25% peuanof the Fee Basis Amount at the
beginning of the Collection Period. The Incentivadgement Fee equals 20% of the remaining intpreséeds and principal proceeds, if
after the Subordinated Notes have realized thentheemanagement fee target return of 12.0%, im@ance with the Priority of Payments
after making the prior distributions on the relevpayment date. For the years ended February 28, @0d 2013, and February 29, 2012, no
Incentive Management Fee’s have been paid.

Expense:

The Issuer bears its own organizational and offeexpenses, all expenses related to its investpregtam and expenses incurred in
connection with its operations including, but riotited to, external legal, administrative, trusteecounting, tax and audit expenses, costs
related to trading, acquiring, monitoring or disipgsof investments of the Issuer, and interest@heér borrowing expenses, expenses of
preparing and distributing reports, financial staats, and litigation or other extraordinary exgsng he Issuer has retained the Trustee to
provide trustee services. Additionally, the Trugteeforms loan administration, debt covenant coamglé calculations, and monitoring and
reporting services. For the years ended Februgyr2@14 and 2013, and February 29, 2012, the Igmidr$0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.1
million, respectively, for trustee services prowddmnd is included in other expenses in the Statenfeédperations.

Interest Expens

The Issuer has issued rated and unrated notesatock its operations. Interest on debt is calcdlbyethe Trustee for the Issuer.
Interest is accrued and generally paid quartedy.tie years ended February 28, 2014 and 2013Felidiary 29, 2012, $5.7 million, $8.8
million and $7.9 million of payments to the Suboratied Notes were included in interest expensediStatement of Operations, respectively.

Risk Managemet

In the ordinary course of its business, the Issugmages a variety of risks, including market risl aredit risk. Market risk is the risk
of potential adverse changes to the value of
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investments because of changes in market condisiocis as interest rate movements and volatiliipwestment prices.
Credit risk is the risk of default or non-perfornearby portfolio companies, equivalent to the inmresit’'s carrying amount.

The Issuer is also exposed to credit risk reladendintaining all of its cash and cash equivalantduding those in reserve accounts,
at a major financial institution.

The Issuer has investments in lower rated and coabfaquality unrated high yield bonds and bank$odnvestments in high yield
investments are accompanied by a greater degreredit risk. The risk of loss due to default by thsuer is significantly greater for holders of
high yield securities, because such investmentgeamerally unsecured and are often subordinateth&r creditors of the issuer.

3. Fair Value Measurements

As noted above, the Issuer values all investmenget¢ordance with ASC 820. ASC 820 requires enlthdiselosures about assets
liabilities that are measured and reported atfalne. As defined in ASC 820, fair value is thecprthat would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandantbetween market participants at the measuredstpt

ASC 820 establishes a hierarchal disclosure framewdich prioritizes and ranks the level of margdte observability of inputs
used in measuring investments at fair value. Mapkiee observability is affected by a number oftdas, including the type of investment and
the characteristics specific to the investmentefitments with readily available active quoted rigefor which fair value can be measured
from actively quoted prices generally will haveigher degree of market price observability andsade degree of judgment used in measuring
fair value.

Based on the observability of the inputs used enviluation techniques, the Issuer is requireddoige disclosures on fair value
measurements according to the fair value hierarthg.fair value hierarchy ranks the observabilityhe inputs used to determine fair values.
Investments carried at fair value are classified disclosed in one of the following three categarie

» Level 1—Valuations based on quoted prices in aagtiaekets for identical assets or liabilities tha tssuer has the ability to access.

»  Level 2—Valuations based on inputs other than quptees in active markets, which are either diyeat indirectly observable.

e Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unobservalleigmificant to the overall fair value measurem@ihie inputs used in tl
determination of fair value may require significaminagement judgment or estimation. Such informatiay be the result of

S-13




Table of Contents
SARATOGA INVESTMENT CORP. CLO 2013-1, LTD.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
consensus pricing information or broker quotes Winclude a disclaimer that the broker would nohb#l to such a price in an actual
transaction. The non-binding nature of consensietngrand/or quotes accompanied by disclaimer woeddilt in classification as Level 3

asset, assuming no additional corroborating evielenc

In addition to using the above inputs in investmaitiations, the Issuer continues to employ thaat#n policy that is consistent w
ASC 820 and the 1940 Act.

The following table presents fair value measuresiehinvestments, by major class, as of Februan2@84, according to the fair
value hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Term loans $ — $ 297,872,17 $ 2,618,89° $ 300,491,07
Structured finance securiti — — — —
Equity interest — — — —
Total $ — $ 297,872,17 $ 2,618,89° $ 300,491,07

The following table presents fair value measuresiehinvestments, by major class, as of Februan2@83, according to the fair
value hierarchy:

Fair Value Measurements

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Term loans $ — $ 358,237,07 $ 4,256,93. $ 362,494,00
Structured finance securiti — — 10,850,00 10,850,00
Equity interest 5,41( — 1,070,56. 1,075,97.
Total $ 541C $ 358,237,07 $ 16,177,49 $ 374,419,97

Transfers into or out of Level 1, 2 or 3 are redpgd at the reporting date.

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances for investmentaugelevel 3 inputs for the year
ended February 28, 2014:

Structured Finance

Term Loans Securities Equity Interest
Balance as of February 28, 2013 $ 4,256,93. $ 10,850,00 $ 1,070,56:
Net unrealized gains (losse (45,987 2,189,03 (394,43)
Purchases and other adjustments to 34,87 203,16° —
Sales and redemptio (408,13)) (13,846,45) (181,476
Net realized gain (loss) from investme 102,39: 604,24° (494,649
Net transfers in and/or out of Level 3i (1,321,18) — —
Balance as of February 28, 2014 $ 2,618,89° $ — $ —

(1) The Issuer’s investment in Tectum Holdings Inc. wassferred into Level 2 during the year endedrk@ty, 28, 2014, as the
reliability of market quotes became available fas investment and have been subsequently useglization purposes.
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The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances for investmentaugelevel 3 inputs for the year
ended February 28, 2013:

Structured Finance
Term Loans Securities Equity Interest

Balance as of February 29, 2012 $ — 3 14,507,60 $ 1,070,56:
Net unrealized gains (losse (102,54) (126,65 —
Purchases and other adjustments to 4,018,66 219,45! —
Sales and redemptio (74,147 (4,000,001 —
Net realized gain (loss) from investme 26,62: 249,60: —
Net transfers in and/or out of Level 3i 388,32! — —
Balance as of February 28, 2013 $ 4,256,93. $ 10,850,00 $ 1,070,56:

(2) The Issuer’s investment in PATS Aircraft, LLC waartsferred into Level 3 during the year ended Fatyri28, 2013 due to changes
in liquidity. These changes impacted the Investnhdsumhager’s ability to obtain observable market infation. Accordingly, the
determination of fair value for this investmentu@gd significant management judgment and estimatiesulting in a Level 3
classification for the year ended February 28, 2013

Transfers into or out of Level 3 are recognizethatreporting date.

Purchases and other adjustments to cost includinases of new investments at cost, effects ofaréiimg/restructuring,
accretion/amortization of income from discount/piem on debt securities, and PIK.

Sales and redemptions represent net proceeds eddedm investments sold, and principal paydowesiked, during the period.

The net unrealized loss on level 3 investments aeldf February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013 3@ million and $1.8 million,
respectively, and is included in net unrealizedrapiation on investments in the Statements of Qjoersr

The valuation techniques and significant unobsdevaiputs used in recurring Level 3 fair value megaments of assets as of
February 28, 2013 were as follows:

Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range
Term loans $ 4,256,93. Yield Analysis Market Yield 7.7%17.0%
Structured finance securiti $ 10,850,00 Yield Analysis Market Yield 8.9%-10.7%
Equity interes $ 1,070,56. Market Comparabl EBITDA Multiples 5.5x-8.0x

Significant unobservable inputs used in the falu@aneasurement of the Issuer’s term loans andtated finance securities include
comparable market yields. For investments utilizingield analysis valuation technique, a signifidanrease (decrease) in the market yield, ir
isolation, would result in a significantly loweri¢her) fair value measurement.
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Generally, a change in the assumption for compargblds is accompanied by a directionally opposiitenge in the assumption used for
pricing.

Significant unobservable inputs used in the faluganeasurement of the Issuer’s equity interesisidte EBITDA multiples. For
investments utilizing EBITDA multiples, a significaincrease (decrease) in the EBITDA multiple,solation, would result in a significant
higher (lower) fair value measurement.

4. Financing

On January 22, 2008, the Issuer issued $400.0omillf notes, consisting of Class A Floating Ratei@eNotes, Class B Floating R
Senior Notes, Class C Deferrable Floating Rate §d@i¢ass D Deferrable Floating Rate Notes, ClaBgferrable Floating Rate Notes
(collectively the “Secured Notes”), and Subordidatotes. The notes were issued pursuant to thentade

The Secured Notes are limited recourse obligatidnikse Issuer. The Subordinated Notes are unseclimgtkd recourse debt
obligations of the Issuer.

On October 17, 2013, the Issuer issued $284.9amithf notes (the “2013-1 CLO Notes”), consistingdddiss X Floating Rate Senior
Notes, Class -1 Floating Rate Senior Notes, Class A-2 FloatiageRSenior Notes, Class B Floating Rate Senior$\@kass C Deferrable
Floating Rate Notes, Class D Deferrable FloatinteR#ntes, Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Noted,Glass F Deferrable Floating Rate
Notes. The 201-1 CLO Notes were issued pursuant to the Indentitiethe same Trustee. Proceeds of the issuanitee &013-1 CLO Notes
were used along with existing assets held by thst€e to redeem all of the Secured Notes issu2@dB. The Subordinated Notes were not
included in the refinancing transaction.

The 2013-1 CLO Notes are limited recourse obligetiof the Issuer. The Subordinated Notes are unsgclimited recourse debt
obligations of the Issuer.

The relative order of seniority of payment of eatdss of securities is, as follows: first, Classlgtes, second, Class A-1 Notes, third,
Class A-2 Notes, fourth, Class B Notes, fifth, Gl&@Notes, sixth, Class D Notes, seventh, ClasstEs, eighth, Class F Notes, and ninth, the
Subordinated Notes, with (a) each class of seear{tther than the Subordinated Notes) in suclhédistg senior to each other class of secur
that follows such class of securities in suchdistl (b) each class of securities (other than thesCK Notes) in such list being subordinate to
each other class of securities that precedes das# of securities in such list. The Subordinatetell are subordinated to the 2013-1 CLO
Notes and are entitled to periodic payments froterest proceeds available in accordance with thaigrof Payments
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The table below sets forth certain informationdach outstanding class of notes issued, pursudiné tmdenture on October 17, 20

at February 28, 2014:

Principal Amount

Debt Security Interest Rate Maturity Amount Outstanding
Class X Floating Rate Senior Not LIBOR + 1.05% October 20,202 $ 2,500,001 $ 1,666,66!
Class /1 Floating Rate Senior Not: LIBOR + 1.30% October 20, 202 170,000,00 170,000,00
Class /-2 Floating Rate Senior Not: LIBOR + 1.50% October 20, 202 20,000,00 20,000,00
Class B Floating Rate Senior No LIBOR + 2.00% October 20, 202 44,800,00 44,800,00
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 2.90% October 20, 202 16,000,00 16,000,00
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No LIBOR + 3.50% October 20, 202 14,000,00 14,000,00
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 4.50% October 20, 202 13,100,00 13,100,00
Class F Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 5.75% October 20, 202 4,500,001 4,500,00!
Subordinated Notes N/A October 20, 202 30,000,00 30,000,00

$ 314,900,00 $ 314,066,66

The table below sets forth certain informationdach outstanding class of notes issued, pursudhné tmdenture on January 22, 2008,

at February 28, 2013:

Principal

Amount

Debt Security Interest Rate Maturity Amount Outstanding
Class A Floating Rate Senior Not LIBOR + 0.75% January 21,202 $ 296,000,00 $ 296,000,00
Class B Floating Rate Senior No LIBOR + 2.50% January 21, 202 22,000,00 22,000,00
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 3.75% January 21, 202 14,000,00 14,000,00
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No LIBOR + 4.70% January 21, 202 16,000,00 16,000,00
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 6.45% January 21, 202 22,000,00 17,960,04
Subordinated Notes N/A January 21, 202 30,000,00 30,000,00
$ 400,000,00 $ 395,960,04

The following table shows each outstanding clagsodés issued, pursuant to the Indenture, at &irevat February 28, 2014:

Debt Security

February 28, 2014

Class X Floating Rate Senior Not 1,664,66!
Class /1 Floating Rate Senior Not: 168,878,00
Class /2 Floating Rate Senior Not: 20,000,00
Class B Floating Rate Senior No 44,679,04
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na 15,944,00
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No 13,766,20
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na 12,481,68
Class F Deferrable Floating Rate Nc 4,398,301
Subordinated Notes 19,569,59

$ 301,381,48

These notes are fair valued based on a discountddflow model, specifically using Intex cash flowodels, to form the basis for the
valuation and would be classified as level 3 ligib# within the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table shows each outstanding clagsodés issued, pursuant to the Indenture, at fdirevat February 28, 2013:

Debt Security

February 28, 2012

Class A Floating Rate Senior Not $ 292,879,00
Class B Floating Rate Senior No 22,900,91
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na 14,592,98
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No 16,414,94
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na 17,999,34
Subordinated Notes 25,516,95

$ 390,304,16

The following table provides the weighted averagerest rate for the years ended February 28, Zodigkuary 28, 2013 and

February 29, 2012:

Debt Security

Interest Rate

Weighted Average Interest Rate

February 28, 2014

February 28, 2013

February 29, 2012

20151 CLO Notes

Class X Floating Rate Senior Not LIBOR + 1.05% 1.2% N/A N/A
Class /1 Floating Rate Senior Not: LIBOR + 1.30% 1.54% N/A N/A
Class /-2 Floating Rate Senior Not: LIBOR + 1.50% 1.70% N/A N/A
Class B Floating Rate Senior No LIBOR + 2.00% 2.2% N/A N/A
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 2.90% 3.1%% N/A N/A
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No LIBOR + 3.50% 3.7% N/A N/A
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 4.50% 4.70% N/A N/A
Class F Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 5.75% 5.9%% N/A N/A
Subordinated Note N/A N/A N/A N/A
Secured Notes

Class A Floating Rate Senior Nof LIBOR + 0.75% 1.02% 1.15% 1.12%
Class B Floating Rate Senior No LIBOR + 2.50% 2.7¢% 2.9(% 2.81%
Class C Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 3.75% 4.02% 4.15% 4.12%
Class D Deferrable Floating Rate No LIBOR + 4.70% 4.98% 5.1(% 5.01%
Class E Deferrable Floating Rate Na LIBOR + 6.45% 6.7:% 6.85% 6.82%

The Indenture provides that payments on the Subateil Notes shall rank subordinate in priority ayment to payments due on all
classes of 2013-1 CLO Notes and subordinate inrifyriof payment to the payment of fees and experBissributions on the Subordinated
Notes are limited to the assets of the Issuer neimgiafter payment of all of the liabilities of th&suer that rank senior in priority of paymen

the Subordinated Notes. To the extent that thegamds from the collateral are not sufficient to mdistributions on the Subordinated Notes th

Issuer will have no further obligation in respettte Subordinated Notes.
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Interest proceeds and, after the 2013-1 CLO Nad®e been paid in full, principal proceeds, in eaabe will be distributed to the
holders of the Subordinated Notes in accordande thvé Indenture.

Distributions, if any, on the Subordinated NoteB e payable quarterly on the 20th day of eactudan April, July and October of
each calendar year or, if any such day is not mbas day, on the next succeeding business daly, (@dPayment Date”), commencing on the
first Payment Date, and on January 21, 2020 (@nyfsuch day is not a business day, the next sdicgebusiness day) (the “Stated
Redemption Date”) (if not redeemed prior to sucteflaequentially in order of seniority. At the $&Redemption Date, the Subordinated
Notes will be redeemed after payment in full ofdadlthe 201-1 CLO Notes and the payment of all administratind other fees and expenses.
The failure to pay interest proceeds or principaktpeds to the holders of the Subordinated Notksatibe an event of default under the
Indenture.

In May of 2009, the Issuer defaulted on its Clags/&rcollateralization ratio of 105.10%, at whiabind, $4.0 million of interest
proceeds were used to repay the Class E Notesgiintdavember 2009. Interest on the Class C, Class® Class E Notes was deferred and
repaid in January of 2010 upon the Issuer’s retmigcompliance. Distributions to the Subordinatedesaesumed in April of 2010.

As of February 28, 2014, the remaining unamortiisdount on the Class X, Class A-1 Notes, ClassMotes, Class B Notes,
Class C Notes, Class D Notes, Class E Notes, aagb® Notes were $0.0 million, $1.7 million, $0.®ion, $1.1 million, $0.7 million, $0.9
million, $1.7 million and $0.6 million, respectiyel

The remaining unamortized deferred debt financimgts; on the Secured Notes, of $1.6 million, aratortized discount on the
Secured Notes of $1.8 million, were recognizedduitnal amortization expense when the relateésatere extinguished and recorded
within loss on extinguishment of debt in the Statatrof Operations.

5. Income Tax

Under the current laws, the Issuer is not subeaet income taxation in the United States or thgn@an Islands. Accordingly, no
provision for income taxes has been made in therapanying financial statements.

Pursuant to ASC Topic 748¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxdhe Issuer adopted the provisions of FASB regatin
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes whidrifiles the accounting for income taxes by preseglthe minimum recognition threshold a
tax position must meet before being recognizetiénfinancial statements and applies to all operyéaxs as of the effective date. The
Investment Manager has analyzed such tax posit@nscertain tax positions for tax years that rbayopen (2011 — 2014). The Issuer
identifies its major tax jurisdictions as U.S. Fedgestate and foreign jurisdictions where the éssnakes investments. As of February 28, 201
and 2013, there was no impact to the financiaéstahts
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as a result of the Issuer’s accounting for uncetyan income taxes. The Issuer does not have amgrtognized tax benefits or liabilities for the
years ended February 28, 2014 and 2013, and Fg®20aR012. Also, the Issuer recognizes interedt dmpplicable, penalties for ai
uncertain tax positions, as a component of incarekpense. No interest or penalty expense wasdeddy the Issuer for the years ended
February 28, 2014 and 2013, and February 29, 2012.

6. Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of its business, the Issugy enter into contracts or agreements that comdemnifications or warranties.
Future events could occur that lead to the execwdfdhese provisions against the Issuer. Basdtsdristory and experience, the Investment
Manager feels that the likelihood of such an eve@n¢mote.

In the ordinary course of business, the Issuer dir@gtly or indirectly be a defendant or plaintifflegal actions with respect to
bankruptcy, insolvency or other types of proceeslirBuch lawsuits may involve claims that could aslely affect the value of certain financial
instruments owned by the Issuer. As of February2P84 and 2013, the Issuer is not subject to artgniahlegal proceedings.

The terms of Collateralized Debt Investments mayiire the Issuer to provide funding for any unfushgertion of a Collateralized
Debt Investment at the request of the borroweFéliruary 28, 2014 and 2013, the Issuer had no definommitments.

7. Related-Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business and as permitéedhe terms of the Indenture, the Issuer mayiee@r sell investments to or from
related parties at the fair value at such time.tReryears ended February 28, 2014 and 2013, dmdidrg 29, 2012, the Issuer bought no
investments from related parties and sold investsiiir valued at $0.3 million, $0.0 million and3b& million, respectively, to the Investment
Manager.

The Subordinated Notes are wholly owned by thedtaent Manager. The Subordinated Notes do not Aatated coupon rates, but
are entitled to residual cash flows from the CLDigestments after all of the other tranches of @elot certain other fees and expenses are
paid. For the years ended February 28, 2014 ah8,2td February 29, 2012, $5.7 million, $8.8 milliand $7.9 million of payments to the
Subordinated Notes were included in interest exp@anthe Statement of Operations, respectively.

8. Shareholders’ Capital

Capital contributions and distributions shall bedmat such time and in such amounts as determingeeldnvestment Manager and
the Indenture.
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The majority holder of the Subordinated Notes harsous control rights over the CLO, including thality to call the CLO prior to its
legal maturity, replace the Investment Manager uddain circumstances, and refinance any of thistanding debt tranches. The voting
structure of the Subordinated Notes may requiteeeinajority or unanimous approval depending upengsue.

The authorized share capital of the Issuer consfdi®,000 ordinary shares, 250 of which are owmedaples Finance Limited and
are held under the terms of a declaration of trust.

As of February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013assets were $(3.3) million and $0.8 million, respety. These amounts include
accumulated gains of $0.8 million and accumulatesdés of $(6.0) million, respectively, which inadsccumulative net investment income or
loss, cumulative amounts of gains and losses eghfiom investment transactions, net unrealizedeayigtion or depreciation of investments,
as well as the cumulative effect of accounting naisthes between investments accounted for at faievand amortized cost or accrual-basis
assets and liabilities as discussed in Signifidentiounting Policies, above. The Issuer’s investisienntinue to generate sufficient liquidity to
satisfy its obligations on periodic payment datesvall as comply with all performance criteria ashe Statements of Assets and Liabilities
date.

9. Financial Highlights

The following is a schedule of financial highliglits the years ended February 28, 2014 and 201F%ahcuary 29, 2012:

February 28, February 28, February 29,
2014 2013 2012

Average subordinated notes’ capital balance (1) $ 28,471,991 $ 27,165,49 $ 20,808,67
Ratio and supplemental data:

Total Return (2 4.65% 73.51% 41.28%
Net investment income (. (7.59% 3.8(% 11.3¢%
Total expenses (i 65.271% 70.97% 87.4(%
Base management fee | 1.82% 1.47% 1.9%%
Subordinated management fee 4.472% 5.85% 7.7%

(1) Subordinated notes’ capital balance is calculates#t on the sum of the subordinated notes outsiguadiount and total net assets, net o
ordinary equity.

(2) Total return is calculated based on a time-weighté¢el of return methodology. Quarterly rates ofimetare compounded to derive the tota
return reflected above. Total return is calculdtedhe subordinated notes’ capital taken as a &aad assumes the purchase of the
subordinated notes’ capital on the first day ofgieeod and the sale of the last day of the period.

(3) Calculated based on the average subordinated roatpsal balance.
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10. Subsequent Events
The Investment Manager has evaluated events aetcéions that have occurred since February 28, g#iddgh May 27, 2014, the
date the financial statements were available faraace. The Investment Manager has determinethira are no material events that would

require the disclosure in the financial statements.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES KCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Christian L. Oberbeck, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KSafatoga Investment Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aardd,for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The company’s other certifying officer(s) and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakrmédion relating to the company, including its caitated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disake controls and procedures and presented ingihist our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compaimternal control over financial reporting thatoaed during
the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the teggis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anwaimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the company’s internal control over financegorting; and

5. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxteyhal control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #mg audit committee of the compasyoard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the company’s ability to record, processnswarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: May 27, 2014

/s/ CHRISTIAN L. OBERBECK
Christian L. Oberbec
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES KCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Henri J. Steenkamp, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-KSafatoga Investment Corp.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraaynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsodimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the company aardd,for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The company’s other certifying officer(s) and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned
under our supervision, to ensure that materiakrmédion relating to the company, including its caitated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the company’s disake controls and procedures and presented ingihist our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this report based
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the compaimternal control over financial reporting thatoaed during
the company’s most recent fiscal quarter (the teggis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of anwaimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadf, the company’s internal control over financegorting; and

5. The company'’s other certifying officer(s) and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioxteyhal control over
financial reporting, to the company’s auditors #mg audit committee of the compasyoard of directors (or persons performing thevedent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofimancial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversafgct the company’s ability to record, processnswarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: May 27, 2014

/s/ HENRI J. STEENKAMF
Name: Henri J. Steenkan
Interim Chief Financial Officer and Interim Chieb@pliance Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 104Saratoga Investment Corp. (the “Company”) for @inaual period ended
February 28, 2014, as filed with the Securitiestiexge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtQhristian L. Oberbeck, Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and I, Henri teehkamp, Interim Chief Financial Officer of ther@umany, each certify, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, thatur knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: May 27, 2014 /s/ CHRISTIAN L. OBERBECK
Christian L. Oberbec
Chief Executive Office

/s/ HENRI J. STEENKAMEF
Name: Henri J. Steenkan
Interim Chief Financial Officer and Interim Chieb@pliance Office




